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114 

[Panel I dismissed.] 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Ladies and gentlemen, we're only 

five minutes late getting to our next section, which is the 

from 10:OO a.m. to 4:00 p.m. with an hour for lunch. We'll 

do the DOD joint cross service groups, and we will have 

different chairs. From 10:OO a.m. to 12:OO noon, 

Commissioner A1 Cornella will chair the depot maintenance 

joint cross service group. 

From 1:00 p.m. to 2:00 p.m., General J.B. Davis 

will chair undergraduate pilot training joint cross service 

groups. From 2 : 0 0  p.m. to 3 : 0 0  p.m., ~omnissioner Lee   ling 

will chair medical joint cross service grocps. And from 3 : 0 0  

p.m. to 4 : 0 @  p . m . ,  Admiral Ben Montoyz will chzir labs, test I 
i 

14 
. . 

zn5 e v z l - ~ t z i o r  IoLnz cross service groups. 

15 
I 

- -  . - . I 
~ ~ 9 ~ 1 2  zne ZolRs from cne depor maintenance cross 

I 

16 / service group please join us at the front table? 

COMNISSIONER COPJELLA: [Presiding] Good morning. 1 i 
Our first testimony today in the joint crcss service area 

will be from the depot maintenance group. We are pleased to 

have with us Major General James Klugh, U.S. Army, ~etired, 

who headed the group. )General Klugh serves a6 the Deputy 

Undersecretary of Defense for logistics. 
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He is joined by a distinguished panel of senior 

I personnel from the Army, Navy, Air Force and the Defense 
1 Logistics Agency, who will remain with us all day for the 

I 
I Brigadier General James E. Shane, Jr., Director of 

4 

5 

7 1 Management, the Office of the Chief of Staff of the Army; Mr. 1 

succeeding cross service testimony on pilot training, medical 

services, and labs and tests and evaluations. They are 

lo I Special Assistant to the Chief of Staff of the Air Force for 

8 

9 

11 / Base Realignment and Transition; and Ns. Marge McManamay is 

Charles Nemfakos, vice Chairman, Navy Base Structure 

Evaluation Committee; Major General Jay D. Blume, Jr., 

12 ' ill today and won't be with us, but we will forward all 1 
I 

1-2 1 queszions for the DL,& zo her .  I 

- A rn -- . . . -  
I -: - L l ~ r ~  be n,- opening stzremencs, so we can 

-7-r.- 15 e ~ d u e e 6  eirec:L7- - -- -- - -hs ~ueszions fron the commissioners. 

1 6  , F'irsc, however, would you p lease  s t a n d  and be s w o r n .  A l s o ,  

I 

' 7  
. - 

- ,  -- 7 -  :here a r e  an;- thzz  will ' De giving back-up testimony with 

18 / the panel, pleese stand an2 raise your hands also. 
I 

I 
I 

(Panel sworn.) 

20 I COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Mr. Klugh, please explain 
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22 

in general terms the joint cross service group study of.depok 

maintenance. 



2 1 group on depot maintenance complied with the memorandum and I 
1 

direction the Secretary of Defense issued in January of 1994. 

We established a joint cross service group with 

representatives from all the military departments and defense 

agencies. The representatives were specifically selected by 

the secretaries of those departments, or heads of'those 

departments. 

116 

MR. KLUGH: Mr. Chairman, the joint cross service 

We set up objectives to remedy the criticism from 

BRAC '93, but focused on reducing capacity and reducing the 

infrastructure; increasing efficiency; and increasing our 

12 / support to readiness. We established an analytical team to 
I 

I 
13 supporr zhs qroup, and we established e data action team to 

I 

14 suzpcr: :he qrous; thzc  is, TO povide the database support 

7 5 - :ha: we needed co handle the myriad of depot maintenance. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Would the timer please give 

me 10 minutes on the timer? Please describe excess capacity, 

or current excess capacity in DOD facilities in percentage 

terms, and I know that may be difficult. Could you do that 

by service and by depot? 

MR. KLUGH: Yes. The method for determining excess 

capacity, determining capacity is spelled out in the 
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1 determines the work hours, annual hours, per individual. It 

1 

'111 

I determines the number of work stations within the depot, and 

117 

-- Department of Defense -- directive. Essentially, it 

1 the number per co'mmodity. And so you also apply the 

I availability of time that an individual can devote to the 
6 1 primary duty. 

SO there is a formula, then, that suggests that the 

8 1 number of work stations multiplied times the annual hours 

I applying and availability factor, equals the capacity of that 
lo i particular line or that particular commodity. And of course, 

l1 I you carry that on to that particular depot. We determined 

1 2  1 that there was sufficient excess capacity that ranged from 
i 

- - 
A d abocz 4 to E depoc e q u i v a l e n t s .  

14 C m I S S I C N E R  COPdELLL.: What is the impact of the 

13 239:s SRAC recommendations on the excess capacity? 

- 7 

it. X R .  KLUGH: Prior to BRAC ' 9 5 ,  we had already 
, I 
, 

17 1 processed depots through the BRAC process, and had concluded 

1 

l8 i that -- and gotten approval through that process -- 11 
maintenance depots for closure. That's 11 out of 35. That I 

2 2  I Applying BRAC ' 95 ,  we carried that on to 42 percent I 

2 0  

21 
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1 

1 have reduced shipyards by 50 percent; the Navy would have 

118 

reduction. For a military department, if we look at the 

2 

3 

* 1 reduced aviation depots by 50 percent. The overall 

closures through the BRAC process from '88 through '95, the 

Army would have reduced depots by 55 percent; the Navy would 

6 / reduction, as I said, sir, would be about 42 percent. I 
COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Now, that's in number of 

1 depots, not in capacity, or is that capacity? 

MR. KLUGH: That's in number of depots. As far as 

lo 1 capacity is concerned, in BRAC '95,  we determined that we had I 
11 I about 40 million direct labor hours of excess capacity. The I 

I 
1 2  / report that we forwarded to the commission will take that 

- - - .  - 
A - ~ o v n  5y abouz 2 4   illio ion clrect -- ~ ' n  sorry, 24 million 

I 

- - .. - - xhz: we're tzjrin; it down, totzlly, now, about 42 percenc. 

ZOMKISSIONER COmELLA: M s .  Relleher, have you been I 
I 

1 7  1 administered the oath? 
! 

MS. KELLEHER: [Nodding.] 

CO~ISSIONER CORNELLA: Thank you. What would have i 
20 I been the impact on excess capacity if the joint cross service 

21 I alternatives had been accepted? 

MR. KLUGH: The joint cross service group submitted 
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two alternatives to the military departments. Number one 

alternative would have had remaining, after BRAC '95, about 

2 0  million direct labor hours; again, taking the capacity 

4 

5 

6 

7 

lo I number. But about 15 million direct labor hours remain after 

down about 5 0  percent. The alternative number two took that 

down a bit further. Applying alternative number two, we 

would have had about 15 million direct labor hours remaining 

after BRAC '95. > 

8 

9 

The specific number to the decimal point has been 

provided to you in the report, and we will refine that 

COMMISSIONER COFSTELLA: The Air Force's elimination 

11 

12 

15 ; cf excess czpacity requires re-engineering of the core work 

applying the second alternative. The report that we 

forwarded to the Commission has about 24 million direct labor 

1E load. What would the Air Force's excess capacity be if the 
I 
I 

17 1 re-engineering cannot be accomplished? 

'Qll - 7 ?  - hours remaining, after applying BRAC ' 9 5 .  
i 

18 1 MR. KLUGH: First of all, I do not believe that the 

22 I capability to perform the workload. And there is associated, 

19 

2 0 

21 
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capability to perform depot work -- the essential systems 

necessary for war fighting, representing the skills and 



engineering the processes within those depots to become more 

1 

2 

3 

efficient. That is, changing the number of work stations, 

the number of people in the line; putting in enhancement 

direct labor hours, of maintenance hours, associated with 

that core function. 

What I believe the Air Force is doing is, re- 

tools, enablers, automation and things of that nature. And 

SO to the extent that they can accomplish that, they can 

reduce the number of hours that it takes to perform work. 

What they are also doing is reducing, eliminating 

the occupancy of a number of buildings. In other words, they I 
! 

are contracting in the facilities that they have, but not re- I 
13 / engineering the core, but re-engineering the process. 1 

I 
I 

14 , CONNISSIONER CORVELL;: I'm noc sure the question I 
i5 was answered in regzrd to what would the excess capacity be 

if it is not accomplished? 

MR. KLUGH: If it's not accomplished? 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: If it's not accomplished. 

MR. KLUGH: The BRAC cross service group determined I 
that the excess capacity in the Air Force ranged from about a 

depot and three-quarters of a depot. And therefore, if they 

22 1 do not accomplish eliminating that excess capacity, we still I 
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1 1 have excess capacity remaining. Our first alternative -- the 

I Air Force reduce their excess capacity rather -- well, in 
1 line with the alternative. 

I And number two would have required the Air Force to 

I consider closing two depots. To the extent and then the 

6 1 submission that the Air Force has forwarded of reducing five 1 

1 would reduce the direct labor hours in line with the same 

7 

1 number that we had in alternatives one and two. Now, to the 

depots rather than closure, they have reported that they 

lo I extent that they accomplished that, the OSD reduction in 
11 / capacity would be as I outlined earlier. 

I I 
COMMISSIONER CORNELIA: If it would not be I 

I QV I I 

i3 , accomplished, it would increase, would it not, the excess 
1 j 

IG.. KL'JGX: Yes. If they do not accomplish the:, w i ! 

k r i l l  maintzin very significant excess capacity. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Thank you. Mr. Klugh, 
1 
I 

please describe the concept of maximum potential capacity. i 
MR. KLUGH: Maximum potential capacity assumes the 1 

current funding and current program workload. It does not 

assume significant increase in military construction or 

investment in capital. It assumes re-engineering the 
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processes. It assumes rearrangement of the depot into any 

configuration which would enable you to do more than what 

your current capacity is; to optimize the capabilities of the 

particular depot.' 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: You addressed the military 

construction expenditure. Would it also require a second 

shift to achieve that potential? 

MR. KLUGH: No, sir, it would not. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Describe how your joint 

cross service group assigned functional values to each of the 

depots and shipyards. 

MR. KLUGH: We divided the commodities into 16 

groups. We established an objective to size the depots to 

core. We weighted the work that is performed in depots. P-nd 

we applied the greatest amount of weight to the core areas. 

In fact, of 100 points, we applied about 6 0  points to the 

core category; about 30 points to workload that is above 

core, outside the core range; and about 10 percent to the 

environmental function. 

We rank the depots in that way, by applying those 

weighted values to the functions, the workload, that'is being 

performed in the depot. 
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realigning Letterkenny. Is that a correct interpretation of 1 

that chart? i 
I 

MR. KLUGH: That is correct, sir. I 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Then on Navy shipyaras, the cross 

I 

service groups -- one said, close Portsmouth and Pearl 

Harbor; the other one said, close Long Beach, Portsmouth and 

Pearl Harbor; and the DOD recommends Long Beach. 

123 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: My time is expired. Irm 

going to allow each commissioner 8 minutes to question the 

panel in the first round. And we'll start on my right, with 

Chairman Dixon. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. 

Klugh, I was out of the room for a few minutes, so if I 

duplicate something, would you forgive me? I'm looking at 

the chart, chart one, on the explanation of the 8 joint cross 

service group proposals. You see it up there now? Have we 

discussed that in your testimony so far? 

MR. KLUGH: No, sir. 
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I 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Now, as I understand it, this is a \ I 

work product, pretty much of the cross service groups that 
I 
I 

said, in effect, close Red River end Letterkenny. A n 2  the 
I 

result has been that the DOD is closing Red River an2 , 
1 



MR. KLUGH: That is correct. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: The Navy aviation depots, both 

groups said Jacksonville should be closed, that DOD did not 

close. 

MR. KLUGH: That is also correct. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Navy weapons center, Crane- 

Louisville and Keyport were on each list. Crane-Louisville 

is closed, and Keyport is realigned. And on the Air Force 

aviation, San Antonio, which is Kelly, and Sacramento, which 

is McClellan, were on the one list. On the other list, San 

Antonio was on the list alone for closure. And all were 

downsized instead, in the DOD report. Is that accurate? 

MR. KLUGH: That's correct, sir. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: 1/11 ask you, first of all, yazr 

view with respect to Navy shipyards. Thst is to say, whsz is 

your view of the DODrs recommendation, having in mind the 

recommendations of the cross service groups. 

MR. KLUGH: As it pertains to shipyards, the joint 

cross service group recognized that that workload is probably 

not conducive to intraservicing. That workload in the 

shipyard is principally Navy. And you have about three 

categories, but two basic categories -- a nuclear workload 
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1 and non-nuclear workload. And then, in the Navy, they have, I 
in addition to depots, special weapons centers, warfare 

centers, some on the list of 2 4  depots and some smaller 

I facilities that are not. 

I And some of the workload that specifically relates 

to depot maintenance had been transferred and done outside of 

those 2 4  depots in some instances. And so in theLcross 

service group number two, to the right, where we identified 

those three depots, what we said to the Navy -- that it I 
appears to us in the alternative that we provided them, that 

you have sufficient capacity to close two of those. I 
i 

And it compares with alternative number one, where I 

i 
it showed two. The difference in two, it showed Long Seach. I 

i 

Well, one of those is a non-nuclezr depot, L o n ~  Beach, ane 

the other two are nuclear. So we did noc cry to, in che 

joint cross service group, to really come ro the specific 
i 
I 

option when you looked at the weapons centers, the shipyards, r 
l 

and depots, but specifically seaside. We asked the Navy to 

look in depth and make that assessment. 

So the Navy, after reviewing that in detail, came 

back with Long Beach. But they transferred quite a bit of 

work to other activities. 
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CHAIRMAN DIXON: But in effect, the Navy has 

finally selected -- or, I apologize, well, in fact, the 

Department of Defense has testified exactly what the services 

gave them. So I can correctly represent that it was the 

Navy's decision, given to the DOD, which took them to close 

Long Beach, as distinguished from Portsmouth on the one hand, 

or Pearl Harbor on the other; each of the other two having 

nuclear capabilities. Is that -- 

MR. KLUGH: That's correct, sir. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: It's almost an interesting thing 

to observe that on one of the lists, Long Beach didn't even 

make the list originally. 

MR. KLUGH: On alternative number one, Long Leaci-. 

was not on that list. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Do you know the reason why? 

MR. KLUGE: There were six runs, if yoc will, ir 

l7 I our linear programming model, to come up with the best 
alternatives to provide to the military department. In fact, 

I 
we made about 18 different runs. 

i 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: I see. 

MR. KLUGH: But six of those runs were the best 

that would accomplish the objective. And that is to 
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eliminate excess capacity; reduce number of depots; but also 

reduce the number of places that we perform work. So those 

six alternatives, four of them were identical. Four of them 

were identical to cross service group one. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: I see. 

MR. KLUGH: Only one of the six was different, and 

that was the one which identified Long Beach. And that was 

the run based on minimum excess capacity in applying the 

function of values. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Is all that information available 

for us, Mr. Klugh? 

MR. KLUGH: Yes, sir. In fact, I have provided the 

charts which identify the specific runs. Buz I've aiso 

- - provided the spreadsheer that pro~~ides Z I -  of r h e  det~ils as 

to where that work went. 

CHA1,NQ.N DIXON: Now, ir, the Navy aviation depots, 

Jacksonville was on both lists that DOD did not close. 

MR. KLUGH: Correct, sir. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Navy weapons center Crane- 

Louisville and Keyport were on both lists for closure. And 

Crane-Louisville is closed, and Keyport is downsized, 

realigned. 
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MR. KLUGH: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Now, with respect to the ~ i r  

Force, as I understand it, Kelly made both lists; McClellan, 

one. All have been downsized in place, under the 

recommendations of the Air Force. 

MR. KLUGH: That is correct, sir. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: And what do you have to say about 

that, Mr. Klugh? 

MR. KLUGH: First of all, the Navy, in 

Jacksonville, showing up on one and two -- 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Yes. 
I 

MR. KLUGH: -- and t h e  department not including 

Jacksonville, rhe N a - q -  ha5 s o w  elternatives. Remember I 

- . . 
7.4 1 menrioned zhar same c' Z:LE Cegc: ,or+: LS done iz wazpoc A - 

, 
I 

15 / centers, in warfare centers; due _= ? XZS:- sfrztegy ~ ~ m e t i m ~ ,  
I 

1 ago, prior to the last :KO 5?Ai processes. The Navy chose ta 
I , 
I 

17 l6 i close some of those centers. They had 2 choice -- close 
I 

I 

18 Jacksonville, or close some of those centers znd transfer the 1 1 
19 

I 
depot work into the depot, or leave those centers open and 

20 transfer some of the work out to those centers. 

21 The Navy chose to close some of the warfare 

22 centers, and transfer the depot work back into its depots. 
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The key that we were focused on in this case was to reduce 

2 1 the excess capacity and reduce the number of lines, and 

I maximize saving of dollars. And I think the actions the Navy I 
I 

I took in this case falls within the range, I think. It 

I complements those objectives. 

question 

6 

7 

is, 

As far as the Air Force and the air logistics 

centers, if you focus on one logistics center, and the 

do I save more money by closing or realign? 

probably always most times, saving more money by closure. 

~ u t  if you focus on eliminating one depot equivalent, and you 

have five by which to realign, then perhaps the alternative 

of realigning five depots may be the best solution. I 
I 

9 .  The Air ?srce -- iz wzs 1csnzifie2 for the Air 

- -, . - - .  \ .  
& d  

- - 
r i ~ ~ l l c r ,  c i r ecc  imor hour ereE. And through this process, 

1 6  &' 
I 

~ne!; arf reporzing t h a ~  they- w ~ l l  be able tc realign all 
I 

1 7  1 depots and achieve something pretty close to that. I I 

18 I c H A I m  DIxoN: My time is up, but 1/11 ask this 
i 

19 
I 
final question. To be more simple than the numbers you've 

20 used, how many depots -- Air Force excess depots would there 
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w 1 

2 

If you focus on the depot's activities, specifically, and not 

realigning all the activities within the air logistics 

3 

4 

5 

center, would be about a depot and three-quarter equivalent; 

about 10 million direct labor hours. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELIA: Commissioner Cox. 

6 

7 

8 

I 
12 / on one was because it had the minimum excess capacity. Is 

w I 
1 2  
A-I ihat whaz y a ~  seid? 

I 

COMMISSIONER COX: Thank you. I just want to 

follow up on one thing, because I think I got confused. When 

the chairman asked you about the Navy yards and you said 

9 

10 

11 

14 . I :  We r;ec;̂  t x o  cate~ories of runs to come 

15 zo chose zlternz~ives. G n e  was bzsee ~ r !  nlinimizing the 

there was a group of, I think, 12 scenarios that went through 

and that Long Beach only ended up on one of those scenarios. 

And what I think you said is that the reason it only ended up 

1 E  number of sites; that is, the naximized number of closures. 
I 

17 1 And the second one was, minimize excess capacity. And we 
I 

COMMISSIONER COX: Right. 

18 

19 

20 

MR. KLUGH: When you minimize capacity, the model 

applied a linear programming model to that. When you 

minimize sites, the model is trying to close the number of 

sites. 
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1 efficiently. So we expected the specific closures to come 

1 out somewhat different. We were surprised that they came out I 
4 1 so close, in that minimizing sites, even while applying I 

1 the same alternatives. 

5 

I When applying the minimizing excess capacity, we 

maximum military value and applying functional values, we got 

10 / alternatives to work from, two different ways to get to the I 

8 

9 

11 1 end state of reducing excess capacity, we chose to send to 

got the same as minimized site in two cases. But in one 

case, we had a different list. So since we had two different 
I 

..- ! 
ii I the military departments both for further analysis. 

I 
Osr f l r s z  sl~brnission to the military department was I 

I 

zne cost an5 repcr-, back :a zhe grous .  

C3MXISSIONEE C O X :  3nt you didn't look at costs. 

For example, you talk abouk two different philosophies -- 

one, minimize sites and at least, arguably, if you close more 

sites, you've saved more. Although, obviously, it depends on 

each one. And the other one, you looked at minimizing excess 

capacity. You didn't look at costs -- that just got sent out 
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132 

as alternatives? 

MR. KLUGH: Yes. Cost is really determined by the 

COBRA model runs. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Uh-huh. 

MR. KLUGH: And it was decided up front that the 

military departments would actually make the COBRA runs, not 

the joint cross service group. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Right. And so without the 

costs, though -- putting that aside, then, because you didn't 

do that -- either way, you came out with closing at least two 

shipyards. 

Y V T P W .  \ U U V L I .  "L-" ~ l i a  L right. 

13 
I 

COMNISSIONER COX: Interesting. And I'm sorry, why 
, 

14 - 7 - 7 -  

- - - H ~ - L L  IZ 3~ 50: z x z n ~ l e ,  FT. r . i n i r . i z i n 9  capacity that you -- 

i 5 
A- mzybe 1 c = r f z  understzne the 3hilosophy here -- but why would 

i F 
I -- you end up with Long Seach noc on thar list? 
1 
I 

17 i MR. KLUGH: It is. 
I 

COMMISSIONER COX: I'm sorry, that is on the list? 

MR. KLUGH: Yes. 

2 o  I COMMISSIONER COX: And why does that minimize 

21 / capacity? 

MR. KLUGH: When you minimize retention of excess 
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capacity -- 

1 COMMISSIONER COX: Right. 

MR. KLUGH: -- then you tend to use up the capacity i 
that you have in larger depots. And when you maximize the 

number of sites to be closed -- 

COMMISSIONER COX: You tend to close smaller ones. 

MR. KLUGH: That's right. * 

COMMISSIONER COX: I see. 

MR. KLUGH: And so we ran it both ways. And by 

running it both ways, we had more alternatives to provide to 

the military department for further detailed analysis. 

C-)Q,r' " " - i-sslONER COX: I see. But in each case, 
I w - - - .  

-- rr.L,lzzrl- vzlue was consicjerec? 

Diversif ied Reporti~lg Services, Inc. 
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- - . . .. - - 2383!I5SIOKEZ C O X :  Rlq~z. Lez me ask just an 

- c - - - -  over^-- ~ueszlcn, and it's probably way too vague, and you're 
I 
I - ? 7  1 welcome Co beg off. But in general, in going through your ! 

I 

18 / cross servicinq idea, do you believe that consolidation of 
I 

I 
I 

1 9  

2 0  

2  1 

2 2  

functions is more efficient, saves money, is more productive? 

There ere always exceptions, of course. 

MR. KLUGH: It depends a lot on the circumstances, 

like the number of alternatives that you have. If you were 
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looking at a single depot, then, in general, I would say that 

shrinking and consolidating probably would not give you the 

same savings as elimination, whether it's elimination of 

things or the whole part. 

But when you have a lot of other activities that 

you can consider, then you have a lot of other flexibilities 

by which to do that. And in some cases, I would suggest that 

downsizing or shrinking may give you a better alternative 

than actual closure. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Mm-hmm. And when you looked at 

the, I guess what you called the core capacity at each of 

those, what does that mean? You looked at the specific 

f~nccions? Each of these depots had its own sort of major 

fcnctiaz. EnC I guess you had to look at that because moving 

thzc wo~la be very expensive and you were trying to avoid 

K I 3 C O K  ane thac kina of -- 

MR. KLUGH: That 's  correct.  

COMMISSIONER COX: I see. So the main reason -- 

getting back to, I think, the point you just made -- that you 

would have to downsize rather than close is because you do 

have these core functions that are difficult, at least in 

cost, to move? 
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2 

3 

9 1 think thatfs very appropriate because what is of military 

135 

MR. KLUGH: That's correct. And in some cases, you 

may only have the capability to do a certain function within 

a particular depot. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

COMMISSIONER COX: Uh-huh.  id you do any, in 

looking at the depots, any sort of separate analysis on 

military value? 

MR. KLUGH: No, we did not. We asked the military 

departments to determine military value of the site. We 

COMMISSIONER COX: So you took -- GAO testified 

10 

11 

I 
I 

i3 this morning that, at least in the Air Force side, the 
I 

value to a seagoing operation would certainly be different 

than perhaps a land campaign type of activity. 

14 assigning of militery value mzy have been fine, but they 

Diversified Reportirlg Services, Inc. 
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I 
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15 canJ- really document it. You didn't do anything separate to 1 
I 

I i 
16 lsok at that yourself? 

17 MR. KLUGH: No. We accepted the military 1 
18 department's input. We received the military value from each 1 
19 

20 

21 

22 

of the military departments with their certified data. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Right. 

MR. KLUGH: And we accepted that data. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Okay. Let me ask Mr. Nemfakos, 



2 I detachment at Louisville, have you been involved in that? I 
MR. NEMFAKOS: We have looked at what the community 1 I 

I is proposing at that activity. And what we've said is that 

5 1 there certainly is an enormous amount of promise in what I 
6 

7 

lo 1 They are, as I understand it, dealing now with two 

they're trying to do. The community is talking, as I 

understand it, about establishing -- if the commission 
8 

9 

confirms our recommendation -- establishing a large 

industrial complex. 

13 to take over and use. And then, essentially, competing for 
I 

11 

12 

1 additionel work. As you know, probably, rne plating faciliq7 

i I 

15 , at Louisville is a world-class plating facility. Right now 
I 

major manufacturers to bring their product lines into those 

facilities. That we would work with them in re-use, for them I 

i 

I 16 it's limited to the kind of work it can do because we can't 

i 
I 

I 

I compece with the private sector to bring work into Navy I 
I 

IS I industrial activities. 

! 
But for example, if the local community was to put 1 
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20 

21 

22 

that to use, there is a broad range of activity that would be 

of potential. So that's what they're talking about doing. I 

think they're working very hard to come up with a good idea. 



13 7 

And what we have told them, from the Department of the Navy 

perspective is that if they can come up with something that 

makes sense for them and sense for the Department of the 

Navy, we're prepared to support them in terms of post-base 

closure allowing them to bring work in to the extent they're 

cost competitive. 

COMMISSIONER COX: And did you consider'that 

privatization proposal, which at least was around in 1993 

when you wrote the language recommending closure of the naval 

surface warfare detachment? 

MR. NEMFAKOS: We were aware, commissioner Cox, 

that they were working on something. As we testified in the 

opening session before the w om mission, we deliberately have 

14 j worded that recommendation, as well as all our other 

I I 

15 I recommendations, to provide us the greatest amount of 
i 

flexibility in dealing with the communities. It's our view 

17 / that the wording of the recommendation provides enough 

18 1 latitude for the community to execute the program that they 
I 

19 1 are currently -- as we understand it -- they are currently 

20 1 pursuing. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Thank you. 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Yes, ma'am. 
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COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Commissioner Davis. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: General Klugh, with your 

permission, I would like to address my first question to 

General Blue, since, one, he hasn't had one, and I don't 

want him to get off easy. But it's not really a question -- 

well, it is. In the previous two hours, Jay, the Air Force 

was rather severely pilloried by the GAO about their 

process -- the fact that the GAO did not have access to your 

working groups and to your data. 

I think it would be appropriate before we get into 

some of the questions which will clearly come to you, your I 
thoughts on that process; why the Air Force did it the way 

1 
I 

they did. And if you had it to do over again, would you 

change it? 

GENERAL BLUME: The answer to the last parr of y o c r  

question, sir, is, I think the Air Force would do it exacillT 
I 

as they did before. I think, though, that there's always I 

improvements. The Air Force, in this particular BRAC '95, 1 
I 

tried to improve from the previous rounds. The Air Force 

process has not changed. It was the same process that was 

used -- basic process, let me say -- in 1991, '93 and '95. 

It is true the Air Force restricted the GAO from 

Diversified Reporting Services, 1 1 1 ~ .  
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5 1 to discuss whatever was to be discussed on that particular I 

3 

4 

process. This was not an intent to try and keep them out, 

but to give a clear and open opportunity for the BCEG members 

6 

7 

10 1 say that is, there are minutes to every Air Force meeting. 

day. 

The documentation allegation, I think, in my 

8 

9 

personal opinion, is totally -- if they can read, they should 

be able to follow the Air Force process. And the reason I 

l3 1 documented, as far as the happenings in chose meetings. 

11 

12 

7 

ii SZJ 1 acn'c underszan6. - e~ ckin;-: c k z t  :hers cr.: 
, 

1 z 
A _  cwo places where che Air Force acZ the GAO heve 2 

16 / disagreement. One is, +t -he be~inning of the Air Force 
i 

17 process -- and this is different than the previous two 

1S 1 rounds -- in trying to meet the GAO requirements that they 

Every one of the 22 meetings with the Secretary of the Air i 

1 
Force and the Chief of Staff of the Air Force wzs also 

I 

19 

2 0  

nirersified R u ~ l n r t i l l q  Seriir:~!s, 1 1 1 ~ .  ! 
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had alluded that the Air Force was too subjective, the Air 

Force put weights and measures on their evaluations of all 
I I 

21 

22 

the subgroup and subelements; and used a database and a 

computer just to roll these up into aggregate grades. 

I 



14 0 

However, the ~ i r  Force feels very firmly that it 

I should not be a five decimal place number as far as the 

scoring; that there should be functional experts that look at 

this analysis and then do the final scoring to build a 

tiering of bases, which then goes to the Secretary of the Air 

Force. 

So this scoring is the contention -- or contentious 

point -- between the Air Force, I believe, and the GAO. It's 

hard to get in the minds of 13 functional experts, throughout 

the air staff, and to know how they're going to score the 

top-line reading -- that is, the first three colors, the I 
I 

numerical costing, plus the return on investment, all $. 

criteria, as well as the final impact on the c c n n ~ n i t > - ,  

impzct c? the bzse, 2nd the ispacz e s  f+r zs z-s ~ ~ . ~ : i r c n z z z r  

This is done in t h e  hezds cf tnasc particulzr 

gentlemen who are sitting around the base closure executive , 

I group table. Their voting, then, aligns our bases -- the Air I 

; 
I 

Force bases -- into a particular alignment, and then you look 1 
I 

for natural break points. Those that are scored high come to 

the top. Those that are scored low come to the bottom. 

There is no quota or anything like that, so you look to see 
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I t h e  GAO has  a very  d i f f i c u l t  t ime of t a k i n g  t h a t  t i e r i n g ,  

4 1 t hen ,  even though -- 1/11 guaran tee  you, i f  you look a t  t h e  I 
t o p  l i n e ,  I t h i n k  a r a t i o n a l  person would s a y ,   h his base 

should bett -- and we c a l l  it t i e r  1, t i e r  2 ,  and t i e r  3 -- 

"should be our  good, b e t t e r ,  o r  b e s t  base . "  I 
COMMISSIONER D A V I S :  Thank you ve ry  much. Can you 

b r ing  up c h a r t  5 ,  p l ea se?  

General  Klugh, whi le  he ' s  b r i n g i n g  t h i s  up, t h i s  is  

I 
a comparison of c l o s u r e  COBRA d a t a  from each m i l i t a r y  ! 
department.  I t 's  kind of hard t o  r ead .  

COMMISSIONER D I X O N :  Can you b r i g h t e n  thzc E 

1 4  : l i t t l e ?  
i 

15 , COMMISSIONER D A V I S :  Yeah. W e f i l  provide yo- z 

copy of it. 
I 

General  Klugh, t h e r e  a r e  s i g n i f i c a n t  d i f f e r e n c e s  i 
I 

between t h e  s e r v i c e s 1  COBRA e s t ima te  t o  c l o s e  depots .  For i 
! 

example, t h e r e  a r e  s u b s t a n t i a l  d i f f e r e n c e s  i n  percentage of I 
2 o  I people  who would be moved. D i d  t h e  j o i n t  s e r v i c e  group come 

up wi th  an  e s t i m a t e ,  a percen tage  of people ,  t h a t  would move 

upon c l o s u r e  of a depot?  

Uiversified Rcpurting Services, 111c. 
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w 1 

The COBRA runs 

1 4 2  

GENERAL KLUGH: To the extent that direct labor 

2 

3 

4 

is the model 

hours would remain at a depot or would not remain at a depot, 

in case of closure, thatfs the extent by which we, as the 

joint cross-service group, could identify the people shift. 

to determine exactly how many 

would go to a certain 

work in a depot, 

location or not, because, 

you don't need a one-for-one. 

as you absorb 

So there has 

to be some analysis as to the people that you really need to 

do that, and that is done in the COBRA model. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: But, General Klugh, there 

seems to be a significant difference between the percent 

realigned, the bottom line there, between services -- w h e r e ,  

w 
13 ( you know, the Air Force falls outside th7o s i g m z  oc 2 b s l l  

! 
anc projablk-  Ens mezn is sornevnere 2rsunG the  L5 

15 1 percentile. Did -,he j o i n r  service group za:?:? E 10oj: e: T;zr 
I 

16 / at all? 

GENERAL KLUGH: No. There was no Val- 

joint cross-service group could really cornsere these. It is 

obvious from these -- it was obvious to us -- that the 

services have a different way of applying the COBM runs. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: All right, sir. 

If I could switch to Army depots, General Klugh, 

IIi\.ersificd Rcportii~g Scn.iccs, IIIL.. 
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the cross-service initially recommended the decentralization 

of the tactical missile maintenance and then, later, approved 

the Army's plan, which is kind of a decentralization but 

takes it a bit different than your original recommendation. 

Can you tell us why that change in views? Or do you 

remember? 

military department the alternatives, where the centers of 

7 

8 

excellence exist, in order to perform specific work. We 
I 

still feel that there is something to be gained in reducing 

GENERAL KLUGH: Well, in applying the linear I 

program model, we really were trying to offer up to the 

- - . - 
the number of sites where work is perfarmel. La ricz, we r c ;  

as an objective, where something is conno- - o  :u2 21 r c r z  

. . services, :o rec~ce to one pla,:e iihere :he czri :  is DEZ~CZEE;. 

1 
15 ' 7 As you know, zne zazc:,E1 z . : z s : , ~  - o  e follsx-cr. z; 

16 1 BR4C ' 9 3 .  W e  w e r e  very c a r e f u l ,  cs k-s reviewed wnax To do 

I I 

17 1 with tactical missile, is it impaccs the 5 R k C  '5 ;  cecislons. 
I 1 
In changing -- when you look at ail the depots together -- 

and specifically look at the Army depots, in this case, and 

the capabilities of Tobyhanna and Letterkenny -- an option 

the Army chose to optimize what Lstterkenny is best at in 

their realignment business and what Tobyhanna could do for 

I l i ~ e r s i f i e d  R c ~ ~ n r t i n q  Scrviccs ,  111c. 
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I 1 4 4  

that particular commodity, it seemed to me, was a reasonable 

conclusion. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Mr. Chairman, I've got more 

questions in that area, but my time is expired. 1/11 come 

back to it later. Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Thank you, Commissioner 

Davis. Commissioner Kling? 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Nemfakos, turning back to the naval warfare 

centers, I believe -- and I hope I'm not going to be 

redundant; maybe I missed it. But we commented on the 

I privatization in Louisville, and I d o n ' t  Selievs ue zouctac 
1 

on it in Indianapolis. Did we? 

W.. NEMFAKOS: No, sir, ~2 eie;?'; YE:: :  abou: ir 

earlier. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Couid we have the same 

questions to you concerning ~ndianapolis? I 
I 

Lion, i MR. NENFAKOS: Yes, sir. As a general proposit' 
I 

my answers would be the same, except for the circumstances of 

the two activities are somewhat different, in the sense that 

Louisville is a much more heavily industrialized activity, as 

you know, and therefore is further along, in my judgement, in 

Uiversifiud R e ~ ~ u r t i n q  Services, Inc. 
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i dealing with the private sector, to bring manufacturers in, 
2  

3 

closure list and we close those activities, 

than is Indianapolis. 

But the proposition is generally the same. It is a I 
4 

5 

the local 

proposition that says, "If the  omm mission endorses, the 

President forwards, and the Congress approves the base 

community would like the opportunity to take over the sites, 

8 

9 

utilize what is there, create a private venture that could 

then compete for public work." And in both cases, an 

1 0  

11 

envisioning of, if, in fact, they can create a center of 

excellence, having the government potentialiy rent space i 

12 

w there and work with certain 05 zhe si-sre:r z k e  is o p p c ~ i s c  

:4 - Bock chose icees eri r.::. is ;;; :zr rz-- fros r:. 

I 
15 , comments, nazcre. 30ti C ~ ~ Z : - Z ~ O C  z r e  VZ-I::FX~ -v-ST:- FEZ;. 

l6 I And I believe the recomenlztions ~ h a c  we nave made i r  

U h e r s i f i e d  n c p u r t i r ~ g  Servicils, Inc. 
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13 to building space some~nere else. 
I 

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

2 0  

I 

neither instance would p r e c l u d e  kringins whaz Lney uoula like , 
I 
I 

to do to fruition. The issue is, can they bring ir off? Can i 

they bring the private-sector interests in? Can they create 

a viable commercial enterprise zone that would be able to 
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Those are the kinds of things that we would be 

prepared to aggressively pursue with them, because, clearly. 

3 

4 

7 work done at a lower cost. 

8 COMMISSIONER KLING: I think that's a great answer 

9 and a great comment, and I totally support that and agree 

it's a win-win proposition. If they can do it, it's great I 

for the community, and if they can do it successfully, the I 

5 

6 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Thank you, sir. 

implication is that the Department of the Navy, and therefore 

the United States taxpayer, is going to be able to get his 

- 3 c,n-,= - .C COMMISSIONE? R S I N C :  Sc - ----- . -  c c x c  forvcr5 
i 

- .  - 13 And I guess ~ O L  vill c c ~ t F ~ ~ ~ l ~ i -  5 2 s ~  e :t-z-.L- ;:izr ~ 5 ~ :  - 
! 

1 4  :  the^^ ~3 f 3rw-F; CL - . 
I 

i5 , p z .  N E V ? ~ ~ L ~ < , S S :  ;rsc --- ' A  , - Y  - ..-Z---- - - - .  . . -- . - L . L . - ~ -  2 -= . *k- - ,L  :s L-:&T 
! 

1 6  i both the local commuili:ies, z s  v ~ i i  as ~ n e  w a r f z r e  cencer 
I 

1 leadership, ii e 2s thz c o m e  ;: h e  biiii Sea Lye;ems i 

i 
18 l i  1 C~rnmand, are wcrkinq closely rogether zc see ho? chis kind of 

an idea could work, upon approval of a closure process. i 
I 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Great. 

Does the Navy's rejection of a proposed commercial I 

I 
I 

WASHINGTON. C.C. 20006 i 

2 2  and government use of the propeller shop and foundry in 



3 

4 

5 

6 

COMMISSIONER KLING: 

MR. NEMFAKOS: I'm sorry, sir. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Does the Navy's rejection of a 

proposed commercial and government use of the propeller shop 

and foundry in ~hiladelphia relate to the potential for the 

7 

8 

Okay. 

Indianapolis proposal? 

MR. NEMFAKOS: No, sir, it doesn't. 

Thank you. 

The General ~ccounting Office testimony this 

l1 I morning recommended thzc the Commission thoroughly examine I 

12 1 the bases for exclusior.~ t; the cost zne ~i - i - i : .~~  5 - n  w I 13 I associated with reconnen2~~i~ns f e r  r . z ~ - a l  2;: - - - - =  .> "- - Z T f  cents--E 

- I ,L - 3 .  - .  
zt Sou:sv:lls, -nc:anz~:-:s, ca7e lz,,-= s .  --. --.  -"--c - - volc Z-E~SE 

Ifi\ crsificd Re[rurtirrg Scri.iccs, Irrc. 
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1 

l6 i m,. NEKF>2<05: 2 ~ m t i s s l o n e r  Kiln?, es we wen: 

I 
17 1 through our processes, as yc: :a- lmagine, wnen you're 

18 

19 

2 0 

21 

22 

i 
I 

dealing +s openly as t h e  DepirKmtxt of the N a w ' s  process I 

does with its field commands, and you, as you work through 

the process, go out to them and say, "Here's the scenario 

that I'm thinking of. Give me back costs," we generally, in 

the military establishment, tend to be conservative, in any 



1 

2 

3 

148 

case. When the issue becomes an issue of "They're talking 

about closing my base, moving my job,' I think it's a very 

understandable tendency to become very conservative. I 
4 

5 

6 

We had significant amounts of excess capacity, 

still, in 1995, even after the enormous closures of 1993, so 

we attacked the estimates of what's it going to cost -- and 

7 

8 

12 1 included things that r;srE 2IrezC:-  :zclaie; i: z:e CSBX: w 
Crr- , .  A , ' -  , - c - 7 -  '---- 13 I a1qoriihrr.s. W c  ZzC C G S Z  e s z i ~ z ~ ~ c  =t:z ...-- I--. - . . - + L  I==. 

14 
. - - .  - .  IncLuGez E X  E _ -  -x =fie zmrE>:r :f Z Z . ~  ~ G ~ E ~ T ~ I E F . ~  cf 3efezsz 

- ..- 
13 - - -"  process. An5 F?E kc,, . , t t x r  eS--lr--"- -?.-- licLc.= L C  - very 

when I say the base structure evaluation committee -- 
and asked very probing questions, had specific protocols on 

9 

10 

11 

16 1 frankly, we felt werE unsu?porzabie, for a specific reasc:. 
I 
I 

17 ' OSviousi~~, thi licz: c o ~ ~ ~ a n c s  s n Z  -,he people 
I 

how to deal with certain costs. And what we found is, in 

many cases, sometimes through lack of understanding, 

oversight, whatever, we had estimates that, far example, 

1S 1 workin9 at ths local commands a r o  somewhar. distressed thzr 
I 

19 1 their full estimate was not included in our analysis. We 

Uiiersifit:d Ht!llurtir~q Ser~ir:t!s, inc.  
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20 

21 

22 

believe we have substantiated the reasons. As you know, both 

the audit service and the inspector general have been looking 

into that issue, and to date, at least, they have not 



I recommendations that we made. 

1 

149 

identified anything that would have changed the 

3 

4 

I GAO addressed itself, I believe. 

7 

So, while I understand the local distress that 

their full estimates were not provided, I also think there is i 
5 

6 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Thank you. 

good and valid reason that those full estimates were not 

included. But it is to that specific disagreement that the 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Back to the plating point. I 

think somebody had asked a certain quesrj-on. Did rhe Navy 

I 

12 1 consider consclidating p:etixg aorr-ria-5 ir ;c:isx.-ii?s's neL.: w 
13 $35 millio~ fzc i lF t - , . - ,  k:,- 2z-.. z~-cl-; i .n~ 

l i  v ~ .  ; I . L . ,  1 -  , - -  - ".t ,LIZ . .  ncZ. -LA,?, ?he reaso?. 

15 L C ,  W r = - -  ..- --,.-c- - -  - ' ,= -- . --. - .  
, -lLb --.--.+.--, = -  -- v, -- -ZJI ;EC z I ;E\>- i..-arj;, enc xc, 

I 

16 i looked E Z  t h e  -- 1 believe -- and eenerel Klugn can correct 
1 

- .  ' me if L'r .  w r o ~ s  -- ciose zo one  illi ion nours, clrect labor 
I 

hour s ,  zf depet-level work tnac was being conducted at 

Louisville. And our view was that that work could 

significantly reduce our excess capacity at our major 

nil crsifind Rrrrtortir~rj Scr l  iccs, Illi:. 1 
978 16% STFIEET, N.W. S i l l i E  803 I 

WASHINGTObI, C.C. 2000F 1 
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3 

4 

5 

6 

plating facility at one of our shipyards. 

As we -- as I described earlier -- aggressively 

pursued that cost, what we determined was that there was 

enough capacity at Watervliet Arsenal to take care of the 

7 

8 

9 

- My questions -- <onlc want them to appear that 

I'm going to trl- ro sec up 2 bat~le between the services; I'm 

not. Eat I'K Looking for empirical data tnac may iead to 

some areas of inquiry that they'll be helpful to us. 

So, Mr. Nemfakos, I wanted to ask you some 

questions regarding the previous closure of depots. Do you 

have enough information yet to come to any conclusions, or 

minimal type of work that the Department of the Navy needed 

in this area, and therefore that's where we would have sent 

the work if Louisville were completely closed. We would not 

10 

Uiversifirxl R c l l u r t i ~ ~ q  Ser\.iccs, 111c. 
91 8 16% STREET, K :V SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, 5.:. 20006 

(202) 296-2929 

be moving additionel work into Louisville. 

i CONMISSIONER KLING: It's a fine facility -- and I 
I 

w 12 / see my time is cp, Mr. Chairnan. 

13 1 COMXISSIONER COEVESG-: Thznk yoc. Conmissioner 1 I 
I 

- .  
14 - Zomnission~r Konzoy;: i 

I 

I K A -  C O I f J { I S ~ I ~ ~ E ~ L  j,@NSci-L . a -, --92r.:; i - O L .  1 
I 



I estimates? And what savings -- and have the savings that you 

1 

2 

1 contemplated begun to show fruit, both in terms of efficiency 

151 

preliminary conclusions, audited or not audited, regarding 

the costs that you've experienced? Were they close to your 

5 1 at the new places, or otherwise? 
I 

MR. NEMFAKOS: commissioner Montoya, as you know, 

' 1 the depots that we closed in '91, principally ~hiladelphia 

8 / Naval shipyard, were held up for some time, and the full 

12 1 as quickly as possible. 

9 

10 

13 But cansiderinq r k e r  those were two nuclear naval 

14 shipyards an5 5; percezt c: o c r  i-b-iarlon depot capability 

15 - -nzt  - rezuired rnov4r~ wcr j :  S c t h  tc t h e  Army depot ir: Corpus 

return costs on that particular closure are not in. In the 

'93 round of base closure, we are aggressively working those 

, Christ:, zs well as to other piaces, and completely 

11 / closures, because in '93, as in '95, it's our intent to close 
I 

' 
realigning, in oiher wozds, where work had Seen distributed, 

I / the return costs are still, i think, at least a year away. 

What we do have, sir, is -- in the process of the 

budget review, the office of the Comptroller of the Navy 

aggressively, again, looked at the estimates for both cost of 

closure and savings. To date, the savings numbers are 

I Ilii ersifiud Rcllurtirig Services, IIIC. 
91 a imti STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

1 WASHINGTON. D.C. 20006 
(202) 296-2929 



1 relatively close to what we projected for the '93 round of 

I base closure for those activities. The costs, other than 

5 1 to be running a little bit behind. I 

3 

4 

environmental -- the costs, because of the COBRA model, that I 

COBRA algorithms do tend to be somewhat conservative, appear 

I also the users and the managers, the activity group 

6 

7 

8 

managers -- they are, in fact, finding better, cheaper ways I 
I 

And finally, what we're seeing is, as our people 

are going through the planning process, both the facilities 

people -- the Naval Facilities Engineering Command -- but 

11 1 of getting the job done. An2 so a7q expectation is that, when 
I ! 

12 the final aczounting is done, o t h e r  than environmental, tne I 
w . . 

13 zoscs will be lower t?~:  wkzt x e  zntlcl~ated. I 

- I 
L 

~ g h q , r - c c - n ?  -7- - -  - - - -  - I T k :  / \ok_5 YOL comment, on the 

7 r  - ~ ; A T , - ~ ~ ' " P o ~ -  - - -- V I . I I I L - .  -t_ 2 3 s ~ ~ :  P - n - -  L.-zs 7:: nex: queszion, es to w h ~ z  

- 
, o sic;, ~ Q C  -- h c w  ie iz in reality, versus what you anticipated? 

i 

I I 
-W.. NEVrF>Z3S: Well, as you know, Commissioner 

Ili\ crsified Hel~ortir~rl Scrl.ir:r!s, 111i:. 

018 16- STREET, N 'a. SUITE 603 
I 
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1 
! 
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I8 Montoyz, we c?iC n c t  estimate environmental costs in the 
I 

I 
I 

15 closure round in ' 4 3 ,  znd, as goa also know, probably better 

2 0  

2 1 

than anybody else, this is an area that, until you get in 

there and start doing the work, you don't have a clue. I do 

22 / not -- I have not heard of any ugly surprises, particularly 



I I know that's not a very good answer, but on the I 
I 

w 1 

2 

3 

I environmental piece I just think we still have work to do. i 
i 

153 

with the nuclear shipyards and some of the other places, of 

the kinds of costs that the facilities engineers would have 

expected to see being inordinately greater. 

- .  -. The o t h e r  piece,  I zni~-l:, tha t  has been plz l - ing  
I 

- - 
, verk- neavily ir, l u r  aizc  is :he i-ieri- th+z we cennc;: -- sh3r l5  I 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

_1C I 
10 I nor -- use es an excuse " E e y ,  it's too dirty, so let's j c s t  I 

I 
I 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: But you apparently accepted 

that risk, given your base closure decision -- that it had to 

be dealt with. 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Well, you know, the issue of 

environmental clean-up, of course, is one to which we're 

11 corrmitted. As you recall from your days in the facilities 
I 
I 

12 engineering command, the several adminiscrationsf c o ~ ~ i t n s n ~  I 

r . .. 
13 to cleaninc up the environmexr 2nd gertinq it over  ditk his 

Ui\t:rsifir!d Rt:l~urtirlq Scri . ices ,  IIIL. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STSEET. N W. SUITE 808 1 WASHINGTON, D C 20C06 
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1 
1" keep it in our inventory, beczuse it's too hard to clean up.Ir 1 

2 0 Because it was not our view that that was a prudent public- 
i 

2 1 steward position. 

2 2  i 
So, regardless of the environmental costs, we 

! 
j 



proceeded. 

GENERAL BLUME: As far as our analysis, Mr. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: General Blume, a couple of 

questions. Did the Air Force, going into the BRAC process, 

have some specific reduction targets, either savings or 

people or planned value? Did you have some bogeys going in 

that were very broad guidelines, within the Air Force? 

12 
I 

' did, and we're arerty much in line. Between one depot and a 1 

w 
La - 2 depor anC z hal '  equivzlence of man-hours of work load was 

I 
I 

8 

9 

10 

- ,  - - -- - .  - : E r -- - c have a specific carget 
I 

- 7 .. - - = "  - - -  -- I 
Y = nez-_t IZZC - - - -, 5,z we hevelaped -hat  as our analysis I 

- 7 

-C 2rqressec. I 
17 ' COMMISSIONW MONT0T.L.: Can you tell me, at what 

I 

18 1 point in time did you leave the depot question from 2 closure 
I 

Montoya, we looked at the capacity that the Air Force had, as 

far as its depots. We allowed the -- actually, the joint 

cross-service group -- to develop the excess capacity. And 

i 

19 ' prospective io a downsizing perspective? When did you get 

I 2 0  off of that psrticulcr path, and why? 
I 

11 I we looked at that relative to additional analysis that we 
1 

GENERAL BLUME: Well, as you know, we walked down I 
that path for several months, looking at the potential of 

i 
Uir-ersifiud Rel lo r t i~~ r l  Scrr ices, Ill[:. 
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came up to where we had, essentially, the roll-up of 

all of our actions for the BRAC then we came to the 

reality that there were some cost implications. What could 

the Air Force really afford? Was there and this is, I'm 

sure, what the Secretary of the Air Force had to come to 

grips with before she made her recommendation. Knowing what 

was budgeted, knowing what the Air Force had excess capacity, 

was there another way? And that's the question that she 

asked. 

This was the latter part of January. This was when 

I 
1 2  t h e  Air Force essentially put our entire package -- that is, 1 

w - - 
4 < -- . zhe base closure executive group put our entire package -- 

- -,..-- I-& ~ L C  L point ir, time, she askec! us -- 

- 7 - - - --c i__b  _ _ _ _  :-- ~~~~~ 5222 -- - -  L v  l ook  if ',here are other 
I 

- ,- 
e v tLz~rnc:ives. And th2:'s when we rurned to looking to see if I 

i ..- I 
L! ; there bias something else, something that was less expensive 

I 
18 1 than the closure of one or two depots. 

I 
CO~ISSIONER MONTOYA: So it was, I can 

paraphrase, near-term, budget-driven, cost-driven. Those 

Uii  crsifit?rl Rullorting Services, Irlc. 
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I you took on two -- if you took on one depot, then, quite 

1 

2 

156 

GENERAL BLUME: It certainly did, and the fact 

that, if you took on essentially one depot, and certainly if 

i thank you, Mr. Nemfakos, for your answers. Good to see you. 

4 

5 

6 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Commissioner Robles. 

frankly, the Air Force, from what we had budgeted, would not 

be able to do any other of the actions that were recommended. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Thank you very much, and 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: General Klugh, so nice to see 

I 
COMMISSIONER ROBLES: You know, I'll have to say up 

10 

12 fronc, che issues are the same, the numbers are just bigaer. 

you again. 

- - - Sc nuch has been said abouc milixary value. Ir 

11 GENERAL KLUGH: Thank you. 
I 

- r - - -;---1 ',- -_ - c  - - -  averarching principle cnac guider this vhole 
- F 
~b base-closure process, in many respects, because it is -- I 

I 
Ui\-ersified R u ~ ~ [ i r i i ~ l g  Scri.iccs, Inc. 
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I 

7 7 
i , chose four elements of nilicary value are, in many cases, the 

i I 
I I 

1s 1 predominant force. But I want to make sure I get military I 

19 

20 

21 

22 

I 

I 
value, as you see it, in perspective, on this issue of depot 

maintenance. 

I think what intrigues us most is the fact that, as 

you look from base closure round to base closure round, even 



I value rankings are really a function of many factors: 
judgement, experience, maturity, leadership, et cetera. And 

4 

5 

6 

we're often using these military-value rankings as a cardinal 

measure, when in fact they really are an ordinal measure, 

because, although you try to be objective about the criterion 

7 

8 

I 
I 1 2  1 they really are more ordinal in nature than they are cardinal . 

I I 

that goes into doing the military ranking -- you try to be as 

objective as possible and try to be as quantitative -- there 

9 

10 

11 

13 ; in nature, is your sense that the militmy values of the 

are just some things that just aren't quantifiable and are 

judgement. 

And so, given that as sort of a prelude, and that 

I Uivcrsi f ied Rejlurtir~q Services,  Ir~c .  
91 8 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.L'J SUITE 803 

I WASHINGTON, D C.  20006 I 
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- I - +  Cepots, as they were ranked by the individusl services, in 
I 

- - 
- 3  your e~tirnatio~, are appropriate, a g ~ o d  measrre of whir :hey 

I 

, 
I 

16 I should nave been -- that is, a way to take this mass of data I 

7 - i I 
- i and pur some sort of ordinal ranking around it? 

I 
I 

18 I GENERAL KLUGH: Very challenging question, sir. I I 
I 

19 

2 0  

21 

2 2  

would say that there are a lot of things involved here. One 

is, we had a number of criteria, and the criteria were 

minimize the number of sites, minimize excess capacity, 

maximize functional value, and maximize military value. All 



w 1 

2 

158 

had to be considered. 

We ran a model -- linear program model -- to, 
3 

4 

We ran the model again with maximizing military 

without military value and without functional value, reduce 

sites. We came up with a set of depots. 

5 

6 

We than ran the model with maximizing functional 

value, and we came up with a number of depots. 

8 

9 

12 / value -- and the services1 ranking of military value was 
I 

value, and we came up with a number of depots. 

We came up with the same number of depots for 

1 0  

11 

I 
13 1 rather subjective, and, by the nature, as you exslainel, 1 

closure, which means that the predominant thing that was 

driving the closure was capacity. Although applying military 

j 
14 chink that's quire appropriate. But we were able to apply a 

1 I 

is ; quantifiable number to the linear-program model. 
I 

I 
I 
; 

Military value did influence the results, and we 

i6 

l9 I kept military value in focus, as the military departments 

Is it t h e  b e s t  t h a t  w e  can do, or is t h e r e  room for 

Oil-crsifitld Rcpurtirlg Services, Inc. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON. G.C. 20006 

i 

2 0  

21 

22 

17 

provided to us, but did the military value -- I think is your 

question -- influence this sufficiently, given what you just 

said? And I would say, llProbably not." 

improvement? 1 would suggest, yes, sir, there is. 
I 
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COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Okay. Well, thank you. 

A follow-on to that question: This is -- I don't 
need you to answer this question right now, but to provide it 

for the record. If I remember my ORSA days, when you ran 

your objective function, you said you ran it several 

different ways, to minimize, maximize, et cetera. There also 

is a series of subject-to or constraint equations. Ifd be 

interested, if you would provide us what those constraint 

equations were, because that also frames the issue very 

neatly and tells you exactly what the real issues are. 

And I'd also like to look at -- if you would 
I 
I provide us what the slack is -- the slack in the ! 
I 

I algorithms -- to see where that slack is and compare that 

acainst =he: ranking char-. Because I -- having knovn a 
. . , 7 -4- --L~le biz aboct Linear programming, =here r r c  a lo-, -- L z t s  

I 

1 
agzin like everything else. There's assumprions thar go into 1 
it, and if the assumptions are well-founded, then the 

! 
I 

analysis comes out well-founded. If the assumptions are I 
questionable, then the anaiysis comes out questionable. i 

But I would like it, if you would have your 

2 0 

21 

Ui\crsifii!d Fi f ! l l [~rt i~ lq  Scrvil:es, IIII:. 
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But obviously, in your case, they correlated very 

highly, because you did it various ways. 



GENERAL KLUGH: Yes, sir. We actually did do 

1 

I actually as you suggested. In our data analysis team we had 

r 

160 

analysts provide that. 

4 

5 

- 

two experts in operations research systems analysis. They 

developed a database by which to be able to be flexible in 

6 

7 

all that data to you. 

(I 
1 3  j COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Thar.1: ?or:,, sir 

responding to the options that we laid out. And I would be 

happy to provide you the spreadsheet of the database. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

14 Now, cascading t h a t  down t3 =he Air fsrce. you g3: 
I 

15 ! -the rankings, and it was a good baseline ~c see =he vzrious 
1 

We went beyond the six runs that I mentioned. We 

looked at all depots equally. We looked at a number of 

depots that do not show up on the alternatives that we 

provided to the military department. I1d be happy to provide I 

16 / options that were available. And it was in t h e  k i r  Force 

I I 
i 

analysis that the up-front costs were the drivinq force, ic 
i 

18 l7 1 I 
appears, for not closing versus downsizing. 

I I 

Uir~!rsified Rr:portir~rl Services, Illc, 

918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N.W. SUITE 803 
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19 

2 0  

21 

General Blume, could you elaborate a little bit on 

the up-front costs again? What went into it? If you had 

gone back now, since you did some revisions -- have there 
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 gain, I'm trying to find -- having done some of 

these analyses in previous lives, I never did find the 

downsizing alternative to maximize anything. But maybe, 

because of the special nature of your depots and the high up- 

front costs when you have to move things around or replicate 

them or whatever, there's something here that I'm missing. 

So could you elaborate a little bit on that? 

GENERAL BLUME: Well, let me make a couple of 

comments. One, we were trying to, essentially, minimize 

cost, in a certain fashion, while accomplishing the intent of 

what was -- and, really, that's to a great extent trying to I 
12 I reduce the excess capacity, at the same time m i n i n i ~ ; ~ ~  -,,- 

And let me also c o m e n t ,  firs-, on rhe f i r ~  ? ~ E X  

ii . t h e  A i r  Force recommendaa;-, ues no; s~rje--~~,e. r L A  V r- - - -LGZS naz 
! 
I 

. - 15 1 subjeczive at ail. The Air Force C l c  nez conslssr x,;:;---:. 
LC- i 

16 value as jusr the firs: four. T h e  A i r  F o r c e ,  in a l l  irs I 
1 

17 
I 

depots, looked at all eight DGD criteria. Cos: is certainly 1 

18 one, and it was a very important one when we came down -- rhe 
I 

19 secretary made the final decision. I 
20 

21 

Uivt!rsifir!d h ~ l u r t i r ~ q  Stlr\,icf:s, 111,:. 
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But we looked at all of those eight values for all 

five of the depots, or the installations, and those are the 

22 things -- all eight criteria were what drove those particular 



1 service group termed, was military value, which was an 
w 1 

installation tiering of those five bases. 

162 

installations into what you term, or what the joint cross- 

That information was used by them, then, in the 

The costs were COBRA costs, and those were I 

5 

6 

8 1 developed for each one of those installations, using the I 

linear programming model that General Klugh was talking 

about. 

ktandard COBRA model, sir. 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Well, there +re sever+l 

wv components: enormous up-front cost co close .z depc:, s -  -.--,- - - 

10 

11 

Now, help me with trying to enlighten you, if you 

would. i 

14 
I went :o =he slternative of aswnsizrng, +nC zhc: qzv; ,a; 

I 
I 

I 
15 i better economics. I'm just tryix~ TS unciersT~:9, ~ ~ C E U S ?  zzt  

I 

l6 i 
t 

last time I looked at those numbers there were some numbers 

Uir,crsifif?ti Rt!purti1111 Scrr-ices, Iilc. 
91 8 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N W. SUITE 803 
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1 7  

18 

22  

there -- like the number cf civilisn personne: cransferrea, I 
l 

et cetera -- that just were counterintuitive. And I ' d  like 

some -- he has done some discussions with the Commission 
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staff. He has addressed some of the questions, and maybe at 

this time it might be appropriate for him to sort of give an 

explanation of why so much difference between the Air Force 

proposal, in downsizing, versus the other proposals, of 

closure. If you would accept that, then I would let him -- 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: I don't want to tie up the 

hearing to do that, but maybe we can do that later on, maybe 

after the hearing. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

w 13 

I 

GENERAL BLUME: Okay. Maybe I could explain it in 

just two elements. One is that the Air Force has been, for 

some time, trying to downsize and reduce its capacity in its 1 
I 
I 

depots, and has quite successfully done a greaz deal of c t e ~ .  

I 
There is still more out there, as we have deterzines. 

1 4  1 But besides chat one elemen;, chose aspo~s are o n l y  

i 15 one enciry on those installations, anc. as Gener~l Dzvis s a i c  

Iliversificd Rupurtirlq Services, 1111:. 
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in this chart that's still up right here, you can see the Air ' 

Force eliminates only 7 percent of those personnel. personnel 1 
i 

being the big driver, as far as cost is concerned. and I 

realigns 86 percent. 

If you take Kelly, to move Kelly, take the depot 

out, move the depot infrastructure to the other depots, 

that's one thing. But therels a lot more at Kelly, as you 

I 



I I 
- u a ~ ~ ,  m e  Reserve -- you know, a lot of other things that 

exist on Kelly Air Force Base. 

I magnitude of the number of people on an Air Force 

4 

5 

That explains that, and I think, to some extent, 

because of the magnitude of the problem -- that is, the 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES : Than): you ver:- -,:I.-?-. 

COMYiISSIONER C O m E L L ? :  csmri-sic~~- ~s--> :  

- i  7 -. -,.-.- C O M N I S S I O N W  jT'E:E: - -- , C L L  f ~ ~ ~ ~ , ; . :  ;= -7  V. .  

7 

8 

Cc3erzl R3b1esr queszi~ns :ar YKLS Z~GZC ZZG :,G-\TE ~2 :hc :;S-~P,,-  

I 
- 

in my second rou~d. General Shzrie, I think Vac're ~cinq : z  

installation which has a depot -- presents a significant and 

unique problem. 

get off the hook, as I predicted co you cnis morning. 1tfs 

nice seeing you. I'll Set you wish all hearings were this 

I 
I easy. 

Up-front costs -- if we could dig into that subject 

a little bit more, some of the assumptions that went into the 

i numbers. Firstly, if 7 percent of the personnel -- only 7 

Oi\ crsified Rejlurtir~rl S e n  ires, 111~. 
9 1 3  1 6 7 ~  STREET, N W .  SUITE 80.7 - - -  
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I percent -- would be eliminated if there was a closure of the 

depot, I'm wondering, one, where that number comes from and 

if wefre assuming that -- what is it, 86 percent -- of the 

personnel would have to be relocated, historically, how many 

individuals do relocate when you close installations? That 

seems extremely high, compared to past data that I've seen. 

GENERAL BLUME: That number comes from your staff, 

lo I prefer, he can do it afterwards. 
8 

9 

I 
COMMISSIONER STEELE: Ue2 .1 ,  if it can be aaaress~d, 

and I would -- you know, maybe Mr. Beach could answer that, 
but Ifm sorry. 1/11 have to take it for the record. If you 

it might be helpful if we could address ir noi. - F  - v,70c 1 2  

mv - .  13 1 rather reporr: back to us l z r e r ,  tkzzrs r:ne i-irr. z e .  
! 

- number comes fron your COBFS- ruz. - : ; s  wnaiz  z r u e  bee- 

17 / informed. I 

Well, one more comnent that may 

have a little light on it is that, even with the -- you know, 

2 0  

21 

Di \ . er s i f i ed  Hr!llurtir~q Scr\ . icns ,  111c. 
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certainly the depot portion of a large installation like 

that -- only some of those people move. Those which are 

2 2  associated with the core. A lot of the other civilians, 



2 l  retire. Some are RIFfed. A lot of other personnel actions 

1 

3 / relative to that population. 

166 

certainly, do not move. Many of them stay and elect to 

I move? Because that, again, drives the up-front assumption of 

4 

5 

I 

I closing costs, because moving individuals is obviously very / 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: So what number would you give 

for a viable assur,ption of the number of personnel that would 

COMMISSIONER STELLE: Okay. That wocld be fine. 

8 

9 

10 

Secondly, infrastructrre: saxe -'- '-- .--. >. . r:le L.Fr 

expensive. Could you give us a ballpark figure? 

GENERAL BLUME: I could, but I'm not sure how 

accurate -- I1d rather get back to you on the record. 

- - 13 / Force assumed -- . - actuslll-, perhi,s 1-22 L -  :i-- zc. Sez~ . : sc  
I 
I 
I 

14 , 
- - -- --.. - 3  

p -  7 - - - -  - - - 1 s-PS LLLF nus-.er . fir~c; oercerz - - csrr-i::-~re ~ ' O C - C  

15 1 have '2 ke pnysic~lly movee sr z2;~xsx:z:z~; ;1:r-1-, de?o:s, 
I 

l6 I should a depot close? 

GENERAL SLUKC: Whar; percenz cZ ir.fras:rucnure 

I would move? 
COMMISSIONER STEELE: Right, the reason being -- 

GENERAL BLUME: The infrastructure would not move. I 
1 The infrastructure would -- now, there would be movements 

Uii crsif icd Rcpnr t i r~g  Scr i  ices, 1111:. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, h! W SUITE 80s 

WASHINGTON, 3.C 209CE 

(202) 296-2929 I 

2 2  within the infrastructure on a base. Those would not be BRAC 



167 

moves. Those, as General Klugh was referring to a while ago, 

may be like reengineering. If you had, you know, one 

production group in a building and you could move that 

production group to another building, leaving that building 

completely unoccupied, and then taking that building down, 

either mothballing it, pickling it, whatever you call it, or 

maybe destroying it, to reduce excess infrastructure, there 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: That's what I'm getting at. 

L A -  number, what, I believe the assumption was fairly high -- +ha 

8 

9 

12 / 85 percent? 

I 

would be some of the things in the buildings -- that is, the 

equipment and so forth -- certainly, that would move. 

Whatever percenzage of zne ~nfraszruczcre -- w e ' l l  

- find OUT in a secone here; , don': recall the number -- wouic 

actually move, if rhere is so much excess capacity a c  the 

different depots, why would you need to replicate a function 

where the tooling already exists somewhere else to do thac 

mission. 

GENERAL BLUME: Well, you imply that a lathe is a 

I Di\.ersificd R ~ : p o r t i r ~ y  Scriiccs, Inc. 
9.18 16TH STREET, I': ' t i . SUITE 803 

WASHINGTOK. Z C. 20096 

(202) 296-2929 



I may be like reengineering. If you had, you know, one 

1 

I production group in a building and you could move that 

1 6 7  

moves. Those, as General Klugh was referring to a while ago, 

I 1 production group to another building, leaving that building 1 
completely unoccupied, and then taking that building down, 

either mothballing it, pickling it, whatever you call it, or 

maybe destroying it, to reduce excess infrastructure, there 

would be some of the things in the buildings -- that is, the 

equipment and so forth -- certainly, that would move. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: That's what I'm getting at. 

I believe the assumption was fairly high -- the number, what, i 

85 percent? 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Chart 5. 

15  I me. 

different depots, why would you need to replicate a function 

I 1 6  Whatever percentige of the i n f r a s r r u c t u r e  -- we'll 

2o  1 where the tooling already exists somewhere else to do that 

1 7  

18 

21 1 mission. 

I 

, 

find out in a second here; I don't recall the number -- b-ouic I 

actually move, if there is so much excess capacity at the 
I 
I 

GENERAL BLUME: Well, you imply that a lathe is a 

Di\srsifiud R ~ : p u r ~ i i l q  Sunices, IIII:. 
918 16TH STREET, FI.'N. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, 2.C,  20006 



GENERAL BLUME: We did do tnat, and it has Seer 

13 ) done, essentially, in che site scrveys 2nd the c ~ ~ s ~ l i e i ~ i ~ ~ .  

1 
4 1 work EL+= has been ongcing n x e  rke: i e  5:sz;sseC i::r . -----  

1 
4 -- 

l5 I . - sPJn<- - 2 szcff l+sr weekene. Ftic equipmer,: -- eq::?me~z r - 2  

things like that -- are identifie2, en2 r h e  ;laces fhc: 2: 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

17 would go -- the things on a Sase, cr ix c depc: ,  chic woaid 

18 be moved from one building to another. Az; thasz  buildinq I 
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lathe is a lathe. In many cases, that's not true. You have 

some very expensive and special equipment, in some cases, to 

work on aircraft parts, and in many cases, rather than to -- 

certainly to either divest yourself of that equipment, you -- 

certainly it would be cost-effective to move it to the new 
I 

location. Those types of things certainly should be moved. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: The Air Force, I gather, 

plugged into the COBRA number a flat assumption of what would 

move. Why didn't you look at the individual ALCs to see what 

actually would have to move? Because it varies greatly 

I 
between the ALCs. 1 

19 

20 

D i ~ c r s i f i c d  Rnllortir~q Sr!r\ iccs, IIIC. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N W SUITE 803 I 

I 
WASHINGTON D C 20006 I 

(202) 295-2329 
I 
I 

I numbers, also, have been supplied, so that you would have an 1 
I 

idea, then, of, is the Air Force really downsizing' and m~ving 1 
21 

22 

and consolidating these things, or is it some mystical 

process. 



now is much more specific than the one that we were able to 

give you before, because we've been out and we've walked the 

walk. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: That begs the question. Why, 

sir -- if you could help me on the process here, why would 85 
percent of the Air Force's recommendation change between when 

GENERAL BLtTME: Well, I don't know where you get 

8 

9 

11 I the 85 percent. There are -- 
I 

your report came to us and the meetings you've had with BRAC 

staff that I haven't been privy to details of yet? 

w 12 ( COMMISSIONER STEELE: Looking at the functions and 

I 

13 where they would relocatz. 
I 

I 

14 I GENERAL ELUMf: There are four of the original 
I 

.. - 
- 3  

1 functions where we had consolidations that have changed. One 1 

of t h o s r  has  changed because i t ' s  called plating, and we -- 

17 l6 1 quite frankly, I think we made an error there, because, if 
i 
you're going to do composites and plastics at McClellan Air 

Uiversified Rt!porti~~q Services, IIIC. 
91 8 1 ~ T H  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
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Force Base -- and that's going to be your center -- there is 

chemical milling that needs to be done there, and I think we 



lo I do a better job, if you would take a look at those. And we , 
I 

11 would be glad to help you with that. 
I 

I 

1 

2  

3 

4 

5 
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8 

9 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: 

1 7 0  

that entire -- the number -- if you recall, we had our BRAC 

submission; we went out and did our site surveys, as best we 

could; and we've come back to you, and we say, "There is no 

change, except for that one, that we would essentially think 

would be a refinement." We also said to your staff, "There 

are a total of four, including that one, that probably could 

be more effective if you would decide to look at it." 

But that is the only reason that we would propose a 

change: because it would be more cost-effective and probably 

One last quick question on 

- - 
I d  

1 i -he up-fronr caszs, en2 t hen  i follow-up quesrioc reqerdixg 

- ,  - - - rners-r:nz cepacity. Thirty percenz of The overell raring of 

- .. t - - -ne oeses ir quescion wes the ability TO receive nissions, 

2 6  A -he cifferent types of missions, at 25 percent each. Why was 
I 

-8 - 
A I chere -- it appears there was not a measurement of current 

I 

Dir  ersificd Rt:~rurtirlr~ Serr iccs, Inc. 

i 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N W. SUITE 803 

I 

i 

I 

I 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 

(202) 296-2929 I 
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I 

i 
I€ collocated missions and how the closure of a depot, an ALC, 

l9 i or a base would affect the costs versus efficiencies of 

2 0  

21 

22 

collocated missions at the different installations. That, 

obviously, drives up-front costs, again. 

GENERAL BLUME: It -- 

I I 



COMMISSIONER STEELE: The synergy -- 

GENERAL BLUME: 

2 

3 

4 

please. 

GENERAL BLUME: Yeah. I'm trying to get the 

question, but I'm having difficulty. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: I can restate it. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Pick your depot. Missions 

7 

8 

helps missions and operations -- a11 that stuff. Why, when 

12 1 you looked at measuring and tiering the depots, was there not ! 

I 

that are located at Robins, Tinker, Kelly currently -- when 

you visit those installations, you'll hear that those 

9 

10 

I 
I 

13 1 a measurement of the missi~ns thst are currenxly collocated 

14 
I 
I on cnose bases? Why did you only look at the abiliry to 

missions are there largely because of the synergy of being 

there with the ALC and the cost-effectiveness and how it 

15 / receive different operational missions? 
i 

GENERAL BLUME: If 11 have to take it for the 

l7 i record- I don't recall -- Ifm trying to remember -- our 

18 i analysis, and Ifd have to dig into my notes here to try and 

19 I go through the percentages. 
But let me say, when we came back -- and this is on I 

Diversified Reportil~q Scrviccs, 111~. 
918 16TH STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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1 / five depots, if I 'm understanding -- 

GENERAL BLUME: Okay. 

2 

3 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: No, I don't mean functions, 

depot functions. 

GENERAL BLUME: Different activities on an 

5 

6 

I installation -- is that what you're referring to? 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: I mean wings, whether it's 

fighters, bombers, whatever -- different -- 

9 

10 

11 

Diversified Rcpurtir~q Services, 111s. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: What are there, F-15s or 16s 

at Robins? There's AWACS at Tinker. There's C-5s at Kelly. 

GENERAL BLuME: Okay. They've got -- yes. - 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: The costs associated with I 
I 

13 1 moving those missions, should r z  ILC close, shouic the Air 

1 I 

4 , Force want to then relocate those missions close to an ALC. 
/ I 

I 

15 1 if they chose io do so, or the efficiencies now of beinq 2;  I 

that facility -- I obviously am not explaining this very 

17 well. If anybody wants to help me out, feel free. 

18 GENERAL BLUME: You mean like moving 141s to Robins 

WASHINGTON. D.C. 20006 

19 

20 

2 1  

22  

Air Force Base, as a base, and it would also be the ALC, and 

so you'd have a wing of 141s at Warner-Robins, and the 

activities would also be going -- the logistic activities 

associated with the 141s would be going on there, too? Was 



1 

2  

3  

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Why don't we save that one 

for the second round. 

1 7 3  

there some cost associated with that? 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Why don't I try to readdress 

it at a later point. 

4 

5 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Actually, I don't think I 

I 

GENERAL BLUME: I've got a good expert here that 

might be able -- 

(Laughter.) 

GENERAL BLUME: I'm sorry, ma'am. 

If I could have chart 1, please. 

To achieve minimum excess capacity, it's the 

I 

COMMISSIONER CORNELL4: I Iha t  urfll do is -- - '  ~na;',~: 

I 

ii 

I 
1 you, Commissioner Steele. And we'll move into ~ h e  seconi 

l5 j round at this point. We will run slightly pasc i2. I beg 

16 

17 

Uiicrsified Rcpurfi~ly Services, 111~ .  
018 1 6 T ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 

I 
I your indulgence on that, but there are some questions that we I 

I 
i 

would like to have answered. I 

2 0  

2 1  
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recommendation of the joint cross-service group that two Air 

Force depots be closed. Is that not correct, Mr. Klugh? 

GENERAL KLUGH: One alternative suggested two 



depots. and one alternative we gave them suggested one depot. 

2 COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: cn i~  1 Trn - .  -- - - . - 

I the two depots, please? 
---- I~~ reaa the names of I 

GENERAL KLUGH: Yes, sir. Alternative 1 suggested 

San Antonio, as a depot, and alternative 2 suggested San 

Antonio and Sacramento for further analysis. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: General Blume, if the Air 

Force was faced with the closure of two depots, would those 

be the two depots? 

Chart 5, please. 

10 

11 

General Blume, Secretcry Widnall testified thaz a 

depot closure is prohibitively expensive. We are interested 

in understanding the relatively high cost thzt y w  es:imarei 

for the closure of an Air Force depot. This chart, chart 5, 

shows that the Air Force calculates a steady-state savings 

from closing Kelly Air Force Base, with a base population of 

19.104, to be just over half the cost of the closure of the 

GENERAL BLUME: The Air Force's position, 

certainly, as you know, is well stated. However, the Air 

Dirersificd R c ~ o r t i ~ l i ~  Serrjcps, rnc, 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 

12 Force analysis was consistent with the joirt cross-sezvice 

13 / group. 
I 



I 
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Long Beach Naval Shipyard, with a base population of 3,891. 

The reason for this is that the Navy estimates that 

closing the Long Beach Naval Shipyard will result in the 

elimination of 44 percent of the jobs at the shipyard, while 

the Air Force estimates that the closure of Kelly Air Force 

Base will result in the elimination of only 7 percent of the 

jobs and that 16,415 of the jobs will be realigned to other 

bases, resulting in moving costs alone of $160 million. 

Why does the closure of an Air Force depot result 

in the elimination of such a low percentage of jobs at the 

depot, particularly compared to the closure of industrial 

facilities in the other services? 

/ GENERRL BLUME: In s , ; t>Fnj:, I m ~ j .  heve 

14 , il'eady zouched on tnis znswer, sir, end :her wei :he Zcc: c: 

I 

15 ' -the makeup of the Air Force insrcllacion, becaus~ :he Eir 
! 

1 I 

16 ' Force installation is a lot more chan just the depoz. 

' 1 7  1 

Di\ersified Rl!purtis~l Sunirps, IIIC. 
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I 
I If you would, as far 2s the -- would you i 
I 
I consider -- I could defer to Mr. Beach! who mzy be a b l e  LO 

address this in more detail, with your approval, sir. 

CoMMIssroNER CORNELLA: I would like to move on, if i 
you don't mind. And I would like that for the record. I 

would like the answer of Mr. Beach for the record. 

1 



GENERAL BLUME: All right. 

I 
i 
I 

I This chart -- chart 6, please -- "ses the Air Force 

COBRA and changes a few of these assumptions. 1/11 give you 

a moment to study the chart. 
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5 
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7 

8 
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COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: General Blume, assumptions 

drive closing costs and savings calculations. I understand 

that almost all of the savings in the depot downsizing option 

come from a 15 percent reengineering factor, which assumes 

personnel savings of approximately 15 percent based on 

increased efficiency in certain depot operations as a result 

of the downsizing plan. Is that accurate, sir? 

GENERAL BLUME: Yes, sir, that is accurate. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELU: Let's focus on three key 

assumptions that the Air Force made in determining the cost 

to close one of your depots: i s  h c r l y  7 r e  15 

. . 13 the personnel positions wouLe be eL;z~naten; c;nn-4 - F - -  L.-c - cns 
I 

14 closure "0211 t a k e  sir yezrs; 2,:; i ,  :hi: R E  ;ersa~ail 
I 

15 savings would be ichieved un:il y e z r  5. Changinq :hiss 
I 1 

I assumptions can have a dramatic effect on the ~rojected I 

I I 

17 savings. 
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instead of a 7 percent, personnel savings, the one-time 

closure cost would be 572 instead of 582 million dollars, and 

the annual steady-state savings would be 154 million, versus 

the 76 million. 

Change the personnel savings to 25 percent -- 

significantly less than what the Navy calculates from the 

Long Beach Naval Shipyard and less than half of what the Army 

calculates from the closure of the Red River Depot -- and 
phase the closure over four years, the annual savings from 

closing the depot rise to $244  million, and the net present 

value rises to more than $2.7  billion. 

I ^  _ - - What is your reaction to that analysis, s;r: ,nc 

know you haven't had a lot of time 

GENERAL BL'WE: I certainly confx d i s a g r e e  wir:. rne 

analysis, but whzt I would say is the A i r  Force, I thin}:. 

took a very learned -- they used experts in this field to ! 

i develop those percentages and the years to close that the Air I 

I 
I 

Force used. Are those -- you know, they certainly don't I 

drive the best numbers, from one perspective. Are they the 

right numbers? As far as the Air Force is concerned, we feel 

like they used the appropriate numbers, sir. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Did your joint cross- 

Di~ers i f i ed  Reporting Ser\icr!s, IIIC.  
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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
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service group, General Klugh, do any kind of independent 

analysis of the Air Force's calculation on the cost to close 

one of its depots? And, if so, do you conclude that their 

assumptions about positions eliminated and the time to carry 

out the closure were appropriate, even though they differed 

significantly from the estimates of the other services? 

GENERAL KLUGH: Mr. Chairman, we received the Air 

Force data some time after the 10th of February. There was 

not sufficient time to analyze that data, requiring 

additional data calls, so we did not, as a joint cross- 

service group, analyze that data. That was too close ro the 

submission. 

And so we rely on the .Lir Fzr;c ~ + ; ; T ~ T ~ Z : L Z ~ ; ~ S  

I 

I 
1 4  1 It jusr wasnfc scZiiciec~ ~ F m e .  

I 
. - - - . - COMMISSIONEi CORNELLL : --.xi 1 r>o :og i z  e . - -.tl5~: 

you had znswered that quesrion ezriier. 

17 General Shane, please explain tne Armyrs I 
I 

I 

I 1S assumptions which drir~ the number of o o  'kick xi;; bi 

moved, versus those realigned. I 
GENERAL SHANE: I think the first assumption that 

the Army made was the fact that major savings come from 

personnel eliminations. The second assumption comes in 

Uiversificd B I ! ~ ~ I I ~ I ~ I I ~  Sen,ia!s, Illr 
918 16TH STREET, N Pi  SUITE 80.1 - - -  

WASHINGTON, E.C. 20006 
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" 

GENERAL KLUGH: Speaking of the Air Force numbers? I 

179 

reduction of infrastructure, which basically says that, when 

you look at repair and maintenance and base operating 

costs -- we looked at approximately 30 percent of savings. 
And there's some other savings that you need to look at. 

So that's basically what we were looking at. We 

were looking at either closure or realigning the depots. 

I 

8 

9 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Right. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: General Klugh, have you had 
time since to analyze those numbers that we were talking 

about earlier -- since the -- 

GENERAL KLUGH: No, sir, we d i d  ??r. 

13 1 2 ( '  COMMISSIONER CORNELU.: Ynr?  h e y v - ~  no: ~ c c i  22:- 

I 
14 1 actempt ro anzlyze char7 

I 
I 

GENERAL KLUGH: We did 20:. The process was, 
I 

moving from about the middle of February, to provide the 
: 

information to the departments' B m c  office and provide that i 
I 

data on to the Commission. So we :id not rerlly rnalyze tnzt 

fliversified nuporti1111 Sun ices, 1 1 1 ~ .  
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COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Mr. Nemfakos, in 1993, the 

Navy recommended closure of three of the six naval aviation 

depots. When do you expect to have each of the three 



facilities closed? 

2 
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4 
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- .  MR. NEMFAKOS: Hr. Ch2iy.-.2-. --c --.- - - ~ ; - - - - z  --C. ,=, - kc  

Commissioner Montoya, the t e s r  i;- L7T.,.E -:--- . . -. - - .  _ - r r  - - - - a  - - . -  .. 2r: 

budge+ L C  - --,-. ESZLTiltL: zf S Z V ; ~ , ; ~ ,  ;-;+;is xi; -ever; = - =  - : --i 
- -----=, 

full returc - 3 s ~ ~ .  3 ~ -  wnzr $ e r r s  s - = l n -  - ----.- -2  Z Z C C  ' ; j e f r ~  c , - i n z  

+ LO come very ciose r o  those estimates trier ue naje in _he '9; 

round cf base closure. 

MR. NEMFAKOS: They're in various stages of 

closure, Mr. Chairman. I would say that, by the end of the 

following fiscal year, all activity will be over at those 

three depots and the work load will be completely moved. 

What is there now is the residual, as we move work load Prom 

depot to depot, both in-house, in the Department of the Navy, 

but also to Department of the Army activities. 

9 

10 

11 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: It was projected that there 

would be annual recurring savings of over $230 million. Do 

you expect to attain those sivings? 

I l i~ers i f iud Rellurti1111 Scr\io!s, Illr. 

918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N.W. SUITE 803 

I 
I 

I COMMISSIONER CORTiELLk: Mr. Nemf sl:os, t h e  j oinz 
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20 
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I 

cross-service group offered an alternative, to close the 

Jacksonville aviation depot. Did the Navy assess this 

alternative? I 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Yes, sir, we did. We tried, 



wherever we felt there was a meaningful technique. to analyze 

all the joint group alternatives that they recomended to us. 

to look at it. 

I 

COMMISSIONZI COPSjELLL: If Zacksonvllle KZS closed, 
where would the Nzl.; ic able to q e ~  their engi.:r r Lane, 

or would they be able to? 

4 

5 

6 

7 
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11 

12 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Well, the Navy currently, sir, has a 

lot of its engine work being done at Air Force depots. We 

have. I think. in the aviation world -- I don't know the 

We did look at Jacksonville. Very frankly, when 

one considered the costs of moving the various work load 

there to several different activities and secondly. the 

problems that we would have at a major fleet concentration 

without a significant depot capability. either a shipyard or 

an aviation depot. and then compounded it with the abilit~7 

that we had to move something between 250 and half a nillion 

direct labor-hours of work out of the techrical centers into 

- the aviation depot in Jackso~x-Llle: zn? i? z < < L ~ i s r - ,  

srsificd n s p u r t i ~ l ~ ~  Ser\ i l :~s ,  rl lc .  
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N \.1' SUITE 8 ~ 3  

I 
I 
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. . looking a our opera~ionzl ZCZ: -~ - :=LES Z T E E Z ~  ix z : . ~  ~ . : ~ ~ - - - - - - -  +.+_ _ 
I 

- - 
. - -  

14 I Jacl:so~v:--~ a r s e  2 ion:enrre:-:;. =: . 2-: . 35 .2-~x ;---I-;- 
I --- -- ,=- - 

7 - 15 1 Eypes, L, was o;r vrev -;-- L L i ~ L  J Z C J : S ~ T , ~ - ; _ - ~  - - n e e ~ e 5  z,? DE 
I 

15 ' retained. 
I 
I 
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exact numbers, but I think right now the Department of the 

Navy has almost 25 percent of its aviation depot work done at 

non-Navy activities. So we would do that. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8  

9 

10 

11 

As you know, for example, the TACAMO aircraft are 

not only completely supported at Tinker Air Force Base but 

are operationally based there. So we would end up moving 

work to a variety of different activities. Our problem would 

be that we would completely deprive a fleet concentration of 

a much-needed depot capability, and we would have to find an 

alternative home for the almost one-third of the work load in 

I that depot which is direct fleei support of the carrier 

i r s i i  f l ~ : ~ u r f i ~ ~ ~  S C T I , ~ C I : ~  11~1;. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N.',$' SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 

I 

bsttle groups operatin? on the Atlanzic s 'ce  

I 

17 1 Generai Blume, frankly, staff hzs considerable 
I 

I 
I 
i 

18 I trouble with the numbers s~ggeats6 by h e  Air o r  F 

I 
1 9  
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connection with job eliminations. In all candor, we find it 

difficult to figure out how the Air Force's situation is so 

dramatically different from the Navy and the A r ,  in what 

has been suggested on that chart. 



- - 

I ' v e  h e a r d  your  t e s t i m o n y ,  and I unders tand  what 

you ' r e  s a y i n g  a b o u t  o t h e r  f a c i l i t i e s  b e i n g  p r e s e n t  where you 

have  d e p o t s ,  and I g e t  t h a t  p o i n t ,  b u t ,  g e t t i n g  back t o  j u s t  

A i r  Force  -- Kel ly  A i r  Force  Base -- on t h a t  c h a r t ,  I t h i n k  

you show 19,000 t h e r e ,  b u t  t h e r e ' s  a t  l e a s t  9 ,000 o r  s o ,  I 

t h i n k ,  a t  t h e  d e p o t ,  i s  t h e r e  n o t ?  

GENERAL BLUME: I t h i n k  t h e r e  a r e  -- 
8 

9  

I 
1 

12 / - -- - I c  .c2;-, - - .  COMMISSIONER PIXOPT:  i < a l l  L - 
I -'-"' C- z 1 q L Z E  ,- 

1 

13 / 9,000,  ur i less  I'r; t e r r i t l ; .  :fz :-~e Z i r . : .  
I 

COMMISSIONER D I X O N :  You can h e l p  m e  on t h a t  

number. 

10  

l j  I izfornz-.:sn ~ h - r  ~ - c - ~ - , - ~  , = F ! : L ~ ^  I Cr - -  - ---= percenzage of 

I 
I 

16 - h a t  a r e  depoc, eac? vFll oe nappi -2 3rovide i:. S u t  i n  ~ h a r  I 
I 

1 7  1 c a s e ,  iz was zbou: 7 ,  O O C .  
I 
I 

GENERAL BLUME: Well ,  t h e r e ' s  a n o t i o n a l  t h a t  a n  

COMMISSIOIJEF. EIXOH: Seven thousand? 

11 ALC h a s  something i n  -- I t h i n k  something -- 
I I 

GENERAL KLUGH: Y e s ,  s ir .  

COMMISSIONER D I X O N :  Okay. 

Diversified R i : j ~ a r ~ i s q  S e r i ; ~ ,  1 1 1 ~ .  
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but then something like -- around seven or so for the depot. 

COMMISSIONER DIXON: But if I confine it just to 

depot, General, because we'd like to get simplistic about 

this. are you still suggesting that your figures are as far 

off the mark as those other figures, which raise, you know, 

considerable questions for us? 

Where the other services are suggesting anywhere 

from the middle 40s to the low 60s in job losses, you're 

suggesting 7 percent. It's hard for us to accept that, 

unless you can show us something particularly unique and 

special. And we need xo ask you to do that, because we're 
i 
I frank to say our people have been r c  :.o.;r she:, i r .5  xi don;; 

I come back xi:, :hi vie- thzz we t a ~ . ? e  m;:. 
I 

I 
GENZP-LL 0 5 - a : Z :  Well, we'il bs g121 to gsz with 

your people, cerrzinl;, zry  and clarify this. 

I 
COMNISSIONEE DIXOIU': S u t  you understen?, if I may 

interrupt -- please accept my apology. I don't mean to 

interrupt. but when my friend, the chairman, suggests that 25 

percent figure -- may I have chart 6 now? 

Bear in mind, General, the others are talking from 

Ilivcrsifi~!ll  R l ! p s r i i ~ q  Scrvicas,  1111;. 
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GENERAL BLUME: I certainly do. 

185 

43 percent, 44 percent to, I think, 63 percent. When my 

2 

3 

- 

friend the chair says to you, nTake 25 percent," you are way 

lower on your numbers. YOU see that. 

7 1 number somewhere in the middle there. 

5 

6 

COMMISSIONER DIXON: Admittedly higher than your 7, 

General. I don't mean to quarrel with that, but you're at a 

lo I suggest any special expertise, but I'm told the other 

8 

9 

11 I services are saying to us two or three years to get the job 

I 
12 1 done, and you're saying sir. A??reciete the fect zhsy- ' re  

I want staff to correct me if I'm wrong in my 

understanding of this, because this commissioner doesn't 

13 larger, but we're seyinj, if vce ceke facr 2nd  yo^ =&p 2 5  
I 

7 1 
-1 

- .  lercen;. :mk: cz :he c~fferenze :n those numbers. You get 2 
i 
I 

15 dramatic increase, 5 q-.iinzun leep, elmost tnree end a half 
I I I 
i times cne numbers. 

So you see the problem. We're talking about, you i 

20 I understand it. 
18 1 take a couple of basic numbers, 2nd you nake a fantzsticzlly 

D i \  ersificd R ~ ! p n r t i ~ ~ ~ ~  Scnices, Isc. 
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19 different result. This is what troubles us, because we don't 
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The cost, sir, stays about the same, and it's that up-front 

COMMISSIONER DIXON: Well, I respect that, and I 

2 

3 

cost that is, essentially, the problem. It's not how much 

you're projected to save. I mean, certainly, that is an 

lo i you jump from a relatively -- I'm almost hesitant to say 

11 , ninsignificant am,3~n t , "  but as a man who spent 12 years in 
j 

8 

9 

1 2  i the Seriat~ ~ 1 1 7  ,.-_ . 

understand what you're saying, and I concede that. The costs 

remain relatively stable, but you can look at the value, and 

-----  - L = I . - ~  -:is cnznae -- sp.5 1-012 2 2 ~ ~ 2  .I-?. iV - pretty 

- I 

Z ~ J ~ E - ;  3 :  - - - ,  - - - i n .  F;uZ 1; . - vou c o n s i d e r  

- c - G _. .fie downslzlng p r s p o s i l ,  vnicn was ori~inally 183 and has 

I 

since been -- - '  ~ n e  number been -- $ i S 3  million up-front cost, 

versus t h e  siqrificznt savings t h e r e .  I think the comparison 

becween these closure alternatives and the downsizing 

proposal makes an awful lot of sense for the downsizing 

proposal, sir. 

COMMISSIONER DIXON: Well, I would greatly 

R i \  ursified i q  Ser\jces, 1 1 1 ~ .  

91 8 1 ~ T H  STFiEET, N #. SUITE 803 



3 

4 

5 

trouble reconciling those numbers. Now, I don't mean to 

quarrel with you about the nature of it. I don't quarrel 

with you at all on the one-time costs in the front. You 

6 

7 

lo / need to get together, to explain this to them. 

know, we accept that, and we have no reason to argue with you 

about it at all. 

8 

9 

CO-MKIZSIONER OIXON: I greatly apprecizte it, 

GENERAL BLUME: We have discussed the downsizing 

with your staff. These closures alternatives, though -- we 

1 2  ; because rnere is not, epparently, z sztisfactory 

13 ' unders~ancinq or, our s l u e  . . of w h a r  ~ m x ~ - ,  &---:-- L - I L ~ ~ ~  L~ tell us 

- i - 
iz 

. - - -,,- - -.r- - ' -32rc  . - -A,  .. - . - rizzn Ec sLggesz chat there is anythin5 : 

- 7 . . * - - Z.?E + e b-: -;,; eqree tnere is 2 

- - G c r a r n a : ~ ~  eifference in :he numbers -- 2 dramatic one, yoc 

.. - 
i 

I / see. 
I 

I 
I 
i : 

G E N E D L  CLLT..IE: And ir, would be even more arznatic 1 

l9 i if you went to 5 0  percent and two years. 

COMMISSIONER DIXON: Yes, sir. 

GENERAL BLUME: Being realistic, though, sir -- 

COMMISSIONER DIXON: Well, I'm not even arguing the I 
IIicrsifi111 H c ~ l u r i i ~ l ~ l  S c n  if:ns, 111~ .  

91 8 1 6 7 ~  STREET, N 'ti. SUITE a03 
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GENERAL BLUME: Yes. And let me tell you that, in I 
4 

5 

my experience -- and I was the center commander at Lowry, at 

a closure base -- two years, or three years, as the potential 
6 

7 

commander of one of these big installations and try to move I 

closure of a facility like -- and I had a lot of big, heavy 

equipment that we had to move, also. I was only there for 

8 

9 

11 1 it out in a cost-effective manner in three to four years. I 
I 

two years, from the other BRAC round. 

But let me tell you, I would not like to be the 

1 2  ! think it k7ould be -- personzlly, I think it would be an 

gives you 2 lot more 

- 
I 

- - 
I these izstallatio~s, 22, oniy is ir a big cost to pay, it's a 

I . - 1" biq gamunt of tcrmoir, as far as e large population of 
I 
I 

l9 1 people, not only the civilians that are there, but also the i 
20 1 military. 

WASHINGTON, 3.C. 20006 

21 

2 2  

COMMISSIOKER DIXON: Thank you, General. 

GENERAL BLUME: Yes, sir. 

Dir  ersifiud f l ~ ! l l ~ ~ r t i l ~ q  Sen,ices, Isc.  
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Commissioner Cox? 

COMMISSIONER COX: Thank you. 

Mr. Klugh, I hope you'll forgive me if I express a I 
little bit of frustration. In 1993, we had hoped to do some 

cross-servicing, some consolidation. That was not possible, 

with the possible exception of Letterkenny, where we at least I 
consolidated the missiles that you're now recommending that 

we change. And we put some particular language in the bill 

that said -- in the report that said -- we wanted to have 

cross-servicing more formally studied by the Department of 

Defense the next time around, and that's the process that you 

all have been rhrough. 
! 

!Cow r ccess what  I'm he?.rinq -- and I think it nay  
i 

be e 2rocess problem, and I guess I1n looking for some advice i 
on a future cross-servicing study, if that's where we go -- 

is that, for a variety of reasons, partially because you 

didn't get the data until too late to look at it, you all 

spent a lot of time and a lot of effort and made a number of 1 
proposals, some of them in the alternative, which went out to 

the services. Looking at the first chart, they were 

essentially ignored. 

Diversif ied Hcportir~q Services, Inc. 
918 ~ S T H  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON. D.C. 20006 

(202) 296-2929 



Because you didn't -- couldn't -- relocate costs 

I and couldn't relocate military value, given the time that you 

1 had, you're now testifying that those decisions were fine -- i 
4 1 and they are fine. I don't mean that that way. But you all I 

I didn't seem to have the ability, given that current process, 

I to make a difference on cross-servicing. 
' I And maybe the answer is, there shouldn't be cross- 

1 servicing, but it's frustrating to me that this process has 

I ended up in such a way that we really didn't make any more 

lo 1 progress -- in fact, we seem to be going backwards -- from 

11 1 cross-servicing in 1993. Maybe I'm wrong, but maybe you 
I 

12 / could tell me where there are -- naybe there are a couple of I 

w I 
- - 
I; arezs thaz you felc like you really did make a difference, 

I 

c y  -- z2c : I 2  - - - ,  . - 
1 L - c -sc  - 9 : ~  to I:now 1: there is ~ n e  zrea, let's 

I - F 
8 - 
& - c=1- -- A  re 1-2- $el: like the work you've done should have 

b e e ~  qivez riore authoricy by either :he Department of Defense 

or the services. 

18 1 GENERkL KLUGH: Well, I would say to you, 
! 

Commissioner Cox, that since BRAC '93, we have continued 

emphasis on interservicing, picking up on the criticism that 

we received at that time, and we established a process in the 

Department of Defense by which to do that, through a 

Il i tersif ied H~:purtir~q Scrvicss, IIIL.  
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Department of Defense depot naintenance council. 

Since the effort by that group, we have achieved 

about 2.8 million direct labor hours as interservicing. And 

I will provide a list of those, and the hours, for the 

record. But some of the very significant work, other than 

the missile, that was directed in '93 has to do with tanks, 

has to do with helicopters, has to do with various engines, 

even core work. The F&A-18 was interservice to the Air 

Force -- some of the work on the F&A-18. 

Of that approximately 2.8 million hours that have 

been interserviced, the leading depots right now are the 

i 12 1 Ka\yrs at Cherry Point, Letterkenny, Corpus Christi, Oklahoma , 
- - 
-J C i z y  Air Logistics Cencer, and San Antonio. At Corpus 

- - - - - 3ne of the reasocs we couldn't zderess closure, i?. 

err Froup, of Cherry Point was there was~lt suffizient 

capacity to handle the rotary-wing aircraft, 2nd that became 

z. show-stopper. But we interserviced to Corpus Christi to 

the extent that the current capability would allow. 

We also were zble to accomplish something else -- 

we were focused on saving dollars -- and that is reducing the 

22 I number of places that we do things. We were able to reduce 

Ui\-ersificd Rr:prirtir~q Services, Inc. 
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I easier than we were across the services because, as you point 
1 

I out, we didn't get to that stage in the -- near the end of 

192 

the number of places to one within the military departments 

1 our process. 

1 In the Army we reduced to 28 places -- 28 things -- I 
done at one place; in the Air Force, seven; and in the Navy, 6 I 

' I nine -- about 34 .  That's a significant effort, and it 

8  / relates to interservicing, in that it reduces the number of I 
I locations where you have to maintain people and skills to 

10 1 actually do work. I 
COMMISSIONER COX: A lot of -- I guess maybe what 

12 I you're saying -- and I certainly don't disagree -- that a lot / 
of it has been done outside the BRAC process, which is good. I 

! 

GENEP-A-L KLUGE: That's correct. 

COmISSIONER COX: But I guess what I'm lookin5 at: 

l8 1 recommendation, within this process, essentially none of 

16 ! when we had that first chart up there that showed your 

19 / those recommendations were taken. The -- let me just leave i 

17 various recommendations or alternatives, versus the DOD 

22 1 should have been given more weight? I 

20 

21 

Di i , er s i f i cd  Reportirtrl Servicr!~ ,  1 1 1 ~ .  
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it at that. 

Is there one of those recommendations that you feel 



GENERAL KLUGH: In addition to just the depot 

activity for a realignment, a closure, along with that were 

3 1 recommendation of interservicing or transferring work. We 

4 

5 

I Yes, there is, because there still is excess capacity in each 

really did not get to issuing the alternative variance during 

the month of January -- December and January -- as we had 

6 

7 

I one of the military departments. That depends, however, on 

hoped. 

Is there an opportunity there for interservicing? 

10 1 the commodity. 

l1 I Now, we do have the best data, and we know where I 

I 
terms of capacity, so the process of continuing on zfter this 

12 

SFFPPC xs co interservicing is in p l z c e ,  throcqk- t n ~  Defens? 

the work is now, and we know what the capabilities are, in 

Depot Maintenznce Council. 

C 0 , ~ I S S I O N E R  COX: Assuming there is 2 new statute, 

wculd you, for the record, recommend a process that would 

allow you the data earlier in the process, to relook at some 
1 
I 

of the stuff once you've made recommendation to the services 

and it's been dealt with by the services? 

GENERAL KLUGH: Therefs no question that, for the 

process to work better, there should need to be time where 

Iliversificd nellr~rt i~lrl  Ser\,ir:ns, Inc. 
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the interaction -- the process was an iterative process 

between the OSD joint cross-service group that had service 

representation and the various BRAC activities within the 

military departments. We did not have time for that process 

to be exercised fully at the tail end of our process. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Right. I'm sorry. I had some 

other questions for the record. If I could just submit them. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Sure. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Commissioner Davis? 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

In the interest of time, I'd ask, General Blume, 

could you help us understand better -- go back to the staff 
l 

and ask then. co submit -- qive cs t h e  z c r e  fuxctizz cf e e c k  

aepot -- you know, depot by depot? In worss, elec~ronie 

warfare, aircraft engine. 

GENERAL BLUME: We can do that. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: And then probably the quickest 

way -- and also the aircraft, getting to Commissioner 

Steelels question -- the aircraft that are associated with 

those F-16s at Hill -- provide us the -- 

GENERAL BLUME: I understand. 

Diversified Rclrortirlrl Scr.r,ices, Iuc. 
918 1 6 ~ h  STREET. N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON. D.C. 20006 

(202) 296-2929 



195 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: General Shane, you've had it 

far too easy. It's your turn now. And I'd like to go back 

to this -- I really need you to help me understand. I asked 

General Klugh about their initial recommendation of 

decentralizing tactical maintenance, and then, of course, 

approve the Army plan to centralize it. I'm not sure how 

sending the tractors one place, the disassembly to another, 

and the avionics maintenance is centralization, although it's 

probably within a 300-mile drive, given where they're 

located. 

In your going to a centralization concept, did 

you -- can you explain that to me? And then the lasr p a r y  of 

that question would be, did you look zt any other faciiiries, 

like putting iz all ar. Anr,is~on, puttin? iz t Barsto;i, :r 

- -  - - . - -  , putting it out ac, ~a)-, the Air Force's nissile z r e e  -, -L-- 

Air Force Base? 
, 

I'm a little confused, and I know you can clear it 
I 

up in a very short period of time. 

GENERAL SHANE: Commissioner Davis -- Generzl I 

Shane -- 1/11 try. Can you hear me? 

The first thing Ifd like to say is the fact that I 

was here when -- I listened to GAO report on Letterkenny -- I 

Di\.ersificd neportinq Services, Iric. 
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specifically Letterkenny -- and that recommendation. If you 

look at that -- and we talked to them -- there's two things 

that came out clear on that. One, there was concern -- and I 

want to ensure you that the Army had that concern, likewise, 

with regards to the '93 commission's finding and 

recommendation -- and, two, there were varying opinions with 

regards to whether we did or did not support that 

recommendation from the '93 commission. 

What the concept calls -- first, let me say that 

itfs not an issue of ammunition storage. It's really an 

issue with regards to transfer of work load, with regards to 

electronics. This debate is going on now, tryinq to figcre 
, 

out exactly what the degree of that is, but what you reall>- 

- .  
get here is ,he f ~ c t  that, still, t c ~  zexzzzi:zeC cencepz 

with regards to the tactical rhe f2zz t h ~ t  

still goes to Letterkenny. 

The difference is the fact that we disassemble i: 

now. We'll get that in various parts, so what we've planned 

to do is to simply reduce the work load that is currently 

being done at Letterkenny and just ship it down the road to 

Tobyhanna, who is really the experts and has the equipment 

and the facilities and the capacity to accommodate that work 

Uivcrsi f ied Report ing Scn ic~ ! s ,  Inr:. 
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load. 

When I looked at that, I felt like that was still 

keeping in the spirit of the '93 commission, so we're just 

disassembling and sending it down the road. I see no change 

to that, as we pursue that. 

The thing that drive the Army, with regards to that 

concept, sir, was the fact that, when you look at it with 

regards to was to save money for the Army, it provided -- and 

it's laid out here in the chart -- a substantial savings, 

with minor costs. And we felt like -- and I got varying 

opinions from the legal people with regards to were we will 

Ui\.ersifisrl Ht!prrrtir~rj Sert.ices, 111c. 
9 8 1 6 ~ e  STREET. N.i'/. SUITE 803 I 
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i 

12 1 consistent with the intent of the ' 9 3  commission. 

13 So thatrs what we're kind of looking at. 

I r  I Witk regzres Z G  C i E  we lcolr 2: -,he w o r k  s t e l : z y e s  

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

I - 
1 that we got from the @=her serl-ices w:th r s q ~ r d s  ,a ~ z c e l : r . z  

that out, the znswer LO thaz is yes, and i: was a zwcfclC 

1 answer. One is, we felt like ic was not -- if you s e x  the 

tactical missile guiding systems to another service, like 

Ogden or Barstow or wherever, you were then definitely not in 
I 

support of the '93 conmission, because that is truly 

decentralizing, back to where we were in '91. i I 
The second is the fact that, when we looked at I I 

I 
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those alternatives, there was no cost savings that could be 

recognized by the Army. It was cheaper to do it the way we 

did it. And we worked with the joint cross-service group to 

come up with the most costly-efficient process. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In 

the interest of time, I yield the rest of my time. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Thank you, c om missioner 

Davis. Commissioner Montoya? 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: The first question is on 

behalf of my colleague, Commissioner Kling, who has this 

question for General Blume: Apparently, two years ago, the 

then-DAS -- deputy assistant secretary -- for installations 

for the Air Force advised the comission that, if we choss zc 

- - 2  close a major A i r  Force dspct, -, ;- s'noule be MeClellzr.. 1 

quote: "Not only can closure be accomoc2azed within zhs 3C" 

cost and payback guidelines, but it was also lowest rznkee of 

the five major depot bases." And the question is, if the 

cost to close was not prohibitive in '93, why is it now, when 

it appears the costs today are lower than they were 

calculated back then? 

GENERAL BLUME: Well, I think, sir, that you have 

to put it in perspective, that things are changed to a good 

U i ~ e r s i f i c d  H e ~ l u r t i r ~ q  Services, IHC. 
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I extent in two years. The Air Force budget -- the DOD 

2 

3 

4 

1 different. Quite frankly, I think our costing is probably 

budget -- has continued to go south. There is a significant 

difference. Hopefully, we're approaching the bottom of the 

trough. 

5 

6 

8 1 better today than it was then, even though -- I think our 

I am not exactly -- I was not aware of the comment 

that you made, or that was made. However, every BRAC is 

1 analysis, quite frankly, is better and was better on this 

lo I particular BRAC. certainly, Mr. Boatright, who has been 

l1 I through all of these, is more knowledgeable of this than I. 

1 t h e  DOD position i n  chis case. 

- - - 
As far as che cost Cifferentizl, 7;sciz h z \ ~ z  z z  2-  i - 

12 

w 
13 

But I would say that I think the Air Forcs 

proposal -- our analysis b e a r s  up o u r  p r o p o s e i .  I: bears  us 

l8 i substantive data that compares the two, I'd like to have you 

16 1 back and look, sir. 

l9 I submit that. On McClellan, specifically, what has changed -- 

17 

20 I just a general question of what has changed between then and 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: If you have any nore 

ni\.ersified R c ~ ~ u r t i ~ ~ r l  Services, I l l ~ .  
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22 

now -- better estimating, environmental issues, change in 
work load and therefore costlier -- 



GENERAL ELUME: Well, I don't think environmental 

piece would have been considered in either one, sir, so it 

would be a relative case, and we will take a look at that. i 
COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Okay. 

My own question, for Mr. Nemfakos -- it ought to be 
pretty straightforward -- I think you answered this before, 

in a previous hearing, but let me ask again. To determine 

nuclear capacity, did the Navy consider the capacity for both 

maintenance and refueling at Newport News Shipbuilding and 

Electric Boat -- refueling, i.e., for submarines? 

MR. NEMFAXOS: No, sir. Consistent with our 

practice in every round of base closure, what we looked ax 

was the government's capability to perform the necessary 

work, as provided for by cne force szrcczure 5127. 1:. Y ~ E  >-E.zr 

2001, in this case, and the b-~dgecs  z z  the, zine. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: A foilow-oz: is there a 

1 potential for private nuclear yards cc do nucle~r subnzrine 

I 
I refueling, as they do aircraft carrier refueling, apparently? 1 
I 

MR. NEMFAKOS: There is certainly the potential, if I 
you want to facilitize and bear those kinds of costs -- if 

you want to train the personnel. I don't mean to suggest 

that there are radical differences, but it is a substantially I 
Di\,crsified nsportir~q S e r ~ i c c s ,  1 1 1 ~ .  
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I government's capability to perform work. 
COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Thank you. 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Commissioner Robles? 

I COMMISSIONER ROBLES: This normally would be I 
I directed to you, General Blume, but I'm going to deflect it 

10 1 over to General Klugh, because I recall -- it was 

11 / yesterday -- and it's a follow-on to Admiral Montoyafs 

question -- that in February of 1953 I  as still ir, t h e  
, 

Pentagon, and McClellan was on che lisx to close, anl :he 

. - .  - - . - ,.- ----,-G - =  --  qs",-=- .-. 14 , Secretary of Defens-c pul,sz ;t crr . -- - - - -  ----- - l- . - - - 

there. 

And agzin, I'd be very intereste~, a: zhat tine, 

17 why the decision was made and how that decision factored. 

Did you review this decision? Obviously, last tine it was 

19 1 kicked upstairs and the decision made. This time, as I 

20 1 understand it, it was kicked downstairs, and the Air Force 

21 I made the decision. Why didn't you all get involved this 

time, since it's clearly a subject of high interest? 

niversificd n c ~ ~ o r t i ~ ~ q  Services, Inc. 
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GENERAL KLUGH: We did not look at the BRAC '93 

decisions and what went into that decision, Commissioner 

Robles, as we addressed it. We did this purely on the 

analytical process and determined potential closures and sent 

those down. 

The ranking that the Air Force provided us on 

military site value was pretty high, as far as Sacramento was 

concerned. I remember the figure -- they ranked it two ways, 

one as an installation, and then they ranked it as a depot 

activity on that installation. And I believe that, in their 

1, 2, 3 process, they ranked that depot, as they submitted it 

to us, number i. 

. - 
So we considere2, one, che ;nput, ai-c xs e o z s l a e r e e  

i diat arz beinq done ez  v z r l z u s  keses .  3ut 1: \ ~ : z s ~ . ' =  C::~U~S 

- that played a role in Sacramenrc. -z vas rie znzlyiical 
I 

process and the work load shifts. 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: General Blume? 

GENERAL BLUME: Commissioner Robles, let me comment 

and make a correction. These analyses were done almost 

simultaneously, and they were both done analytically, not 

looking back at the '93 commission. 

Diversified Hr!~lortillg Ser~ ices ,  Inr:. 
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2 0 3  

I've got a copy, for the record -- as a matter of 

fact, it's already in the record. This was provided, and it 

was in the DOD submission. 

But, just to clarify it, that in the installation 

tiering -- because we didn't know exactly what form the joint 

cross-service group wanted this information, but in the third 

tier -- let's say good, better, and best -- in the good tier, 

the lowest tier, for installations, there was Kelly Air Force 

Base and McClellan Air Force Base, ranked together. 

As far as the tiering for the depot asset at those 

I 
Uii-crsifitxi nrtportir~rj Serticcs, Inc. 

918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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i 

l1 I installations -- good, better, and best -- the lowest tier I 
l2 1 was Kelly Air Force Ease. This czme a c t  cf Air Fsrce 

- - - - 13 1 analysis. This anelysis esssnriz--:., E , shol;_c 
I 

1 L - * - . -  - - -  - - - -  - -  - - -  - - - - -  .... have CSZE DL: G.-IL - - -:. - Z L -  .= - : - . - - .  -.---- - -  u:: -==---- - -- -c 
I 

- . .---- - - =  - - -  ,.- - - -  1 5  I qrour, becaus? r e  r i r r z r e z  =re:: I -....- + ..-- , =I-= c--cL)-s:s. 
I 
I 

16 I COIQ5ISSI3IiBE ROSLZS: hnc. - - azzreei~re rne facz   yo^ 

I 

17 ' didn't look back, buz we're asf:in;  yo^, vhen you're 

18 I submitting this additional ears, ro icok baci: and tell us how , 
I 

19 

20 

2 1 

22 

l 
a tier 3 base has a tier 2 depot on i: and whas has changed 

in that whole analysis. Because, I mean -- 

GENERAL BLUME: I understand. 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: -- again, some things are 



1 

GENERAL BLUME: I think what we will find, again I 

counterintuitive. What changed? 

2 

3 

4 

5 

And please, if there is any -- if there were new, 

additional missions that were added or new factors that were 

added this time in the military value ranking and the other 

ranking, please submit those. 

lo I are the same, the numbers are just bigger. 

7 

8 

9 

The Army plans to transfer ground vehicie work load 

from Setterkenny to Axderson, bi; none of the personnel 

authorizations zre being rozligns5, or zt leasc that's as I 

hi;. ?u--c-- -,- - uncierscend 5 : .  _ --.-L-.. i ~ ,  ~ 3 : " :  12: 52:s x ccne. EsTL ;- - A 

-" 
vou transfer wor-i. l e e 2  \:i+hov.- A --A -- -- dc? you hzve t h z t  muck 

excess capacity a: Xnaersox ~c ao ground vehicle naintenence 

so that you don't have to transfer any personnel? 

GENERAL SI-iAlNS: That s correct. There is 

substantial excess capacity there to do that. 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Okay. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: commissioner Steele? 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: As promised, only one last 

would say, is an improved analytical process. 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Finally, General Shane, I 

need to ask this just from an old -- like I said, the issues 

1Ji1,ursif ied Rcpurtirlr] Services, Ir~c .  
91a  I ~ T H  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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2 1 maximum potential capacity, the chairman asked a question at 

I I know it's measured on a single shift, versus two 

3 

4 

6 1 or three shifts. My question is, what year are we using for I 

the beginning of the hearing about that. I just wanted to 

clarify it for myself. 

GENERAL KLUGH: The joint cross-service group did 

7 

8 

lo I base the analysis on one shift, 40-hour week. We based it on 

single-shift capacity: what we're currently doing, what we 

did in '91 or '88, when it was at a peak? 

11 the current program funded work load for year of 1999. I 
COMMISSIONER STEELE: Thank you. 

13 
I Switching tc N s - r Y 7  L : ,  t n e  GA.3 mentioned this aorninq 
i 

15 the11 f c l r  zncc -,he 52x2- lgoked at privaze-sectcr shipyard 

16 
I 

c+pacF:y oa :he N e s ~  Cozsc i,;nen znzlyzing decisions, and 
1 

1 7  / they -- I believe they were ei:her uncertain or they didn't 
I 

18 / think the Navy looked st the private-sector capacity st all 
I 
I 

19 / on the East Cozst. I just wondered if you could address the 

I 
20 1 private-sector shipyard capacity. I 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Commissioner Steele, I, 

unfortunately, was busy answering the request for information 

I 
Uiiersified Repurtinq Services, Iac. 
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1 

2 

COMMISSIONER STEZLE: Okay. This doesn't take into 

206 

and wasn't here to listen to the GAO testimony. I hope what 

they meant to say was that, in making its decision on Long 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

' 
consideration privexe-sector capacity -- this question -- but 

Beach Naval Shipyard, the Department of the Navy had a good 

understanding of the private-sector capabilities, dealing 

with the issue, would there be support for non-nuclear work 

of surface ships in that particular area. 

We did not analyze private-sector capacity on the 

West Coast, just as we didn't analyze private-sector capacity 

on the East Coast, in the context of, here's how many labor 

hours of capacity they have. 

It was an issue of asking ourselves the question, 

20 I the COBR4 for shipyard scenarios that you ran on the 

i 
1 7  1 
*& 

1 
i F  we clcse Long Beach N a v l  Skipyarz, the work that has to -- 

" - I 
L J  be don€ LTL 3 s  l o e z l   are^ -- is there a capability to do =he 1 

I 

- -I - - ---, - -.-= - --- - - - - -  - - -  
A - W . L - , .  - + . -  - 4 \ - . C -  c.-t.= - <  - - - -  . - - -  - -  -- .- - - .=-  v z :  -. . 
- - - A - . - -_ ,,..,- =CC,'-:"-' 'v.25 .--sC-, -- -'"" A=- - - - -  _ --_ -..,-+_ --.-- -.. --.- -dC, Of L_>.D - ~ ~ s r \ -  

- - 
145 --s -------- S C C Z ~ S E T L -  r e c c z Z  ef ,--- s ? s z c r  rn c ~ n p e z i n g  ir 

I 
I 
I 17 ; public-privaco, compezizions fsr scrfzce ships in that area. I 

Ili\.ursifit!d flellrlrlirlq Ser\.ices, Iuc. I 916 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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21 

22 

alternative 1 indicates that virtually all of Portsmouth's 

I 
work load can be moved to Norfolk for a cost of $100 million. 
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Since the COBRA predicts annual recurring savings, 

from closing Portsmouth, for $150 million, does this suggest 

that you ran that scenario -- that there wasn't a requirement 

to retain Portsmouth? Or does this suggest that, even though 

the savings would be very great by closing Portsmouth, the 

fact that the Na-7 chose not to do so was that there wasn't 

the capacity to absorb those missions, or what? 

MR. NEMFAKOS: If I can say it in my own words, we 

looked at the closure of Portsmouth Naval Shipyard, and as 

you can see, consistently throughout our entire process, any 

time we close a major industrial activity, the savings, 

I 

12 / particularly the 20-year net present value, is exceptionally I 

i 

13 high. I 

I 
- - - z - Z C  ;EC-E-C:- 2:. =- ; T Z S Y , S ~ ~ - ?  X25 Z C Z  because it 

. . 17 The dsc:s:an was, as both the Secretary and the I 
i 

! 
18 / Chief of Nav~l Operarions teszlfie5 in our opening hearing, a 

I 
i 
I 

l9 1 decision iooking at future naval operztions and the 

2 o  1 requirement to have retained in service certain types of 

21 I submarines through refueling, as opposed to defueling. 

Then, when one looked at the margins of 

Uivcrsificd I\r:jlortinrj Scrviccs, 111c. 
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flexibility, if one also closed Portsmouth, particularly in 

line with changing a decision from defueling to refueling, it 

was our judgment that we should maintain Portsmouth to give 

ourselves that operational programmatic flexibility. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Okay. Thank you. I know 

we're meeting with the Navy, some of us, anyway, tomorrow 

morning on that subject, because that fell into the 

classified category. So 1'11 leave that one be for now. 

The last question is from Senator Santorum, and he 

asks, "In your depot analysis, was Hill Air Force Base 

considered a potential consolidation candidate for tactical 

missile consolidation currently being conducted ac 

13 Letterkenny .?-rny Depot?" I 

- ,  -- T-..--. > - - 7 -  - 7 p -  . - 
A - 2~l,LFb--- hLL8z-r-: 3 :zm~,issi3z~r ~zeele. vvc e11 

- - - .  - 
A - _oc+: c x  L ~ E  Su~e: A:r L3gisz:cs Cencer capabilixy, 2nd some 

1 E  cf :he chings that cone to m i n c  there is thax the capability 

1': zo do the znciller~~ equipment, the ground support vehicles 
I 

1 c 
A.u and ground suppori functions must be done as well. 

And with the investment already made and with the 

2 o  I movement to consolidation at Letterkenny, we deternined, in 

21 ! the Joint Cross Service Group, that the option of 

consolidating to iiill was not the preferred option. 

Ilivcrsificd Rc11orti1111 Services, 111c. 
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Now, we also believe that privatization of tactical 

4 / way we talk about it in Joint Cross Service Group, so 

2 

3 

5 ( tactical missile being core but still, with the line 

missile is very appropriate. You know, once you fire one of 

those, you don't want it back for depot maintenance, is the 

6 1 replaceable units and where the state-of-the-art in 
7 1 maintenance is today, privatization of tactical missiles is 
8 / an option, and we're looking at that. 

technical components being done by a very efficient capable 

9 

10 

I 

w 12 I depot to do th+t kind of work, chet perhaps the future toward ' 
I 
I 

13 priva:izarion, not consolidation to another organic depot. I 

And I would ask you to look at that. So rather 

than stomp the consolidation now at Letterkenny and the 

COmISSIONEX CORT.iELL.4: Thank you, Commissioner I i6 i 
I 
I I 

.. - 
1, ; Sceele. 1-fs been the pr-ctice of the Committee to accept 

I 8  I queszions for members cf Congress, and I have one such 
I 

19 / question. I will not read it. It's from Congressman Chris 

ni\crsifit:d Rr:portillr~ Scr~ icc s ,  IIIC.  I 
91 8 1 ~ T H  STREET. N W SUITE 803 I 

1 WASHINGTON, D C 20006 
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2 0  

21 

2 2  

Smith of New Jersey to Charlie Nemfakos. I would ask thst 

you submit an answer in writing both to the congressman and a 

copy to the Commission for our records. We will provide that 

I I 
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to you after the hearing. 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: The other thing we would 

ask you to do is to take a look at this chart -- you don't 

need to put it up -- that's been prepared by BRAC. Did you 

I receive a copy of it? 
i GENERAL KLUGH: No, we did not. 

* 1 COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: All right. We will provide 

I you a copy, and if you could make comments regarding this 
chart and submit them to us for the record, we'd appreciate 

that, and with that, I thank the distinguished panel for the 

time that they have spent with us here this morning. I 

13 i apologize -- go ahead. 

-7 T-- -% - - ~ h c r ~ & ~  KLUGE: Caul6 I heve one lzst -- 

COXKISSIONEX COWELLF.: Absolutely. 

Ui \  crsified Raportierl Services, Inc. 
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" * is , GENERqL RLUGH: That the whole area, Mr. Chairman, 
I 

17 I of privatization that we didn't get into, I would say that 

15 I even beyond tactical missiles that there is an opportunity to 
I 

1 9  

20  

2 1  

22  

due privatization in a greater way. 

As far as the capacity, and you asked some 

questions about that, we do have some charts, I think, will 

provide really specific information as to what the end state 



1 

2 

of this BRAC by military department and provide commodity 

that -- 

3 

4 

1 going to be hard and a challenge, we all know, to implement. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: We would appreciate that. 

Anything you can provide us we would appreciate that. 

5 

6 

GENERAL KLUGH: And the other thing is, sir, that 

this is pretty hard. The end state of what you give us is 

8 

9 

12 ' conditional approaches, and my request would be to try to 

w I 
I 

13 give us some insight that might make it a little easier. 
1 

My request would be to try to avoid conditional 

situations and where possible provide clear language as to 

10 

11 

COMMISSICNER COFWELU: I agree wirh yoc 

what you really intend to do. In the past BRAC, they've been 

left kind of vague, and we have had some instances of 

- 7 
b - - compieteiy, an6 we'll make every effort to comply with that 

? 

reques:, Generai, and I thank you for your time. I know many 

1 7  of the others will be joining us this afternoon, so I li I 
l8 I especially thank you, sir. With that, we will break for 

lunch, and we will reconvene at 1:00 p.m. sharp. Thank you. 

Diversified R e p o r t i ~ ~ g  Services, Inc. 
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A F T E R N O O N  S E S S I O N  

(1:OO p.m.) 

1 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Good afternoon, ladies and 

1 gentlemen. Welcome to our afternoon session. I'm General 

I J.B. Davis. It's my honor to chair this portion of the 

hearing, and I do it with some trepidation, because Senator 

Dixon is such a great Chair. 

But you will hear testimony from the Undergraduate 

Pilot Training Joint Cross Service Group, of course, an area 

of great importance, as far as I'm concerned, because it not 

only services the services but services the national asset of 

pilots. 

13 i We're joined by -- and I'd like to welcome 
I 

14 Kr. Loxis C. Pinch, Deputy Undersecretzry of Defense f 3 r  

- - -- reaeiness, who headed up the UPT Group, our senior Defense 

personnei for this morning, General Shane, of course, Generzl 

Blume, Mr. Nemfakos, and Ms. Kelleher, I guess, will be here 

later. 

1 Again, there are no opening statements -- there you 

2 0  I are. We can begin as soon as I've sworn in Mr. Finch. 

Everybody else has been sworn. Before I start, Mr.   inch, is 

there anybody that will provide testimony here this afternoon 

Uiversified Reporti114 Services, IIIC. 
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other than the people sitting at the head table? 

MR. FINCH: General Davis, the witnesses before you 

at the table will be the ones that will be speaking for us. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: All right. Then, sir, you're 

the only one. If you would please raise your right hand. 

(Witness sworn.) 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, sir. If I may, so I 
I can understand the process, I will ask you a few process 

questions and then accede to each commissioner. 

MR. FINCH: That will be fine. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Did Cross Services analysis 

I 
1 

7 -I 
AL j directed by the Secretary of Defense take place in the UPT 

/ 
I 

I 
- I 

w I 13 1 Joint Cross Service Group in a manner sufficient to yield 2 I 

. . 
;4 - ,u:nz - resulr an6 ta provicie savLnqs 6x2 ts the e l l z l n a z i o r .  . . cf 

15 cnnecesszry DoD cepacizy in the fin21 recoix~enCatisn 51- r h ~  

I 

16 ?-ir Force and the Navy? 
1 

17 W,. FINCE: Yes. General Davis, as you knox, tn lz  
I 

I 

18 I Joint Cross Service Group for Undergraduate pi lo^ Trainixg i 1 
I 

Uisersificd Rr:porti~lg Ser\.ices, 111c. 
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I 

j 

1 9  

20  

2 1  

22  

went through a process to provide alternatives for the 

military departments for them to consider. 

And based on their considerations of our 

alternatives and other factors that they took into account, 



1 / provided recommendations that collectively for the Department ( 
2 

3 

' 1 down to a very low level. 

of Defense will indeed reduce overall excess capacity for the 

flight training function. 

4 

5 

6 

I So in terms of our overall objectives of reducing 

Just to give you an example, within the area of 

fixed-wing training, the excess capacity went from a figure 

of about 35.5 percent down to a level of about 8 percent, 

I excess capacity and the long-term savings that we would 

lo 1 expect to accrue from that, that yes indeed, we did 

accomplish our objectives. 

CO?.IMISSIONER DAVIS: Along that line, Sseretary 

12 Finch, given, you know, we're looking at the f c r s ~  ievels we 
I 

have ~odzy, c i c i  rt-a Jcin-, S e r l - i c e  S r D u r  Icc!: z: t k2  s:r,Tr 

czpzcixy of 211 of services to meet cct-yezr un1:no-c 

16 requiremenc, or ~ z s  chat left up to each individuz; service? 
I 

I ! 
I 

17 ! MR. FINCH: General ~avis, it was princigally E 

i 
1 matter of e+ch of the individual services, though I might add 

that within the Joint Cross Service Group we did have some I 
And in our discussions, the general consensus of 

the Group was that indeed inherent in the site structures 

Iliversified Rcportir~q S e r ~ i c t ! ~ ,  IIK. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 I I 
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that we were considering that you would have an inherent 

I capacity for surge should some unforeseen contingencies arise 

by your organization: 

3 

4 

5 

MInsulation of UPT category included 

sometime in the future. I 
COMMISSIONER DAVIS: The scope of analysis chosen 

by the UPT Joint Cross Service Group was as follows put out 

all DoD flight programs that support and facilitate selection 

"The scope 

8 

9 

included fixed and rotary wing 

and training of pilots, able flight officers and navigators 

to the point of award wings. 

training 

of all officer and enlisted student pilots, naval officers 

12 / and navigators. " 

Did you find the scope of the UPT training 

programs, installarion and student ry2es yo2 chsse 

15 i either roo broad or nor broad enough? 
I 

MR. FINCH: General Davis, that in terms of its 

scope, clearly one could make it larger or smaller, but in 

terms of something that gave a good, meaningful result in 

terms of our overall analysis, I would say that it was just 

2 0  I about right, in terms of what we included and didnlt. 
COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay. can you put up Chart 1, 

Di;.ersified Rcportillq S c n i c e s ,  Inc. 
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/ functional areas, if this one up over here is working, I 
selected for analysis by the UPT Joint service Group, can you I I 
discuss how we arrived at the ten areas, and were all of them 

used in the analy'sis process? 

I MR. FINCH: The basic approach to deciding on these 

I particular functional areas was to consider within flight 
training those functions that would involve the w e m h n q  

LUJW~J;-S~~ 

wings. It was an undergraduate approach to the problem. 

And having sent that as the basic criteria, then, 

upon review of the military departments of what functions I 
I 
I 

that were out there that met that criteria, we came up with I 

this list, and indeed, as I look over it, this is exactly the , 

/ list that we used in terms of our Joint Cross  Service 
i 
analysis. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So, essentially, all these 

functional areas played in your analysis o r  just some of 

them? 

MR. FINCH: All of these did, yes, sir. 

I COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay. Of course, having been i 
with the process off and on over the years, we've considered 

consolidation of training, and I know the Air Force and the 

Di~.ersificd nc~~ortir~rl  Services, Illr;. 
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I Navy has been talking to each other for a long time but 
I currently are in the process of coming up with a finalized 
plan, even though it's not final, as I understand it, today. I 

I 

During the past year, this plan did come to 

7 

8 

9 

10 

MR. FINCH: Yes, General Davis. As a matter of 
I 

fact, as you pointed out, this plan for consolidating Navy 

and Air Force flight training in the fixed-wing area has been 

underway for some time. 

12 

rl 
13 

I 

maturity, at least in terms of the basics, in rerms of 

looking at in which of these functional areas we could find a 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Diversified Fit!pnrtirl~~ Serr ices, IIIC. 
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' common enough basis xo be able tc have 2 c ~ m ~ o z  s ) - l l~bcs  :: 

be followed both by -he Air Force and N a x ~  iz the Zixed-:-in2 

training area. I 
I 

I 

~iven that level of maturity, we took the 

recommendations of the Air Force and Navy and through a 
i 
1 

19 

20 

21 

22 

I 
memorandum signed out by the Deputy Secretary of Defense, ! 

threw those into policy with respect to the Department of 

Defense in pursuing consolidated joint training in the fixed- 

wing area. 
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And the analysis and assessments and work of the 

incorporated the recommendations of the 

2 

3 

two services. 

Joint Cross Service Group was based on that statement of 

policy promulgated by the Deputy Secretary that, basically, 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

while ago that each service -- 

Now, I might add, of cours?, in terms of given the 

basics of concepts of where we can have consolidated 

training, there are an immense amount of details, in terms of 

working out the specifics of the curricula in each of these 

areas, and of course, that work continues on, and I would 

expect it to continue on for some time. 

surge capacity. 

You testified just a little 

you thought 

With your pernission, I'd 

that we had e 

like to start with 

the Navy and say how much surge czpacity So YOU ~ S T S ?  

l5 I 1/11 ask the Air Force the same q u e s r i o n .  

I 

MR. NEMFAKOS: #r. Chairman, zhe Navy's excess, L 
I 
1 guess, has to be described best in what kind of a ceiling of 
I 

surge, if any, exists. As you know, pending the approval of 
I 

the recommendations of the Department of the Navy, we're, 

essentially, at two regional training compieres, one in West 

Di\.ersified R c p n r t i ~ ~ y  Services, Inc. 
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analysis, through the range of a 20 percent surge, those two 

regional complexes, in our analysis, provided us sufficient 

capacity. We did not stress though regional complexes above 

the 20 percent level. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Any reason why you didn't 

stress it -- because we've stressed our pilot training 

organizations before more than 20 percent. 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Yes, sir, we have. We looked at the 

force structure in the out years. We looked at where the 

budget lines were. We felt that a 20 percent surge was a 

very significant surge given where those resource levels, 

both manpower and dollars, were. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Colonel Bloom, sane questisn. 

GENERAL ELUXZ: Sir, as f ~ r  zs E surqc  czFacrzl- : 

understand that the capacity anzlysis thaz wzs acccmplisheC 

was done on, essentially, a f i v e - a z y  week. So you 

automatically have some built-in surge capacity right there, 

much less that we're not, you know, operating at -- 2nd 

should not operate at a 100 percenc. 

And for that reason the Air Force looked at the 

three alternatives that were presented by the Joint Cross 

Service Group, the first one taking care of a certain amount 

Iliversified He~~or t i r ig  Services, 111r:. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 

(202) 296-2929 



1 
111 

I either the second or the third alternative. The first 

2 2 0  

of excess capacity, the other two reducing it on down, 

2 

3 

1 alternative was appropriate. 

essentially, to about zero. 

The Air Force did not recommend that we go to 

I COMMISSIONER DAVIS: General Shane, same question. 1 
GENERAL SHANE: Commissioner Davis, let me provide , 

lo 1 we're going to do this today, so we don't get in a bad habit, I 

8 

9 

I 

we're going to start down on the left-hand side and go right. I 

! 
that for the record for the Army. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay. Fine. All right. What 

C 12 I Fighter pilots alviys like to 60 L 3 w ~ r d s  :he cjro7~-21s BR~-v;z;,-. 

I 
13 1 Commissioner Steele, please. I 

- - - - -  ---  , - 15 1 scrambling, 5ec~cse ~ e g 2 l e  i ; s r ' ~  ~ . r : ~ r  s:clzr z _ -  . . ,,,L - - 

16 questicns . Thazlr - - - ?  y d i l .  

17 1 We'll stsrc with an issue that was brought up b)- ' the GAO this mor~ing regarding th? Reese resoinmeneation for 

l8 1 
l9 I closure. It says, "The Air Force recommended closing Reese 

2 o  I Air Force Base . . .  cornunity concerns arose over the issues of 

Uiversif i~:d Repnrtinr] Services, IIIC.  
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21 

22 

potential errors in the Air Force's scoring of Selection 

Criteria One and its reliance on data gathered under the 



"The Air Force's initial 

1 

review of community 

1 
221 

Joint Cross Service process to make this assessment. 

3 

4 

5 

concerns indicated that while there were data errors, they 

did not significantly alter the relatively scoring of the 

bases for Criterion One and would not have changed the 

6 

7 

8 

your subsequent findings and 

re~ommendation,~~ and then go on to say, l1but your work wasn't 

finalized at the Air Force prior to completion of their 

report. 

9 

10 

you're satisfied 

If you could both, Mr. Secretary and General Bloom, 

address those issues that were raised by the community and 

that you've 
I 

I come to whatever conclusion it is that you've coze tc. I 

w 13 / MR. F I N C H :  V e r y  gooC. ?errh?s,  i- -errs cf Y ~ E  
I 
I 

- - 14 ; detail, I coul5 refer  ro Generil 2 -as_ .  31.z ;?or ----' - =I + T b .  : - rr 

Llivcrsified Rl!~lurtirlr~ Sl:rviccs, 1 1 1 ~ .  
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15 1 the par~icular areas where xs fouk s o r a  C;s:rep+rcles i.r 
I 
I 

16 1 data, my observation is t h a z  even uizh  the chznges zhe- rigax 

17 

18 

be subjected as a result of than review, that in terms of the 

I 
work of the Joint Cross Service Group it would not have I 

I 
I 

l9 I changed appreciably, in terms of the basic alternatives that 
20 

21 

22 

we provided for the military departments to consider. 

But I know the Air Force has reviewed in some 

detail the whole data set in each of the specific points 

I I 



1 

2 

3 

222  

raised, and perhaps I could refer to General Bloom in terms 

of his assessment of how those changes may have affected the 

overall result. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

I 
I 

CONMISSIONER STEELE: Did you reviev only errors 

9111 13 that were pointed out, or did yoi; in any way remeasure how 
I 

GENERAL BLUME: Yes. Commissioner Steele, the Air 

Force has provided the commission with a detailed accounting 

of every one of those specific individual elements that was 

brought up by the groups supporting Reese. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

14 - - - p - , 2 - c .  7 -  you wocld evziuezs f o o ~ r i z t  -.-ETSZS --; I-::.:. :: 2 ::- -. --&, - -  + -- 

That has been presented to the  omm mission, and in 

no case did the Air Force find that if there was an anomaly 

or an error that the -- as we carried on additional analysis, 

that it would have caused any different rocamend;tion. 
I 

MR. 

1 6  ' C-ENEaL BLUlrIE: . The tns l~-s is  r e r , e i z ~ 8  

1 
1 7  1 consistent because we f e l t  confidenr that we ha8 caprcred :he 

I 

l8 I 
I 

appropriate -- both the Air Force and the Joint C r o s s  Service 1 
I 

FINCH : 

19 

2 0  

21 

Commissioner 

Group -- the appropriate areas that should be evaluated, but 

every specific element that was brought up by the LCC was 
i 

identified and looked at. 

Steele, if I might add, 
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2 2 3  

too, that within the work of the Joint Cross Service Group, 

we really bent over backwards in terms of trying to ensure 

that we were as error free as possible and beyond that did a 

great deal of work at ensuring that the date that we received 

from the various military departments was compatible one with 

another. 

I think my colleagues will agree that we, you know, 

I'm reasonably confident 

8 

9 

10 

that, 

went through a great deal of in-depth discussion. My charge 

to the group was again and again that, you know, we should 

have people go back, review the data, check it, and overall, 

YOU know, 

12 ) no major glaring errors out there. 

there is certainly 

There may be a few s ~ a l i  discrepancies nere an; 

- - 15  / that p u ~  into gl~ce, th?= :Re l a t e  :hi: we uaee X ~ C - z  
1 

16 ' be quite good. i 

GENERAL BLUME: 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: When you did the review 

For every place there was a 

18 

19 

20 

recently, as a result of the errors thac were founa, did you 

iook a r  all of che UPT bases fcr errors or only select some 

out for a second review? 

D i ~ . c r s i f i e d  R c p u r t i ~ ~ r ~  Scrviccs, Inc. 
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22 potential error that could have been translated to another 



1 base. In other words, did we go back and assess all the 2 2 4  I 
2 

3 

4 

airspace at every other base? The answer is no. 

Did we look to see that the same type of error that 

crept in, possibly, to the -- not counting 2,000 foot in the 

5 

6 

Reese-specific accusation was certainly looked at throughout 

all of the bases. 
I 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

I 
Divcrsi f icd Rr:~lnrtir~q Services, IIIC.  I 
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I 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Okay. So it wasn't just two 

bases out of a group of five that were reviewed? 

GENERAL BLUME: Two bases? No. Well, Reese is 

only one. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Oh, so you only reviewed 

Reese in particular? YOU didn't make Ciffere~t ozloulations I 

- - - . - 14 ' GENyKt-L EL'jj.:Z: :::- - . f - . 9 = Y  - - . - -  r>:Z2='Y 17 - - L A -  -_  -A*-- - v . c >  

I 

K P D C C .  15 i 2 specific alleqacisn :x;: r?:s :i:- -21-f b e e r  e r r l z  iz .----, 
I 
I 

I 

13 1 regarding any of r r i e  cry.er J P T  kessil 
I 
I 

i6 

17 

we went back and looked .EZ z11 of :hem zo see r h a r  2 similar 
I 

error did not creep into the data. 

l8 I 
I 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Oksy. Thank you. I'm clear i 
19 

2 0  

21 

22  

I 
on that now. The other issue I was curious about, military 

value and that whole rating, the Air Force chose to do its 

own calculations for the final criteria 2 through S but 

adopted -- it's my understanding adopted the Joint Cross 

1 



I just a few of those functional categories that General Davis 
1 

3 1 was showing earlier. ! 

225 

Service Group's work for criteria Number 1, getting rid of 

My question to you is are you confident with the 

1 foundation of the data that came out of the ~oint Cross 

6 1 Service Group to have that be the ~ i r  Force's sole source for I 
7 1 grading criteria Number 1 for military value? 

lo I specialists, the people that we put in that joint Group, to 
8 

9 

11 I get the best number of our functional value capacity. 

GENERAL BLUME: Probably the most jointness of 

anything that we even did. I mean, we relied upon our 

And on their recornmendstion back to the Air Force 

l 
and the a1tern~:ives rh+: were recommended by the Joinz Cross i 

14 - = l -  - T R . c < ; 7 - -  -,..-- ' SerlV;ce Gr-1-2 k c  :-_. = -  z .11~  i < i f  1 ~ C S C  z:liL>-s;s 

10 1 Criteriz Number 1. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Okay. My time has expired. i 
I 

18 1 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairnan. 
I 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: ~o~rmissioner Robles. 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Yes. Mr. Finch, General 

21 / Klugh testified here this morning that they use a lineal 

22  1 programming algorithm to help them as a tool and at least, 
Uiccrsifit!rl neportir~q Ser~. ices ,  Inc. 

918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N.W. SUITE 803 
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I 



1 

4 1 could optimize in various ways? 

2 2 6  

sort of, sort things out. 

2  

3 

mlz. F z d C l - l  
eEN3Bk-e: Yes. As a matter of fact, we did. 

Did you also look at a way to use a linear 

programming algorithm to look at capacity and look at how you 

8 ( out of that optimization model? 

6 

7 

-K+h We used the optimization model as, 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: And can you, kind of, 

summarize from your perspective the major results that came 

lo 1 basically, something to give us insights, to make us smart on 

l1 I the problem and look for various ways that we could formulate 
12 1 alternatives. 

I 

l3 I That is not something that we just used mindlessly 

1 A - % to have the OUtpui become our recommendations, but with zhat ! 
I 

i5 seid, we fount iz quite valuable in a number of ways. 
1 

I 
First of all, one of the approaches we looked at I 

1 

17 1 was to take a look at what are the minimum number of sites 

I _C_ 

18 1 that we could have in order to still meet our capacity 
I 

1 9  

2  0 
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requirements and carry out the mission. So it gave us a 

calibration point as to how deep we could go. 

2 1  

2 2  

Another useful thing was to get a sense of the 

following: that, you know, as a broad objective, I think we 



And one of the ways that you can incur expense in I 
I 

1 

2 

4 1 the short-term is moving functions around from base to base, 

all share the view that we want to save money not only in the 

5 1 and so we did some analysis to say what are some feasible 

I 
long-term but also in the short-term. 

6 1 solutions that will keep the number of moves down. 

Beyond that, we used it to ensure, in addition to 

11 / basically, benchmarks on what sort of alternatives might 
i 

8 

9 

10 

12 : produce a satisfying military value. So we used ic as an aid ' 

getting the basic capacity right, that we would have as much 

as we could a good military value for the collection of bases 

that would remain open. So we used it as a tool to develop, 

13 A LO OUI process in those principal dimensions. I 

- ,  - - . ZOKNISSIOKZ?. 205LE3: And 5id y ~ u  look across the 

- - * - - 6-iicle rznge oT oprLDns frorr,  no-, shyi~g zwzy frorr, pucting any 

- ?. * - L suSjeez TO conscrainc equations in =here that would cause 
I 

'1 - 
-A! your Cecision set to shy away from any areas? 

18 , MR. FINCH: Absolutely. There were certain 

practical constraints that we needed to impose. We did not 

2 0  I want to use the linear program approach to produce 
21 I nonsensical results. 

For example, there are some bases that simply are 

Ilivcrsified llcpurtirlq Services, IIIC.  
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I So what we did was we developed a set of real world 

1 

I operational constraints that said, okay, you know, you have 

228 

not compatible with helicopter training and things like that. 

I to do -- whatever solution comes out has to make sense in the 
I following operational ways, but beyond that we made no other 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Well, I asked General Klugh 

6 

7 

I this morning to provide the subject to constraint equations I 

constraints that would particularly prejudge results one way 

or another. 
I 

10 / and the slack analyses that came out of that. I'd ask you to / 
I 
I 

11 1 do the same thing for your run just to, kind of, see what 1 I 
i 

I 
I 

12 1 sort of constraints were in there. 

1 3  - I And I understand that they all were limiting, but 
i 

- . - - . soinecimes : y r s  in the assumpxion cf what can end can't be 

- - - n - - - -Vn& at E c e r c a i n  base cha; lea& you in c cerzain direcz:~~.. 
I 
! 

9 c 
L O  s TG.. FINCH: Absolutely, and we'd be happy to 

I I 

~ 
proviae chat fgr rhe record. 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Great. Second question, i 
I 

costs. Can you share a little bit of insight about costs? 
1 

Another thing that you look at, whenever you're looking at 

functions, does the cost do something on any given base? And 

they're all different. 

i Di\.crsificd Ilellrrrti~~rj Services, IIIC. 
I 
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They're all different because, as General Bloom 

eloquently stated, bases do different things. In my days as 

a base commander, I had all sorts of things going on on the 

base that support a core function, but there were other 

things going on, and you get an overhead rate, a base ops 

rate, base support rate, et cetera. 

Could you maybe talk a little bit in general terms 

about what you found when you looked at the various cost 

rates of different bases, Reese versus Vance versus whatever? 

And were there any ones that were -- were they all clustered 

about the same or some higher, much higher, some much lower? 
I 

MR. FINCH: Maybe I could address the question in i 

broad terms and then, perhaps, asked my colleagues from the I I 

nilirzry aepzrtments to fill in some of the details. 

In the Joint Cross Service Group, we dii noz 
I 

I 
address costs directly in terms of dollar costs. Just given 

the broad look that we were looking -- we were trying to do, I 
given, you know, all of the literally, probably, millions of 

i 
I 

I 

alternative ways you can base these functions at a variety of 1 
bases, it simply was not practical to go out and do a dollar 

cost estimate of every combination that we had to consider. 

And what we ended up doing was to consider some 

Divers i f i ed  Repurtirry Servicus, Irrc. 
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surrogates for costs, things that we knew that were 

representative of costs but didn't necessarily work in a 

precise dollar fashion. 

One of the surrogates was excess capacity. Werre 

trying to minimize the amount of excess capacity out there. 

Another one is just, basically, how many bases we would 

ultimately end up operating. All other things being equal, 

fewer sites cost less. 

A point I mentioned a minute ago was we also looked 

at how many functional moves you would have to make in the 

short-term. In you're starting to move functions around, 

that's going to be an expensive proposition, at least in the 

short term. So we looked at a variety of surrogates for 

costs but not dollars per ss. 

Now, within the military departments, of course, 

given the alternatives we presented plus.the alternatives 

that served us within their own internal processes, there is 

a much more detailed cost analysis getting down to dollars 

that each of them conducted, and perhaps I could refer to my 

colleagues here to give a descriptive -- 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Well, really, the question is 

really at your level, and the reason I asked the question at 

Divcrsificd ncport ir~q  Services, 111c. 
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But someone needs to sort that out and say, well, 

from a cost perspective, cost being one of the factors, it 

makes more sense to train pilots at X base versus Y base 

because it's inordinately cheaper to do it there than 

somewhere else, and you can get the same equivalent training. 

That's just one factor. 

~bviously, military value is another factor. 

Obviously, functional capability is another factor, et 

cetera. And that has to be done, really, at your level, 

1 

2 

l2 i because I -- that's the only way you can compare across. 

your level is because they all have individual costs based on 

what it costs to run their bases. 

1 3  / So my real question is, now, did you do that 
I 

- .  . 
azalysis, ant if yo;: 2id, zic an) 3; r n o s e  reca>x"_nd+;-;z g ~ z  

adozted by the services wit!-- respect z3 rrzining a: e certzlr 

base on a cross-service basis because i; wzs econonically 

cheaper to do it there, and it can meet all of the other 

constraints that you had? I 

I 
MR. FINCH: As I'd mentioned, what we did as a I 

group was to look at things thet were reasonable surrogates I I 

for costs, but we did not look -- we developed a set of 

alternatives that we provided for the consideration by the 

I 
1 

Ui\ ersified Repnr t i r~g  S e n  ices, Irlc. 
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1 ultimately produced their own recommendations. 

2 

3 

4 

They, in turn, went through a detailed -- using 

their own methodologies, a detailed cost assessment of what 

would be involved in each of those alternatives and then 

I departments did indeed do that in their part of the analysis. I 

6 

7 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Okay. And my time is up. 

So that we did not do a detailed cost analysis per 

se in the Joint Cross Service Group, but the military 

I'm going to ask all of the departments to submit what their i 
I 

I 
average costs are to train pilocs at their various bases, and I 

1 2  1 we'll form the question, for bath variable costs and fiisi 

l3 / costs and just see how these all stack up, variable and fixed 

I 
14 costs, to zrei~. 

i 
That's just one factor, >ct cerzzi?ll- costs ?,E-~-S 

18 / and we only had a limited amount o' money to im9lemeent BP-?C 

16 

17 

19 1 '95. So that constrained ir to some degree. 

been this underiying theme this whole B3AC ' 9 5 .  Or. 0r.o Lint, 

one of the big factors was how much does it cost to do this, 

2 o  I And on the other side was, you know, certain 1 
i 

21 I decisions were made because it was "too expensivev to do it. 

Diversified Rt!purti~lrl Scriices, I IIC.  
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22  And so costs was a clearly underlying rationale in some of 



/ the decisions made in BRAC ' 9 5 .  

So it will be interesting to see how costs played 

into this cross-servicing decisions and recommendations that 

were made. 

GENERAL BLUME: Could I make a comment? And that 

is you have to realize, sir, that the primary function; that 

is, the primary pilot training is one that will be joined is 

now and will continue to be. 

However, once you pass that or maybe even before, 

the Air Force does flight screening, certainly it did for 

I 
cost aspect. The fact that the Air Force does all of its 

training today on a base, you can compare one base with che 

next. 

+ - ~ - y p ~ -  v -  - - 7  -.-- the Navy situation, where the,~- hzve \ 7 ~ r - ) -  c i i ,  -e, ,,. - L . L ~ s s ~ d . . =  

at one base than the next. 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: I understand that, buz I also 

know that the cost eccountants of the world slice cost every 

way but loose. So there is enough way to get at the cost I 

i 
I 

data just with any good cost analyst start to dissect the I 

I 
costs, right Charlie? We all know how to do cost analysis. 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Sure. And if the Commissioner would 

Dii.ersifir!d n ~ ! ~ l r ~ r t i r ~ q  Scrviccs, 1 1 1 ~ .  
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I think itfs fair to say, Commissioner Robles, that in doing 
'CII 

1 

1 our analysis we did not look at how much does it cost you to I 

I 

2 3 4  

tell me what answer he'd like, we can probably do that. I 

I move a pilot one day, two days, three days, unlike what we 
5 1 did in some of the depots, for example. I 

I What we did do on costs, however, in looking at the 

7 1 alternatives that the Joint Cross service Group recommended 

1 looked at the cost aspect in the context of closing something 

8 

lo I down and moving the work someplace else. 
that we examine, we did look at the cost aspect, and we 

I So for example, the one that most immediately comes ; 
i 

12 1 to mind, in the context of co-locating helicopter piio~ 

13 training at Fort i u c k e r ,  we leek& it the cssts. 

14 1 , .  . The costs we very nlqP IJ? f rozz  f o r  tkis k i n ?  cf E:. 

activity, and the net present val~e afzer 2C yezrs  ;as ---;-- L. iuc- 

$2 million. So we looked a= 8 traieoff bezween spendin5 
I 

$150- t o  $200 million up front to move it, and on a 
I 

I 

I 
discounted basis saving $2 million over 20 years, and we said 1 

I 

thank you but no thank you, and we didn't do it. So we 

looked at costs in that context. 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: You say you looked at it from 

a co-location, but did you also look at the from a 

Diversified neportinq Services, Inc. 
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consolidation point of view? 

MR. NEMFAXOS: No, sir, we did not, because the 

Navy operational imperatives are not to train Air Force -- I 

mean Army and Navy helicopter pilots the same way. We have 

operational considerations on why we train our pilots the way 

we do, particularly given the P-22 coming in, as an example, 

and replacing the CH-46 in the inventory. 

We have a completely different dynamic, I think, 

than what's being looked at elsewhere. That's an operational 

consideration that was discussed at the senior operational 

levels in the Department of the Navy. I 

I 
And so co-location was what was iooked ZE,  and cc- 

w location was what was recommended out of the Zoinr Workizq 

I 
14 I Groups because rhe rrzining is nct the s a m E  

COMMISSIONER ROBLES : Tha~k yoc .  

Di\~ersif ied R u p n r t i ~ ~ q  S e n  ices, Inr;. I 
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I 
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16 

1 7  

1 8  

1.9 

2 0  

2 1  

22  

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I congratulate my Army 
1 

colleague at taking six minutes and making it loo}: l i k e  t e ~ .  
I 

I 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: That's also a skill. 1 I 
I 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: 1/11 see if I can catch us 

up. Short questions, short answers. Put up Charz 2. 
! 

General Bloom, I want to ask you -- you can give a yes or no 

answer or do a quick analysis for me, sensitivity analysis. I 



1 

2 

3 

Reese Air Force Base is clearly all by itself at 

the bottom of that list. To what extent did the way you 

calculated military value have an impact on that, or said 

4 

5 

differently, if you had substituted for military value 

component only that function dealing with actual pilot 

6 

7 

training, would that have changed those standings any? Do 

you understand my question? 

8 

9 

10 

The use of military value based upon what the Joint 

Cross Service team did, and they had all kinds of things in 

there besides just UPT training. 

11 

12 

13 

18 / the DoD directives -- 

GENERAL BLUME: I guess I'm having trouble with I I 

"military value." There was fun;rianil value developed zy 

the Joint Cross Service Group, 6ni r s e z t s  ~ h a r  1 set on r-rr 

. . 16 1 mzin component of r n ~ l l x z r y  vrluiT 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: 

17 

It has focr  pa^-2s ci ic. 

GENEmL, BLUEIE: No. YiLir?r;- I ~ E ~ X C ,  2: . - ysc rezc 

GENE-RqL BLUME : Four parts. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Right. 

GENERAL BLUME: How are they weighted? Theylrs 

D i i  crsifir!d Rcllurtirlrj S e n  ices, 1111:. I 

I 01 8 1 ~ T H  STREET. N W SUITE 803 I 
WASHINGTON, Ci Z 20006 

I 
(202) 256-2329 

I 

I 

j 



weighted according to equal -- probably the functional value 

1 Force analysis, because the Air Force analysis takes in all 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

or Criterion One, the operational value of that facility is 

probably the heaviest, but the others also -- 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Well, let's stay with the 

very first one. 

G E N E R A L  BLUME:  Well, I can't. I can't in the Air 

lo I We also looked at the cost, the payback and the 

8 

9 

11 / impacts, and then we tiered, and that was the value of that 
I 

eight. So the Air Force analysis, we looked at the first 

four. 

12 I installation relative to the other installations in t5-t 

15 having sorted through =?.+ti is the: regcrllecs i:cerr.sr 1-2- 
I 

16 use s~rictly a very nzrrow aefinizion o: pilot -----'-: -- c - . . L L l k  =a - -  
I 

I 
17 functional value f o r  your f i r s t  c r i t e r i e ,  es ogposed tc 1 

18 / the Cross Service Team did, the answer would have been the 

19 j same for Reese? 

GENERAL BLUMZ: The answer would have been the 

21 I same. I 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: You think it would have been 

I 

! 
I 

Uivt!rsified Rr:liflrtir~r~ Services, Inc. 
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I 
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GENERAL BLUME: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Okay. Mr. Finch, in closing 

1 

4 / Meridian and Reese Air Force Base, will the Navy and ~ i r  

238 

the same? 

I Force are sufficient capacity to remain and perform all UPT 
6 

7 

l1 I regarding strike training, in Kingsville; is that correct? 

requirements and also accommodate surge? Is that your 

position? 

8  

9 

10 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Yes, sir, iz is. 

MR. FINCH: Indeed they will. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Mr. Nemfakos, by closing 

Meridian, we, apparently, put all our eggs in one basket 

. - -  
13 1 COMMISSIONER M3?:TSY;.: An6 cez K i n g s ~ ~ ; ~ ~  sztlsZT- I 

1 

16 ' COAb%ISSIONER MONTZY.L: An< Genzrzl Elox.. SZXE 

-- n,=. m -  -'--- question regarcing Rees? Air Force Sese.  u A d e L L L *  L ~ L ~ L ,  ~ h s z  

I i 1 18 , leavss sufficient carracity for r h e  Zcresesible f r z z r e  i ~ d  an?- I 

1 I 
19 i foreseeable surge? Elourre satisfied with that? 

I I 

22  I anything. I mean, we single site C-17 training. We single 

20 

21 

Uivcrsified napnrt i l~q  Surviccs, 111c. 
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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 I 
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GENERAL BLUME: Yes, sir, it does. As a nat=er of I 

fact, one more comment relative to the single siting of 



2 3 9  

site F-117 training. Those are not unique as far as the 

military departments are concerned, if it is economically 

feasible to do that. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Just a follow-on question. 

In visiting that base, it was gratifying to see some very 

successful joint training going on. To see Navy pilots and 

Air Force pilots praise each other, supporting each other was 

truly a joy. Where will that go if you do close Reese? 

GENERAL BLUME: All of the bases, sir, that do 

primary training, will have what will be a replica of that 

particular example, and that will continue following the BR42 

once it is aecided which bases will stay 2nd which one will 

go 

m T m r - - - -  ----- .,? 7 - -  ..- - -. . -- - - . -  .- ,- - - . -- - 
L~-L--->L-U!\L~.  ~ ; d l i ' -  .. L.7 : A ...- 2 .. zc; -:-G - v.,c= .V'E:... 

to say so pcblicly. That's 211 I have, b k .  Chairmz~. 

- i 
COMlilISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, Admiral Montoya. I I 

1 

appreciate the time back. Mr. Chairman. 

I CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much, K r .  Chairman. I 
Charlie, I think I'm going to pick on you here a little, if 

you don't mind. Now that my friend Admiral Montoya has been 

Iliversificd R e ~ ~ o r t i r ~ q  Scr\ir:cs, 1 1 1 ~ .  
91 8 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W SUITE 803 

VJASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
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I so complimentary, let me jump on you a little bit. 

I I have a letter hcre from Senators Shelby and 

1 Heflin and Congressman Everett, and it touches on a subject 

I matter that I've asked about from time to time and been 

5 1 somewhat confused about. I 
I Dear Mr. Chairman, as you prepare for your April 

I 17 hearing on the Joint Cross Service Working Groups and so 

8 1 forth, we would be most appreciative if you would raise a I 

lo 1 undergraduate pilot training and so forth. 

9 

"We applaud the addition of the Joint Cross Service I 
i 

number of issues with regard to the consolidation of 

12 / Working Groups i n ~ o  the base closure process. Tney provlded 

9 I 
-. 

13 1 a new and. importan: znelysls n f  s s  Lor-zr.. ~r.fortunatel>-, ;r. 

Ilii ersificd Ht!purlinrl .';r:r~ ir:cs, IIIC. 
91 8 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON. D.C 20006 
i 
! (202) 296-2923 

16 
- .  lt\,,7hile :hey a5ree - - - -  ---- 2 - . - - - - 7 -  - -  - ,  ---c - -.. -- 0-LL 2 - &xec-wlz~ - 

I 

,---; n 17 ' training ope- C L L L r ~  ~ 3 ~ 1 2  be cons~li5~te2 between the Air I 

I I 
18 Fcrce an6 the Nay-, r h e  Penzaqoz chose not to act on the 1 

I I 
I i 

19 

20 

21 

22 

recommendation to consolidaze primary helicopter training 

between the Naty and the Army. 

"We believe this a grave mistake," and so forth. I 

know it's an old saw, Mr. Nemfakos, but let me get into part 



I on Undergraduate Pilot Training submitted three different 
1 

1 alternatives for consideration by the military departments 

241 

of it here. In November 1994, the ~ o i n t  Cross service Group 

1 and Secretary Perry. 

5 

6 

7 

According to documents submitted to the BRAC, each 

alternative reduced excess capacity while maintaining high 

military value. Each of the three alternatives consistently 

8 

9 

i knov we're noc on somezhing new, but I'd just like 

14 to h ~ 2 r  one z z r 2  ri7.c. 

recommended consolidating all military undergraduate 

helicopter pilot training at Fort Rucker. 

1 0  

11 

1 2  

15 ' E. NE~~F-LJ<CS: T - ~ C  - - +' ' . ---, Z:T, S ~ r ~ z t c r .  ~ r , l n + :  che 

16 

1 

- .  
issue revolves aronnd t ~ s  WCIC " c ; ~ ~ ~ ~ - i d t ~ i .  '' T h a ~  is ;.,ST 

I 

1 7  / the rzccmmendericr f r c ~  rhe 7cir.y Cross Service Group. I 
I 

I8 I CAFiAIP3T DIXON : Okal- . I 
I 
I 

i MR. NEMFAXOS: The reconmendation from the Joint i 

So let's stop there, and then we'll go on to some 

more from there, but what do you say to that? I know 

that's -- like I say, we've been over this ground a lot of i 

Ilivcrsifiud Rt:portirlg S c r ~ i c c s ,  Irlc. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 201206 
I (202) 296-2929 

L 

2 0  

2 1  

22  

Cross Service Group was co-locete, and I believe, although I 

was not part of that group, but I have an understanding of 

what they were looking at, I believe the reason is that there 



1 1 is a fundamental difference in perspective of how the Navy 

I locating. as opposed to consolidating, is a very important 

2 

3 

4 

I one because we use different systems both in terms of 

and the Marine Corps desire to train their pilots from a 

operational perspective. 

So the issue was to co-locate. That issue of co- 

I aircraft systems as well as simulators and ground support 

lo 1 the Department of the Navy, both the Navy and Marine Corps 

8 

9 

11 / and the service chiefs of those two services are convinced i 

systems to train those bodies of pilots. 

And so I think that's a fundamental difference that 

12 I that the uay we sre craininq cur &iic:s and -the systems we 
I 

I 
i 

w I 

l3 1 I are csing CG crcrn chose pi-3:s are zne correct thing, given , 

CFAIWLFB 3LXON: Now, on Mzreh 3 0 ,  1 9 9 3 ,  Generel 

l9 / Powell staced at the House Armed Services Committee Army 

2 0  1 Posture Hearing, "T believe the proper place to do the I 

Ui\.crsified I l~ !purt ir~r~  Scr\.ices, Irlr:. 

918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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i (202) 296-2923 
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He went on to say, "1 am committed to push this as 1 

5 1 than $18 millionltt itls asserted here. 

2 

3 

4 

"In '92, the DODIG reported that relocation of UHPT 

hard as possible, because there are real savings here. This 

is where we ought to find the savings. The costs to transfer 

the UHPT operation at Whiting Field to Fort Rucker is less 

1 to Fort F:ucker would save at least $79 million over five 

I years." What do you say to that? 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Well, I have the highest regard for 

lo 1 the General, having worked with him off and on since the days 

11 I he was a colonel, and I'm not going to argue with him because 
I 

12 1 I don't $:.now wher~ thzz fiat2 c2me f r ~ ) ~ .  

13 I do know rkzr the cerr if ieci  dz-- chat we have in 

i 5 
I 

CKRIP39-Y DI>:3?2: A . "Dcrinq the BR4C '95 

I 
16 / Navy hearing, as you know, earlier this year General Mundy 

I 

19 
I commented that in the '70s the Army was training marine 

20 helicopter pilots and that this arrangement worked very well. 

21 ! Is there any reason why the Marine Corps couldn't return to 

Ilii.crsified nr:purtit~rj Seriir:es, In[:. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005 
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2 4 4  

MR. NEMFAKOS: I would say to you that what General 

Mundy was probably referring to were the measures that we had 

to take because of surge requirements to use capacity that we 

have and not necessarily the desirable methodology that we 

want to train. 

I which, as you know, Mr. chairman, works both as a helicopter 
6 

I but then also works as a traditional prop plane, I don't know 

Given the changes, however, that are coming in the 

lo / that that statement by General Mundy was an indication that 

7 Marine Corps inventory with the introduction of the V-22, 

11 / he was prepared to change the syllabus of the training for 

! 
i2 j Marine Corps helicopter pilots. 

w 
13 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Mr. Nemfakos, according to the 

- ,  - - - A *  -nspszzzr Sene-5- r z r  cne Dc;, an- I quore, "Relocating che 

.. - 
I * & d  

. -. 
hT z-k~l-  r y,lLLiG~,L:,. - F . .... - v - helicop~er zr-aining to Fort Rucker would 

16 . relieve qround and air creffic congescion as Whiting Field. 
I 

17 ' Is there a problem ax Whiting Field both in the air and on 
i 

18 the ground, and if so, would relocation of Navy's 
i 
Undergraduate Helicopter Pilot Training Program free of space 

at Whiting Field?" 

1IR. NEMFAKOS: In our military value analysis, and 

I believe the staff has the matrices and can probably give 

1 D i ~ c r s i f i l d  Rul~ortinrj S e n  ir:l:s, I~tc .  
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
I 

(202) 296-2929 



1 

2 

obviously, moving anything out of that area is 

245 

you a better, more specific answer that I can right now, I do 

not believe that we found that there was air traffic 

3 

4 

congestion in the Pensacola Whiting area that worked to the 

detriment ofthevalue ofthatactivity. 

8 / paint a more clearer picture for you, because there are a 

6 

7 

9 1 whole series of considerations that were included in there on 

going to relieve whatever traffic there is, but I believe 

that the military value matrix, which the staff has, can 

10 the traffic issue. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: If you don't mind, I'm going to 

12 1 send cnis leccer to you. I1vs just taken excerpts out of the 

13 1 ietzez. Z ' d  appreciare it, as I do for all members of the 

- f - Z  A- -T-Q-  - J - I - I - - a . z ,  - L L-SS;=CT.SE ,.T: ~ ; Z L C , ~ G  . . sc t h e  ietter in wriiing. 

m,. ~.TEJ:F;XOS: 'iss, sir. We'll be happy to do 

16 ; thet. 

1 7  : CHAIRMFAi DIXON: Thank you very much, Mr. Nemfakos. 
I 
i 

l8 I MR. NEMFAKOS: Yes, sir. 

Uivursificd R t : p u r t i ~ ~ q  Seri iccs ,  IIIC. 
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19 

20 

21 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, Senator. 

Commissioner Cox. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Thank you. Mr. F'inch, I 

apologize. I was in and out of the room. So if I'm asking 



1 

2  

3 

I student graduates as they come onto the base or whether 

2 4 6  

you something you've already covered, I apologize in advance. 

But I am still a little bit confused about 

measuring of capacity and whether we're correctly at the 

4  

5 

6  

7 

right number. 

In your capacity analysis for factors that 

influence it, do you look at things like aircraft 

availability, instructor pilot shortages, delays of primary 

I 
I capacity are thinqs that are inherent in the size icself as 

J i 
13 i opposeC to, for example, number of students or instructors 

9 

10 

11 

- / . -  - 
- %  

. . evzl,e:-e. >.--z:zx reall). noz izcsrcz: in the sice but more 
I 

7 F - - - = m z z t e r ,  i? t k z t  examp1e, of personnel policy. 

periodic runway maintenance -- are those kinds of things 

included in the capacity? 

MR. FINCH: What we look at when we're iooking at 

16 If youf2 like, I can quickly read through a list of 
I 

17 ) the ty?e of capacities that we considered. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Okay. 

MR. FINCH: First off is airfield operations, and, 

2 o  i basically, an airfield operation is one circuit around the 

21 I pattern, if you will, at an airfield. 
COMMISSIONER COX: How do you get the number that 

Uivnrsified Hepor t inq  S e r ~ . i c e s ,  IIK. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON. D.C. 20006 
I 
L 

(202) 296-2929 I 
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determines the aircraft -- airfield operations? Is it based 

on some past number? 

MR. FINCH: It's based on -- from the Joint Service 

Group, this is based on a data call that we put out to the 

services based on that. 

Now, it turns out in that particular number that 

the services, particularly between the Air Force and the 

Navy, usefd slightly different assumptions in terms of how 

many circuits they could make within a given time. 

They have, under current practice, often different 

roles in terms of spacing between flights and that sort of 

thing. So in that particular number, it was very important 

- - 
L J  , 4..  hat we nave an zppics-to-agples conparison across the 

- ,  - - S E T \ - L C E S .  

Ilivcrsificd Rellortir~g Services, Inc. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N.W. SUITE 803 

1 
1 WASHINGTON. D.C. 20006 
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I 
(202) 296-2929 

-7 c - - U u  C P  es 2 xeens sf achieving this unifornizy, wnar we I 

- F . .  . . 
r 

& - C-C lrA -h-.- c;.cL pzrtic~lar case wes io 2rafz some r u l e s  used by I 

i7 I the ?$-.-, which govern the rate at which aircraft can circle 
i 

I i I 18 ; through a pattern. 
I 

I 

19 ' So in chat particular case we, after receiving 

2 0  

2 1  

22  

information fron the services and a g, ~ e a t  deal of discussion 

decided that using this rule with respect that the FAA uses 

that governs aircraft in the area of an airfield would be an 

I 



1 acceptab1.e one. 

2 

3 

MR. FINCH: At some point I will have to defer to 

COMMISSIONER COX: Right. But the FAA, when they 

look at that, use past history, in other words, not just a 

4 

5 

the real #experts, 

number that says on a beautiful day you could have 55 flights 

per hour or something. 

but part of it is clearly safety of flight 

8 1 that you want some special -- I 

FINCE : 

9 

10 

11 

12 

In the methodology we used, 

COMMISSIONER COX: Right. I guess what I'm getting 

to is if we've gone back and said how many operations did you 

have at this particular facility and that was the number that 

became the capacity because that's what they've handled, 
I 

we tried 

I 

didn't chat include, wouldn't that include different things 1 

i 

I not make it, you know, idiosyncratic but make it as a general 

1 7  / methodology, for example, in airfield operations just to 
i 

! 
I 

18 1 ensure that each of the sites concerned would be measured 

19 1 equally. 

And as I mentioned, in that particular example, we 

Iliversified Rt!ltortinrj Ser\.ices, Inc. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 

I (202) 296-2929 
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used the FAA rules that govern how you conduct airfield 

2 2  operations. 



1 

2 

COMMISSIONER COX: Okay. I'm sorry. Others? 

2 4 9  

COMMISSIONER COX: Okay. Maybe you could just 

provide the actual formula that was used from the FAA, that 

3 

4 

would be great. 

MR. FINCH: Yeah. We'd be happy to do that. 

8 1 order to conduct training operations. 

6 

7 

MR. FINCH: Let's see, airspace, in terms of what 

is the volume of airspace that you would have available in 

MR. FINCH: Yes. It would be airspace that would 

9 

10 

1 2  / be available for military training, which -- 
I 

COMMISSIONER COX: And that's just the military 

airspace? 

I I 
I 

l3 1 COMMISSIONER COX: Even if it were under FAA i 
I 

1 

I 

14 , contrcl? 
I I 

15 1 MR. ?INCH: Yes. Right. Ground -raining in terms 
I 

i 

I I 

Diversified Reporting Services, Inc. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C 20006 

16 of two cimensions. One is classroon capacity, another in 

17 terms of simulators that would be available. A fourth area i 
18 ( is ramps, aprons 2nd farirays. This is, you know, sort of 

19 

20 

the maneuver space, if you will, on the ground, and you'd 

have to be able to locate and move aircraft. I 



And then also housing in terms of the ability to 

1 

2  

3 

250 

aircraft. Another is supply and storage having to do with 

various ability to -- you know, for example, in POL and that 
sort of thing. 

5  

6 

7 

FAA measures in and therefore you all measure in. General 

Bloom, you shook your head there for a minute on -- 

provide housing for families as well as single members of the 

service. So those are the type of capacity dimensions that 

we considered. i 
I 

8 

9 

12 1 GENERAL BLUME: In essence, though, agreeing, 

w I 
13 1 because aL1 airspace is FAA airspace. 

I 

COMMISSIONER COX: Okay. Well, if you wouldn't 

mind providing the record with some more detail on how the 

14 7 C O ~ Z S S I O N S R  COX: R i g h t .  

for 

whenever we can. T have a q~Lc1: noce on that. It's like 
I 
I 
Mr. Finch as said and I was not in the Joint Cross Service 

Group, but Generzl  Profitt was, and his information to me was 

i that they did use windows; in other words, three years for 

look Sack and for weather as much zs ten years. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Sure. 

GENERAL BLUME: So that was the way they captured 

Ilivcrsificd Rr!port i~~g  Ser\.iccs, I~lr:. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N.W. SUITE 803 
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3 

4 

it's bad. Obviously, you have to look at something on that, 

but that might get you in a position if you're -- depending i 
5 

6 

on which window you use -- 

GENERAL BLUME: Well, three to ten years is a 

7 

8 

9 

I S  I 
GENERAL BLUME: 4&&her U ten. It was different 

pretty good -- 

COMMISSIONER COX: Three? 

GENERAL BLUME: Three or ten. 

10 

11 

13 / depending upon which ones you looked at, and probably, if you 1 

14 vent bzck ren years or, airfiele oper~cior.~, iz probabLi- 
I 

15 wouldnrz be that consistent with whit x e r r e  doing today. 
I 

COMMISSIONER COX: Oh, I'm sorry. I thought you 

said three -- 

I I 
16 I COMMISSIONER COX: I aonr7 know. Tnatls wh)- I'm 

I 
I 
i 

1 7  1 trying to figure ouz whether some of these factors would h a v ~  
I 

I 

If I could just ask you a couple questions about 

1 

I been included, and I guess if they did use the number of i 

918 1 6 T ~  STREET, N.W SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C 20006 I 
(202) 296-2929 I 

i --- 

19 

2 0  

operations, they may have been included, but we'll get the 

information on how that number got -- I 



2 5 2  

community, apparently, has offered to purchase and then lease 

back some of the housing, the family housing as well as a 

40,000 foot hangar at Lubbock ~nternational. 

Do these offers make you think any differently 

about the Air Force decision? Are you looking at them? 

GENERAL BLUME: Almost kind of like bribes. No, 

maram. Those offers we did not consider and were not a part 

of our analysis nor did we consider them in any way. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Would it make any difference on 

when we settle on the military value as 622, would that bring 

the cost down some? I 
I 

GENERAL BLUME: Well, I suppose if we got in a 

bidding war, then each one of the bases would try and do 

. - -  someckinq, b ~ t  nc, nt'z~.. I: would p r c b z ~ l l -  :zr-zence :z 

but I would say thzt snouldn'~ be a consiaera~ion in ocr 

1 deliberations, I don't believe. 

I 
I COMMISSIONER COX: Okay. And you're not reviewing 

/ whatever these offers were? 
I 

GENERAL BLUME: No, ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Okay. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Commissioner Cornella, please. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: General Bloom, other UPT 

Uii.ersified Hcpurtinq Services, Inc. 
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bases own or control more airspace than Reese Air Force Base, 

but much of this airspace is not necessarily usable for UPT 

activities. 

Was Reese Air Force Rase downgraded because it 

lacks actual ownership and control of required airspace even 

though access to the airspace it uses for UPT training 

activities is unimpeded and lacks any encroachment problems? 

GENERAL BLUME: Sir, all the airspace at every one 

of the bases supports the mission, and there is enough 

airspace at every Air Force base to support the mission 
I 

that's going on there now and would be in the future. 

The airspace that was in contention at Reese. 

However -- you know, some airspace, you would probably say, 

-- , -  + -  if it's cioser in, is berter cr-an r~rzher cxz. -, ,dkez ve: - 

less time to do your job. 

But probably more -- nor g+robably, but actually, 

the more airspace that you would have, to a certain extenc, 

would certainly be beneficial, because assuming we're going 

to train more pilots in the future or we have surge 

capability, you may they'd that additional airspace. 

So the quantity does have some significance as far 

as importance. The airspace as Reese was looked at again 

Uivcrsifiud nullol.til~rl Scrliccs, IIIC.  
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
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w I 

2 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Although Reese contains a 

2 5 4  

from the aspect if there was a potential data problem that 

was -- it was looked at. All the airspace was added up. The 

3 

4 

additional areas were given in there. Reese still had less I 
airspace than any of the other bases. 

6 

7 

smaller volume of airspace, its proximity to this airspace is 

less than some other UPT bases. Why did the Air Force 

8 

9 

measure the distance to the leading edge of available 

training airspace rather than to its geographic center, and 

10 

11 

I 14 I was measured incorrectly. Tha; we wenz back 2nd csrrecced, 
I 

wouldn't this more properly reflect actual flight training 

practice? 

12 

w 13 

15 ( but that was in the Air Force C a t z b z s ~ .  

I 

I 

GENERAL BLUME: And that was a probien that they 
I I 

called our attention to. In two of the functional areas it 1 

The Air Force database was no: used ix aevelo? Eke 1 
I 

I 

Criteria One numbers. The datzbase that was used in that was 

So the value, I would say, from the Joint Cross 

18 

1 9  

I : 
a Joint Cross Service database, and those were correct. i 

Those distances measured were correct. 

Diversified Repnrtirlq Services, IIIC. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 I 
I 

(202) 296-2929 i 1 

21 

22 

Service Group back to the Air Force was a valid and accurate 

value. I 
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COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Several questions relating 

i to the weather, again at Reese. Why was percent of time in 

factor 

3 

4 

5 

in conducting Air Force flight 

the ceiling on visibility are better than 1,000 feet and 3 

miles away given any weight in the analysis when it is 1,500 

feet and 3 miles that represents a key weather decision 

training operations? 

methodology and the analysis that was performed. 

7 

8 

I could 

GENERAL BLUME: I would have to defer this question i I 
I 

to the Joint Cross Service Group which developed the i 

I think that those -- in answer to tnac queszion, 

aV sir, if it has not already been answered, we'll be glad zc 

10 

11 

16 / that for the record, an6 also I have cwo other wearher- 

17 I related questions I w o n  raai, brl we ~ou!d like a- znsxer 

! 
give you a Jay Bloom answer, but I don't think that would be 

appropriate. 

/ to that. 
l8 / 

i GENERAL BLUME: All right, sir. 

Uiiersif ied Rrqlnrti~irl Serliccs, 111c. 
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(202) 296-2953 
I , 

20 

21 

22 

COHXISSIONER CORNEL=: Mr. Finch, why did the UPT 

Joint Cross Service Group functional analysis only measure 

adequacy of housing and not whether it met Air Force Whole 

I 



z I condition on future cross requirements in military family 
1 

2 5 6  

House Standards, a superior method, for measures the 

3 

4 

lo I or considered in the analysis to close a UPT base? 

housing? 

MR. FINCH: And that, sir, is one that I will 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

likewise have to take for the record. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: General Bloom, a lot has I 
been learned about conducting joint primary training at I 

Reese, as was mentioned by Commissioner Montoya. How has 

this experience or how was this experience factored, weighted 

13 1 concerned, and there is no measures as fzr as the 5313 

11 

12 

16 Air Force operates a flighr screeai~g arograz :D i i e n z i f l -  
i 

GENERAL BLUME: I don't think that this was 

considere5 at all as far as the functional vzlua is 

"he Nz--- 17 / suitable student pilot czniiiz~es 'cr  EFT. ‘.r szreer,~ 

l8 I by means other than a flighc progrzm. The Air Force 

1 
I 

U i ~ t : r s i f i e d  Rt!port ir~r~ Sr!r\iccs, Iric. 
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19 ' contended that including flight screening within the scope of 

20 

21 

22 

I 

the UPT Joint Cross Service Group would unnecessarily I 

I 
complicate the analysis of UPT base capacity and functional ; 

I 

value. 1 I 
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The UPT Joint Cross Service Group concluded, 

I however, that since flight screening reduces attrition in the 

In the alternatives produced by the computer model, 

3 

4 

I the flight screening function was moved out of Hondo and the 1 

primary UPT phase, it does have an impact on UPT capacity and 

concluded -- and was included. I 

10 1 screening help distinguish the relative merits of UPT bases 

7 

8 

9 

l1 I when the base has no intent to conduct a flight screening at 1 

Air Force Academy. Your group, however, chose to disregard 

this result. 

How does the functional value analysis of flight 

15 1 and had as a result a gear deal of discuss~z~ bar:-. kirk 
I 

12 

w 
13 

1 respect to the Navy and the Air Force in terms of e variery 

a UPT base? 

MR. FINCH: To begin with, in our zinalysis, we 

1 7  1 of ways that one can perform the genere? funcrion ci 

determining prior to actually entering 

whether or not candidate students are going 

flight training 

to be adaptable 

and suitable for those courses of instruction. 

After a great deal of discussion, basically, what 

we concluded was that each of the services, as you point out, 

Ui~crs i f i ed  R e j ~ u r t i ~ ~ q  Services, Inc. 
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have different methods for being able to conduct flight 

screening and that there was no strong, compelling evidence 

to say one service was better, had a better approach than the 

other. 

So failing any compelling argumentation evidence 

one way or another, the group concluded that was best to 

maintain the status quo with respect to that particular 

8 

9 

function of flight screening, and given the arrangements that 

were made for siting at those as well seemed to be sensible. 

10 

11 

So as a result, when we actually began using the 

linear program model in order no develop alternatives, the 

12 

w 13 

thing that seemed to make sense uas ro jusr go ahead and say, 

you know, with respect to the Air Force, yo: know, they cill 

. . 14 1 continue using ' 1Fght  szreening 2 5  - neins c' i~-=?--- --- . . . A . A - - . -  n- 

i 
l5 I 

suitability of czrdid2te I-- -..- -..- - - G  - l a -  sltinc ' t:?~ 

MR. 

i 

16 

17 

I 

l8 i COMMISSIONER CORNELIA: What you're saying is you 1 

FINCH : 

they're apparently using made sense. So we j x s t  seztlec i: 

that way. 

19 

2 0  

Absolutely not. 

I 

do not feel that the inciusion of the fiiqhz screening I 

constitutes a flaw in the process? 

terms of the 

Ilivcrsificr! R c p u r t i ~ ~ g  Services, IJIC. 
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military departments, in retrospect, whether we included 

flight screening or not would not have changed those 

alternatives, and while, you know, the departments should 

speak for themselves, I would anticipate that they would also 

agree that flight screening did not affect their 

recommendations. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, Commissioner 

Cornella. Again, I beg your indulgence, Mr. Nemfakos. What 

I'd like you to do is submit for the record, if you will, the 

analysis on strike 2ilot training races. 

MR. N E M F M O S :  Y e s ,  s i r .  

- .  ~ . . your percentaqes  i t e r s  a : 1 ~ c , e  c:,z-?: 2nd i,jcrri2? ~ b r - =  

the ca+cizy. Thzrrs one t h i n ? .  

MR. N E M F I I I C S :  Y e s ,  s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Mr. Finch, one final question, 
I 
i 

and then we'll move on to the next group. This  omission 1 
I 

1 has the authority to add additional installations, and we i 
must add them prior to May 17th. 

Some of the added installations may be reviewed for 

cross-service potential. Obviously, there are allegations 

Uisersified Rs l lurt i~~rj  Services, 111c. 
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that the services have been a little tight with their data, 

but my concern is would you be able to do on that short 

notice to gather the data from the services, generate the 

appropriate COBRA and other data to assist this Commission in 

its review, which will be a very short time from the 17th of 

May until the 30th of June? 

MR. FINCH: Certainly, in principle, we'd be 

If it were a matter of going through, for example, 

another data call ~ h 2 t  rernm:--A U L - - C Z -  .--.,- 2 L--  - - 7 - -  - 3 . t  *- - I - -  4L1,1v V ~ L  & J  + l ~ t =  bases 

- - L - and asking f c r  c~rzLfie6 &:a, - .... =.., -n rz  V E S  ~ e r t e i n l ! ~  i 

very lengthy process f c r  cs, en5 : - e r e  zs: De proklens wit- 

that. 

8 

9 

1 0  

In terns of exerc~si~q r , ~ t h o d s l z q -  and other 

things, depending on what specifically your needs are, we may 

well be a b l e  70 provide -- 
I 

prepared to assist you in any way that we can. In terms of 

what is technically feasible, it really depends on what 

specifics you're asking for. 

I 
COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Then I'd be happy with your I 

assurances that you'll be prepared to go full speed ahead and 

provide us whatever data, because we want the best possible 

data to make the best possible decisions. 

Uiversified R i ! p n r t i ~ ~ q  Services, IIIC. I 
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MR. FINCH: Absolutely, General Davis, and we 

2 

3 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Next we will hear testimony 
I I I I 

certainly support that and will help you in any ways that we 

can. 

5 

6 

7 

I 
9 1 from the Medical Joint Cross service Group, and we are I 

I COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Finch. I I 
appreciate your time and that of the witnesses, and we'll 

close this portion. 1/11 turn it over to  omm missioner Kling 

for the next portion. I 1 
I 

lo I privileged to have with us Dr. Edward D.  arti in, welcome 1 

I 
Doctor, Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense for 

I 
I 

w 12 1 Health Affairs, whs headed :he gross .  
I 

13 We will Seciz Cc~r:~,,issione~s' zuesticnc 2 s  soon 2 s  - 2 
1 
1 

I4 n ~ v e  sworr, 17. Cr. Nsrz:: n <  EX.?-  cz1.5~ ZEZJ::; - - -  L. -tnEsses. ---- -- e 

DR. PONATOSKI: Edward R. Ponatoski. 

16 / DR. I :  There  ~11; be one. 

I 

l7 1 COKMISSIONE?. K L I N G :  Well, if there is, w o c l c  you I 
I 

18 1 ill please rise, xhoever is joining you? Perhaps zhzz 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Edward R. -- we'll just call 

19 

2 0  

I l i i  r:rsified Report i r~q  Seri ices, Inc. 
91 5 1 6 ~ h  STREET. N W SUITE 803 

I WASHINGTON. D C 20096 

(202) 296-2929 

I 

i 
gentleman would care to sit right forward here. And your i 

I 

name is, sir? i 



you Edward R., I guess. Would you gentlemen please rise and 

raise your right hand? 

(Panel sworn. ) 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Thank you. Dr. Martin, in 

this day of excess hospital beds throughout the country and 

all the mergers and consolidations that are taking place in 

the private sector, which are, of course, in order to 

economize and consolidate special cares, I do not understand 

or we don't understand why more was not done to reduce our 

hospital structure in the military services, realizing, of 

course, the need to provide superior medical services, the 
I 

# .  ~:i?le engaqements anC 12 1 need fcr ~ 8 l l : : o n e l  bees ir time 3: 1.:: 

I 

13 1 the c o s ~ s  zssociazo-2 vitk CRPMPLT,' ? - 5  s~ fzrzh. I 

7 fi - Z  
. -7- - - - - - -  - -  - -_ -.-  - 7 -..--._. - Z  ,-uesz:szz 1 v . - - -  ?sir, jr:r.5 cf. CC! 

- 
i3 - ^  - - -  c ~ s - a r ;  n m -  -* C r  1 =- 

b- - ---- ---.---I ,,II,, . ,, ,,, xe k q i r :  i : i ~ ~ -  the first 

16 queszica, w h i c . 1  Irn sure yo;'zo, kina of, anticipa~ing, end 
I 

17 ' tha= -has -,o Go 7 - 4  -L ~ h -  

- '  I 
K - L - -  San Ar-,zonio zrea. 

h d  if I coulc specificaliy, we nave Chart Number 

l9 i 1, which chose the San Antonio, Texas, area, and we can see 

2 o  I from this chart that it is home to two large medical centers 

21 1 and a large number of civilian hospitals. 

This appears to be an example of an opportunity to 

i Ili\.ersificd ne11urti1111 t i e r ~ i c e s ,  Ill[:. 

916 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N . W .  Si i lTE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 23C05 
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eliminate as substantial portion of excess capacity and 

i indeed the Air Force facility Wilford Hall was on the Joint 

3 

4 

Service Group list of realignment alternatives, yet neither 

facility is on the Department of Defense list. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

I 

Qlr 
12 / there had already been a very sizezble activity that we had I 

I 
! 

13 1 accomplished; a?? ir t h a t  regads were  quite differer.: the:: 

14 ozher p ~ r - - , s  sf t n e  o t h e r  -joint wor1:ing groups. 1 

Would you mind commenting, Doctor, on why this is 

so? 

DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman. I'd like to 

preface it with commenting on your observation about 

consolidation, because I think it's very important. 

1 0  

11 

- -z :he czse of me2iczl, we z c r u ~ l l y  have the i 

When our joint work group undertook the 

identification of alternatives for infrastructure reduction, 

16 1 responsibiii~y for managing the Defense Healch program. We 

I 
17 have the monej-. S s  for example, the Army , Navy, Air Force I 

2 o  i in the Office of the Secretary of Defense. 

1 8  

1 9  

21 I So we've had much more aggressive opportunity in 

budgets for heaitn care delivery, essentially, are managed 

directly by the health affairs -- the Defense Health program 

I l i~crs i f ied ncllurti~l~l  Scr~ices, I ~ i r : .  

918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C 20025 

(202) 296-2929 

22 the past to make changes in reducing excess capacity. 



1 

2 6 4  

~pecifically, we closed 35 percent of our hospitals. We've 

2 

3 

4 

5 

already reduced the number of expanded beds by almost 4 8  

percent. 

That becomes important that where our requirements 

are a little bit different than other requirement for 

6 

7 

infrastructure. While the active duty force, in fact, has 

come down by 30 percent since 1988, the beneficiary 

8  

9 

l2 1 been a dramatic reduction in the number of beds available 
1 

w 13 , within our system in CONUS and vorldwide. 

1 

population we're responsible for has only come down by 90 

percent. 

10 

11 

Sgecifical?y, in : l e t  context, looking ~t the 

So relative to the numbers of people that we serve 

or continue to serve through the end of year 2000, there has 

I 

15 recomnenae-.ion es an alrernz:iue zhzZ we posited to the Air i 
I 

Force end :he first cime there has been a 

question about Wilford Hall and Brooke, as you well know, 

essentially what you have is a situation where you have a 

major Air Force medical center, in fact, the major medical 

center for the Air Force in a very heavy Air Force populated 

Ilivcrsified Rr!pur l i~~r~  Scri.iccs, IIIC. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

I 
WASHINGTON. D.C. 20006 
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You also have, essentially, a brand new facility, 

state-of-the-art facility that's been built for the Army in 

that community. If an action had been taken, we would have 

wanted to see Wilford Hall, as the much older facility, 

reduced considerably, and that would only work if Brooke Army 

Medical Center then could have become, essentially, the Air 

Force medical center there. 

We met with both the Air Force and the Army, and 

the real crucial issue is duplication. And as we have done 

or seen in many communities across the country, essentially, 

it was decided that we needed about 130 to 150 percent of the 

- 7 - - z : " C  -. - - - -  ~s cr^ l z s r .  weeI: ,  hasee on zhis exercise, 

- < - -  - - .  - ,- - .. z - i  zne ~ r z ~ u z r c  neclcri educatisn 2: the two mzjor medical 

: + .  7 ten-ers. which mekes then the unique centers in that erea, 
I 

18 will be consolidated, completely integrated and, in fact, 
I 
I 

19 I ultimately integrated with university of Texas at San 
I 

The second set of changes or what other facilities 

2 0  

21 

Ilii ersifird Rtq~r~rtir~rj tir:ri ices, Ir~c.  
I 
I 

918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W SUITE 803 
WASHINGTON, D.C 20006 

1 
I (202) 296-2929 
I 

Antonio. So one of the great drivers for duplication will be 

gone. 



3 1 example, we intend to do no more obstetrics and neonatal 

I intensive care at Brooke. 
We will take that capacity and probably expand our 

6 1 capability at Darnell, which is a very large dependent of 

i active duty population needs augmentation, and essentially 
I systematically move through the services as we've done in the 

9 1 national capitol region where we also have two major medical 1 
10 / centers within the same distance, essentially, that used to 

l1 / be duplicated, as these two are. 

12 
I 

I 
We've been able to accomplish consolidation of all 

w 13 , I the residences here or plan by 1997 and, essentially, the 
I 

z p - . :  -- - 1.4 --L ---- 22  sf zll dc2licate services. 

i5 This wes w h 2 ~  t h e  ArrnlT anc :he - 2 - i ~  Force felt was 

.. F 

i t j  the zppropriate way to "right-size" o r  reduce excess and 
I 

17 j duplicarive capacity, and I think the plan is, in fact, 
I 

superior, particularly given the unique roles those two 

facilities serve in trauma training and a major role they 

serve in San Antonio for trauma care, which is an important 

part of our training. 

So we feel that the alternative proposed 

Diversified n e ~ ~ u r t i ~ l r j  Sr:rr-icns, 1111;. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
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COMMISSIONER KLING: I guess we could look and say, I 

1 

2 

4 1 though, in San Antonio, as a total, there quite an excess bit I 

- 

267 

effectively accomplished the intent of the Joint Working 

Group. 

1 private and military? 

5 

I DR. MARTIN: I would have to defer to a local 

of hospital bed, correct, private and -- if you added the 

8 1 planning activity for that determination. I 
COMMISSIONER KLING: If there is that excess 

10 / capacity in the private sector, and if one of these hospitals I 
l1 I is only one half needed, would it have not made sense to 

12 / continue on with your recommendation a little faster and I 
I 

I 
13 , stronger, say, to close -- to make a clinic operation out of 

I 

! 
l i  K i l f o r Z  Ezll and go forward in =hat manner? 

l 

- 
i3 DE. MAXTIN: weli ,  zke righz xime to address chat 

15 issue, very ~andi2I.y~ 1 ; ~ s  before we built Brooke Army ~eaical 
I 

17 / Center. I mean, if you had asked my opinion prior to 

1 building a $ 4 0 0  million brand new facility at San Antonio, 
l8 / 

1 whether, in fact, we should -- like the Army is doing now in 

20 / other places, purchase that capability from excess 

21 1 infrastructure in the private sector, I would have said that 

Ilivcrsified Rel~urtinrl Scri ices, 1111:. 
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beds. 

It's also important to point out that except for 

UTSA and at least one of the private hospitals, the type of 

facilities that we are concerned about obtaining our services 

are very specialized, and, in fact, the only other hospital 

that duplicates is a medical center is UTSA. 

We're talking about very sophisticated procedures. 

Probably the world class burn center in the entire world is 

run at Brooke, liver transplants done at Wilford Hall. So 

we're talking about just not simply square feet. We're 

talking about the quality of the respective facilities. 

I think that our philosophy, as we are looking to 

.L fuzure, is, in fact, reflected in our MILCON budget. We 

zre bzilcinq no more large hospitels in our FYDP, and, in 

facc, we Ere looking at places where we need augmentation of 

bees to the private sector to che exzent even of renting 

wards or parts of hospitals to carry that out. 

I think we made the correct judgment in regards to 

the two existing facilities, particularly given their very 

unique training responsibilities for both the Army but 

especially for the Air Force. 

This is the major training facility for 

Ilivcrsified Reporti~ilj Scr\ iccs, 111c. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 2G006 

(202) 296-2929 



269 

subspecialty surgery for the United States Air Force, and 

that's not simply beds and wards. That's an entire 

installation capability. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: To just not belabor the issue, 

and I'm going to get on with it -- 

DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: -- just one last question on 
that subject. Is it not possible, however, to close Wilford 

Hall and everything that is being taken place there, move it 

to Brooks or get from the private sector? 

DR. MARTIN: I think our current assessment this 

time that is not the appropriate programmatic judgment. 
I 

Maybe it's my bias as a physician, but we, sort of, like to I 
I 

Diversified flr:~iurti~lq Services, Inc. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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L 4 scaffold much Setcer than the meet cleaver, and we think the 
I 
I 

15 proposal we've come forward xo is the correct one given the 
I 

! 
I 
I ' milicary medical training requirements, given the major 

l6 i 
17 1 effort taken by the two services. I think we stand by our 1 

! 
18 / current recommendation. 

1 9  

2 0  

2 1  

2 2  

COMMISSIONER KLING: However, again, to what you're 

stating, however, though, it was your recommendation to make 

~ilford Hall into a clinic, as opposed to -- 

DR. MARTIN: No. Our list was a bit different. 



4 1 And so our process allowed for, then, specific discussion of 1 

1 

2 

3 

5 / the alternatives proposed, some of which the services 

We, essentially, put forward to the three services 

alternatives for consideration, and, in fact, we had not 

assessed military value directly in regards to installations. 

8 1 current recommendation is the correct one. I 

6 

7 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Thank you. Our staffers have 

accepted, some of which we found better alternatives in the 

process for the three services. So I think the Department's 

10 / viewed what might be considered overlapping areas throughout I 
the country where we have a number of small hospital 

clusters, I might say, within a 50- to 100 mile radius. 

In fact, I believe there are 56 hospitals that are / 

16 sr,eller z h ~ n  50 beds, not tlzt thztls the inportant thin? 

. F - - here: ~ c z  cne xould think thzt there would be prime , 

16 
I 
candi~ates ~ithin chese clusters for mergers and 

I 

17 ! ~ons~lid+tio~s, an& I refer to such areas, as we're passing 

out and that are up here, these circles would be like the 
I 

19 

20 

l i ivcrsificd Hr!purtinq Stlriiccs, 1111:. 
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area of Fort Sill, which has 100 beds, where there is also 

Tinker Air Force Base with 25 beds, Altus seven beds, 

2 1 

22 

Sheppard with 80 beds and also, then, we have a lot -- we 

have a number of the maps of the different areas showing 
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around Beale, Travis and Mather where there are two small 

2 

3 

hospitals -- and I'm sure I'm not telling you anything you 

don't know -- where you have ~ravis having 195 beds. 
4 

5 

6 

10 1 please describe what you intend to do and where and what time I 

And of course, I guess we might add that here in 

the D.C. area we have a similar situation that I think we 

won't get into right now. 

7 

8 

9 

As I understand, maybe through the budget process 

you're considering some realignment or clustering and the 

merger, consolidation of these areas, and if so, would you 

I 
12 1 through the budget process as opposed to BRAC? 

11 

DR. MARTIN: The central tenant of that is the new i 

period this might be done and why you've decided to do it 

14 1 program that, essentizlly, we're stanling up called Tricare. 

i 
15 i As the Committee is aware or the Commission is aware, we've 

I 
I 

16 ' recently adopted a new HMO type approach, very heavy 
I 

17 / privatization, dependence on the private sector, and the 

I 

l8 1 program expects that those contracts will be fully 

21 I or those kind of companies do. What you basically do is 

19 

20 

implemented by the end of FY ' 9 7 .  I 

And it's comparable to what HCA or Humana or Kaiser 

918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
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22 assess your product lines. You make judgments about where in 

Diversified Repurt i~~rj  S e r ~ i c c s ,  1111:. 



2 7 2  

fact -- that you should make the services provide them or you 
should buy the services. 

What we're seeing is a fairly significant change in 

the character of how we deliver the care within our 

facilities. For example, the Air Force has stopped doing 

emergency services in 11 hospitals, closed 17 others. 

The Navy is in the final process of making judgment 

about downsizing five hospitals to clinics. We've cut out 

obstetric services in the last year to three Air Force 

hospitals. A fourth almost certainly we will approve and cut 

it out, as a matter of fact, as Maxwell. 

So we have a process, and essentially, what the 

process is driven by is the population we take care of, the 

alternatives of buying that care, unique mission 

considerations, 30- 50-mile access of emergency rooms and 

other kind of capabilities. 

So we feel that since we're almost always in the 

Air Force and mostly in the Navy, essentially, tenant- 

sponsored. I mean, we're a part of a bigger organization. 

We, actually, are downsizing many of those 

facilities in the face of large base activities. The good 

example on our list is the Air Force Academy, which we will 

Diversified H e p u r t i ~ ~ i j  Ser~ices ,  Iur:. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
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see being right-sized downward with Carson, I think, assuming 

much more of a responsibility. 

In fact, I think you'll see that with Wilford Hall 

and Brooke. The process that we feel as much better to carry 

that out is along product lines, like obstetrics, like 

surgery, like emergency, and indeed, I think, including and 

especially the national capitol region where we think we 

ought to close the hospitals we're closing. 

Where we turn them into clinics, we turn them into 

clinics. Where we stop doing services in those facilities -- 

like obstetrics at Walter Reed we are going to stop doing -- 

it makes good sense in regards to the patients, where they 

are and what their requirements are. 

We founc this process has resultee in a very 

substzntizl reduction of our beds, redistribution of oiLr 

and civiiian, 

frankly, we feel it's a lot more sensitive way or appropria~e 

1 way to deal with the health care facilities, particulerly 

1 given the very strong feeling on the part of our 

2 o  I beneficiaries, particularly active duty dependents, about 

that particular service. 

When the close a base, the one thing we hear about 

Ilivcrsified Rr!porti~lq Sun iccs, 1 1 1 ~ .  
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
I (202) 296-2923 
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very quickly is the pharmacy and the hospital, probably more I 
/ quickly. And I think how we do that becomes very, very 

1 important. I think we've learned a lot of BRAC I through 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Last question from me on just 

4 

5 

I this same subject. Could we just take an example such as the 

111, and I think the way we're doing it now is the correct 

way to do it. 

I Beale, Travis and Mather where you happen to have -- within 
40 miles you have a nine-bed hospital with 30 that was up 

here and a 195-bed hospital? Specifically what do you intend 

to do there and when and how? 

I clinic with an ability to hold people overnigh: so you keep 

them with their family or on the base. 

You move to not providing lab, X ray, pharmacy, I 

I 
I 

blood bank at night. So it, essentially, becomes analogous I 

12 

w 13 

to a dispensary. So it really isn't a hospital. We call it 1 
a hospital, but it really isn't. 

And then, essentially, what you do is, for the 30- 

DR. MARTIN: The nine-bed hospital, essentially, is 1 
I 
I 

becoming a dispensary. I mean, it's, essentially, a super 
I 

bed hospital, you just use it for more routine kinds of 

missions where you want to keep particularly dependents on 

Di\;crsifir:rI nc~lortii~rl Seri.iccs, IIII:.  
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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It's a lot like they're doing in large cities, 

1 

I which is, essentially, leaving a surprising amount of the 

2 7 5  

base near families. 

I capital investment there but dramatically changes how they 

5 / use those facilities. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: But sometime, as you went 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

The crucial thing is the access is reasonable, but 

at the same time you don't have duplicative specialty care. 

I mean, what you do not want in our system is competitive 

departments of surgery in your 30- and 100-bed example you 

just used. That would be unacceptable. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Has that been done 

DR. M-kRTIN: Oh, yes, sir. The example I used in 

I specifically in just these three we were just talking 

15 

16 

l9 I about -- Mather, Beale and Travis? 

the Air Force. 17 closures. 11 emergency rooms closed, 4 

obstetric departments closed. 

DR. WIARTIN: In the nine-bed, both emergency, 

21 I obstetrics are gone, and I think we're moving from a JCHO 

2 2  1 accredited hospital to, essentially, what we call a super 

Diversified Rr!purtiilg Scrricus, 1 1 1 ~ .  

918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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clinic with still the capability like we'll keep at the 

academy. 

I mean, you need the ability to admit people 

overnight, to have some capability to see them, because I 
they're mission-related, and you want to try to keep them on 

the base with the dependents. 

At the same time, you don't duplicate any specialty 

services, and that's the crucial duplication. You can see 

from the numbers I gave you, with a 9 percent decrease in the 

beneficial population that our normal beds are down by 43 

percent. I mean, we've seen a pretty dramatic reduction. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: I'm sure one of the other 

Commissioners will go through a charc cha t  we have s h o ~ i n ~  

the beds and so forth, 5cz T I  _ -  : - -L.- > - -  i. IT ' - \ ~e r -  7 2  , ~ ~ - - - - i s s i e ~ . 5 ~  

COMMISSIONER COWELLA: Thank yoc, Er .  C n z i r n z r .  

Dr. Martin, the  omm mission has been receiving many letters 

from people worried about thsir access to health czre 

services if their military hospital closes. I 

Most of these letters come from retirees, many of 1 
whom are over age 65 and no longer eligible for CHPXPUS. 

Beyond their worries with access, many of these letters talk 

Uivcrsificd Repr~rti~trl Serl ices ,  Iric. 
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1 I in very heartfelt terms about promises of lifetime medical 

I DoD medical facilities? 
2 

3 

care that will be broken with the closure of a hospital. 

Would you please tell us who is entitled to care in 

8 1 that is, in fact, available to retirees over the age of 65 is I 

5 

6 

7 

DR. MARTIN: Well, I can tell you both statutorily 

and in the basis of the genesis of your letters. In 

regardless to Title X I  the statute, essentially, all the care 

For those CHAMPUS-eligible dependents of active I 
I 

9 

10 

l2 i duty and retirees, if they cannot get space-available care, 

space available care; said differently, if you can get into a 

military facility. 

13 / which is the statutory provision, they have the riqht to use , 
I 

14 1 CHAMPUS, which is, essenticli?-, e 2rogrem t h e ?  we ;macro c r  
I 

15 / their behalf. 
I 

T -  , Now, that's the statutory framework. ,, s alsc 
I 

17 1 absolutely correct that the clear preponderance of people who 1 

18 1 served in the late '40s to now, when they reenlisted and in 

I 
their enlisted documents -- we've got any number of documents 

2o I that have been sent into is -- they have been promised a 

21 I lifetime of free medical care. 

22 I I mean, it was right -- and as a matter of fact, 

Ditersifir!d Rr!llurfinrj Services, I t~c .  
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2  1 States Army. So if you were a retired sergeant, you would 

1 

i vividly recollect being told among the reasons why you ought 

278 

the latest brochure I saw was published in 1989 by the United 

4 

5 

9 1 absolute fact that the Congress has had to face in regards to I 

to join up for another four to six years is this, this, this, 

and this. 

6 

7 

8 

And very high on that list, and as you got older, 

higher and higher on that list, was this idea of free medical 

care. So I think the dilemma that we face is there is an 

l2 i case that could be made that these individcals were told 
I 

10 

11 

13 1 something. 

- - 
In fact, ir was not :n zhe s~zzzte. The:- c:; --- a.L - 

have an inalienable righz zo zhaz; bcr iz 9id:': zzsnge 2 e i r  

the benefits like the pharmacy benefit and other kinds of 

unique problems in BRAC areas is that there is a very good 

feeling when iz was taken away. What we've cried y o  cc is 
I 

1 7  / adapt fairly aggressively to trying to create sornerhing in I 

those communities where we do close hospitals, which, as I 
1 
I 
i 
I 

pointed out, are not inconsiderable in number, some mechanism 

by which care can be provided to those retirees which at ! 
2 1  

1lii.crsificd Rcportil~rl Senices ,  Inc. 
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least is reasonable but certainly not free and certainly not 

22 in a military treatment facility. 



DR. MARTIN: Well, our current hope is that we 

will, essentially, be able to create both in the areas where 

we have hospitals and in areas where we used to have 

hospitals the equivalent of an HMO option, sort of like a 

Kaiser option where they can have a primary care manager, 

where they have the same scope of benefits, where they have 

1 

2 

3  

4 

5 

1 

. C C' very low cost shares, where, id ~ n e y  were Hedicare eligiS1e 

.Ir 
l3 1 

- 7 -  and not CW-YPUS eligible, h o p e r ~ ~ _ y  i \ - e ' r e  i;;ri::ng ;;:th iiES sz 

2 7 9  

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Would you please describe 

what you see as the impact of closures and realignments on 

the users of closed or realigned hospitals as well as any DoD 

or service programs that will be put in place to mitigate the 

impacts on these people? 

. . .  - t on , z r~ , ss  has prc - . -~zec  ,- - - - - - -  - -- - - -  - - r  - - -  - - -  - ...=-..L~.-=~. - rv -_-,_. v.= C Z T  

- .  provide mil  order ~narmacy zc Xe5:zir~ t ~ ~ g i ~ l e s  ;c -5e:r 

area. Our intention is to first -- -he most important I 

I 
categories statutorily are active ducy, dependents of activs I 

1 

duty, and by the way, some numbers of those stay. 

In fact, some numbers of those individuals are in 

areas where we have no hospitals. We have been working to -- 

recruiters are the classic example of that, of course. 

Ui.c.ersified Htqturti~lrl Scrl ices, 1111:. 
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We've been working to make sure that what they have 

access to is no more expensive, 

treatment facilities they 

as accessible as our military 

lived close by, and to the 

extent that can with retiree populations at least to stand up 

alternatives that are, 

access and quality of 

while cost-effective, provide the 

those kind of services with not a 

' I significant out-of-pocket cost. 
Remembering that when you go to a military 

9 1 treatment facility itts, essentially, free, the cost 

lo I differences, particularly when you get into Medicare, the 
I I 

And to go from goin5 co, for ~ h e  wapc of an 

11 

12 

li I example, Carswell where iz i e vha? ?-a1: qcz  e5-r. izret  zz 

average out-of-pocket cost for a Medicare individual is over 

$3,000. ! 

all of a sudden 000 requires qzize 2 

That's quite a sizeable change in the impact on 

that population. There is no question about it. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Well, commissioner Kling 

2o I and I were in Denver on Friday, and I can assure you we met 

D i ~ c r s i f i u d  Iicpnrtir~i~ Seri  ict:s, Ir~c. 
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21 

22 

up close and personal many concerned people, Commissioner 

Kling even more so. 
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At many times I wish a lot of you folks were at 

some of these base visits so we could introduce you and 

explain your part in the process. 

DR. MARTIN: Actually, this is my fourth year at 

base closures, and I would submit that possibly except for 

the Chairman I have spent a very large amount of time with 

retiree groups and other groups who were very unconf3rtable 

and unhappy about what I think is the driving force behind 

BRAC, and that is the DoD infrastructure is going down. 

We are not planning to fight Russia in a land war, 

and we don't need this infrastructure anymore. So it's a 
I 

! 
tough process weJre going through. T think the Depertment is 

trying very har2 co iive up ro yne cornrr,izment we Seiieve 

we've made cz zncse recirees 2.s jesr 2 s  we C ~ X  

1 

make t n z t  explanation \;he- w e ' r e  ir. rks c s r F ~ s z i t y ,  2nd If 6 
I 

like to say I think we do a fairly good job of thax .  In I 

Denver, for example -- well -- 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Go ahead. I 
COMMISSIONER CORNELLF.: Yeah. I'd like to ask one 

more question. In Denver, there are an amazing amount of 

tenants on that installation, that hospital, not related 

lliversified Hcllurtil~ij Serl.icr:s, IIIC. 
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necessarily to medical service. Did those tenants come under 

any consideration in the determination to close ~itzsimrnons? 

DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Okay. That's all I have. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

! COMMISSIONER KLING: commissioner Cox, please. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Thank you. I wonder if we could 

bring up Chart 2. Dr. c art in, this chart shows a current 

inventory at -- not that one. Thanks -- current inventory of 

military hospitals and hospital beds in the United States 

which was taken from the Joint Cross services lineal 
i 

programming model data set. I 

I 

13 I Ic your viex, does :he Depzr~nent need 211 of chese ' 
I I 

i4 >-S,,- --.-.- r ? f =  - hospitals znii beds 2 2 f  . . L ~ . .  . s snz =perctlnq 

15 milicary hosp ice1  aeds i ces  rcc Dezzrme?: nee? rc nee- $xst 
I 

16 I &. -ne peacexime req~ire~encs. - 
I 

DR. MARTIN: As the GAO very and, I think, very 

succinctly pointed out, there is considerable difference of 

opinion about what are our requirements depending on how you I 
define what those requirements are. I 

Ili\~crsified Ilcl irlrti~~~j Scrliccs, Ir~r:. 
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2 
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that requirement. If you add onto that requirement taking 

care of the active duty, Reserve Guard and their dependents 

3 

4 

5 

who are still going to be seeking care from us, that number I 
is now above 15,000. 

1f you then say that you are going to continue your 

6 

7 

training programs, which are the basis for both the 

retention, recruitment and retention of particularly 

8 

9 

/ Cornella's point is that if ce 2.11 of a sudden decided that 

13 I we're noL going r a  take cere of any retirees or no Medicare 
I I 

specialty physicians, you get very close to the 15,000 or 

16,000 beds. 

10 

11 

I 
14 recirees c r  :i we jc :3 -zr ue'r~ ncr csinc :3 take care of 

1 

Now, the way that you have a lower requirement is 

relatively simple, and I think it goes to commissioner 

- - .  15 I rhe aepenaenrr ci -,he salcler- h7?c - r e  de3l,ve"_; rhen yoi? - A 

I 

16 / nee6 less beds. 
I 

Diversified Hepurti~~rj  Services, Inc. 
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The Department's feeling about that, as reflected 

l8 I in the last couple times that we've been put in that 

19 

20 

position, Southwest Asia being the biggest, is that, in fact, 

the expectation is, A, we take care of casualties; B, we take 



2 8 4  

In that case, our available beds inventory, which 

2 !  

like I've said, is about half of what it used to be, is sized 

1 to requirement. The debate gets into only do active duty or I 
I 

I only do casualties, then, of course, you need less beds. 

I is a lot of difference in those projections. 
5 

6 

For example, the 2 MRC estimate is based on us 

That policy decision is not yet made, and I think 

the GAO covered that pretty well in their summary, that there 

1 needing a total of 10,000 beds. The Commander-in-Chiefts in 

Kell, as you know, we're not going to get 100,000 

w 13 casualties into 1C,000 beds. So t h e r e  is + lot of divergence 
i 

10 

11 

15 . Our current e sz inz t e  is we need somewhere between 

Korea public estimate and a land-based war over there is as 

high as 100,000 casualties. 

. . 
16 ! 9- +nB :L,OOO :a meet the purely xr,ill:ary requirements, and 

1 
I 

17 / the resz take care of families and other active duty 
I 

18 / personnel, and available beds are pretty close to our current 

I 

Uiversified Hcpurtirlrl Serlices, Irlc. 
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1 9  

2 0  

2 1  

22 

' requirement. 

COMMISSIONER COX: You talk about the policy on 

dependents, et cetera. It sounds like it's under review, or 

did I just -- 



I under review for years. There have been proposals by the I 
I 

4 1 CDO, by certain individuals. by some commissions which come 

5 1 to mind to say, basically, just stop doing that. 

DR. MARTIN: I don't believe Congress has any 

6 

7 

1 intention of telling three or four hundred thousand veterans 

COMMISSIONER COX: Do you expect a decision along 

those lines, if it's going -- 

lo I of WW I1 and Korea that we're not going to get care in our 
11 / hospitals anymore. I just don't think that's going to 

12 1 happen. 

23h?KISSIONER COX: Are the Veterans Affairs Medical 

14 r ---- -"-,--=A 3 ~ 5 ~  z 3 ~ ; l t c - 5  2s  rne wartime cr p e a c e t i n e  requirements? 

15 - il?.. - M-X?TIN: Nc. There a r e  - , w ~  types of our 

I 
1 6  ' - - - - 7  ------- L e u _ ~ A = r L : r i ~ - ~  char xe do counr. Number one is that for all I 

I 

I 
1 

17 I those casualties which we believe we cannot get back on 

I 
18 I active duty within 60 days, they're rapidly triaged or moved 

I 

19 1 to the Veterans ~dministration Hospital. I 
2 0  

2 1 

i 
Iliversified Rr!~~ortirlrl S e r ~  iccs, Ill[:. 

i 
i 918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

I WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 i I 
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j I I 

So that is net of this number, but we also net out 

the requirement. The other requirement we take out is we 

22  have dependents on the Veterans Administration addition for 
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those beds, which are in the thousands for very specialized 

kind of beds like spinal cord injuries. 

3 

4 

They have a network of extremely good capabilities 
1 

in prosthetics, spinal cord injuries where our assumption is 

5 

6 

I 
if that's the best place to send our people, we will plan on 

sending them to those places, and that's a part of our plan. 

7 

8 

9 

12 I required 100,000 beds, we depended very heavily on that 

'ly 
I 
I 

i 3 system to provide those beds. A, fortunately, we never had 
1 

COMMISSIONER COX: How about civilian beds in 

hospitals enrolled in the National Disaster ~edical System? 

Are they counted? 

10 

11 

I 

14 
, 

zs use i c l  5~: E l  now the ccrrent expectation is that the I 

- - - - d 
I 

nili~ary rnC zns i; sysrem car handle the expected casualties 1 
' C  

I 
A - f r c s  st lezsr :he currenz anticipated M i i C s .  

1 7  / COMMISSIONER COX: I'm sorry. So we don't need I 
I 

18 those that are -- 

DR. MARTIN: When we required -- I was in the 

Public Health Service when NDMS was put together. When we 

I 

Iliversified Reporti~irj S e n  ices, Inc. 
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19 1 DR. MARTIN: We don't plan on using those beds as 

20 

21 

22 

we did in the '80s. The reason we did in the '80s, very 

civilly, is we needed 60,000 more beds that we had. 

We anticipated a 100,000 bed requirement if we went 

! 



2 

3 

COMMISSIONER COX: Those contingencies are still in 

place? 

DR. MARTIN: Those contingencies began to fade away 

when the probability of going to war with ~ussia faded away. 

When you don't need 100,000 beds, yo2 don't have that I 

I 
1 particular -- I 

I 
, COMEISSIONER COX: Eut -:GL s r i l l  have c z J n t i n q e n c ~ -  

I plans in place? 

I DR. m T I :  Xght now, 1iDP:S stands up -- we're 
I 

going to particularly need NDMS for specialized kind of 

surgery. Modern warfare, bluntly spoke, creates sort of 

targeted groups of casualties, for example, ophthalmologic 
! 

injuries, particular kind of neurosurgical insults. 

There is no question that we're going to have to 

depend in a lot of different ways on those particular 

30,000. The VA would probably free up 10- or 12,000 

additional. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Ilivcrsified Reliurtillg Services, IIIC.  
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We just were way short, and the only way to make up 

those beds in case of that kind of catastrophe was to develop 

contingency arrangements with private hospitals, which we've 

had to discharge many of their patients. 



1 

COMMISSIONER COX: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Thank you. General Davis, 

288 

facilities to help us out in those specialized areas, but 

2 

3 

6 1 Commissioner Davis. I 

just general beds we feel we've got the capacity to take care 

of our own. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Of 

course, I have lots of concerns in this particular area. 

Being one of the three retirees up here, I can understand 

that, but there is one thing that you said that is very 

striking. Medical care is certainly an implied contract. 

Would you agree with that, Dr. Martin? 
1 

1 9  
I corporation, you'd have a hell of a time saying, llWell, I 

D i ~ e r s i f i t d  H ~ : l l n r t i ~ l q  Serl ict:~,  I~lr;. 
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l2 i 
I 

I 

I DR. MkJj.,'ih: Yes, s ~ r .  

i4 COM7\CISSI3T;P,", 3A'i'IS : I t ' s  9sez 2z lmpilec conrract 

15 - - I  for c lonq zime. - L  s gettiny less  iq~lied 2 s  we GO zlong, 
, 

16 and when you recruit these younq folks co come our and be 
I 

I 
17 1 soldiers, sailors, airmen and Marine Corps folks, you, sort 

18 I of -- you go up to them, and if you were a commercial I I 

20 

21 

22 

maybe can promise you a 20-year career, which at least twice 

during that career I'm going to send you away from your 

family a year at a time, and oh, by the way, you might even 

I 



1 

So what you're doing is a very important process. 
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get shot at, and I can't guarantee your medical benefits," 

2 

3 

we're going to have a hell of a time doing any recruiting in 

the future. I 

I medical requirement in the process. 
5 

6 

Now, 1/11 need your help here a little bit. The 

I would like to take whatever time I have available and go 

back to this two major regional conflicts and estimation of 

I basic philosophy is to wherever we have these major regional 

10 / conflicts is to triage the folks as close to the front line 

l1 I as possible, move them back to a next staging level, and when 

1 2  / they stabilize we bring then back to the United States. 
I 

Two major regionzl conflicts is kind of a squishy 

. . 
14 , number, I snspecz, Cepenc:~: :r. vhere you 30 your planning. 

1 E; 
A d  DC you have plannin~ fac~cri thar cl?ow yoc to figure the 

16 ~ziximrr;  amount of Z a s E a l t i ~ ~  \ i o ~ t  
I 

re g~ing to have and how 

17 1 you're going to depose those as opposed -- as you deal with 

18 / regional areas? 
I 
I 1 

DR. MARTIN: I think there was a study done called j 

2 0  

2 1  

Ili\ursifir!d nr!portirirl Ser\ices, Iric. 
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the 7 3 3  study, which, basically, assumed -- you always have a 

series of assumptions, conservative, optimistic, the 

22  magnitude, the forces you're going to be deployed against and 



2 / and bio, I mean, which are a part of it. 

I So there is a requirements process developed by the I 

Joint Staff which, basically, models what the expectations 

I are for casualty requirement, casualty handling and 

6 1 requirement. I 
The 9- to 10,000 number I was talking about is one I 

that was developed by the Rand Corporation under contract to 

DoD working, essentially, with the three services, Joint 

Staff and us to come up with a set of ranges for what the 

l1 I casualties might be. 

Now, there are people who disagree with that. 

- - cf, i ~ ~ ~ D G - S S S  zszhnoloqi~ u?r vhere, l i k e ,  Southwest Asia, 

- c 
LO 

I 

I 
Anocher qrou? of people, occurring the CINC in I 

I I I 
17 1 Korea, believes thet is a bit optimistic and indeed would say 1 

I I 

18 1 we would nave more casualties. I would say the 733 study is 
i 
I 
a pretty good number to work around. 

I mean, one of the reasons we use 733 is that we 

21 1 knew no matter what we did we didn't want to drop below that I 
requirement. I mean, if we've got a number of 10,000 or 

Ui icrs i f i ed  Rr!pnrtil~q Seri icr:~,  IIIC. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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I 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

8 1 is factored in. 60 these missions other than the two MRCs 
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9,000 beds that we need we know, we certainly didn't want to 

say our requirements were less than that. 

So I think there are at least -- the policy process 
at the point we are now is pretty reasonable estimates. We 

haven't estimated other things, for example. 

6 

7 

We've got a hospital in Zagreb. We're providing a 

major amount of care in Guantanamo right now. None of that 

I 2,000 is a reasonable planning base for making our 

9 

10 

12 ! assessment, and currently I think the services pretty much 
I 

and/or other contingencies aren't built in. 

But I think the estimating of 10,000 plus or minus 

agrse ----  i i i c i  a~.; systeni  is able to meet the requirement. 
I 

A + CSE5ISSIONEZ D A V I S :  5ux when you tzlk zbouc two I 
I 
I I 

- - -. & d  ~ , S ; ~ C S  -- - -  - --  -VYO -KRCs, I wouldnit consider Zagreb or Guantanamo in 

- Lhz: criterie. ;'ave yo: looked at some of our recent 

conflicts, regional conflicts called the Korean War and the 

18 1 Vietnam War and factored that into the process. 

i 
DR. MARTIN: Actually, the Korean War and the 

Vietnam War were critical parts of the planning 

considerations. Also important to point out, and this is 

something that I'm sure you're aware of, of course, that many 

U i ~ c r s i f i e d  nr: l~nrt i i~rj  S e r i i c e s ,  I I IC.  
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i requirements are disease, not-battle related. 

1 

I mean, a substantial proportion, some 60 percent 

to two-thirds of the people actually in beds are not ones 

that actually suffered wounds in combat. I mean, it's the 

risk of the theater which hospitals large numbers of people. 

and that was factored in as well. But yes, we used the 

Vietnam War and the Korean War as a part of the estimated 

technique, or Rand did. 

2 9 2  

aren't, that a very substantial proportion of our 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: And I know General Luck very 

well, and he's not known to exaggerate. My concern, as a 

12 1 member of this Commission, is that we retain sufficient bed 1 
I I 

1 9  
A J capacizy ts haneling the casualties we'll receive in the 2 

- - :.. I :  Thar was very iiiucn a concern of our 

16 work qrous. / 

17 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Mr. Chairman, I yield back the 

18 ! rest of my time. 
I 

CO~ISSIONER KLING: Mr. chairman, are you 

I 
I 

1 Ui\.t:rsificd R~!portir~r] Services, Irlc. 
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WASHINGTON. D.C. 20006 
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2 1 

2 2  

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Dr. Martin, first of all, let me, kind of, summarize your 



saying to us that you made a 45 percent reduction largely out 

of the BRAC process. You're fairly satisfied with the 

1 

progress you've made so far. Would that be substantially 

293 

testimony. I get the impression that just, basically, you're 

correct? 

DR. MARTIN: And we think that the way we're doing 

this is the correct way, yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Okay. And do I understand that -- 

my general impression of your testimony is that you doubt, in 

the circumstances, that there is any particular surplus bed 

availability in our hospital system for our veterans, for the 

12 1 service people, retirees and so f' 
I 

orth. Is that, roughly, 

D?.. ???LITIN: Yes, sir, except I think, as 

.. - 
12 Comissioner Kling poiniec our, chat changes over time. As 

you chinge hov you do care, your bed requirements continue to I 
go down, and I think you're going to see a continued decrease 

in our hospital bed requirements just like you do in the 

privare sector. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well, I would ask, though, in the 

present peacetime situation, which is a, roughly, normalized 

situation, I would say, at least in my historical experience 

Divcrsi f ied Rr!~~urt i i iq  Services,  Inc. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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2 9 4  

in my lifetime in public service, would you say that you 

don't have any particular surplus amount of beds around? Is 

that your testimony? 

I DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir. I think currently our 1 
available beds are roughly equivalent to our requirements. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Now, let me just ask you a couple 

I of questions here. I have no reason to argue with that. 1 
This is a fairly sensitive topic, and there isn't anybody up 

I here who wants to do away with the possibility of the need 1 
for beds for our service people. 

Do we have that particular chart that I'm looking 

1 at right here? No, no, no. That isn't the one I want to 
I 
ace. This is the one I wanted to see. I just wanted to, I --- 

1 

1 
; kina of, ask abouc that a little. I 

I just want to get a, kind of, reading from you, 

I I D r .  M a r t i n .  I ' ve  been doodling on that. Will it be all 1 
1 

right? No, no. I wanted to see that -- you can't do that 
1 

one? 

I 
I 

Well, I'm looking at a list here. I can't really 1 
compare it too well with that one. They're telling me it's 

the same list. But anyway, here it says, "Noble Army 

Community Hospital, Fort McClellan Alabama realigned to 

Di\.ersified Rcportir~rj Services, Inc. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
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1 

2 

3 
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clinic, concur.I1 That was done? Is that on there? 

DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Okay. Then it says, "Lyster Army 

4 

5 

DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: And it shows certain concurrences, 

community Hospital, Fort Rucker Alabama, realigned to clinic, 

none concur.I1 Are you all getting those lists there? Is 

6 

7 

8 

9 

l2 I and then will say from time to time, I1none concur.11 I see 

that what you're getting there now? 

See that? There is 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 ,  7, 8, 9, lo, 

11, 12, 13, 14, 15 -- there is 16 different ones on there. 

Do you see that, Dr. Martin? 

l3 1 
I 

that once, twice, three times, four times -- at least seven i 
14 

I I 

times you can arguably say nine. 
I 

1 5  
& d 

1 
So 1/11 jusc 2sk you for the purposes of staff, are , 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
16 you sanisfied with the places where these things show a none 

I I 
17 1 concurrence with the original recommendations? 

I 

DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: You don't have any quarrel with 

that? 

DR. MARTIN: No, sir. 

I CHAIRMAN DIXON: Okay. Now, I just want to ask you 

Di \ers i f i ed  Ilcportilirl St!rvices, Ill[:. 
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1 



I pursue the matter further. 
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one last thing because it confused me a little, and I won't 

8 1 spent 400 million or whatever the number was doing the state- 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

9 1 of-the-art hospital we have at Brooks. Did you say that? 

A little thing you said kind of confused me a 

little. I'd, sort of, like to revisit it, Dr. Martin. My 

colleague, Commissioner Kling, in his capacity as chairman, 

asked you about the use of priority facilities and so forth, 

and I thought you said that had some appeal to me before we 

DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir. We had two 50-year-old plus 

l1 ! hospitals. And so when Brooks was built, if we had the 

l2 I 
wisdom of retrospection, I think one of the -- in fact, less 

13 1 pur ir more to the point. 
! 

7 4 - -.c 2 service now proposed another hospital L L ~ E  
I . - 

i3 Srook io replaze an aging plant, we would first loo>: in t h e  

I 

cornunity to find out whether there Kas space t h ~ i  we could 

I rent or utilize. 1 
I 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Sure. 

DR. MARTIN: And, in fact, we've already done that I 

1 Diversified Rej~urtir~rl Scr~ices ,  I r lc .  

I 918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

i WASHINGTON. D.C. 2CCQ6 

I (202) 296-2929 

2 0 

21 

22 

in a couple of circumstances, worked together with the VA so 

we're not building llduplicating" level 3 beds. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: But the only part I wondered about 



I DR. MARTIN: Right. I 
4 

5 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: And you said that had you not done 

that you might have had adequate facilities available in the , 
6 

7 

l1 I state-of-the-art, but I still need Wilford Hall. I don't 

private institutions around town. I'm wondering why it 

wouldn't follow, then, if that's the case, that you could 

8 

9 

10 

12 1 quite understand that. 

close Wilford Hall now. I don't quite follow that logic. 

You had sufficient extra private units around. You 

built Brooks, and so now you have an additional 367 beds 

DR. MARTIN: First, Wilford Hall has been, in part, j 

renovated. for example, it's got laminar flc; 

technology for autologous bone marrow transplants that 

second to none in San ~ntonio. So that there is within the I 

Wilford Hall facility very significant and modern capability. I 
CHAIRMRN DIXON: And you're suggesting that's not 

I 
transferable to the other units? 

918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON. D.C. 20006 

20 

21 

22 

DR. MARTIN: Well, it's actually cheaper for us to 

retain the facility we've got. I think there is a different 

question. Are we going to spend $400 million to build a new 

Dii,crsified Rcl~urtir~r~ Seri ices, IIIC. 



facility? Well, there is a good one, Fitz. 

2 

3 

I been very much to rent facilities. 

I mean, we were ominously close to spending almost 

$400 million building a new Fitzsimmons. Congress had a very 

4 

5 

But really, 

keen interest in that, if I recollect. Even if we needed a 

hospital there, which we didnlt, our preference would have 

there is no logic in renting a facility 

if you already own one. So I think the point is do you build 

new beds, as opposed to close old beds which are already on a 

base, and it's on Lackland. So it makes sense to keep the 

your question exactly 

11 

12 

right. 

facility we've got. 

Now, if the Air Force came in -- let's just take 1 
1 

the Air Force came in now 

and said the Kilford Hall facility nc 

safety codes, we need to build a 

position would be I 

longer can meet 

300-bed facility, our 

think we need at alternatives 

either with the Veterans ~dministration or downtown, because 

we do not believe we need 300 more built bids in San Antonio. 

But I think there is two different questions. That i 
is different than saying should we close the 300-plus beds 

Ilivi?rsified Rel~ortir~r] S e r ~ i c e s ,  111c. 
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COMNISSIONER KLING: Let me just jump in there with 

just one point. 

I DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: I still can't understand. Are 

5 

6 

you saying that 'just because we have it up and we paid for it 

we should continue it, or is it really necessary in the 

7 

8 

facilities that Wilford Hall cannot be replaced at Brooks, or 

you take the bone marrow -- is that not available in San 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Uivcrsificd Rcllrlrii~~g Services, IIIL.. 
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Antonio at any other private hospital, could have a 

specialized area? 

DR. MARTIN: I understand, Mr. Chairman. The 

crucial thing is that once we decided how many beds we 
i 

needed, which was more than we would just have at Brooks, 
I 

then, essentiilly, the question it what is itself mosr 
I 

effective way of getting those beds. I 

I 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

If you currently have a facility that can provide I 
i 
i 
i that capability and has been modernized as Wilford Hall has 1 

and as on Lackland, as it is, that makes about business I 
sense. I 

If, on the other hand, let's say that in order to 

have those 300 beds on Lackland you'd have to build a new 

hospital, I think that's a new question altogether. 



3 0 0  

The question that we were asked is, first of all, 

the model says look at this as an alternative. We looked at 

it very carefully with the Air Force, and the big reason it 

came up, as you've pointed out in your questions, is there 

was a great deal of duplication. I 
We felt the answer was to get rid of the 

duplication and change the roles of the two hospitals very 

much like a lot of communities do. 

A lot of communities have three or four hospitals. 

What they do is realign what the hospitals do. That's what 

we did in response to the concern about duplication. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Thank you. Conaissioner 

Montoya . 
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1 4  / COlPlISSIONER MONTOYA: I jzst nave cne questio~. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Please educate me on your use of the word "clinicn in the 

context in which you've been talking about, downsizing non- 

BRAC process, how the word I1clinicf1 and llhospitalll relate to 
1 
1 

each other vis-a-vis "beds; i.e., if you go from a hospital 
I 
I 

to a clinic, do the beds disappear by the nature of service 

I 

you provide? 



those two words? So that later on, if wetre doing further 

analysis, have in my mind those relative terms and what 

3 . / they mean. I 
DR. MARTIN: Let me answer your second question 

5 

6 

first. In fact, the services, particularly around important 

facilities, sometimes use terminology that is not correct. 

7 

8 

There are examples. However, it doesn't have any 

For example, Womack Army ~edical Center -- Army 
Medical Hospital is clearly, to us, a hospital. It is at 

9 

10 

Fort Bragg. It is also the home of the 18 Airborne Corps, 

and therefore it is the Womack Army Medical Center. 

12 

91): 13 

nircrsificd Re~rortirir~ Scrr ices, Inc. 
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I 
graduate training or the like. So not unlike ccmmcnities i 

1 

across the country, sometimes you wan- to say "hosplcal" or 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

"medic21 centerH 2nd iy, ssrt s:, has 2 different !::na Z E  

meaning. 

I 

The definitions chat we use are ZE leasr consisrenz 

relative to how we engage with this Commission. To us, I 
medical centers are ones with subspecialty graduate medical I 

1 
I education consistent with institutions of higher learning, 

universities. 

In other words, they have residences in surgery or 

orthopedics or neurosurgery. They would be comparable to a 



Georgetown or a University of Texas San Antonio. Those are 

medical centers -- major teaching institutions, major 
subspecialty capabilities. I 

Hospitals, not unlike in the private sector, range 

between a very large number of beds, 400 or 500 beds or, in 

wartime even as high as 1,000 beds down to some very small 

facilities. 

Generally, the private sector doesn't like to call 

facilities with less than 25 or 20 beds a hospital, but in a 

lot of little communities not unlike some places where we've 

got Air Force bases, you've got 8-, lo-, 12-bed llhospitals.ll 
I 

The usually thing for us is that hospitals have tc i 
offer a range of services and accreditation by the Joinc 

Commission. They have to hzve lab, X rzl-, p h ~ r r n a c y ~  51~35 

bank, maintain a 24-hour capability, an ~ n e s ~ h e s i o l o~is~ o:. 

call, you know, the capability to adniz an acutely or 
I 

critically ill patient and handle that patient within the I 

facility overnight. 

Many of our smaller hospitals are holding -- i 
essentially holding hospitals where, essentially, you've got 

less than that particular set of requirements of the hospital 

and if, in fact, somebody is very sick, you immediately 

Uiversificd Rr!lrortir~r] Scrl.iccs, Irlc. 
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1 

2 

And so what we've, 

transfer them to another facility with that capability. 

More and more we have found that particularly in 

3 

4 

5 

essentially, 

had isolated areas it is a good idea no longer to maintain 

the emergency rooms, the overnight blood bank those 

activities. 

graduated into are, 

i essentially, large clinics which meet the basic requirements 
with holding capabilities for patients who could be admitted 

overnight. 

A great example of that would be where you've got 

people in training, young people, and you can't really send 

12 1 them back to the barrack, but you don't want to adnit the- 

downtown, so you put them in a holding facility. 

The word "super clinicw weJLTe ?rovided 5: 

definition to your staff where actually you've got an 

so I think what you are seeing is a continuum of 

16 

17 

l9 1 those kind of capabilities that goes back to what do you 

I 
extremely large clinic where you do subspecialty ambulatcr:.- 

I 

surgery and the like. I 

*O I really need to do that is smart make or buy in those 
facilities, and it's very much like is going on in the 

private sector. 

Diversified Reporlirlr~ Services, 111c. 
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I mean, a lot of towns 20 miles apart used to build 

two hospitals. Neither can afford them anymore. So they 

figured out ways to at least maintain certain kind of 

capabilities, and most of the big hospital chains now are 

doing away with all the duplication but trying to keep the 

geographic access by keeping the facility where they can. 

And I think we're, basically, modeling our efforts 

after that. So, essentially, you have big, true training 

programs down to what could be a 4 to 6 bed holding facility, 

but very frankly, if you had a very sick patient, you'd 

transport them quickly to a much larger facility. I 
i 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: The c h a r t  we were looking at ! 
I 

says, ffHospitals, 20,000 beds. Ii Are znere clinics -- are 

- - - -  - - . - . -  there beds ~ h e r e  t h a r  z r e  cLir . ics  :EE-L>-  is nosFLcz-s. 

Di?. Yes, sir. Under the avcilable bed -- 
1 

the critical number there is the 15,628. I2 =he avzilabie 
I 

beds, are there probably several hundred but not a 

significant number who are in the 6- or 8- or ten-bed, but 

there are not a large number. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Okay. 

DR. MARTIN: If you look at Wilford Hall has got 

1,000 of them. I mean, that did where our real beds are. 

Ilivcrsified Rc[rurti~tq Sen ices, 111c. 
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DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir, at least in our process 

4 

5 

DR. MARTIN: Oh, absolutely. Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: 0' -. 

relative to this  omm mission. Now, sometimes the title 

outside reflects a local pride in that facility that may be 

7 

8 

Kay. Thank you. That's I 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: I'm talking about services 

that delivered fundamental -- 

I 
COMMISSIONER ROBLES: To qiiotf + famous . lmer i c tn ,  

I 

13 Yogi Berra, chis is ileja w ali over agzic. Ir r t r e e  
I 

- - -  14 I previous ins~nca~iz~s, ;.he.- : L? ?=I: sz1-:zz;rt ? n l  r ~ 5 g e :  

i 
n<t,- m -  -om---  15 1 work i ~ .  DESOPS, wh2; I wzs =_?.=_ > - -  

I 
- - - -  - - - - - - - -  - .- a --- - 

. . 16 ' budget direczor, 3 i s  was -5  :he -rcs: P-T~ZZLSZZ. :CEUES 

I I 

17 1 that I ever tackled and got bloodied many tines l i t s r z l l l - .  j 

18 ( So I won't plow this ground a11 over again, but I 
1 
I 

22  I be because you want a safe side where you don't error on 

19 

2 0  

21 

Ui\.ersificd Re11orti1111 Scrl i c ~ s ,  Ir~c .  
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have one question. At that time what was real drivin~ us, 

the requirement has always been whatever requirements -- 

whatever assumptions you want to take, and that will always 



1 / saving lives or treating patients. 

I inflation was double digit. And then along came a threat of 

2 

3 

5 1 a national health care bill. I 

But the issue is cost. At a time when inflation 

was running 3, 4, 5 percent in general inflation, medical 

And in the private sector I can vouch that our own 

7 

8 

9 

l2 1 this is your professional judgnent, one, now that we're 

experience in the company that I watch closely, its health 

care costs have come way down. So my question is the 

following: 

10 

11 

l3 ! 
I 

seemingly going to gec medical costs, Inflation more under 
I 

And oh, by the way, we've been trying to manage 

health care in DoD for a long time. So the question is, and 

- .  , 
14 ' control znd the ttinqs 1il:c :clemec:z:zs -22 o:her rhincs 

i 
I 

l5 1 offer some real opporrunities, cio yo: really believe welrz 

! 

16 / going to able to, one, have i managee heaizh care system i r  

l7 ! the Department of Defense that addresses the pseudo 

entitlement issue that has been around forever, and two, are 

19 / you making real progress in getting an efficient medical 

20 1 model in the Department of Defense? 

I 
Uit  l!rsifir:d Rr:purting Seri ices, 111~. 
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21 

22 

DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir. Beginning with the efforts 

in the late '80s, which you remember, CRI, CAMS, plus 
I 



3 07 

Dr. Mendezf efforts in the early '90s where he put together 

the Coordinated Care plan, I think the Department has a very 

clear plan -- Congress has now blessed it -- that I think 

takes a great deal of the lessons from the private sector, 

implements them with our system and very heavily is depending 

more and more. 

I mean, we have prime vendor, dropping shipping. 

We are not interested in doing things the private sector can 

do better. We process no claims. We are getting out of the 

depot business relative to DLA and these big warehouses full 

of medical gear. We just get them directly from the vendors. 

T So a  lo^ of those smart t h i n g s  KE E r e  doinq.  A 

13 think the big change was zhe f c r m a a c x  ci zze  Defense Healz. 

- - - - r  ...77C';. - 7 . -  - -- - -  - - ... =?C - - - -  I< , . One z - -  - - A -  ...-..-- -.- - - . .- .. -...-- , c. ;., , ~ S T  

An6 I think t h a t ' s  had a very positive effect on 

pulling things together. There has zlso been, sort of, a 

survival mentality relative to makin; the I G H S  work. 

2o 1 It's been under siege, as you well are aware. I 

21 1 think the best way to measure it is with a reasonable 

comparison with the private sector. In the 733 study, other 

1lir.ersified nr:llrl~ti~~rl Iierticcs, Ill[:. 
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I large numbers of people not getting care from us may swamp 
1 

308 

than the demand phenomena, where if you had very low prices, 

I same good for downtown. And that has to do with salaries and I 

3 

4 

6 ( other kinds of efficiencies, malpractice insurance. I 

us, our current costs compared to the private sector is 

somewhere between 12 and 14 percent less than what we buy the 

i 
1 2  i than the private s e c t o r  ;nnuilly in i~fletian. N ~ Y ,  if yo11 1 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I 

13 , remember t h ~  laze '80s, i;e XG-e ---- 
I 

- Lv.lce ~ r ,  CRAMPUS. So, 

More importantly, if you look at the FITA, our 

budget for the next six years, if we had the inflation factor 

which is accepted now in the private sector, health care in 

DoD would cost 1 7  billion more dollars than our current plan. 

'. r 
. - -  

A L 
- - - -  - - -  - - - - , x s :  . 12s : - -  -..Z _: perc~rz o e r  -.-~ir 

We're running about 1 and a half to 2 percent less I 

I j i i er s i f i~ !d  Rr!purti~lq Surviccs,  1 1 1 ~ .  
91a I ~ T H  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

I WASHINGT0P.I. D.C. 20006 
I 

I 

1 (202) 296-2929 

': F - - lncr--=se -7 2E-fiJ:?L-s - -  - -- nci-  -55s z-:2" E : ~ e r e e ? :  :r,crezse p e r  

16 y e z r ,  whiz, c s r , ~ z r e s  f zvora~_; . - rc :he r , s t i o n z l  5. I 
I 

17 
I 

The other th inq  1s as things in the private sector 
I 

1E / change that zlso improves our  costs because, essentially, 
, I I 

1 9  1 we're able t o  purchase chings better. 

2 0  

2 1  

2 2  

I think we've g o t  a very good plan. Itls working. 

I think the three services are working to make it work, and I 

think we've got a rural quality HMO that is able to go to 

I 
I 
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war, and that's what our job is. 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Well, I thank you. And I 

thought I'd never say this, but the fact of the matter is in 

my last job on active duty, my hospital, Irwin Army Community 

Hospital, was using your approach running a catchment area 

and letting the -- determine, the hospital commander, what is 

the best approach to use was, in fact, working beautifully, 

and it is a model. 

So I commend you, and I think that's a great step 

forward. I really never thought I'd say that, but 

congratulations. 

DR. YIIWTIN: I thought I'd never hear it. Thank 

you. 

23!WISSIONEI? STEEL" X r 2  :eve zo quote another 

American -- we're on a r c l l  here -- bur I think I'll pass on 

that. It's p robably a rare moment in BRAC history, but due 

to our chairman's leadership in the health care issue, I 

think I'm actually going to yield all of my time to the 

Chairman and refrain from questions. So just take note. 

I've done once. all yours. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Well, we did this at the right 

Diversified Rr!vorti~~g Senices, Ioc.  
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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' medical care is not available directly from a military 

hospital in a location and a person is over 65 and now would 

have to go and enroll in ~edicare B, I think Part B -- 

DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: -- that every year that goes 

by that they have not enrolled they will pay a penalty of 10 

1 

2 

time with two minutes to go. So if I may just one question. 

We noticed at Fitzsimmons this was brought up that when 

DR. MARTIN: We've actually got a legislative 

9 

10 

i 2 
I 
proposal that we have been working xirh Health and Human I 

percent, what's the intention to do -- is there any intention 

to pay for those penalties? 

13 Services :D axtemp: zo eicher weive or forgive in all of our 
1 

- .  - - - 
A 

SF-,-: crscs  ~ - ~ ~ - , - ~ c - ~ z A s  i,,-r: Z ~ E  -1- - -  - -  .- --A - -  ,.- v~nstar,ce. -. . 
I 

ni\.t!rsified f l epc~rt ir~g  Services, IIII:. 
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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
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i = I - .  - - m i  ,= 
- - A -  

.,- -".-- 2r;xc,zz A: -.-,, :nfiee= =Eel7 z~iicipated they 1 

I 

- ,- - - 
,C WOK-c no= necz P z r z  E, +nC so =he>- r.aae now -- and all of 2 

- -  I 

I; sudden we took awzy the hospitzl. We've estimated that the 
I 

I 
I8 / cost to either HHS, if they waive it, or to us, if we paid 

I 

19 I it, we're telking $10- o r  $12- $14 nillion over a three-year 

1 
2 0  

2 1  

I 

period of time. 

So it's not a large amount of money relative to the 

very substantial savings derived in those places where we do 



1 
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BRAC closures. Our position is that we need to find a way to 

2 

3 

make sure that all of our future retirees get Part B, that 

where they have made judgments that, in retrospect were in 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Ilii ersified R e ~ i o r t i ~ ~ q  Seri ices, I i ~ c .  
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error, we should find a way either ourselves or through 

congressional action to get it waived. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: So you are addressing that? 

DR. MARTIN: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: Thank you. Well, let me just 

ask the last one. Will you be able, on short notice, to 

gather appropriate data from the services if we need same? 

DR. MARTIN: I think my answer would be comparable 

16 thank Y o c ,  you've certain done an excellent job of aiding 
I 

17  / your assistants there at your table to answer every question 

18 I by yourself. So wef re proud of you. 

I 
1 2  to Mr. Finch's. we will give you every effort to everything 

I 
13 I we can. I think we've got a large amount of the information 

I 

l i  tL-- L L L c L  xs nssd zc, b~ r ~ s p c n s i - ~ ~ e  ts the Commissicn. 

- - 
i3 COI%.IISSI3!iZR KLIE;;: Very good. Well, I certainly 

19 

2 0 

21 

2 2  

DR. MARTIN: Thank you, sir. 

COMMISSIONER KLING: And we thank you, by the way, 

very much, and with that the Medical service Group is now 

complete. 
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COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: It seems like everyone is in 

And we're pleased to have with us as co-Chairs of 

2 

3 

4 

I the T&E group a Mr. Philip E. Coyle, who is Director of 

fine spirit, strong and ready to go for the last hour. It is 

my pleasure to end it. Our final group is a Joint Cross 

Service Group on Labs and Test and Evaluation. 

' 1 Operational Test and Evaluation, and Mr. John A. Burt, who is 

I Director of Test Systems Engineering and Evaluation in the 
9 1 Department of Defense. 

And we also have with us Dr. Craig Dorman, the I 
l1 I Deputy Director for Laboratory Management, who was a lab 
12 / study team leader. Nou, if you three gentlemen and any other / 

I I 
13 j backup witnesses who you might call to answer questions, 1/11 i 

I 
7 - / - T zsj; V C , , ~  --  -- - - - . - - cu -Ia€ sc - lIlcy ahinister the oath. I 

I - I - -- [Panel sworz. ) 1 
I 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Thank you. Please be 

17 1 seated, and welcome. I'm going to open the questioning and 1 
I I 
I 

1 8  / then go to a couple of colleagues who have to leave here 
I 

19 / fairly soon. 

2 o  I Let me start with you, Dr. Dorman, because we have 

21 i no opening statements, and go right to the questions. I'm 

Ui\,crsificd Ht !~~nrt inq  Services, 111c. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

I WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
I (202) 296-2929 
I 

2 2  going to give you the opportunity to make a speech if you'd 



MY question is in an area that probably no one up 

here has great knowledge in because the laboratory business 

is, in many cases, highly classified, black in some areas, 

all of services have some, are you satisfied with where the 

labs are today and where they are going given what you know 

about force structure and where each of the services is 

taking their particular endeavors? 

1 like. 313  1 

DR. DORMAN: The labs, of course, are an integral 

9 

'17 
A& ' pzrt sf ths acquisition structure of each of the mili~ary I 

w 1 3  ae?arrments, and they make their determinations about the I I 

I'd just like a general assessment from you as to 

xhoss l~borator-es based =?or 

1 0  your personal satisfaction. 

I 

- - - - -.hG ; - r z l e s  r ~ s s i 3 ~ s  an2 2nrizi2ztions for future I 

i 

I 
1 From a personal perspective, I am satisfied that we , 

/ are in the process of reducing the overall laboratory 
I 

I strudture in such a way that we will end up, roughly by the i 
2 0  1 turn of the century, with an organization that, from the 

Iliicrsified Fiel~urtii~q St:riices, 11ic. ! 918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
1 (202) 296-2929 

2 1  

2 2  

standpoint of personnel, is effectively sized to meet what I 

believe to be the projected requirements and yet will retain 



1 internally the necessary technical capacities. 

2 

3 

One of the real tough things in making the 

decisions with regard to laboratories is not to eliminate 

4 

5 

something that you may be may be fundamentally essential in 

the future for which a capacity either doesn't or may not 

6 

7 

8 

l1 I DR. DORMfLN: No. I don't believe that the issue of 

12 redundancy is one that has been completely handled. From the 

! I I 
13 1 standpoint of each of the military departments -- and let me I 

exist in the civilian market. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Are you satisfied in the 

area of redundancy or duplication that the way we are today, 

9 

10 

second and say we just, 

is there some and do you feel that the planning to get rid of 

that is well underway to your satisfaction? 

in addition to ocr 

- - - CFLi'-;C e csnpleted a study in support of the 
I 

I 

* 

I 
.. - 
A L Nationzl Science axd Technology Council, not only ourselves 

I I 
I 
I 

I 
17 bu: also the Deparcmen; of Energy and NASA was asked to take / 
18 a look ct our over211 laboratory requirements and how we met 

19 / the needs of nation in those areas. 

22 1 assigned missions responsibilities so that within each of 

20 

21 

Ui\,crsificd Rr:~lurtir~q S e n  iccs, 111r:. 
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I think, in our case within the Department of 

Defense, each of the military departments has very carefully 



1 them there is very little, if any, redundancy. 

2 

3 

4 

So that has been eliminated. They have very 

carefully stated their missions. They understand their 

requirements. They have taken themselves down to what their 

5 

6 

7 

They all have intelligence needs. Each of them has 

built internally a capacity and a capability to do that. In 

core requirements are. 

However, inevitably, because each of the services 

do similar things, in many cases, or have similar needs, 

8 

9 

ii 1 I 

many cases, C41 again I think is an example, we have not yet 1 

command, control and communications I think is an example, 

they all have to talk to each other. 

1 

13 1 dealt effec~ively with the issue of combining and eliminating I 

I 
=he cross-service aspects cf thzt redundancy. 

3ne z rez  where I believe that has been effeczively 

' F .  -" , acconplished and will continue co be, and I believe this wes I 

part of our report, was in the medical area. 

Determination was made and is being staffed within 

the military departments to create an armed forces medical 

research and development agency or institute. In that area 

in particular, I think, as you've just heard from Dr. Martin 

with regard to hospitals, there is much comparability in what 

I l i~~crs i f i cd  Ilcl~urti l l~j  Serriccs, Inc. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

I 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 
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1 they can rely very heavily upon each other. 

I In the hardware areas, in many of the other areas, I 

* 1 they have their own views. certainly the types the war 

5 1 fighting capacities that they bring depends heavily upon I 

1 And I think from the standpoint of maintaining 

6 

7 

I their individual capacity in what they believe to be their 

their ability within their laboratory systems to develop and 

devise new ideas. 

lo I core product areas they've made the determination that they 

need to maintain to meet their Title X responsibiiities those I 
I 
I 

12 internal capacities. 
I 

! 

w I 

13 / COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Let me ask you another broad 

- I -+ ques~ion, 2x6 zhen I'm going co turn CG my colleague 
I 

- - - 
A >  Corn-issioner Robles, who is going to stey on the issue for a 

I 

16 1 bit. I 
One of the concerns I have and a concern thzt I1ve 

I 

experienced in the private sector is that in times of i 
! 

turmoil, downsizing, moving, who are the personnel that leave I 
20 you first? 

Generally, it's your very, very top people who are 

in demand and who live in a very delicate balance. Have you 

! Ui\.crsificd Rel lurt ir lr~  Survices, Iric. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET. N.W. SUITE 803 

I WASHINGTON. D.C. 20006 
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an in-depth analysis of your personnel in the lab 

I business to have some sense as to how they would react to 
I closings or moving from one place to another where they have 
I lived for years and developed an expertise and a community 

5 1 rapport, professional rapport with expertise in their areas 
I 

6 1 of work? Do you have a sense of where that would go? I 
DR. DORMAN: I think we have a general sense of it. 

8 1 I certainly have not conducted an in-depth study or an 

11 / it comes to the moves associated with any BRAC closures and I 

9 

12 1 changes. 

2) 
l3 / The issue that you've mentioned, though, of 

! 

analysis of it. I think the laboratory personnel are, 

14 deferenzial loss cf calent during a downsizing process is 3-5 
I 

10 perhaps, no different than those in any other community when 
I 

15 that is with as and is z. very significant problem for t h s  
I 

I 
laboratories, but that is not immediarely and directed 

17  1 related to the base realignment and closure process. 

I think that comes about from the standpoint that 
I 

19 / the downsizing that we're going through -- and overall we're 

22 1 by the end of the century. 

20 

21 

Ui\ .ers i f i sd H e p o r t i ~ l q  Survices, 111c. 
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talking about elimination of something like 35 percent of the 

total laboratory population from its peak to where we'll be 



3 18 

That process is occurring roughly at the rate of 

6 1 retirement process and the other in those cases where RIFs 

2 

3 

4 

5 

have to occur you selectively lose at the lower end. 

attrition given the Civil Service rules and regulations and 

with the inducements for early retirement, et cetera, you 

tend to lose in two areas, one of which is your more senior 

folks, your mentors and so forth who are lost through the 

You 

lose your new folks and you lose your new ideas and your 

I 
j 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Thank you, Dr. Dorman. Let j 

9 

10 

11 

12 

14 i me now turn the gavel over to Commissioner Robles. 
i 

freshness that is brought in at the lower side. 

So yes, sir, that's a significant problem for us. 

I think that the BRAC aspects are just a part, if you would, 

and not a specific aspect of that. I 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

I was one of the folks who visited Brooks, one of 

I 

I 

l9 i the four  omm missioners and staff, but I guess the impression 

16 

17 

I 

Mr. Boatright, this is going to be directed at you, and the I 

i 
subject is Brooks Air Force Base. 

Diversi f isd Rcllurtittq Ser\iccs, Ittr:. 
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20 

21 

22 

that I left and I think most of us left with is that it is a 

very unique facility, has a lot of very unique things that go 

on there, very complex facility. 



1 

2 

I was looking at things like special 

Admiral Montoya looked at it from an engineering 

point of view and was looking at all the piping and tubing 

3 

4 

certification 

and all the things that are there and how long it would take 

to replicate that somewhere else. 

6 

7 

required, accreditation that's required, talking to a couple 

from the Navy and the Army -- they had moved some things 

8 

9 

10 

11 

14 / to 40 percent of the human systems research and technology 

15 1 development is done there at Brooks, about half of thit zt 
I 

I 

I 

there -- and how long it took them to get everything 
reestablished, rebaselined, recertified. 

So there is a very large set of complex issues on 

that facility because of what it's all about, and so the 

12 

w 
I 

thrust of my questions will be along that vein. I 
I I 

13 First one, it was our understanding that about 35 1 
I I 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20  

Diversified nellrlrtirlq Services, 111c. 
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Wright-Patterson, and the rest of it is scattered throughout i 

the rest of the services in 15, 16, 17 spared individual I 

sites. 

So there appeared to be some synergy to get all 

that consolidated or more consolidated. ~iven that, it's my 

21 

22 

understanding that the Joint Cross service Group recommended 

that we consolidate some Navy and Army human systems lab 



2 

3 

It was also found as part of that recommendation 

that Brook had some capacity to do that or sufficient I 
4 

5 

6 

7 

Are there some other places that are better suited, I 

capacity to do some of those consolidations. 

First of all, my question is is this factual, or is 

this -- this is, again, some of the things we came up with 
the staff, and if it is factual, were, in fact, the Army and 

8 

9 

10 

the Navy thinking about moving some functions there, and if 

not, where is that work done in the other services at these 

other 15 or 16 locations? 

M E I .  BOATRIGHT: I thin): ths rationale for zh-2 

Brooks decision is to save money for the Department of 

12 

w 
13 

I 
and given all that, kind of what's the rationale for the 

I 

Brook decision? 1 

16 

17 

Defense. When the Air Force went through its analysis of its 
I ' 

I 

lab installations; that is, the installations where i 

18 

19 

20 

Diversified R e p o r l i ~ ~ g  Services, Inc. 
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I 
laboratory function was the predominant function on the i 

I 
installation, Brooks came out at the bottom of our ranking. 

It was in the lowest tier of the ranking after we had applied I 
I 

21 

22 

all the criteria that we had applied to that particular 

category of installation. 



And based on that we began to focus on closing 

5 1 operation. i 

2 

3 

4 

Brooks to see whether or not we could come up with a cost- 

effective proposal that would save money and that would allow 

us to continue operations at Brooks, very important 

6 

7 

lo 1 In the spirit of jointness in the human services 

And I would agree with you there are very complex 

activities there, but we believe that they fit very well at 

8 

9 

l1 I research and development business, the ~ i r  Force felt that 

Wright-Patterson, which is the base which the Air Force has 

proposed to realign most of that workload to. 

12 1 there were some of the things that we were doing at Brooks 

13 1 that could be better consolidated with some other activities 

I and some other things that could be Setter consolidated x i t k  

Navy activities. 

We did offer to relocate or realign those 

activities into Army and Navy. However, as we began to wcr:: 

l8 I through that with both the Army and the Navy, it was 

19 / determined that there war, in one case, there was 

insufficient capacity at the facility to accommodate the 

21 ( activities at the other. It did not appear to be a cost- 

effective way to do it. So instead the Air Force decided to 

Uii.ersified nr!llortiilr~ Scn ice s ,  I IIC.  
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1 I realign all of the work to Brooks. I 
Now, we could turn this around, and we could have 

considered consolidating Army-Navy activities at Brooks, and 

the reason the Air Force didn't pursue that is we were trying 

1 to shed from the Air Force some considerable excess capacity. 

I So Brooks, based on our analysis, was the most 

impossible to go the other direction, because Brooks does 

have some fine facilities and some fine activities there. 

And I think you're correct in general, at least, 

7 

8 

i 
12 ( that about 50 percent of the activity in that arena is done I 

attractive one for us to close, and so we went that 

direction. I don't want to tell you that it would be 

l3 I within the Air Force at Wright-Patterson, at the Armstrong 
i Lab out at former Williams Air F c r c ~  3zse 2x2 zz Erooks Air 

Force Base. 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: Well, that's a message we ~ o t  

l7 i loud and clear, that costs seemed to be one of the 

18 1 determinants if not the determinant. But certainly, if 

that's the case, we asked was there a site visit conducted to 

see just what the costs estimates would be to move all that 

piping and tubing and labs and chambers and centrifuges and 

on and on and on, and the ansver we got was not really. 

Diversif ied Rt!purtinq Services, IIIC.  
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And the impression I got was that as a site survey I 

3 

4 

panic in the streets, and then, when it's released, then you 

try and clean up. 

I places that it was determined to move. 

6 

7 

And so the question I have to you is, one, do you 

is being conducted it looks like it will cost considerably 

more than initial estimates to move all that stuff into 

10 

11 

14 1 what you're doing is moving tns p e r s r x e l  o c h s r  c lsces ,  ezi  
I 

have an updated good feel for what the site survey is going 

to say about moving all that stuff? 

12 

13 

- - so not a lot of personnel savings, uhish q e n e r z i i y  1s yorr 

And secondly, one of the big issues there was a lot 

of those things are going to b e  moved zo other places. S ;  

l6 I big cost driver, so what you're really saxring are base ops 

17 

18 

COMMISSIONER ROBLES: And since my time is up, just 

costs. Is that a fair assessment? 

MR. BOATRIGHT: Yes, sir. I would say that the 

19 

20 

one final comment as I go. I also noticed that in the 

majority of the cost savings do come from the base operating 

support costs. 

Uivcrs i f ied H r : ~ ~ u r t i r ~ r ~  Services ,  IIIC. 
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analysis you talked about one of the reasons it had low 

military value was it didn't have an active runway, yet the 

last time I checked at San Antonio there were several runways 

in close proximity. So why was that a factor, having an 

active runway on that installation, from a military value 

point of view? 

MR. BOATRIGHT: I would tell you that while we 

considered whether or not an installation had a runway as a 

factor, and we believe that bases with the dual capability; 

that is, a capability to support a military flying operation 

as well as technical operations is better than a single 
1 

mission installations, but it was not a major factor in that I 

particular category. 

- 
- -YE_ >-c i would -,ell yoc, 5 5  r e g a r d  53 t h e  s - p r ~ ; s ~ - ~  -- 

A 
-- .. 

. - being done, the Air F o r c e  is conduczizg surve l -s  :c verl=:- - - =  -*. - 
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1 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

information thzt we have presented to the C o ~ ~ . m i s s i c n .  We 

will be providing updated information here in the near 1 , 

future. That effort at Brooks i s  not completed. I 
I 

I 

I would tell you similar to what Mr. Nemfakos said I 

this morning that folks at the installation who work there 
i 

and that's their career and that's their livelihood, when you 

ask them -- and the community officials as well -- when you 



2 

3 

1 that we come back to the Commission with valid costs and 

closures and realignments, you're going to get one answer. 

We have to really scrub these answers, and that's 

4 

5 

' I savings. 

the reason we send survey teams out there, and we'll be 

reviewing them at each level within the Air Force to be sure 

I I would submit to the Commission here that the Air I 

I in our survey process, if our conclusion would have been 
9 

10 

1 
I 12 1 different as a result of those numbers than what it was based . 

Force does not want to close or realign any installation in 

it's not cost-effective. And so if the numbers that we get 

I 
13 1 on our initial estimate, we will aaviss the Cor:n.ission cf 

I 
14 1 that. 

15 COMKISSIONEZ? ROBiES : TrA2ri!: y=.-, Iv:r. ~ c J z z ~ ~ ~ P . ~ .  

16 ' I COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Senztor Dixon. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 

20 1 minute before I left. 

18 

19 

! 
I apologize to my colleagues for the fact that I have to leave 
I 

here very shortly, bur I did uant LO calk to Dr. Dormzn a 1 I 

I 
Uiiers i f i ed  Repurt i~~r l  Services, 111c. 
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I 

I 

21 

22 

Dr. Dorman, is it my understanding that you're the 

deputy to Dr. Jones? Is that an accurate statement? 
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DR. DORMAN: Yes, sir. That is correct. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Dr. Jones could not be here today. 

DR. DORMAN: That's correct. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: I don't want to assume anything 

' I Dr. Jones wrote, as chair of the Laboratory Joint Cross 

5 

6 

I Service Group, and I'm told by staff we have the letter, and I 

that isn't true, but I'm told by staff that in summarizing 

the results of the services laboratory cross-servicing that 

1 I quote, nThe final results are disappointing and unbalanced. 
10 1 Cross-servicing is minor at best." Is that a fact? 

DR. DORMAN: That's a fact, sir. 

I CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well, then 1/11 ask you what's the , 

13 1 impact of DoDrs 1995 BR;C recommendations on excess 

I 
14 1 laboratory capaciry in your viev? 

DR. DOmW: The BR4C itsel: is going LO have e 

l6 I minimum impact upon the elimination of excess capacity. 

DR. DORMAN: There is substantial excess capacity. I 
1 

17 

18 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Is there substantial excess 

capacity? 

DR. DORMAN: 

20 

21 

Yes, sir. The number provided in the 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: In sort of a gross way, can you 

say how much? 
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I GAO report indicated something like 9,800 work years. That 

I If you define "excess capacityw as we elected to as I 

2 

3 

i the difference between the peak number of work years at any 

is for the common support functions that were looked at by 

our Joint Cross Service Group. 

I time between Fiscal 'Year 86 and '93 and the projected number 
1 of work years in the laboratory systems in Fiscal Year 1997, I 

8 1 which was the last year that we expected the labs to have I 
9 1 reasonably certifiable data, the total difference across all 

10 1 of what we call laboratory activities in all three services 

l1 ! is something like 30,000 work years. 
And the base realignment and closure process will 1 1 

1 be eliminatincj somethin9 o: the c rds r  cf 3,030 cf those work 
I 

l3 1 I 

iL ( years .  

- - .  
15 CEiisImXl; 3IX31;: Cr. Dorazz, - .,,_- - -  - :; xy r ,~nc whzc 

I 

1 6  1 purports to be the recoraendations ef the C h a i r  of =he 
, 

I I 
17 1 Laboratory Joint Cross Service Group writing for tine group, j 

/ 

21 1 Jersey; consolidate air-launched weapons research development 

IS I and is this the recommendation: I1~onsolidate most command 

2 2  1 test and evaluation at Naval Air Warfare Center China Lake, 

19 

20 

1livr:rsificd llr!purtinr] Services, Iltc. 
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control communica~ions, computers and intelligence, 

acquisition, research and development at Fort Monmouth, New 



1 at Naval Air Weapons Center China Lake; and consolidate 

1 

2 

328 

~alifornia; consolidate explosives at Armament Research 

Development Engineering Center, Picatinny Arsenal New Jersey 

I summary of the recommendation -- 

4 

5 

1 CHAIRMAN DIXON: And is that the view -- I don't 

propellants at Naval Air Warfare Center china Lake"? 

DR. DORMAN: Yes, sir. D his is a reasonable 

I want to characterize it as your view, but is that your 
I understanding of the view of what Dr. Jones and others in the 

CKA.IRMPJJ DIXON: 1/11 ask you further what would I 
i 

10 

11 

13 ' have been z>s impact on excess laboratory capacity if -he 
I 

i 
I 
I 
i 

Laboratory Joint Cross Service Groups recommended? 

DR. DORMAN: That is correct, sir. 

14 L ~ ~ ~ F -  cLu,- -nv.,- , -n: ,,,., ,-- h-n ,,,ss Ser;-;CE Zrsusr  3 fsxr ~riori-'~ ,' 
I I 

15 , alternatives had been eczep';ed 5:- c5.e sepzrace services i?, 
I I 

16 1 the Dep2rtmar.t of Defense? I 

DR. D O W :  1/11 nave to take thac question for 

18 the record. 1/11 have to go bzck 2nd do some numerical 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Would it have substantially I 

19 

20 

2 2  I reduced the excess capacity you've testified about? 

calculations as to the total size of those bases and what the 

elimination may have been. 
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DR. It certainly would have in those 

2 

3 

DR. DORMAN: Certainly. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: If you do not share them -- 

areas, yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: In your view, what were the 

4 

5 

DR. DORMAN: I certainly share them. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Oh, you do share them? 

deficiencies in the process -- in your view, in all fairness 

to you, sir, many of these quotations are Dr. Jones'. 

DR. DORMAN: Of course, sir. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Then I am not out of line in 

asking you, Dr. 

deficiencies 

Dorman, in your view, what were the 

:he services co 

- a 

I 
i4 disregard -he L z j c - - -  -=-2r1- s2r.z C r z s s  Ser-.-:ze Grcup's eraposed 

I 1 

15 priorirl- i:~ernirives? Whiz c2useZ t h ~ r  :c happen? ! 
I 
I 

DR. DORMAN: Well, I dor.'r think it's a matter of I 
deficiencies in the process. it was the way the process was 

basically defined at the beginning. I 

Di~.ersifit!d nel~urt inr~ Services, Iric. 
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19 ' Again, I would reiterate that these organizations 

20 are an integral and very essential part of the military 



3 

4 

5 

6 

My belief is that the military departments were 

considerably reluctant during this process to give you core 

capacity that has such a strong impact upon their basic 

capability to perform their Title X functions. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

i 
So they ere eliminzzinc people, basically, but they 1 ! 

a r e  no: closing the facilities, an2 I think one of the 

reasons for thzt -- it's a personal opinion in this case, 

because I, obviously, was not the one that made the 

judgment -- part of it is their decisions to maintain their 
internal capacity, each one, and secondly, it is as a 

Commissioner mentioned just a couple of minutes ago, you do 

Ui \  r!rsifit!d Reporti1111 S u n  ices. Irrc. 
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I also would reiterate that the laboratory system 

overall will, in fact, eliminate a considerable portion of 

its excess capacity. It's the nature of how that is 

occurring. 

11 

12 

13 

The military departments have elected not to do 

that, basically, but closing these structures, by closing the 

facilities an2 instzllation, rz~her, rney have elected to do 
I 
i - A - - , - 7 .  - .  - - .  - 

II c-Fz- - L - , r -  .LZ,& ;;il\C-fP: 2 -  . I 3 L I C B  SSrU;:Tr& 

. ? -  I 
- 3  reCIuct:c:. 

I I 
I I 



I here is what troubles me. Dr. Jones is quoted further as 

1 

2 

3 

have a lot-of specialized facilities, capabilities at each of 

these organizations. Those are hard to reestablish. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Let me ask you this, Dr. Dorman, 

Commission has that power. I don't know. But I wonder 

whether we have the sensitivity and the understanding in this 

5 

6 

7 

8 

l1 i highly esoteric kind of field -- 

saying, "If we are to achieve desired results, it appears 

that we have a system in which only a heavier-handed 

instrument will suffice." 

I presume she alludes to the fact that this 

12 1 DR. DORMAN: No. I understand. 
! 

C?AIRIGh- DIXOIC: We may call upon your shop, you 

1 4 and 3 r .  Jgzes zn5 szhers,  zs supply some expertise thac might 

15 , be h e l ~ f c l  zc s- . - -=" I greatly appreciate your cooperation. 

I think w e 1 <  want to invade this province pretty carefully. 

it isn't exactly numbers entirely here, is it? 

DR. DORMAN: That's exactly correct, sir. 

C ~ I ~  GIXON: So as a man who admits his lack of 

expertise I can only say that what is said here bothers me 

considerably, you see, and yet at the same time I wonder 

whether we have the capacity to make those judgments in the 

Iliicrsified R~?portinq Services, Inc. 
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I DR. DORMAN: Yes, sir. i 
MR. NEMFAKOS: Chairman Dixon? 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Mr. Nemfakos. 

MR. NEMFAKOS : And I hope Dr. Dorman will forgive 

9 

10 

- So - za uncomfortzble with leaving the 

me, but I feel compelled to add a couple of points. The 

closure of 19 laboratory activities, as was the case in the 

11 

12 

I 
_I I 

2 i chersc:p-+:p::-- zhz: 2 15; 9: excess casacity xas taken out. 

- I - - 
-7 I - I cerzein? r r i n i :  -,he: -,he people st Warminster, I 

Department of the Navy, is not a small exercise in reducing 

excess capacity. 

Pennsylvanie. z r  hnnzpolis, Mzryland, zt Lakehurst, New 

Jersey, at Louisville, at Indianapolis, and I can go on, 

obviously, for some time, would share the view that there was 

not a lot of excess capacity taken out. 

A lot of excess capacity was taken out. Some 

21 I aspects, perhaps, of cross-servicing were not performed as 
22 I aggressively as possible, but remembering that this was the 

Diversified R e l ~ u r t i i ~ q  Services, I i ~ c .  
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2 1 not entirely surprising. I 
3  

4 

5 

6 

work functions, and those recommendations were looked at and 

But from a Department of the Navy perspective, 

there was a lot of our excess capacity to include capacity 

that we closed and moved work out of laboratory technical 

center areas and into the depots. 

7 

8 

In the context of the ~oint Cross Service Groups, 

they did provide recommendations based on their analysis of 

l2 I In the context of the recommendations that came 

10 

11 

l3 I from the Secretary of the Navy to the Secretary of Defense. 

given quite a bit of care in terms of what we needed and what 

we didn't need. 

those were the recommendations that the Secretary of the Navy i 

felt that he could make and still fulfill his I 

responsibilities, and those responsibilities are, after all, 

his. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well, I want to say to my good 

friend Mr. Nemfakos that's well said, and I want to make it 

very clear, in all fairness, Charlie, to you and to everybody 

else involved here that when we go through this exercise with 

Dr. Jones and Dr. Dorman we'll get back to you and kind of 
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334 

carefully evaluate. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Now, I don't mean to suggest that we take 

everything, you know, on the basis of Dr. Jonesf letter. 

Wefd certainly get back to you. Weld get back to General 

Shane. We'll get back to General Bloom, Mr. Boatright, 

everybody that's part of the loop here. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

I 

CWIRMAN DIXON: Absolutely. I mighc have started 
I 
I an awful argument here. 1 

I recognize this is kind of sensitive, and it's 

pretty new, pretty new, but I am concerned about the feeling 

here by the Chair of that group that we fell so substantially 

sort of our goals. But what you've said is well said 

Mr. Boatright. 

12 

13 

MR. BOATRIGHT: Could I make one point falling 

along the lines -- 

16 

17 

18 

19 
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MR. BOATRIGHT: The Air Force believes that our i 
recommendations also substantially reduce the excess capacity I 
that we have, and as indicated by Gommissioner Robles, 

they're difficult. 

20 

21 

22 

Relocating laboratory functions and activities are 

extremely complicated and difficult to accomplish. In our 

calculations, we had about 6,200 man year equivalents of 



excess capacity, and with these actions the Rome Laboratory 

closure and with the Brooks closure, we believe we'll reduce 

that capacity by 2,100 to 2,200 man years, a very substantial I 

I 
reduction in a very complicated area. 1 

In addition, I'd like to comment that the Air Force 

did accomplish a mainly cross-servicing here in the Rome 

Laboratory, because while we didn't move all of the Rome 

Laboratory to Fort Monmouth, we did move a substantial or I 
propose to move a substantial activity to eventually 

integrate, whole integrate with the Army's lab at Fort 

Monmouth . 
So we believe that we've done a substantial amount i I 

here. I would agree with Dr. Dorman in regard to the fact I 

that there is more cross-servicing thar could be done. There 

in regard to this is the first time we've tried it. 

I 

We've learned another, and I think that some I I 

i continued cross-servicing will take place as a result of what , 

are more opportunities there. I agree with Charlie Nemfekos 

we've already learned in this BRAC round. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: This might have been the wrong 

thing to bring up at the end of the day, Mr. Chairman. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Thanks a lot, Senator. Have 1 
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3 3 6  

a good trip. Commissioner Cox. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: I'm going to lose them one 

at a time from now on. Commissioner Cox. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Mr. Coyle and Dr. Dorman, in 

response to the Laboratory Joint Cross Service Group data 

call, the Navy provided information that clearly outlined 

significant cross-service in federal use of two unique 

facilities at White Oak, the Nuclear Weapons Effects facility 

and the hypervelocity wind tunnel. 

The Navy recommended and DoD endorsed abandonment 

of these one-of-a-kind facilities. Was the need for the 

continued operations of these facilities under a joint 
I 

contracted zrrangement addressed by your group, and if sc, 

what did you decide, and if not, iihy not? 

MR. COYLE: I think both Dr. Dorman and I need to 

answer this. John Burt may have a comment as well. On the 

test side, Mr. Burt and I did express a concern about the 

wind tunnel at White Oak, and that concern is part of the I 
public record. I 

It was not a facility that we took data on in the I 
Test Joint Cross Service Group. It was really a laboratory 

Divtlrsified Rt:porti~rq Ser\.ices, IIIC. 
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41 

2 

337 1 
facility, and so I think Dr. Dorman should respond from that 

point of view. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

DR. DORMAN: Our Lab Joint Cross Service Group did 

not consider that facility. In fact, if I recollect 

correctly, did not consider White Oak during this round. We 

did not consider that -- 
7 

8 

COMMISSIONER COX: You just didn't look at it, or 

you didn't consider it? 

9 

10 

11 

DR. DORMAN: No. We did not consider it at all. 

COMMISSIONER COX: At all. I see. Okay. Are you 

aware of those facilities at all? 

12 

13 
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I 
DR. DORMAN: I am aware of them, yes. I 

I 

I 

COMMISSIONER COX: Would it be your persons: 
I 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

I 
DR. DORXW: My personal assessment is that durina I 

the process of making the final decisions I'm given to I 
I 
I 

understand that there are discussions both on the part of the 

 omm mission and on the part of the military departments as to 

what the appropriate mechanism may be to handle those. 

Navy's decision, I believe, is that they have no 

14 / opinion that it would be appropriite Z D  abandon chose, c r  

I 
15 

16 

should we be looking az some way LO continue to supper: x c s t  

facilities? 



1 

2 

specific use for that facility, which is why they have 

proposed that it be closed. I have no comment on it myself, 

3 

4 

question that Mr. 

because I have no specific knowledge. I mean, I am aware of I 

it, but I have no more detailed knowledge than that to 

5 

6 

Montoya raised, 

contradict or support. 

COMMISSIONER COX: Okay. I want to follow-up on a 

and that is, in these kinds 

8 

9 

I 

l2 i that by virtue of the fact that they donrt move or by virtue ! 
j 

I 
, 

13 of the fact that you have to move very sensitive equipment, 
! 

1 

14 that that requires, in some cases, dujlicati3n a: squi~rnp:: 

I 

1 5  while yourre running tests on both ends, becween acy cf z h o s ~  
I 

of facilities where you have very highly educated 

professionals working on specific areas, there is not only a 

10 

11 

concern that they may not be willing to move with that 

particular facility as they recommended it be closed but also 

Ui \  ersified Hr?pnrti~ig Serr ices, Ilic. 
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I 

i 
16 that you might put certain important projects behind by as I 

I 

l i  ( much as, I've heard, two to five to seven years depending on 

18 / what facility we're talking about and that that, therefore, I 
19 

2 0 

21 

22 

I 
I 

is going to cost us money because werre not going to be able 

to do the tests -- we're not going to be able to put the 

equipment on the ships, we're not going to be able, for 

example, in Annapolis in a Navy facility, to complete our CFC 



2 1 for the United States -- can those costs be quantified, did I 
1 

you quantify them, and if so, can we see some sort of break- 

out, or do you just, sort of, assume it can all get done when 

it was going to get done? 

DR. DORMAN: Well, the specific answer to your 

question is no, we did not quantify them. We didn't attempt 

to even really to look at those in detail. What we attempted 

to do is to look at the capacity and the capability to 

perform this type of work both within the laboratory system 

339 

treaty obligations in time, which will be extremely expensive 

where there happened to be cross-service capacities and 

capabilities and also the capacity to perform it in the 
I I 
i 

civilian community to the degree thzc's possibie. 

- - + -  K This isl of course, 2 subieccive aspecz. -, ,-, 

not enter specifically into our considerations because cf 

! 
course, we dealt only with the certified dats. 

I 
I 

I cannot answer the question with regard to 1 
I 

Annapolis because, again, this was a Navy-unique facility and 

a Navy-unique capability not within the purview of what the 

Joint Cross Service Group looked at. So 1/11 defer to 

Mr. Nemf akos . 
COMMISSIONER COX: Well, maybe Mr. Nemfakos will 

11ii.ersified Rt:porting Scrvicr!~, Iuc. 
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2 1 for an overall question. as you looked at cross-servicing, 

1 

3 1 which necessarily requires moving people and equipment and 

3 4 0  

answer that specific question, but I guess I'm also looking 

I functions, was that an area you could quantify -- 

DR. DORMAN: I think the answer to this, perhaps 

I the correct answer is that implicit in our assumptions was 

I One of the reasons for considering this and for not I 

7 

8 

the fact that the work could, in fact, continue to get 

performed. 

11 / number of moves of functions both associated with the base ! 
10 

I 
realignment and closure process and, of course, other changes I 

going into it in any detail is past experience. We've seen a 

that the individual military aepartmenzs have made in their 
I 

I 
14 ! structure. i 

I 
15 / - - -  

These are carefully done '55 ~2re=-2ii\~ ~lanrec 255 
I 

- - 
I 

typically can be accommodated wicnout zny speciflc or extreme 
I 

17 / impact on -- I 

COMMISSIONER COX: Right. Although at least three I 
l9 1 occasions in White Oak and in Annapolis we have specific 

2 0  I equipment that cannot be recreated. I mean, you literally -- 

I 
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COMMISSIONER COX: Mr. Nemfakos. I 
MR. NEMFAKOS: Yes, ma'am. I think -- and I know 

you all know this, but just as a point of clarification, in 1 

I i 
I terms of the Joint Cross Service Groups, their principal role 1 

5 

6 

was to provide alternatives for consideration for the 

military departments. 

7 

8 

9 

13 / analysis of those recommendations. 

So a lot of the costing types of questions that 

you're asking poor Dr. Dorman to respond to it wasn't part of 

his act, and therefore he neither gathered the data nor did 

10 

14 sc, f o r  e > : z n p l ~ ,  c:z?- reczrl rc & ~ - ~ 7 . 2 ~ ~ - 1 2  - ,  ;:G 

the analysis. 

. - - L A  ---..c.r L - -  - -3kEi ; - , -  ===-  . -  
13 did, and ycu hzve 2rcbaS1:- -- - - A ~  2 kc-  - -.c: 4- - - - 

11 However, what they did do is they review the COBRA 
I 

resulcs that reflected the resulxs of the silitary deparrment 

1 
would has been xith fluorocerbons, end oxr zssessmen; was :c 

18 / include, of course, the principal environmentalis: in the 
I 

19 / Department of the Navy, that given the time period that we 

2 o  I had to effect a closure, that exercise could be managed end 

21 / we could get what work needed to be done with very little 

22 ! harm. 

D i ~ . c r s i f i c d  R n ~ ~ u r t i ~ t r ~  ScrI i cc s ,  1111: .  

i 918 I ~ T H  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

I WASHINGTObI, D.C. 20006 
I (202) 296-2929 



With regard to other types of facilities, not going I 
2 

3 

4 

5 

specifically to the wind tunnel but other types of facilities 

where activities came in and said, "Well, we have this unique 

capability," one of the intern assessments was do we really 

need to move it. 

6 

7 

8 

decision, just for an example, at the Deep Ocean Pressure 

13 / Simulation facility in ~nnapolis, not r o  nove it, very 

So you will see -- in the COBRA cost analysis, you 

will see in some instances we are picking up a whole piece of 

large gear and moving it and put it another place, but in 

9 

10 

11 

4 / expensive, &Q --he- ;--:>,<r -: = -  - -. .- - - -  , -..----- Z Z E Z S  -.c v : ~  r e  ncx c r r n c  

i 
15 1 , - .  . - .  

co do this kin2 sf testing, a ~ % : r  xcs 2s nu=?- 2: :: 2: s c ,  
i 
I 

I 

- 
16 / and this is whzt those costs zret 

other times you will see a conscious decision that no, we do 

not need to replicate that, and it isn't in there. 

COMMISSIONER COX: And where you make a conscious 
I 

Do you set forth a schedule on how that testing 
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18 / will be done, or do you just say, ttWell, we're going to take 
I 

19 

2 0  

21 

2 2  

i 
a risk that we make a mistake, and we lose a shipu? How do 

you cost out the cost of not having a facility like that? 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Well, the answer, I guess, is that 

where there is a real cost, in other words, when the at sea 



3 4 3  

test isn't being performed in any case and when there isn't 

additive cost for testing that has to be done someplace else, 

just as you see the cost savings coming out, you also see the 1 

costs going in. 

But the issue of do we show a discreet cost to 

exactly replicate every test that has been done at that 

particular facility? I think the answer to that is no. 

What we do is we do the internal judgment of what 

has to be done, where does it have to be done, and is there, 

in fact, an additive cost to the Department of the Navy? 

COMMISSIONER COX: Do you do some sort of risk I 
I 
I 

assessment, we can't do everythin9 if we don't hzve this I 

facility, and we're not going zc do i: ail zz sea, znc so  he 

risk is ons-:antt of : perz~:: Z:iZ I:~SZCI::F :?zpgeni E Z Z  

those cosrs caul? be -- 

- - - 14X. NEMFAKOS: Well; I w i s r .  , c o u l d  tell  yo^ the: 

there was a nice little package cf da;a that says one-Tenth 

of 1 percent, but unfortunately it's, in essence, the 

professional experience of the people on the Base Structure 

Evaluation Committee as well as the professional response as 

we got the responses from the scenario data calls from the 

commanders of our principal activity, COMNAV Sea, COMNAV ~ i r  

1Iii~ursified Ilepurtirlrj Scr~ icr :~ ,  1111;. 
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and the like. 

COMMISSIONER COX: And you all did all of the 

/ costs? 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Yes, ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER COX: You all took what you got 

from -- 
MR. NEMFAKOS: We did no costing. We had no COBRA 

capacity or capability. 

COMMISSIONER COX: So you didn't second guess that 

MR. NEMFAXOS: No, we did not. No. We took a 

I quick look at the data, but no. We did not second guess. 

I 
I 

l3  I COMKISSIONER C O X :  A n d  the same ching on milirary 
I i 

. - .  l i  ; value. Did yoa tzke :.is s e r l - i c s s '  :-;ex s: :.:_:zary value? 

NEMF~XOS: We took xhc se rx~izes '  view of 

i 
16 1 military value. We believe from the beqinning these are 

I 
17 

I 
these assets. Itr s their determination. They were the right 

18 ones to make that decision. i 
COMMISSIONER COX: Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: ~dmiral, I'm here with you to 

2 0 

21 

Ilivcrsificd Rr!l lort i~~q Ser.ric~s,  111c. 
918 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20066 

(202) 296-2929 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Thank you, Commissioner Cox. 

Commissioner Davis. 



1 

2 

3 

the bitter end. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Outstanding. Knock our 

rings together. 

4 

5 

MR. NEMFAKOS: We didn't close the Naval Academy. 

Admiral Montoya. 

6 

7 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: No, but you got a wind tunnel 

right close to it. And again, I'm mostly a product of test 

8 

9 

I 

! equipment to some very specialized people, an adequate 
13 ' capability :; rcn your zests ;  i . e . ,  you've got subjects or 

1 
I . . ii eirpiznes c r  whztever zhe zese n i c ~ Z  be,  an2 aaequare ces~inc 1 

1 
1 

15 ' areas in 3 2 s  process. 

I 

and evaluation laboratories. I use your products, but I also 

know your system fairly well in some areas. 

10 

11 

It seems to ne that successful T&E and successful 

labs consist of many parts. Clearly, some very specialized 

D i i  ersified nc lror i i~~q  Scri.iccs, Inc. 
01 8 1 6 ~ ~  STREET, N.W. SUITE 803 
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16 1 How, quice clearly, you ,211 are disappointed in rhe 

I7 1 inability cZ us to do more consalitation, but do you reeks? 
I 

la I that might be because of some of the unique capabilities of 
19 1 these test end evaluation areas and test evaluation 

2 0  

21 

2 2  

facilities that to lose these national treasures in many 

cases is a mistake, and that was a services -- and I'm asking 

OSD, the Joint Service Group? 



The land space 

1 

2 

3 

that they 

346 

MR. COYLE: Yes, sir. You may well have visited 

some of these test ranges. If you have, you certainly know 

that they are indeed national assets. 

encompass and air and sea 

1 up, you'd probably never get it back. 

5 

6 

space for test purposes is something that needs to be 

considered very carefully before it is given up. Once given 

Dr. Dorman. a s  T understand it, as DoD's only 

w ! 
13 1 recommended laborsiory ;losure or reilignment involving 

I 

8 

9 

10 

11 

and realigning 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS:  gain, I am probably the most 

conservative member of this group, and in fact I really hate 

to give up anything that I figure might be useful some time 

in the future. So you'll have problems with me. 

its 

I 

15 functions XG F--- d -  L. Ivlonn2xik, !;ei; JP,~SPY, - and Hanscom Air Force I I 
16 ' Base Massachusetts. 

can you explain in the context of your group 

18 1 proposed closing of Rome Lab and the alternative for cross- 
I 

19 
1 servicing co-location? We've got a chart on it up here, 

2 0  cross-service co-location of CII activities at Fort Monmouth. 

DR. DORMAN: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I hope this depicts your 
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recommendation for proposed relocation. 

DR. DORMAN: Yes. Yes. Basically, that is the 

I proposal. This recommendation from the Air Force and 

4 

5 

supported, of course, by the Secretary of Defense, is very 

much in consonance with what we recommended overall. 

6 

7 

10 ( other aspects on their program. 

As the Senator mentioned earlier, we suggested 

that, if you would, a more complete consolidation of C41 

8 

9 

This was again, as youfve indicated, the most 

functions should be looked at. The military departments did 

look at that for a variety of reasons, including cost and 

j 
- - 

1 2  I sig~izicznt of the cross-servicing  hat has occurred. Wefre , 

i 
I 

-" 7 C: 2.. I ~ a s i s z i ~ j - ,  Y ~ S ,  sir .  We specifically 
I 

! 

.. 1 
I 

17 ! recoraendec to :he Air Forcf chat  the)- look at Rone Lab, the 
I I 

18 i closure of Rone Lzb at one of their alternatives. 
! 

I recommendations. 

19 i We suggested Fort Monmouth as one of the potential 

U i ~ e r s i f i a d  Hi!j~nr!i~lg :ien,ires, J I ~ [ : .  
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receiving sites. So yes, I think itfs fair to say that this 

is in general consonance with the nature of our 



With did not specifically recommend this particular I 
I split. The Air Force did this through detailed discussions I 

final 

3 

4 

determination. 

with the Army. They got together and took a look at what was 

most compatible for those two locations as they made their 

lo I decline to participate. We came up with a solution, which 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 i for the Department, had a ten-fold better payback as a result 
1 

12 i of being able LO consolidate entire functions across command 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Well, I'll get to the Air 

Force here in a second. Mr. Nemfakos, did the Navy decline 

to participate in this process, and for what reason? 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Commissioner Davis, we didn't 

7 =? 
A 4 

I lines in San Diego, eliminating one who layer of government 

I 

I 

- - - - And :ne s~rlnqs comparisons were enormous. So when 1 
I 

- < 

- 3  ve ;oak26 +z both tne apera~ionall>~ oriented aspects of 
1 

- - 
- ,  n 2 1 - h ~  faciii~ies ir -5s S x  Diego +rea where there could be 

1 
I 

18 e iot of incerpley with fleet end so forth as well as rhe 
I 
I I 

I 

So our recommendation -- we looked at it, but our 

I 

19 

20 

21 
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payback to the taxpayer of a difference of over $300 million 

worth of savings as opposed to something in the range of 30, 

it wasn't even close in terms of what our decision was. 



I and communications area in the San Diego area and produce 
1 

349 

recommendation was to consolidate three levels of management 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Mr. Boatright, can you give me l 

3 

4 

5 

a short answer on why the Air Force decided to go -the way it 

we want; i.e., send some to Fort Monmouth and the rest to 

Hanscom? 

many-fold higher savings. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you. 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Yes, sir. 

MR. BOATRIGHT : Yes, sir. We were trying to 

16 I And those more pervasive activities that had 
I 
I 

li i 
interest in all the military departments and primarily in the 

18 ( Army we decided to locate at Fort Monmouth with the intent to 

fully integrate those activities and as time passes -- 

11 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: 

utilize the excess capacity at both locations. As you know, 

Sometime down the road. 

12 part of Rome Lab was already at Hanscom, and so we wanted to 
QII i I I 

13 marry up those things that made sense that had to do with air 1 
I 

I 4  , space znz: yere predorr-inan- A - i r  Force interests, and we 1 

I 

15 1 married those up in our proposal at Hanscom. 
! 

Di\-ersificd I i e j ~ n r t i r ~ q  Services, 111c. 
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process? 

MR. BOATRIGHT: Yes, sir. The availability of 

space, of excess capacity at the Army facility was a primary 

consideration. In fact, I would tell you that that's the 

If you would look at our analyses, you'll see that I 

5 

6 

I in our level playing field analysis this was not a cost- 

I 

reason why this was -- we were able to make this cost- 

effective. 

9 l  effective proposal to close Rome Lab, but by virtue of part 
lo ! of it going to Fort Monmouth, we were able to make it cost- 
11 [ effective. 

12 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay. Again, Mr. Boatright, 
1 

? -. I ' sorry to pick OK you, but the joint Cross Service Group 

- - 
u - .  szeze- ~~eczrz.-,iz, zest and evaluzrion capabiiiry zt Eglin I 

I 

" 7 I I 
J - 
A - znd Cine Lake cf approximately 85 percent overlap. One I 

2.6 alrernztive saggested was move China Lake test assets to 
i 

- - - Eqliz. 
I 

I 

li%y ii the Air Force, in light of the alternative, 

l9  1 proposing to move the electronic combat testing from Eglin to 
MR. BOATRIGHT: The Air Forcefs efforts here are to 

2 2  1 consolidate our electronic combat training at two sites, and 

Dii crsificd n c l l o r t i ~ ~ g  Serr ices, IIIC. 
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And it seems to us that if we're going to do a 

I consolidation here that it's best to concentrate that 

I activity at Edwards, and therefore the Air Force will have 
I electronic combat test and evaluation at only two sites 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Ms. Steele, you and 

7 

8 

9 

I commissioner Cornella have the last 12 minutes. So 1/11 look , 

instead of three. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay. Thank you. My time has 

expired. Mr. Chairman, thank you. 

12 1 to your discipline to give him enough time to ask a question I 
j 

13 I or two. Thank you. I 

- .= C3EEiSSIONER STEELE: Okzy. 1 will do that. I 

- - 
$ 9  i hops :ne clearing our of the dias here isn't a reflection - - 

i 

1 I 

i d  1 t h a t  I nave personal hygiene challenge problems or something,. 
i 
1 

i7 ! but 1/11 jump ahead here. 
I 

I apologize for skipping zround with these 

l9 ! questions, but this is what happens when your colleagues 
2 0  1 leave you at the end of the group here. 

Di\-crsifir!d Rrqinrtir~rl Scr~ . iccs ,  111~ .  
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I recommend the split in particular that came from the Air 
1 

3 52 

labs. 
First, for Dr. Dorman, you mentioned that you did not 

I installations? 
3 

4 

DR. DORMAN: No. 

Force. Does it concern you at all that Rome Labs CQ dye 

functions are going to be split between two military 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Okay. Itfs okay. - You can be I 
8 

9 

quick. Question for both the Air Force and for the Doctor 

here. Was the fact that the Rome Lab was central to the 

10 

11 

I 
COMMISSIONER STEELE: I'm having trouble hezring I 

I 
I 

community's reuse plan ever discussed or taken into 

consideration as a part of any of your deliberations? 

12 

DR. DORMAN: NO for the Cross Service Group. - 

DR. DORMAN: It was not as part of the Joint Cross 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Okay. 

13 Service Group, no. 
I 

MR. BOATRIGHT: No, it was not considered in the 

Air Force analysis. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Were you aware that it was 

21 I central to the reuse plan of the Rome community? 
MR. BOATRIGHT: Yes, ma'am. I've been very much 

Di\.crsified neportirrr~ Services, 111~.  
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involved in that reuse, and yes. We're very much aware of 

it. I was a part of the formulation of the proposal in '93 

to leave Rome at Griffiss New York as a stand-alone 

laboratory. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Actually, I believe I cruelly 

quoted you back to you a couple of hearings ago. So sorry 

about that, Mr. Boatright. 

MR. BOATRIGHT: Yes, ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Letts see, how did the Air 

10 

11 

w 1 2  

Force determine the costs in savings of the Rome Lab 

recommendation? Staff has provided an example here the total 

one-time moving cost is 6.8 million, but that's for only 

1 

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

2 0  

21 
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13 moving four major pieces of equipment, and there is only I 

14 . $152,000 lefc budgeted for the freight of moving everything 
I 

15 i else. I 

2 2  

MR. BOATRIGHT: Well, we ran it through the COBRA I 
I 

estimate, and we'll provide the refined information to the 

model applying those inputs to the COBRA model that are 

necessary using a judgment of the people that were involved 

with working the detailed analysis of this proposed closure. 

We are now in the process of doing site surveys, 

and as we do that, we will validate each one of these 

I 



1 Commission in the very near future. 

2 

3 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: And does that include another 

COBRA run? 

7 

8 

9 

l2 / Aerospace Medicine and Human Systems Research. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Okay. Jumping to Brooks, I 

also visited Brooks, and as I know you're all aware, the San 

Antonio community has presented a plan to establish a 

10 

11 

I Now, I know part of this qoes back to this savings ; 

cantonment area, closing Brooks and preserving the functions 

of the Human Systems Center, the Armstrong Lab School of 

I 

14 1 or coscs are directly reflected inzo whac functions ac;uall!- , I 
1 

1 K 

i 

, -- ) will have to move or wonft have to move. obviously, t h e  , 
I 

l6 i I impression that we received that day w a s  a l m o s t  everything in 1 
I 

17 ' terms of the facilities would have to be noved with a I 

18 I substantial cost associated with thet and the cost of losing 1 
I 

i 
l9 I talented personnel. 

Should the Air Force, after your site visit, fine 

Ui\ersifird Rs l r [~r t i~ i r~  Scnircs, 1111;. 
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2 2  

that the up-front cost to close Brooks make that no longer an 

efficient Air Force move, would you look at their cantonment 



proposal in any kind of a different light, or are you ready 

to comment on the cantonment proposal by itself at this 

point? 

MR. BOATRIGHT: I wouldn't really want to comment 

on any other proposal other than the one that we have before 

the Commission, but certainly, as I said earlier, we will not 

propose to the Commission that we pursue a closure or 

realignment that is not cost-effective. 

So once we have reviewed the information, validated 

the data and run a new COBRA on it, we will provide that 

l9 I aware of that, that it's being reviewed back at the 

11 

12 

information back to the Commission. 

If some other alternative other than what we h+ve I 
I 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: And do you all plan to 

2 0 

21 
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I 

I 13 proposed would surface as a result of our site survev 
4 I 

I 

14 certainly we would review that, consider that and possibly 
I 
I I 

I 
I 15 1 suggesc that as an alternative to the Commission. 

Department? 

MR. BOATRIGHT: Yes, ma'am. 

16 

17 

I 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Mr. Boatright, I know the 

i comrnunityfs proposal has been given to the Air Force, and I 
I 

I 
1 

18 gather you're crunching numbers on it right now. Are you 

I I 



Wv 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 
I 
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provide us COBRA run data from that community proposal? 

MR. BOATRIGHT: I'm not sure whether we'll provide 

separate data from the community proposal. Irm just not sure 

of the status of that or whether we'll wait and incorporate 

that into the results of our site survey and then provide a 

more comprehensive piece of information back to the 

 omm mission, but we will address both the survey information 

and the communityls proposal. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: Thank you. I don't know if 

you'll know the answer to this question, and if not, feel 

free to get back to us, but staff is hopeful that that COBRA 

I 

analysis can get back to the Commission by May lst, j 

Mr. Boatright. I see a no is shaking behind you. I : 

16 

17 

18 

Diversified R~:l lort i~lr]  Services, 111~. 
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l4 I M X .  BOATRIGET: We're going ro do our best. 

15 ( COMKISSIONER STEELE: Okay. 

I 
M R .  BOATRIGHT: End I can't really promise you zit I 

this time, but we'll make every effort to get it to the 
I 
1 
I Commission at the earliest possible date. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

I I 
COMMISSIONER STEELE: Two other quick things. 

Switching to Kirtland, in 1990, the Secretary of Defense had 

list announcing his intention to close Los Angeles Air Force 

Base, including the lab function, and move it to Kirtland ~ i r  



1 

2 

357 

Force Base. What has changed in the year since that time to, 

in essence, reverse those proposals? 

3 

4 

MR. BOATRIGHT: Well, I think that was prior to the 

1990 Base Closure and Realignment Act. So the rules were 

5 

6 

7 

different. The ~ i r  Force had put forward a proposal, and we 

were going to go through the process of evaluating that. 

That would have realigned the closed Los Angeles Air Force 

8 

9 

Base and realigned much of the activity through Kirtland Air 

Force Base. 

10 

11 

14 1 realignment based on that analysis and thac analysis only. 
I 
I 

15  / And therefore, we had to stop our process sz cne 

I 

In the intervening time, the Congress passed the 

new Base Closure and Realignment Act, the 1990 Act, and that 

12 

16 1 previous proposal a n d b e g i n  anew t o  e v a l u a t e  ou r  
I 

I 
! required us to use criteria and a force structure plan to do 

I 

i 
installations, and as a result of that process; tnat is, this 1 

13 the analysis and to derive recommendations for closure and 
I 

l9 I we have not come forth with such a recommendation. 
COMMISSIONER STEELE: Thank you very much, and I 

21 I switch to my colleague on the far end. 
COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Thank you, Ms. Steele. 
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2 

3 

1 excess capacity in the Test and Evaluation area? 

358 

Mr. Cornella. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Thank you. Could I see 

Chart 3, please, or could we see it? Mr. Burt, the 

4 

5 

alternatives from the ~oint Cross Service Group are displayed 

before you. Do you still support these as the ways to reduce 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: But these are your 

7 

8 

9 

10 

l2 I recommendations? 

MR. BURT: I believe that examination of these 

alternatives might provide some reduction of excess capacity. 

There is no way to know for sure until the complete analysis 

is conducted. 

MR. BURT : Yes, they were. They are. 
I 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: What percent of the excess 

MR. BURT: I don't know, sir. I can check for the I 

15 

16 

I Test and Evaluation would be eliminated if these alternatives 1 

were adopted? - I 

18 

19 

record for you and make an estimate, but it is not a 

straightfoward matter. What led us to these in the first 

20 

21 
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place was an apparent overlap in open-air testing capability, 

but each of these sites listed her has an extensive 

22 investment in ground test facilities, measurement 
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laboratories, integration laboratories, install system test 

facilities, hardware in the loop laboratories that are in 

many respects unique from site to site. 

And if we were to attempt to close one or more of 

these sites, a major factor would be how much of that 

structure on the ground would have to be moved, relocated to 

some other place. And so I say we don't know for sure until 

we ran an analysis to find out how we would go about that. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Mr. Burt and Mr. Coyle, 

virtually no reductions in test and evaluation capacity 

resulted from the services1 recommendations. Why was the 

i 
Joint Cross Service Group so unsuccessful in convincing the 

individual services to consolidzte activities? 

MR. COYLE: We made recommendations in E nunber cr^ 

areas. For example, there are il so-called noncore sices, 1 

and we had a recommendation to either realign or mothball I 
I 
I 

work at each of those 11 sites. The services looked at all I 
I 

of those recommendations and did adopt some of them. 
I 
I 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Mr. Nemfakos, tell me a 

little bit about the uniqueness of the Warminster Lab in 

regard to the inertia laboratory and the centrifuge. Are 

those one of a kind? I know there are other centrifuges, but 

Di\.ersifiurt R e ~ ~ n r l i ~ ~ r j  Services, Inc. 
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I mean, that would be of the quality and have the ability to 

test that that one does? 

MR. NEMFAKOS: Commissioner Cornella, I am not 

aware of any that have the same specific characteristics to 

include the Pennsylvania bedrock that one of them is on and 

uses that as part of its reliability feature. 

Our assessment was that we had sufficient like 

capability, not the same capability but like capability to 

perform the jobs that we needed to perform. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Mr. Chairman, thank you. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Thank you very much, and I 
I 

will conclude the hearing for the day by mentioning that I do 1 

have some mail that we will send to the appropriate 
1 

departments. Mr. Coyle, you seem to be a rather populer 

addressee. 

I have a joint letter from Senators Mikulski and 

Sarbanes from Maryland regarding the white Oak Laboratory 

issue. I have a letter for you, Mr. Coyle, from 

Representative Sam Farr regarding Fort ~unter-~igget. 

I have a letter from Congressman James V. Hansen 

regarding the U.S. Army Dugway Proving Grounds, and this is 

also questions for Dr. Coyle. 
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MR. COYLE: We will be pleased to work with your 

staff to answer those promptly. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: Yes. Thank you very much. 

And thank all of you very much, particularly those of you who 

have been here all day long staring us in the face, and 

notwithstanding it's still good to see you. Have a good day. 

Hearings are concluded. 

(The hearing was concluded at 4 :00  p.m.) 

* * * * *  

i 

4 

I 
I 

i 
I 
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CHAIRMAN DIXON: Good afternoon, ladles and 1 
gentlemen, and welcome to this Regional Hearing of 2 
the Defense Base Closure and Realignment Commission. 3 

h4y name is Alan Dixon. I'm chairman of thc + 

commission charged with the task of evaluating the 5 
I 

recommendations of the Secretary of Defense regard~ng I 
the closure and realignment of military installations 
in the United States. 

i 
1 8  

Also here with us today are my colleagues, 
Commissioner A1 Cornella, shortly Commissioner 

' -Reb&ca Corwill  amve, Commissioner Ben Montoya, 
and Commissioner Wendi Ste le .  

First, I$t me thank all the military and 
civilian personnel who have assisted us so capably 

. during our visits to the many bases represented at 
this hearing. 

We've spent many days looking at the 
installations that are on the Secretary's list and 
asking questions that will help us make our I 19 
decisions. The cooperation we've received has been 1 2o 
exemplary, and we thank you very much. 

The main purpose of the base visits we've 
conducted is to allow us to see the installation 
firsthand and to address with military personnel the 
all-important question of the military value of the 

6 

base. 
In addition to the base visits, the commission 

is conducting a total of 11 regional hearings of 
which today's is the 9th. The main purpose of the 
regional hearings is to give members of the 
communities affected by these closure recommendations 
a chance to express their views. We consider this 
interaction with the community to be one of the most 
important and valuable parts of our review of the 
Secretary's recommendations. 

Let me assure you that all of our 
commissioners and staff are well aware of the huge 
implications of base closure on local communities. 
We are committed to openness in this process, and we 
are committed to fairness. All the material we 
gather, all the information we get from the 
Department of Defense, all of our correspondence is 
open to the public. 

We're faced with an unpleasant and a painful 
task, which we intend to carry out as sensitively as 
we can. Again, the kind of assistance we've received 
here is very greatly appreciated. 

Now, let me tell you how we will proceed here 
today, and in all of our regional hearings. The 
commission has assigned a block of time to each state 

7 

affezted b). the base closure list. The ovrrali 
amount of time was determined by the number of 
installations on the iist and the amount of j v i ,  ic,s..:. 
Tne time iinitri will be en~orced s~ict!!. 

We notified the appropriate elected ~ E ~ c i a i s  
of this procedure, and we left it up to them working 
with the local con~n~unities to determine how to f i l l  
the block of time. 

This afiernuon. it's our intention to listen 
to testimony from the great State of California for a 
total of 275 minutes. 

And at the end of the California presentation, 
we've set aside a period of 30 minutes for public 
comment, at which members of the California public 
may speak. We've provided a sign-up sheet for this 
portion of the hearing and hope that anyone who 
wishes to speak has already signed up. 

We would ask that those of you speaking at 
that time to please limit yourself to 2 minutes. 

After the public comment, at what should be 
about 6 5 0  p.m. we will hear a 30-minute presentation 
from Guam, followed by a 20-minute presentation from 
the State of Alaska. Those presentations will . 
conclude these hearings. 

Let me also say that the Base Closure Law has 
8 
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been amended since 1993 to require that anyone giving 
testimony before the commission must do so under 
oath. And so 1'11 be swearing in witnesses, and that 
will include individuals who spak in the public 
comment portion of the hearing. 

With that, I believe we are ready to begin. 
-- & -- 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: And I'm constrained to ask 
you fine folks to raise and -- rise and raise your 
right hand, please. Senators and Mr. Grissorn, if you 
will please. 

Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the 
testimony you are about to give to the Defense Base 
Closure and Realignment Commission shall be the 
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 

SPEAKERS: I do. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much. And, 

Mr. Grissom, I believe my schedule shows that you are 
to go first. Mr. Lee Grissom, Director of Planning 
and Research for the Governor's Offrce. 

MR. GRISSOM: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members 
of the Comn~ission. Welcome to California. And thank 
you for coming to see firsthand the military bases 
under consideration for closure and realignment in 
this state. Governor Wilson is sorry that he 
couldn't join you today. Those of you that saw him 
in Long Beach yesterday will recall that his voice is 
still recovering from minor throat surgery. So he 
would not be able to present testimony. 

Qut, Mr. Chairman, in particular he asked me 
to extend to you his greetings. He remembers you as 
a colleague, and a close colleague, during the years 

I I 

1 ; i n i k L . S . S e n a ~ c .  
2 1. CALIFORNIA I ?- I'nl honored to speak o n  behalf of Caiiforni:: 
3 .- toda! 

Mr. Lee Grissnm ! '  . . . . 
navlng se:.\lri: i o i .  & yia1..4 air S r n a ~ e  Arr,teL 

'i 

Senator Dianne Feinstein 
5 

Senator Barbara Boxer 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
I 1  
12. 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
2 1 
22 
23 
24 
25 

Serv~ces Commttee, Governor Wilson shares your deep 

commitment to a strong, but frugal. national defense 
He supported the enabling legislation as a member of 
the United States Senate that set up the commission. 
and he continues to share its goals. 

But we do have serious concerns about the 
cumulative effect that base closing is having upon 
both California's economy and upon America's national 
security. Michael Boscan, who's a professor at the 
University of Stanford just down the road, has 
written recently that except for reunified Germany, 
California is the one parcel west of the former Iron 
Curtain most affected by the end of the cold war. 

That affect has been in a number of different 
ways. Certainly as the arsenal for America in wars 
both hot and cold, it was seen in the development of 
the aerospace and weapon systems. 

In 1988 we had 378 thousand people involved in 
those 2 sectors of our economy. When 1994 ended, we 
were barely able to find 180 thousand that were still 
involved. Most of those losses occurred in the 

12 
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southern parts of the state, and the total multiplier 
is about 520 thousand jobs, most of which occurred 
since 1990. 

But what I want to -- now. I'm sure that you 
receive that kind of testimony from many governors in 
the states that you visit. But, believe me. 
Californians know how difficulty the task is that's 
before you. 

Today I would like to convey to you that the 
pain that has been inflicted upon California by the 
first 4 rounds of base closing isn't just greater 
than in any of the other states, it's of an entirely 
different order of magnitude. To understand how bad 
it is, consider the conventional wisdom that 
California was spared in the latest round of 
recommended base closures. 

That's true. Job losses aren't nearly as 
large as they were in previous rounds. But when you 
total the jobs lost from this round of 
recommendations, which includes both the bases newly 
recommended for closure, plus recommended adjustments 
to previous decisions, California loses more jobs 
than any other state in the nation, even more than 
Texas, which was widely assumed to be the hardest 
hit. That makes this the fourth round of base 

13 

i closings in which Californ~~ nas r%err U!r Kun:pr: :: 

2 the nation in job losses. 
3 If base closings have i~ad at: economi< rinria- 

or, other states. it has creatdl: 2 s!,nonl,n:\ :: 

5 California. 4 times our h i r  shart. 
6 In 199 1 California had only 15 percent of the 

7 nation's defense personnel. When curnulati \re jobs 

8 losses from the first 4 rounds were totaled. if 
9 current POD recommendations are in fact accepted. 

10 approximately 60 percent of all the military and 
11 civilian personnel reductions in the nation will have 
12 been absorbed by California. 
13 An extensive analysis of the job loss provideci 
14 in the red covered books that we have distributed to 
15 you shows an estimated cumulative job loss of about 
16 215 thousand California jobs and 7 billion 250 
17 million dollars in economic impact. 
18 That's equivalent to wiping out more than half 
19 the jobs in the City of San Francisco. It's not that 
20 Californians aren't willing to do our part as we 
21 restructure our military and move into a new era. 
22 We've answered the call before, and I can assure you 
23 that we will answer that call again. 
24 We only ask that you understand how deep the 
25 job loss is that we've already absorbed as you 

I4 
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consider this latest realignment. 
1 also want you to understand that the 

economic impact of bases being closed in California 
has been exacerbated by the deiay and the expense of 
converting bases to new uses once they're targeted 
for closure. I'm sure you understand how eager we 
are to get those closed bases back into productive 
use. 

That's why Governor Wilson established the 
California Military Base Reuse Task Force, which was 
chaired by Susan Golding, the Mayor of San Diego, to 
identify obstacles and to recommend remedies to 
conversion. 

We have made progress, eliminating both 
federal and state regulatory barriers to the rapid 
conversion, and we have in fact implemented over 
60 percent of that task force's far reaching 
recomn~endations. Among these was the enactment last 

year of a historic reform to the McKinney Homeless 
Assistance Act as it applies to military bases. 

Nonetheless, the base reuse process continues 
to be overly contentious, to take too long, and to 
jeopardize valuable reuse opportunities. 

And the federal government continues to fa1 
s'hort in its responsibiiit) to clean up years of 

15 

That said, for this commission. tilt: economic. 
consequences of base closings are secondan; tct til: 

militar?. consequences. and that's exactiy as it 
should be. So I'd like to spend z mornen: on thz 
military consequences of California's base closings. 

Few dispute the growing importance of the 
Pacific Rim to America's economic and s e c u r i ~  
interests. 

By the year 2,000, Pacific trade is predicted 
to be double the volume of Atlantic trade, and more 
ominously, the world's 7 -- 7 largest armies all are 
on the Pacific Rim. Yet closing 22 military 
installations in California contributes to a 
dangerous perception of U.S. disengagement from Asia. 

Even U.S. allies are now questioning our nation's 
ability to project needed force into the Pacific. 

These disturbing trends can only encourage 
growing Asian nations to accelerate the ongoing 
Pacific arnls race. 

For 50 years, credible American military 
16 
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1 presence in the region has been the guarantor of the 
2 Pacific economic miracle, which has benefited every 
3 consumer and worker in America. Now the rush to 

downsize our military jeopardizes America's 
leadership role in the Pacific. 

I don't mean to question the Pentagon's 
military judgment. Our concern is that the Pentagon 
is being forced to make decisions that put security 
considerations second to budget considerations. 

They're being asked to meet dangerously low 
budget targets set by the White House seeking the 
path of least resistance in a deficit reduction. The 
recent independent review of U.S. military readiness, 
conducted by four distinguished, retired senior 
officers at the request of Senator John McCain 
reached disturbing conclusions about our nation's 
ability to project military force. 

It found that current force projections are 
19 insufficient to meet the stated objective of fighting 
20 and winning 2 nearly simultaneous regional conflicts. 
21 And earlier this year, the general accounting 
22 ofice  found that the Pentagon's 5-year defense 
23 program was underfunded by tens of billions of 
24 dollars. 
25 Now. I know that it's not your job to set 

17 

! national defense polic? or ctianpe t i ~  7.2 :?o!..c t::a. 
1 esablisf; force structure. bu: cerulnl!p ir~ I eadnln!. 
3 your decisions you must acknowieagc thr s:: -:x:irnl?r. 

- exposeci i ? ~ .  h i s  rep<)::. :: i : ~  z?. .i :c:;.;.:L~: :, :,.. 

5 Defense Department's Koirs and M~sslons mules  aa: 

6 next month, the question we will then be asking is 
7 , have we just closed the bases needed to supper, virai 

d t a r y  assets? 
9 For example, consider the recommendation to 

10 extensively realign Onizuka. The Air Force contends 
11 that it has one more satellite control instal la ti or^ 
13 than it needs to support future requirements. But 
13 given the expansion of the space mission. it's 
14 plausible to assume that the subsequent Roles and 
15 Missions report will enhance this mission, and that 
16 the Air Force will be given an expanded if not the 
17 entire military space mission for all services. 
18 If so, U.S. taxpayers will have to bear the 
19 burden of replacing Onizuka at a far greater cost 
20 than the purported savings from this reconimended 
21 closure. The Roles and Missions report will also 
22 likely respond to the need for continued stability 
23 and security in the Pacific. 
24 With previous Navy and Air Force ulithdrawals 
25 from the Pacific and the current recommendations to 

I 6  
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close the military air base on Guam, the seaborne and 
airborne forces in the Pacific will need basing on 
the West Coast of North America. 

This concern coupled with fewer foreign bases 
strengthens the need for Pacific Coast installations, 
especially here in California where the military 
benefits from the synergy of a strong military 
infrastructure. The Southwest Complex proposal for 
consolidating laboratories and test and evaluation 
facilities, for example, would benefit from such a 
synergy, and would do so on an interservice basis, 
something this commission has repeatedly -- has 
repeatedly encouraged. 

At the BRAC '93 hearings, strong arguments 
were presented to retain the superb Navy 
infrastructure at Alameda, based on concerns that the 
cost of replacenlent of that facility and its 
constrained operational capability. 

Two years later, news of rising costs and 
operational problems have in fact surfaced. I raise 
this issue not to reopen the previous decision on 
Alameda, but to encourage the commission to seriously 
consider concerns that will be presected today on 
behalf of Long Beach Naval Shipyard. 

\'hilt. Long beacii and Alameda are tar different 

14  

Regarciing tile uecision to realign the Sierra 
Arm!. Depot, you'll hear strong evidence that tilk -- 

U~at its closure solves a nonexistent problem. 1 had 
tile opportunity o n  Tuesdzy with Comrissioner Steel= 
to be at that facility and was there and witnessed 
when she set off 14 different pits, each of which 
contained 16 bombs. and each of those 16 bombs was 

750 pounds. 1'111 not sure about you.  commissioner^, 
but the 4th of July will never be the same to me 
again. 

COMMISSIONER STEELE: I agree with you. 
MR. GRISSOM: Because of an underfunded demil 

program. as they call it. demilitarization program, 
the need to return ammunition from Europe and the 
Pacific, and the extensive ammunition already in 
storage that's needed to sustain high rates of 
expenditure in war time. it's likely that in fact 
there is no excess ammunition storage space. 

Finally, let me raise a concern about the 
reports that McClellan Air Force Base may be 

20 
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1 considered for closure despite the Pentagon's 1 I Senior Senator from California, Senator Dianne 
recommendations. 

The BRAC '93's directive to interservice the 
depots upas unsuccessful not, in our opinion. because 
of the lack of merit, but because of the lack of  
resolve. Nevertheless. the end result was the 
recommendation to downsize the Air Force depots in 
place. 

This recommendation has raised many questions 
and many concerns on the part of the comn~issioners, 
and they're valid. It may in fact tempt you to 
undertake your own review of the Air Force depots. 

The governor would urge you to resist that 
inclination and to hold firm to the original 
recomn~endation for interservicing, with the 
additional directive -- with the additional directive 
to DOD that if interservicing can't be accomplished, 
commercialization of depots should be considered, and 
that the Pentagon be required to report back to 
Congress on its progress by a certain date. 

In closing, let me say simply that 
Californians certainly understand the necessity to 
restructure our military and to meet cl~anging times. 
But from bitter experience. we also know the dangers 
to our nation when we SI~CK too deepi!. and to:) 

q -  1 

Feinstein. 
SENATOR FEINSTEIN: Thank you. Thank you very 

much, Mr. Chairman. 
(Clapping.) 
Thank you. It's good to  see you here. 1 

don't think die audience knows this, but I have 
inherited Senator Dixon's offices in Room 331 Hart, 
and I'm very pleased to see you here and the rest of 
the con~mission for a very difficult task. No 
question about it. I think it's very difficult to be 
a hero and do this work. 

And if I may, I'd like to distribute to you 
some packages which perhaps you can follow along and 
tell you what I would like to do. I would like to 
make a few general comments, and then speak about 
2 bases, namely Long Beach and Sierra. 

I know my colleague Senator Boxer is going to 
talk about Onizuka, and I'd like to speak just very 
briefly before I begin about the process. 

Mr. Chairman, as Mr.  Grissom stated, 
California has been pummeled by base closures in 
round after round. Much of the earlier closures have 
in my v ~ e w  proved wrong and shortsighted. The 
~1osu1.t ci:'Alarueda Navai AII- Station. 1s-ankly. is a 

-'; - - 

f sxarrpr2 rni~~z:? consecii=:l,r. 
6 And. finali).. piease give Caii!orn:~ 
7 communities alread!. suffering iron., basc cii)susr: t i t -  

E opportuniv tc? quickiy conver -- tc; quizi:iy con\'ez- 
P to alternative uses before any more bases are ciosei 

10 We thank you verq. much for taking tile time to 
11  visit California. I've enjoyed being with severai of 

+ . : v ; - 2 . .  
- ,  

-...A I-. 2SKLtig iii2L ~I 'OC l't?IO~)i. 2. tIlat. UIC I I I ~ \ ~ C  

t. incorpctrated some documentation in my report. 
- 

i ' m  aware riiar me iast round MILCON was no: 
i considered, and as you know. if you include the 190 
i n~iliion doliari of militaql constructio:: ?.ha: i: 

1 C! take? to compiete a 60 percent completed Everett. you 
. . 
i I will see that it is not cost effective to close 

12 you at several different sltes throughout the state '41ameda. and I've asked that the commission relook at 
13 We know that you: task 1s difficul:. M'r know. t .1~:  1: 

7 -  , - tila; 
1; is thankiess. Bu: we aiso know tnat you wili conducr 
I5 it with conlpassion and wlth prudence. 
16 Thank you very much. Mr. Cha~rman ,  and members 

17 of the commission. 
18 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well. we thank you, 
19 Mr. Grissom, and we're indebted to you for that fine 

i 2 I've also incorporated a statement on 
I5 McClellan and a lener that some of us, Senator Boxer 
I6 and I, as well as Senator Bennett. Senator Hatch, and 
17 Senator DiConcini iast year sent to Mr. Perry, 
18 Dr. Peny on the subject of a Southwest Military 
19 Complex. Mr. Grissom mentioned it in his remarks, 

20 presentation, and I Imou you'll express my 1 70 and it makes a great deal of sense. And I think the 
I 

31 appreciation to your distinguished Governor, an old 1 21 
22 and warm friend. 1 -I- 

I -- 
23 MR. GRISSOM: Thani: you. ; 13 
24 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, hlr. Gnssom. 

I 
' 2.: 

25 We're delighted to have with us a distinguished 1 25 
r,q 
*- 
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day of interservicing certainly has come. 
Mr. Chairman, base closures econon~ically have 

turned out to be of tremendous economic impact in 
California. 

13 major bases nave been closed to date. 
2 4 
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California has lost 88 thousand miliury and civilian 
jobs. The 7 bases of this round will bring about an 
additional 3 1 thousand direct and indirect jobs. If 
you look at this map -- these are net personnel 
losses -- you will see that California actually is 
doing 59 percent of the net job loss in the United 
States from military base closure. That's why 1 ask 
today that no base be closed in California. 

It 1 believe is responsible for our slowness 
in recovery from the recession. I believe we have 
not yet felt the true impact of closures, and 1 will 
refer to that more in a nlonlent. 

I want to touch just for a moment on the 
problems. To date there are major problems in the 
closed bases with utility conveyances. There's major 
problen~s on 2 bases with cherrypicking by the 
military, particularly Mather and Marsh. There are 
difference of appraisals whereby the military 
appraisals are far above the community appraisals. 

To  date I know out of the 22 bases that have 
been closed in California, only 3 which have solid 
plans that are being successfully implemented. 
That's the Sacramento Army Depot, Norton Air Force 
Base, and Fort Ord. 

And 1 think the issue of utilih conveyance!: 
9 C .. - 

And the total cost to clean up bases 
nationwide during this base closure round is 
estimated at nearly 1 billion. and these are just 
initial estimates. If history is any indication, 
these costs will increase 2, 3 ,  4, and perhaps 5 
times. 

Let me now speak about Long Beach Naval 
Shipyard. To borrow a line from someone at the 
community briefing yesterday in Long Beach, you know 
it is spring if the base closure comn~issioners are 
visiting Long Beach Naval Shipyard. 

(Clapping .) 
In 1993, the base closure conlmission addressed 

the issue whether to close the yard, and the 
commission recognized the vital role that Long Beach 
plays in the support of the Pacific Fleet and kept it 
open. Once again, it's being slated for closure. 
Once again, I and others wil! state to you that Long 
Beach should not be closed. 

I wonder what's changed between 1993 and 1995 
that now makes Long Beach expendable. It seems to 
me very little has changed. In fact, the Navy did 
not include the yard on its '93 list. It wps added 
by the commission, because the Navy considered the 
hasr: vital to its mission. 

27 

_ c.>: ijee:;, yjif ;>>>ac <): :>p:zL~~i:,. ;,;)L b , ~ , . ~  i t  1 I 3 u~ousand. and 750 million in annual economic 
. .  . -. . . . . 

- 1,.T. ,r ,".  ~ i ~ n s i u ~ ~  2 1 ~  IBC:.  : i ~ r  sT;?tt 15 :n a=:~;;:, i \kary ." --.. ... v:i!l be 10s: if Long Beach doses. 1 miFhr 
..,.. T . - > > , , - 7 . T 4  ,; .... .. , a.. ,. - . . . > -  , .. ..., .- - - - .  - ..-. &.- ...-.-. L.- **. LL . ..- ...-.., < .  . > L  !: .,. . '"' ,s.;;C r....n-, *ti; ,.>.., .-.. . ,.- --,ssiur, the 6 counties that 

. . ' ce-. -.' 
A& ant ii Tie ruii~u~;\. appialshi s> lo< 

high. you're not going to be able efiecriveij. 1:. 
develop these bases. 

I urouid like to conlmen;, if 1 ~ilighi. on bas: 
closures costs. The BRAC '88 clean-up costs were 

onginaliy estimated at 126 million in 1990. By 
1994, the cost had quadrupled to 598 million. 

The cost to clean up bases from BRAC '91 wert 
originally estimated at 389 million. Now thes, + COSK 

have risen to 1.3 billion. 
Clean-up costs for BRAC '93 were originally 

estimated at 230 million in 1990. By 1994. these 
costs have risen more than 5-fold to 1.4 billion 
dollars. 

The cost to clean up and close California's 
20 bases for the first 3 rounds alone is nearly 3 and a 
21 half billion dollars. That's up from the 745 million 
22 that was originally estimated and budgeted. 
33 California bases alone could absorb all of die funds 
24 appropriated for clear;-up in all the BRAC accounts 
25 from fiscal year 1990 to 1995. 

26 

suffered t!e biggest job loss and where our economy 
still struggles to come back in California are the 6 
big Southern California counties. And Long Beach 
Naval Shipyard plays a major economic role for the 
Los Angeles1Lon.g Beach area. 

70 percent of the Pacific Fleet including 
3 aircraft caniers will be home ported in San Diego. 
Because of the repair work on these carriers could be 
done at Long Beach. the proposed closure will create 
increases in ship steaming time from San Diego to 
Puget Sound. Puget Sound is 1133 nautical miles, and 
Pearl is located 2600 nautical miles away, while Long 
Beach is located a mere 81 nautical miles from where 
the vast majority of the Pacific Fleet will soon be 
stationed. 

20 Additionally, if a ship is repaired at Puget 
21 Sound. and the family of sailors remain in San Diego, 
32 this closure creates ma-jor quality of life problems 
23 for Navy personnel. 
24 Here are 2 points I believe are critical. 
15 One. the dry dock capability at Long Beach is vital 
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to support the Pacific Fleet. The Navy did not 
include Long Beach on the closure list in '93 because 
it considered the capacity of Dry Dock Number 1 
essential. Again, 1 ask what is changed between '93 
and '95? 

Because of Dry Dock Number 1,  Long Beach is 
the only yard in the West Coast that's capable of 
doing work on every class of ship in the fleet. Any 
concept of mothballing Dry Dock Number 1 is not 
feasible. as has been demonstrated at other yards. 

Two, Long Beach is the most cost effective 
shipyard of the 8 operated by the Navy so far. It is 
only I of the 8 Navy shipyards that operates in the 
black with annual retained earnings, and in just the 
last 6 fiscal years it's been consistently under 
budget, and 102 point 7 million dollars has been 
returned to the Navy budget. 

In fact, Long Beach is so effective that it 
currently has 200 employees on loan to Pearl because 
Pearl has been unable to handle its workload. Thus 
by closing -- 

(Clapping .) 
Thus by closing Long Beach, you would be 

transfening work from a productive and cost 
effective yard to !.a-Gs that lose nlonejr for the h ' a ~ . ~ .  

75, 

. . . - .  
a;rC Ulr 1::: n;.;"-. :in/ :rjlq!p[rfi::l. y ! ! ~  !y:!:n: 
. . .. . ,- . . 

>...iGbL,iC. 

:Lgyclz: c f i a i ~ , ~ ~  p* p): .i<lj?+ c ~ : i e ~ >  <>< Sp.f- 
-, ,-,i,,:, Tb-::.. ;;: , .: . -- . . ', --. 1::- - , ": ;,y:: fl<I"::5.; :' 

. ,\*. . ,:jag Lea-;> worr, 11: IE J YY 1 said. anc i quoit.. 

"Ciosure of Logg Beach Nava! Shipyard would senaus i~  

degrade the dry dock capability for all large snips 
in the Southern California areh. Alternatives ic 
Hawaii and Washington simply could no: provide tile 

services found at Long Beach." end quote. 
Mr. Chairman, if there are plans to 

alternatively use that dry dock. I think the 
c o m n ~ u n i ~ ~ .  the United Srates senators and tile 
governor should know about them. IS there is 
something hidden in this agenda, I think we should 
know about it up front before these decisions are 
made. Now, if I might -- 

(Clapping. ) 
-- quickly, and I recognize my time is running 

out, and I'm going to just synthesize, and ther, 
Senator Boxer I'm sure has many comments. 

Let me just make a few brief comments on 
Sierra's realignment, because 1 think it appears 
minor on the surface. 

Not only will 800 jobs be lost, and that's a 
3 c 

major problem for us, and Lassen County has an 
unemployment rate of 14 percent. It will be 
economically devastated as a result of this, but I 
wonder about the military sense in closing it. 
Secause Sierra currently performs more than 
30 percent of the demolition of excess ammunition 
stocks, the largest capacity in the Army system. 
It's the sole manager for conventional ammunition 
demolition. In '96 that figure is predicted to climb 
over 40 percent. 

Sierra is the most cost effective 
demilitarization installation in the country. It has 
the largest capacity for demolition. It's increased 
-- the increased costs of disposal will have to be 
borne by all of the services, diluting the intended 
savings sought by realigning Sierra. 

My staff learned on the base visit early this 
week that there is a current ammunition backlog of 
415 thousand tons, a dangerous backlog which will 
take more than 10 years to eliminate. 

If Sierra loses its ammunition demolition 
mission, there will be further delays in the already 
backlogged demolition arena, especially with excess 
ammunition coming back from overseas locations. The 
Navy will have nowhere to dispose of its poseidon 

3 1 

~~);k.e; IIIO~O:L. u ~ I I C ~ I  15 nrcessac ror U?p_ Li~iiteL 

States to compiy with the START I1 Treat\.. No o t ~ e -  

So Sierra's demiiirarization mission earns a 2 
and a half million dollar profit. It provides 
critical services to the Air Force and Navy, and i: 
posts the lowest demilitarization costs in the e6tire 
system. The direct hourly rate at Sierra for 
demolition is 43 dollars and 53 cents per person. It 
also has the lowest per hour per ton cost in the FY95 
depot system for shipping. receiving. and ammunitior. 
storage. 

Mr. Chairman, I know my time has run out, and 
I will close my remarks at this time with this 
comment: Last year Senator Trent Lon and I put 
forward a resolution to postpone the BRAC 95 round. 
It lost. The BRAC 95 round is taking place. 

1 earnestly ask you to look at the fact that 
no state has done the number of military base 
closures that California has. No state has borne the 
bulk of military base closures in the United States 
as California has. I believe enough is enough. 

California should be spared from this round of 

3 2 
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base closures. I thank you for your attention 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well, we want to thank the 

distinguished senior senator. 
I'm delighted to have an old friend. a 

distinguished senator, my former neighbor when she 
was a member of the House, and now a great member of 
the United States Senate. We're pleased to have 
Senator Boxer. 

SENATOR BOXER: Thank you very much. It is 
really good to be with you, Mr. Chairman, and I hope 
you will be guided by wisdom, and I want to say to 
all the people out here who came a very long distance 
that I'm really glad that you are here. This is your 
country, and this is your future, and you should be 
involved, and that is very important. So welcome to 
all of you as well. 

I'm really delighted to be here with Senator 
Feinstein and the representative of Governor Wilson. 
I think this shows how important this issue is to our 
state. 

Mr. Chairman, in an effort to stay within my 
time frame, and I will do so, I would ask unanimous 
consent that my entire statement be placed in the 
record. and I'm going to try to summarize that within 
the time frame. 

3 3 

i C'HA1RM.A.N DIXON: Senaror. i: will h e  piaced ir 

tilt. record. as will the distinguished senior 
?  senator‘^ remark,  and it will not tiike f i o m  !lour 
- rime wid: my interrup~ioc. 

SENATOR BOXER: Thank you veq- much. 
6 Mr. Chairman. I think you've heard it loud and clear. 
7 California has been deeply hurt by base closures. 
6 Senator Feinstein went over the job loss. It is huge 

You already know that our economy here is in a 
precarious psition, and, Mr. Chairman, I know that 
that isn't the only thing you're going to look at. 
You do have to look at cumulative econon~ic impact. 
We're here to say on that criteria alone not one more 
base should be closed. I feel that very, very 
strongly. On that criteria alone. 

But on the criteria of national security 
interests, I think you will hear from us, and you've 
already heard from 2 out of the 3 of us, that there 
are some serious questions about those bases that are 
on your list, and I'm going to talk again about a few 
of them. 

You know about the loss of jobs and what it 
means to Long Beach and Los Angeles. Senator 
Feinstein has been quite eloquent on the point. She 
also made a p i n t  that I want to underscore. 

Long Beach is strategically located only 
80 miles from the San Diego Megaport, home to nearly 
70 percent of the Pacific Surface Fleet. If Long 
Beach is closed, the nearest public shipyard would be 
Bremerton, Washington, 3 days steaming time from San 
Diego. 

I spent years on the House Armed Services 
Committee, Mr. Chairman, and I know you've spent 

3 5 

: proud years !,oursri: or, Ule committee and tne s?naiz. 
' 2 I think common sense will tell you that this maire: n:> 

I sense. tha: repdi? faciiities si:ouil 'i)? nc2: n;zic:-- 
4 fjee: concenz-ationi 

5 Now, Long Beach already has lost 10 thousane 

/ 6 jobs as a result of the closure of the naval station 
I 7 in '91. To add another 10 thousand jobs. and some 

i 8 say it's even more than that, would be devastating to 

9 by any count. It is more than our fair share. 1 9 this comri~unity . 

10 Clearly we are down to about 17 percent of the 1 10 Mr. Chairman, 1 want to underscore for you one 
defense dollar, and we are way in excess in terms of 
personnel loss. 

What you have before you is a picture of how 
many bases have been closed already, Mr. Chairman and 
Members of the Commission. Those in red are the ones 
that have been closed. Those in black are the ones 
before you in this round. It is extraordinary. It 
is difficult. It is painful, and it is far too much 
for our state. 

I am here to fight for my state, but I want to 
tell you that I think the facts are on our side, and 
I want to go into that. I'm going to talk today 
about Long Beach. I'm going to talk about Onizuka 
and Sierra, and I'm going to mention a few other 
bases as well. 

34 

more point that Senator Feinstein made. and I'm 
repeating it because I think it is critical. I was 
in that room when the vote came down on Long Beach 
just 2 short years ago. I stood there, and I 
listened, and my breath was being held. And there 
was a message that came forth from that commission at 
that time, and what was the message? 

UNKNOWN MALE: Save Long Beach. 
SENATOR BOXER: Shape up your act, they said 

to Long Beach, turn it around, make that faciliq 
work. And, Mr. Chairman, that's exactly what 
happened. 

This Long Beach Naval Shipyard is the most 
profitable shipyard. It is the only profitable 
shipyard in the entire country. Does it make any 
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sense -- 
(Clapping. ) 
I mean, the question that you have to ask 

yourself as chairman of this commission is what kind 
of message does that send forward not only to these 
workers, the people who turned it around, who have 
become so efficient, turning a profit for the Navy, 
but to the whole country, to our kids. When we say 
to them, "You know, if you get your act together, and 
you shape up, you'll be rewarded." 

I think it would be a tragedy to close Long 
12 Beach, just a tragedy on many, many counts. We need 
13 it, and they did what they were supposed to do. They 
14 rolled up their sleeves, and they should be rewarded, 
I5 not punished. 
16 Today you're going to hear from them. They're 
17 going to come up with some more very creative and 
18 alternatives ideas. I hope you will take those ideas 
19 to heart. 
20 Turning to Onizuka Air Force Base, I feel very 
21 strongly about this as well. I visited Long Beach. 
22 I visited Onizuka. I met with the people there, and 
23 I do believe I understand what they do, although a 
24 lot of it is very highly classified. But I have to 
25 tell you, again, it doesn't seem to add up to close 

3 7 

kind of hit we have taken in the north as well as in 
the south. This is going to add thousands and 
thousands of unemployed. 

Xow, last, in detail I want to discuss the 
proposed realignment of the Sierra Army Depot. This 
is a mistake. 1 think that Senator Feinstein has 
made the case with some very important technical 
arguments, but I have to say that the Ammy studied 
this and rated it Tier 3, the lowest rating. 

I hope you will look, and I know you will look 
at the source document, the tiering study, when 

12 evaluating the recommendation to realign this depot. 
13 In rating the depot as a Tier 3 facility, the Army 
14 minimized or ignored the fact that the base is 
15 traversed by 2 major railroads that link it directly 
16 to nearby seaports. 
17 Additionally, Sierra is the only depot with a 
18 C-5 capable landing strip, which is essential to 
19 mobilizing ammunition stocks. 
20 We know the economic impact in this rural 
21 Lassen County community. This is the biggest 
22 employer, and we know it will be absolutely 
23 devastated. Unemployment is already 1 1 point 5 
24 percent there. And we think that it would go to 20 
25 percent if this closing took place. So we think we 
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I , ,  1 this and consolidate these facilities at haicon Ai: . li;i\'< 2 casi 0;. rconomi< m r ~ h z :  t n c  or, nzti;~n&. 

2 Force Base in Colorado. 2 security interests. 
1 '  7 .  . In my view, satellite controi is on? of the , < 

7.- .  " X . .  .. $\I:. c!l2l!T!l~:.. , , t , ?  I:??, \r.,?2i::. :I- . ,.* & , * L , .  

L fen areas where limited. redunciaat cs;x-!i?ili~:ri: ;I:.: Ur2r,: I(.  3iri7 .,.iiii iii U,e I;,; ' . , . I .  L ,lL -. 

5 in our national security interests. If the 5 going ro hear from some of tile best and the r3:ipntrs: 
6 department's recommendations are enacted and only on€ 1 6 from our state. inciuding Congressman Sam Farr. 
7 site is used for satellite control, a single fdilure i 7 representatives of the Monterey communigt. who wiii 
8 could leave us unabie to control scores of orbiting i E testify about F o n  Hunter Liggett. 
9 military satellites. 1 9  Councilman Harry Mathis uil: lead a ciiscussior; 

10 Imagine that type of situation. one computer 1 10 about the DOD's recommendation to disestablish the 

I 1 error, one natural disaster, and, Mr. Chairman, one 1 11 San Diego Naval Health Research Center. Very 
12 terrorist attack could separate us from our 
13 satellites for hours or even days. 
14 Again. it's common sense to keep Onizuka open. 
15 and it is essential to also consider the incredible 
16 expertise surrounding Onizuka. 
17 I met with the people. the private contractors 
18 who work there. What the military will have to do if 
19 this is closed and transferred over to Colorado is 
20 begin a very costly training program for our military 
21 in that state. We have the skills here. Why would 
22 we undertake that kind of expense? I think it would 
23 be a huge mistake. 
24 I won't go into economic impact except to tell 

25 you it will be great in this area. You can see what 
3s 

important issues will be raised there. 
And Congressman Vic Fazio, who has worked s:, 

hard to save McClellan Air Force Base, and I want to 
say here, please, please. we have bad President 
Clinton at McClellan no less than 4 times. This is 
another case of an Air Force Base that is really 
working toward the future. We should leave it off 
the list. 

20 So I hope you will take all of our 
21 California's testimony very, very, seriously. As a 

21 matter of fact, I know that you will, Mr. Chairman. 
3-3 I wish all of the commissioners Godspeed. I hope you 
24 will be wise, and I hope you will realize that we in 
25 California have done far more than our fair share. 
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1 We are only asking for fairness. Thank you very CHAIRMAN DIXON: Ladies and gentlemen, we 

2 much. / 2 thank you a11 for being here. Now as 1 understand 

3 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well, we thank you, Senator. 1 3 it, you will allocate your own time. You have 70 
4 (Clapping .) 
5 I want to tbank you, Mr. Grissom. Thank you 

6 so much, Senator Feinstein, Senator Boxer. Excellent 

7 presentations. We're indebted to you. Thank you 
8 very much. 
9 -- 000 -- 

10 

4 minutes to be divided between those in your group, 
5 and a timer is in front of you on your table over 
6 there, and we're delighted to have all of you here. 
7 and under the existing law I must request that you 
8 all to stand and raise your right hand, everybody 
9 that's going to testify. Thank you very much. 

10 Do you solenlnly swear or affirm that the 
testimony you are about to give to the Defense Base 
Closure and Realignment Commission shall be the 
truth, the whole truth. and nothing but the truth? 

SPEAKERS: I do. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very, very much. 

You may proceed. 
MAYOR O'NEILL: Good afternoon, 

Mr. Commissioner and Distinguished Members of the 
Commission. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Delighted to see you. 
MAYOR O'NEILL: I'm Beverly O'Neill, and 

I'm -- 

(Clapping .) 
Thank you. I'm going to carry you around with 

me. 
43  

1 hild ;'n: proud ti! i b t .  iiiii ma>':,: CJ:. 21: Zi;: ;;; 

2 2. LONG BEACH 1'Jki'kL SIliF!.kK2 L Long Btiazli. I'n? sor?. r o  meet ~ i t i i  !.o~! undr!. u~r.: 
:: , . .  

3 Mayor Beverly O'Neil: : i r~~nis tan~‘r!  . rlc' . ;,:):x I!;s: ::; \::L r:::;:~::~.::..;~~. 
.. . 4 hfs. Carmen Perez .. L - ,. !!$.. I I ~ L  2.1, :;,:I;)C)~TLL:I~T~. t<jLi;- 0 - y  s ~ ~ i ~ l ~ ~ a r c  yeste;.tik , 

5 Congressman Steve Horn 2, 5 have a better understanding and appreciation of wh!. 
C (' 6 Vice Admiral Peter Hekmar! ., , j 6 w t  are so proud of its capabiiities and achievements. 

7G 7 Dr. Robert Johnson 
.. 

We thank vou tor the oppormniy of being her? 

8 Mr. Bill Gurzi 7ii 
9 Vice Admiral Peter t i e h ~ a n  83 

10 Dr. Robert Johnson 89 
1 1 Congressman Steve Horn 92 
12 Questions and Answers 95 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 

6 and presenting our case ibr the continuance of the 
9 naval shipyard. 

10 We are not here to whine and ring our hands 
We are not here just to complain about the projected 
loss to our economy of 757 million and the loss of 
over 10 thousand jobs. 

We are here to let you know we are only 1 of 2 
shipyards capable of handling the Navy's biggest 
vessels. We were only -- the only shipyard located 
near 70 percent of the Pacific Fleet. The next 
closest shipyard is at Bremerton. Washington, about 3 
sailing days away. 

20 We are on the only submarine sonar dome 
21 manufacturing facility in the nation. 
7 3  
&- We are the Navy's most efficient shipyard, and 
23 the only shipyard to show an annual profit. 
24 We are the only shipyard with a deep harbor 
25 and a direct access to the open ocean. 

44 

SCRUNCHTM Pages 41 - 44 
WESTERN REPORTERS 916-564-5600 I. 1 



DEFENSE BASE CLOSURE 6- REALIGA%IEhT COAMhIISSION HEARING 4/28/95 

We are here to state that the closure of the 
Long Beach shipyard would have the least impact on 
the excess capacity of all the remaining yards. We 
are a shipyard with 60 percent minority work. force. 
We are the only shipyard with the largest dry docking 
facilities that would take over 700 nlillion to  

replicate. 
We were the only Naval shipyard positions for 

military and strategic value so  that all ships are 
not in one location. 

And we are a shipyard within 81 nautical miles 
of San Diego, which means that our home port 
boundaries are closer by two-thirds than the miles 
between Portsmouth and Norfolk. Today we will be 
outlining a step by step process to defend the 
shipyard, and we've had some eloquent statements 
already by our senators. 

We feel confident after studying all the data 
that has been made available that we can present 
arguments to you on a technical basis and offer 
compelling justification for revisiting the 
recommendation to clos~: the Long Beach Naval 
Shipyard. 

In addition to presenting you with the 
material which we strongly fie! refute? t'ie Na\'l '> 

L5 

1 stnpyard or with sh~pyard based tenant commands. And 
2 these jobs generate another 3,500 secondary jobs 
3 within the inlmediatt. area surrounding Long Beach. not 1 4 in cnmn~unities Imaled in other counties 60 to 100 
5 milrs from ttle shipyard. The total economic impact 
G of the shipyard are estimated to he over 750 million 
7 dollars. 
8 Now, the DOD may feel that 27 thousand jobs 
9 and almost 2 billion dollars in combined econonlic 

10 impact are not significant to one area, but we do. 
I I The good people in Long Beach who elected me mayor 
12 last year expect me to address the issues that affect 
13 them, and this issue affects them very muzh. It does 
14 not affect communities 2 hours away. I was astounded 
15 to learn that if all the civilian job losses from the 
16 previous BRAC rounds were added to those proposed for 
17 1995. the City of Long Beach would not only lead all 
18 cities in California and the nation, but would also 
19 lead 46 states as well, trailing only Virginia, 
20 Pennsylvania, and Texas in addition to California. 
21 This is ridiculous. 
2 2 The cumulative effect on one area either in 
23 the city or even one county was not taken into 
24 consideration. I don't need to recount to you all of - - 

I 1: Southern Caiiiosnii.~ disasters in recent years. And 
1 - - 1 

- 
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rc tne BkhC cornmlss~oc sr;itl:: u;x: UI:. cl:)si;:-r :,- K:. 

shipyard could result in z maximum rrductioi! c: 
13 261  jobs in 2 5-couny Soutiierr, Califiaini~ 
metropolitan area. This represents jusi t;lre~-trnci- 
of one percent of the total area employnlrnt in 
5 counties. But by blending the number of iob iosse!: 
in the primary metropoIitan statistical area which 
covers 5 counties, the DOD has greatly mitigated the 

actual econonlic in1p.c: that would occur in tile Long 
Beach arc& or. the Couny oi' Los Angeles. 

I think that econonlic impact has to be pu: 
16 into a proper perspective. and I'd like to just say a 
17 few words about what has happened before nour. 
18 In 199 1 the closure of the Long Beach Naval 
19 station and the hospital cost over 16.000 Navy 
30 personnel and an additional 1,000 civiiian jobs. T I I ~  
3! total direct and indirect economic losses i~rl-onl that 

22 decision exceed one billion dollars. 
2 3 If the recommendation to close the shipyard IS 

24 allowed to stand, we will lose an additional 6.60: 
25 civilian jobs, either associated directly w ~ t h  the 

46 

. ... . ..-. - . . .  
-1 .- . . . -. . ..- -- - . .-. b..,&. . -- . 

*.. - 1 - ,  ','Jy>n,', . - A L L  ~ ; y ' ~ ~ y ; >  <;; . .. -\):iL i 3 5 i < l !  V.'#.)Lilb &is2 1!1:z i-  

tinou tka: ansu e: . 
-, nere arc' a nunloel. o; m i i i t q .  and technicai 

reasons lor tile siiipyarh rc; conrinue serving the 
Nav!.. as it has done so so uncomnionl:,. well f ~ i  so 

man?, years. but 1'11 le: the expens here discuss 
those issues with you. 

But before I finidi. must mention one veq. 
vital eiemenl of ulr snipyard. ,4nd that is Dr\. Dozi: 
Number !. Four o!'you sau ic  yesterday. and you were 

told how important it has been and continues to be to 
16 the operations of tlir Pacific Fleet And as you 
17 heard, to duplicate it would cost over 700 million. 
18 You heard that it is the largest d n  dock south of 
19 Pupet Sound, and that it would dry-dock e v e n  class 
20 oi ship witinn tile Pacific Fleet. But i? the 
,I recommendation stands to close the shipyard, the d n  
22 dock also closes. 
7- 3 I appreciate you1 Indulgence in m) 
9 r 
L7 p~esentation. We have many speakers that will offer 
25 v e n  technical and compelling reasons why we wele 
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1 here today. but before 1 do. I would like to take 
2 just one minute to recognize the shipyard workers and 

3 their families who have traveled 500 miles since work 
4 yesterday to he with us on this day. Would you just 
5 please stand. 
6 (Clapping .) 
7 Thank you very much. And now at this time, I 

8 would like to introduce the president of the Board of 
Harbor Commissioners, Carmen Perez. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, hvzrly O'Neill. 
and we're delighted to have Ms. Perez here. 

(Clapping .) 
MS. PEREZ: Thank you, Madame Mayor. Good 

afternoon, ladies and gentlemen. As the mayor 
indicated, I am president of the Long Beach Board of 
Harbor Commissioners. 

The Port of Long Beach, long viewed as one of 
the most modern and efficient ports of the world, has 
recently become the Number 1 container port in the 
United States. Believe me, we in Long Beach are all 
very proud of this accomplishment, and we look 
forward to the ports continued success in the future. 

However, the reason that I'm here today is not 
to tell you about what a great port we have. Rather, 
I'm here to personally assure you. ladies and 

A@ 

part because the shipyard is located in a deep water 
port with immediate access to the open sea. And that 
feature, along with many others. ladies and 
gentlemen, should be the reason the base closure 
conlmission finds the shipyard too critical in 
military value to consider its closure. 

The Long Beach Naval Shipyard is a resource 
that should not be dismissed without a great deal of 
careful consideration. particularly given what we 
know about the efficiency of this facility and the 
future work flow demands of the Navy between now and 
the year 2,000. 

The Long Beach Naval Shipyard is good for our 
community. The Long Beach Naval Shipyard is good for 
the nation. 

Thank you for your attention, ladies and 
gentlemen, and I hope you will look long and hard at 
the Navy's ill-conceived recommendations to close the 
Long Beach Naval Shipyard. 

(Clapping .) 
At this time it is my pleasure and honor to 

introduce a good friend and outstanding 
representative of our community, Congressman Steve 
Horn of the 38th Congressional District. Thank you. 

COI<GRESSMAh' HORN: Thank you very much, 

5 1 

d Long Beach Naval Shipyard. Tne Port c\r Long Beric~ : Comrn~ssioners -- first. Mr.  Chalrman. let me say to 

does not under any circumstances. iadie:, an:. 
gentlemen, lust after tile snipyard as somt ilavr 
suggested. May I reiterate. ttlr Port of Long Beach 

simply does not want to see the shipvard close. 
period. 

(Clapping .) 
As a maner of fact. several years ago. ir: 

cooperation with the havy. tile port conducted a stud!, 
to determine the feasibility of consolidating 
shipyard support facilities now in the former naval 
station site to more convenient shipyard sites. 

The port then offered to pay the 100 million 
dollars cost for achieving that consolidation, 
100 miliion dollars worth of completely new and 
modern facility at no cost to the federal government. 
No one has ever explained to me why the Navy never 
responded to that offer. 

May I also add that if the shipyard has any 
commercial. port-related appeal, it is due in large 
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vour colleagues. i am most grateful to them for 
taking the time to visit Long Beach. I think it was 
venl useful. They've met a number of my colleagues 
in congress, and I stand here today representing the 
14 members from 4 counties that have worked actively 
since January 1993 on helping this shipyard advance 
and w i n g  to deal with the supercilious arguments ir: 
some cases that have sought to close it. 

I want to submit, and my staff will do  that to 
your staff, for the record the comments of 
Congresswoman Jane Harmon who deeply regrets she 
could not be here today, but who was with the 
commissioners part of yesterday. 

I have a very simple message to bring to you 
today. First, the process which led to the 
recommendations to close Long Beach was deeply 
flawed. The Navy's BRAC process was specifically 
designed to protect nuclear capacity while without 
justification contradicting what the Navy said in 
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1931 and 1993 that the Navy regarded Long Beach and 

its large dry dock as critical to the defense needs 
of the nation. 

Second. there are better alternatives to the 
closure of Long Beach that n~ake more sense and 
improve on the goals of saving money, reducing excess 
capacity, yet preserving the critical irreplaceable 
infrastructure, Dry Dock 1 among them. These 
alternatives were ignored for no gcxd reason. We're 
not here just to protest the recommendation to close 
the Long Beach Naval shipyard. We're here to say 
that the Navy could have done better and made a 
recommendation that would fit the real needs of the 
Navy in the difficult years ahead. The next 3 
speakers will present the details on this message. 
The quick overview is the supposedly analytical 
process was one really contrived to support a 
predetermined end. 

First, the Navy generated a military value 
ranking for the shipyards that directly refutes what 
was established in 1991 and 1993 when Long Beach was 

ranked a very strong third in military value of all 
then existing shipyards. One gets a little bit 
suspicious when Long Beach suddenly slides downward 

in milita!?, value rankings ikon: the pas: years. 
5 3 

been using the annual cost savings made by Long Beach 

to cover up the losses at other public shipyards. 
Should Long Beach close, the man-day rates at 

the remaining public shipyards will rise 
considerably. The fact is this: The Navy wanted to 
protect its nuclear capable shipyards from the 
beginning. despite the admitted and recognized excess 
nuclear capacity, and thus the Navy designed its 
military value weightings and its configuration model 
to generate an outcome that satisfied such an 
objective. 

When the Navy could not quite achieve that 
end, it declined to recommend for closure a shipyard 
of lower military value than Long Beach, ignoring the 
fact that the closure of Portsmouth would generate 
greater cost savings to the Navy and the taxpayers 
than the closing of Long Beach. Portsmouth performs 
a type of work, nuclear, of which the Navy admits it 
has the most excess. 

Ironically, the Navy suggested closing its two 
smallest facilities, Long Beach and Guam, both of 
which are nonnuclear. These two facilities have the 
least repair capacity when the purported goal was to 
close as much excess capacity as possible. 

i must mention the general accounting office 
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i f i l l  12 n:an)' ~ns-antes tile u a u  art! s~mi~i!. w'rong BRAC. ! realize the GAO has stated. quote. "Tile 
I Answers ~ ~ c f ? ?  chang5c. suc!: I?> (.nr c2!?22:!- . . La\ , \  ' 5  procesa an6 rrcon~n~endarior,~ were sounJ.' 

..-... _,.-. \ _ _  _ . . ., -,.b,,,,,>. . , > _ ,  _. :., ; - ; z ; z > .  21: :~.2::-::. 22z:;L:::. - 2:i+u<)k. s~~t.\~t:. li is noi an anaiysis. &!.ad 
- i+ e ~ e  ralsec i s  ~ O L  nearc yesreIaz.!  on^ qursu:): f Chapter 6. and you will see what I mean. There 1s no 
r. rewards a shipyard for having spsn: more thar: 23: 6 criticai element in it. It is merely a descriptive 

million dollars in capita! improvemenn, thus , 7 overview of the Navy's process. This report 
i penalizing a smaller and the most modern shipyarc: i: represents superficial work, and it shows. 
S such as Long Beach. That is nonsensicai. ! 9 The GAO did not ask: 

1 C Second, this contrived ser of military value j 10 What changed in the construction of the 
ranking was put into a configuration model where the 
assumptions of that nlodel were guaranteed a certair, 
result. 

Third. after the model was run. ttle Navy 
rejected one of the suggested closures when it did 
not like the answer. Namely. close Portsmouth. The 
Navy claims Portsmouth has a unique ability to repair 
attack submarines, even while that supposedly unique 
capability is being duplicated elsewhere in both the 
public and the private shipyards. In brief, the Navy 
is not telling you the truth regarding Portsmouth. 

Fourth, the Navy's alleged cost savings for 
closing Long Beach are false. The supposed savings 
if the work were performed in the private sector are 
substantially illusionary. Moreover, the Navy has 
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military value matrix to alter Long Beach's 
consistent ranking as the Number 3 naval shipyard? 

Why did the need for Dry Dock Number 1 
disappear when the number of large dock ships in the 
Navy's fleet is not declining? 

Finally, why did the Navy so blatantly ignore 
the recommendations of the Joint Cross-Service Group? 

None of these issues were addressed by the 
general accounting office. 

The next important point is to demonstrate 
that the Navy conveniently overlooked about Long 
Beach issues that present compelling reasons why Long 
Beach is still needed. why it should be kept open. 
and why we believe the Navy substantially deviated 
from the requirements of the law in formulating its 
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closure recommendations. Let me run through them. 
First, the tampering with the military value 

reweighting and thus reranking done by the Navy. 
Second, the Navy's clear need for Dry Dock 

Number 1. 
Third, the Navy's method of looking at 

capacity on a nationwide basis rather than on a 
regional Pacific Fleet-Atlantic Fleet basis. The 
Navy ignores the operational realities that almost 
70 percent of the Pacific Fleet is located in San 
Diego. 

Meanwhile, Long Beach's dry docks show heavy 
utilization into the year 2,000. 

Fourth, the capacity measures used by the Navy 
also overstate the need for nuclear capable yards. 
The work package of a nuclear vessel, as we will 
discuss later, is 80 percent conventional. And thus 
a nonnuclear capable shipyard could do the vast 
majority of these work packages. 

20 Fifth, the Navy did not include the 
21 possibility of emergencies in its capacity analysis. 
22 The Navy has left no margin for error on dry dock 
23 utilization in the case of hostilities. 
24 Sixth, where would the work schedule for Long 
15 Beach go? The San Diego private yards do not have 
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realigned. This proposal saves money. cuts capacity, 
preserves Dry Dock Number I ,  retains the unique 
capabilities of the Long Beach Naval Shipyard. 

I now want to turn the presentation over to 
Vice Admiral Peter Hekman, who retired in 199 1 after 
commanding the Naval Sea Systems Command, where he 
supervised the operation and maintenance of all naval 
shipyards as well as the contracting with the private 
sector yards concerning ship repair and new 
construction. He's a recognized expert on the 
operation and maintenance of nuclear power plants as 
well as on private and public shipyards and their 
capabilities. Admiral Hekman. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much, 
Congressman. 

(Clapping .) 
Thank you for those useful remarks, 

Congressman. We're delighted to have Admiral Hekman 
here. 

20 VICE ADMIRAL HEKMAN: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. 

21 Is this on? 
22 CONGRESSMAN HORN: Is it working? 
23 VICE ADMIRAL HEKMAN: Can you hear it? 
24 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Yes. 
25 VICE ADMIRAL HEKMAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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: t-h.e CT the cnpz!:i!:?,'r. :G d~ ':le liill T A I I ~ ~  
A .. I j I appreciate the opporrunity to appear before you and 

1 of repairs on the full range of ships Illat are in the / 3 the members of the commission today. My associate 
7 Pacific Fiee!. .And. t b ~ s ,  tbosr p:-ivatr \.ad:; wiIi I 3 Dr. Johnson and I intend to discuss the 4 areas 

G O T  j)roduce ti)c anticipated cos: savlr,]::; ic hc:. 

witbout Long Beach as a yardstick. tlie Navy will be 
gouged by change orders from less equipped private 
yards. 

Seventh. and finaliy. the Navy team ignored 
the recommendations of the Joint Cross-Service Group, 
whose first recommendation was to close Pearl Harbor 
and Portsmouth. Clearly, the commission needs to be 
placed before it for closure both Pearl Harbor and 
Portsmouth for consideration certainly in relation to 
Long Beach. 

One of the major issues that needs a thorough 
examination by the commission is the problem of where 
the base closure process is in relation to the 
evolving concepts of depot repair. Namely, the 
Regional Maintenance Center Concept. 

The BRAC process with its statutory deadlines 
results in a BRAC process being behind the curb of 
depot maintenance concepts. These issues were either 
not analyzed or not properly considered by the Navy. 

Long Beach should be included in the regional 
maintenance concept. Pearl Harbor should be 
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shown. 1 will d~scuss a r e a  1 and 3. He will 
discuss areas 2 and 4. Dr. Johnson and I are 
colleagues, and Dr. Johnson also worked almost 
3 decades in the Naval Sea Systems Command and was in 
charge of the facility's arena when he retired. 

In -- we certainly need to downsize," but we 

need to do it sensibly. When England was slashing 
its fleet and dock yards and closing its stock yards 
prior to the Falkland's war, then Prime Minister 
Margaret Thatcher stood up in the parliament and made 
a statement. and I've never forgotten it. She said, 
"I wish to remind all that the first responsibility 
of government is defense of the realm. Any country 
which pounds its swords into plow shares will 
invariably end up plowing its fields for those who 
kept their swords. " 

(Clapping .) 
Now, that occurred -- that speech occurred 

just 6 months before the Falkiand Island's war. Now, 
certainly Argentina got the message. 

The -- as I said we have to downsize, but the 
Navy made a major change in direction in 1995 as 
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1 compared to 1991. in which 1 participated, and in 
2 1993. The 1991 and 1993 rounds were conducted under 
3 the philosophy that shipyard closure had to be based 
4 first on strategic and military value, and then if 

not needed under that criteria, then capacity could 
enter the process. 

In 199 1 and 1993, the Navy consistently 
insisted that we keep a minimum of 6 camer capable 
dry docks, and we did. Long Beach was considered in 
that process, and third in military value only I say 
behind the 2 major yards of Puget Sound and at 
Norfolk. 

The Navy further stated that Long Beach was 
vital to the support of the Navy's major fleet 
concentrations in San Diego. The Joint Chiefs of 
Staff agreed with the Navy's position and rationale 
in this matter. General Colin Powell's statement is 
well known and has been cited earlier. 

In taking this position, the position of 
keeping the docks open, the Navy was conforming to 
the law as set forth in Title 10, U. S. Code, Article 
2464, which is shown here, the section of the code 
which I was personally responsible for 3 years to 
maintain, as commander of the Navy Sea Systems 
Command. 

6 1 

I far as Long Beach was concerned. 
2 Now, nothing has really changed between 1993 
3 and 1995, at least in my opinion, that would change 
4 the Long Beach military value, and I've seen nothing 

in the numbers that would change my mind. With the 
reduction in submarine force by nearly one-half from 
the 87 and planned 100 to less than 50. And in the 
view -- in view of Portsmouth and Pearl Harbor's 
limited capabilities and the high costs, and I'm 
eminently familiar with the quote, I am somewhat 
surprised by the Navy's analysis, although I have not 
had the time to go through all the numbers 
personally. 

The Navy's recommendation to close Long Beach 
and the 2 carrier capable dry docks in Philadelphia 
leaves only 3 carrier and large amphibious ship 
capable dry docks available in the entire continental 
United States, and that includes the civilian dock at 
Newport News. 

The Navy stated rationale is based upon recent 
size of the Navy changes, but the Navy analysis is 
apparently based upon gross numbers, because the 
number of very large ships, the camers and the 
major amphibious ships, remains constant, as you can 
see in this graph. The lower line is the Pacific 
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changed. 

So what has changed I think may be even a 
better question, and Senator Feinstein also mentioned 
it, why has a change occurred in this direction:' 
It's obvious the Navy has abandoned the rnilitaq 

value as the prime criteria for shipyard closure 
considerations in exchange apparently for a 
peace-time capacity consideration. 

It is also apparent from the Navy's recent 
actions aside from BRAC that the Navy prefers the 
building of expensive new maintenance and base 
support facilities, for example, in San Diego, rather 
than using existing facilities that are more than 
adequate in Long Beach. 

Furthermore, the Navy's 1995 proposal appears 
to ignore the Title 10 U.S. Code, as I said. The 
Navy recommendations changed the military value line 

22 as has been mentioned. 
23 And you can see that line up there for 1993 
24 and 1995. The 199 1 line-up had a couple of other 
25 yards in it, but basically wasn't any different as 
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: 5 rapidly. as 1 said. and the SSN-686 ciass maintenance 
I 

1 6 
cycle has been extended to 120 months from the 

1 '7 original 60, then SO. and now 130. 
6 Yet the Navy is recommending retention of al; 1 9 ~ i ~ l e a r  capability. Selectively, the Navy considerr 

' 10 the private sector in its capacity analysis. It 

11 avoids consideration of the private sector for 
12 submarine and nuclear repair capability. Yet it 
13 considers such capacity when counting d~ docl;s and 
14 when counting surface ship repair capacity, and also 
15 in home porting decisions such as exists in the San 
16 Diego example. 
17 The Navy contends that private capacity is 
18 outside the BRAC rules. Mr. Nimfakos I believe 
19 testified to that. although he did not quantify it. 
20 Yet the Newport News carrier dock was certainly j 21 counted. 

I 22 What was not counted is the fact that Newport 
23 News could accept 3 in my opinion possibly up to 
24 4 submarine nuclear reheling overhauls 
25 simultaneously and at equal or lower costs that the 
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Navy yards. Portsmouth can do one at a time. Yet 
Portsmouth is considered by the Navy to be vital for 
this function. 

The change in military values between 1993 and 
1995 make Portsmouth and Long Beach about the same, 
and it I believe is not supported by a rational view 
of the facts or the data. 

The Navy's revision of the 1993 military 
values is clearly based on considerations other than 
objective evaluation and analysis, and I believe 
represents a substantial deviation from the BRAC 
criteria and also from adherence to Title 10. 

It moreover ignores real program ship 
maintenance requirements, and it ignores the Pacific 
Fleet commander's own input on the absolute necessity 
to retain the Long Beach dry docking capabilities. 

I have a letter that I quote from, a letter by 
that commander, and I'll give you just a moment to 
read it. I point out that that was very recent. 

The Navy assumed Puget Sound -- I'm sorry. 
Would you go back. Thank you. 

The Navy assumed Puget Sound could accept all 
carrier and large amphibious ship dry dockings as 
well as the submarine work it's doing now. The Navy 
assumed that the private sector capacit) could accept 
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The amphibious carriers, the LHAs and LHDs, 
which are very large ships as well, the LHD5 
PELLALLOO, no solution. LHD2 ESSEX, no solution. 
LHA 1 to Puget, it will go in the dock in the period 
that they have scheduled, however, the work load 
issue is a major problem. Those are just 5 examples. 

The Puget Sound dock will essentially be 
totally comnlitted and not available for emergency 
work. For years, the Navy authorities have 
recognized docking problems that would exist if Long 
Beach were to be closed. I conlmissioned the study 
looking at the machinists at AFDV8 when I was 
commander of Naval Sea Systems Command. The studies 
show without doubt that that dry dock cannot accept 
the large amphibious ships. That was the purpose of 
study. 

The study also showed the ones that we did 
that we needed the Long Beach dock both for work and 
for strategic value. The Navy has assumed the Pearl 
Harbor dry dock, Dry Dock 4 could handle carriers. 
However, it could not handle CONSTELLATION at all. 
There is no room in the dock. When you put another 
carrier in the dock, the overhang -- you would have 
to remove all the cranes from the crane tracks before 
you put t l~e  ship in. And you would be so close on 
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approved by the Congress. And tilere 5i.r otiie: 

assumptions that I have found. In the interest\ o; 
time. I won't go through them all. 

Problems have already risen with the Navy's 
assumptions, however, at the Navy scheduiing 
conference which went on this wr-ek, for example. And 

on the graph you can see what is being discussed and 
what some of the decisions are. Please note that all 
6 of the items cited here, the major ship overhauls, 
until this week were scheduled for Long Beach. They 
all require the dock. 

KITTY HAWK (CVN-63) to Puget Sound in '97 
There are significant work load issues as well as the 
delay of the ship and probably the delay of its 
deployment. 

CONSTELLATION (CV-64) scheduled to Pearl 
Harbor in '98. It will not fit in any dock in Pearl 
Harbor. It simply will not fit. They can put other 
ships in that large dock, just barely, but 
CONSTELLATION is 18 feet wider, has larger sponsons, 
and it simply will not go in when you block the ship. 
So there have to be changes made in that solution. 
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?enlo\;- L!: :!!.:?i:eri-. u.ii t;c- !-opri~e:.s. i;'s ma: 
close. 

The dock is not certified for such work. A 

great deal of dredging would be required from the 
main channel into the area of the dry dock. I t  is 
simply not a solution without a great deal of 
trouble. The military construction package that I 
generated several years ago for the improvement for 
that dock for nuclear carriers was priced out at 
250 million dollars. and it was not approved. 

The contingency docking in the Atlantic is 
unsatisfactory as well with the abandonment of 
Philadelphia docks. The Navy says their decision -- 
in their decision says Portsmouth is necessary. I 
don't believe that's true. The facts will show that. 

That we must do nuclear work in nuclear 
faciiities, that's not true either. We have been 
doing nuclear work in nonnuclear facilities ever 
since we've had nuclear ships. We simply send 
nuclear qualified people to do that part of the work 
package that deals with the reactor plant. 

The Navy says that quality of life requires, 
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and 1 use their word, that San Diego ships not be 
sent to Long Beach for availabilities. That's a 
policy of the Pacific Fleet. It is inconsistent with 
any other Navy policy. It is not enforced in any 
other area, and in my opinion is a -- is a 
questionable policy when it comes to utilizing your 
intrinsic availability of your infrastructure. 

The Navy decision, then, in my opinion fails 
on military value criteria, and it fails in capacity 
criteria. 

I read a statement recently in Forbes, 27 
March edition by former Secretary of Defense Caspar 
Wcinberger, and I quote it here, "Political watchers 
were immediately struck by the fact that while Long 
Beach, which has long been regarded as one of the 
most cost effective and efficient naval shipyards of 
the country is to be closed, the Portsn~outh New 
Hampshire shipyard, which has always finished last on 
every list of cost effectiveness is to remain open," 
end quote. 

In some personal correspondence between Former 
Secretary Weinberger and myself, dated as late as 
April 20th, he expressed his regret that he could not 
speak out in defense of his article, because he's on 
travel. He's in Japan today. But he did write to 
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submarine. 
So the decision whether to defuel or to refuel 

the SSN-688 fleet, particularly in view of the 
relative youth of this class, is conlniensurately 
imprecise. 

Further, only one yard. Portsmouth, currently 
support5 all SSN-688 requirements. Accordingly, the 
BCEG determined that the naval shipyard Portsmouth 
should be removed from consideration for closure 
because of its unique role as the center of 
excellence for the SSN-688 class submarine. 

Well, first of all. I'd like to mention that 
Portsn~outh is not unique. The Navy plans to perform 
refueling overhauls of SSN-688s at Norfolk Naval 
Shipyard and Pearl Harbor Naval Shipyard. And in 
fact, the first one was performed at Mare lsland 
Naval Shipyard. 

The Navy plans refueling trident submarines at 
Puget Sound Naval Shipyard. The Electric Boat 
Division of General Dynamics is the planning yard for 
the SSN-688s and Newport News and Electric Boat could 
also p e ~ f o r n ~  these refueling overhauls if necessary. 

What about this uncertainty? It can be 
removed. The SSN new construction rate during the 
Future )-ears' Ueftmsr Pian 1s at one-half per year. 

7 :  1 
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imponant, perhaps the. commissioners can be persuade-< 

to keep Long Beach open." end quote. 
Thank you, sir. 
(Clapping .) 
I will now be followed by Dr. Joilnson. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much. Admiral 

Hekman. We're delighted to have you, Dr. Johnson. 
DR. JOHNSON: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Chairman. Is this on? 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: It is, sir. Speaking 

directly into it helps a great deal. 
DR. JOHNSON: I'm going to discuss the subject 

of excess nuclear capacity versus uncertainy. I'd 
like to quote from the Navy's report, page 1-4. "The 
major driver in the determination of future shipyard 
requirements is that the size and nature of the 
future fleet is particularly indefinite. This is 
true with the attack submarine fleet comprised 
principally of SSN-688 class submarines. The 
national and political pressures are increasingly 
impacting the introduction of a replacement 
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v.,c:ri; to repisct f pel year can ~c caicuiatecl. I i  L;,: 

assunlr litat 2 SSK-688 refueling overhauis need to !)e 

done per year. we can iigure out tne worl; load 
associated. 

First of all. their scrapping u80ul:! be 

eliminated. Therefore. their refueling would not br 
performed. and their cutoff would not be performed. 
The 960 thousand man hours represent5 that work lor 
2 submarines. 

The work added to do a refueling overhaul is 
somewhat variable depending on the overhaul package. 
but on average 2 submarine's refueling overhaul 

17 packages would be about 6 point 4 million man hours. 
18 Therefore. the net required increase in capacity 
19 would be 5 point 44 million man hours. 
20 These are the BCEG numbers converted f ron~  
21 direct labor -- thousands of direct labor man years 
72 to millions of man hours for consistency with the 
23 previous charge. The tom1 nuclear capacity numbers 
24 from the BCEG converted are 20 point 8 million man 
25 hours of predicted work load. 33 point 28 maximum 
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potential capacity, leaving an excess to nuclear 
capacity of 12 point 48 million. 

If we subtract 2 refueling overhauls from that 
excess capacity, assuming we had to add to the work 
load of 5 point 44 million from the last view graph, 
we see an excess nuclear capacity of about 7 million 
man hours. And, incidentally, nuclear capacity is 
much more expensive to maintain than nonnuclear 
capacity. 

I compare this excess nuclear capacity with 
the total nuclear capacity of the Pearl Harbor and 
the Portsmouth Naval Shipyards based on the fiscal 
year '99 maximum potential capacity BCEG numbers, 
which are as shown 6 point 6 million and 7 point 4 
million. 

The bottom line is that either yard's nuclear 
capacity could be eliminated, and the Navy could 
execute the BCEG plan work load plus 2 additional 
SSN-688 refueling overhauls. 

Let's now look at what has happened since the 
data submissions. There was a fleet planning 
conference last fall, and there's one going on this 
week. Norfolk Naval Shipyard was already light as 
they entered the fall in fiscal -- in years 1998 and 
1999. We understand that the CV-66 and the CGN-40 at 
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1 Norfolk are now being delayed. Delaying the CGN-40, 
of course, creates more excess nuclear capacity. 

At Long Beach, the CV-63 and CV-64 would have 
to be moved, associated with closing of the yard, and 
Admiral Hekman has already discussed that, but that 
will at least cause dry dock scheduling conflicts at 
Puget Sound, which will result in work load 
bottlenecks at a very minimum. 

And the LHA's appear to be unsolved, at least 
on the West Coast. Maybe they could haul them around 
to the East Coast and do them at Norfolk. 

The Navy is proposing additional nuclear 
capacity at San Diego and Mayforth. Furthermore, the 
Navy avoids consideration of Electric Boat and 
Newport News nuclear capacity. 

The 688 operating cycle was extended to 120 
months between docking selective restricted 
availabilities last December. That is December of 
'94. The impact that is having is that Portsmouth is 
losing 2 in '96, gains 1 in '97, Pearl Harbor is 
losing 2 in '96 and 2 more in '97. 

Furthermore, Portsmouth has no SSN-668 fueling 
overhauls scheduled for '97 and '98 in our 
understanding. The Navy is apparently planning to 
move work scheduled to the private sector, both 
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nuclear and nonnuclear to Portsmouth Naval Shipyard 
to compensate for this. 

Portsmouth has not done surface ship work in 
decades. It does not possess the skills and 
processes. Surface ship work would be either 
expensive and/or poor quality. 

Portsmouth's Dry Dock Number 2 is tied up with 
submarine work. The smallest Navy surface battalion 
is the FFG-7, Class Friggett. 

Dry Dock Number 1 at Portsmouth is not long 
enough for an FFG-7. Dry Dock Number 3 at Portsmouth 
is long enough for an FFG-7, but all the FFG-7s will 
be out of commission about the year 2005. 

It is unclear what surface ship work 
Portsmouth will do over the long haul that would 
merit the investment in new skills and processings in 
the short term. 

Hence, excess nuclear capacity has increased 
since date of submission. 

To summarize, there is excess nuclear capacity 
equal to the total nuclear capacity at either Pearl 
Harbor Naval Shipyard or Portsmouth Naval Shipyard. 
This is the same conclusion that the Joint 
Cross-Service working group came to. 

The Spring Fleet Planning Conference is 
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reducing the work load further. Norfolk is 
apparently getting excess nuclear capacity as a 
result of these changes from the conference. Puget 
has large dry dock conflicts. 

I conclude that the Navy's BRAC conclusions 
run counter to its own data and analysis, and that 
the commission should add Pearl Harbor and Portsmouth 
to the list, reanalyze Pearl Harbor, Portsmouth, and 
Long Beach, and reconsider the Navy's 

recommendations. 
Thank you. 

(Clapping.) 
MR. GURZI: Members of the Commission and 

staff, my name is Bill Gurzi. I'm here as Chairman 
of the Southern California Committee to Save our 
Shipyard. 

Before I begin my presentation, I just want to 
offer the apologies of Harbor Commission President 
Carmen Perez. She had a flight to catch and was not 
able to stay for the rest of the hearing. She offers 
her apologies. 

The Save our Shipyard Committee has monitored 
the base closure activities since long before the 
first BRAC round in 1988. Since 1990, we have even 
monitored the communications of the private sector, 
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and their paper trail leads us to one inescapable 
conclusion, and that is that the only beneficiaries 
from the closure of Long Beach Naval Shipyard would 
be the private sector in San Diego, not the Navy, not 
the Department of Defense. 

So before any proper decision can be reached 
on the fate of Long Beach, the private sectors 
capability within the home port will have to be very 
carefully evaluated. 

After all, as history has shown very 
painfully, once a shipyard is closed, it is closed 
forever. So did the Navy properly quantlfy private 
sector capabilities before recommending closure? 
According to testimony which your BCEG member Charles 
Nemfakos, their capability was looked at, but never 
quantified. 

Before we let Mr. Nemfakos off the list -- off 
the hook too quickly, I'd like to defer to paperwork 
which he submitted to the previous BRAC commission in 
1993. On this very same subject, he stated, 
"Principal dependency, not transient dependency or 
occasional dependency, but principal dependency on 
the private sector to accomplish work bad and to 

24 respond to unplanned emergent and urgent repair puts 
25 fleet readiness at risk." 
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Association has charged publicly that unless Long 
Beach closes, they will be forced -- their member 
yards will be forced out of business, but over the 
last 5 years tbat claim has been defied. 

Now, 5 years later, Long Beach Naval Shipyard 
has reduced its work force by over 1,000 men and 
women, while employment at San Diego's private sector 
yards has actually increased 7 percent since January 
of 1994. 

The committee has reviewed the reports and 
position statements offered over the past BRAC rounds 
by the Board of San Diego Ship Repair Association. 
And their clauns have changed very little since 1991. 
Ironically, they claim today, and accurately I would 
add, that the man-day rate at Long Beach Naval 
Shipyard is about twice that of their yards. The 
man-day rate is the cost of one man or woman working 
one &hour shift. 

They state, and we will not argue, that the 
cost of a man day at Long Beach is nearly twice what 
it is at a San Diego yard. 

And they also state, again accurately, that 
our employees, about 300 of which are sitting in this 

24 room, earn nearly half again as much hourly as their 
25 employees do. We won't argue that. They have a 
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3 this chart to understand how inadequate the private ( 3 how do they explain the fact that on identical ships 

1 Would the fleet be at risk if Long Beach Naval 
2 Shipyard closes? Well, it only takes one look at 

4 sector's dry docking capabilities are compared to 1 4 and identical ship repair packages repair costs in 

1 lower man-day rate. They have a lower pay scale. 
2 But what they fail to answer is the question 

5 Long Beach, and in particular Long Beach's Dry Dock 1 5 the private sector at San Diego come out as much or 
Number 1. 

Of these 8 ship classifications, which 
represent the largest hulls in the Pacific Fleet, 6 
cannot be dry docked in San Diego, but all 8 can be 

easily accommodated at Long Beach Naval Shipyard's 
Dry Dock Number 1. 

(Clapping. 
The Navy and the private sector in San Diego 

rely upon Long Beach for dry-docking of big ships. 
We know that. But Long Beach's Dry Dock Number 1 is 
also designated as the West Coast emergency dry dock 
for all 100 surface ships of the Pacific Fleet, and 
our Numbers 2 and 3 dry docks can handle the majority 

of these ships as well. Our work force is Strike 3. 
There's is not. And it's available to the Navy 
around the clock. Long Beach Naval Shipyard is the 
only West Coast resource for these very important 
services: Sonar dome instaUation and maintenance, 
gyrocompass testing, and rotor post repair. 

Since 1990, the Port of San Diego Ship Repair 
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even more than they do at Long Beach Naval Shipyard. 
This chart represents one -- one overhaul -- 

one set of overhaul packages for one classification 
of ships. These are guided missile cruisers. These 
are the only classification of ships that I could get 
data from the Navy without a subpoena. Otherwise I'd 
have more classifications to show you. 

These are identical work packages. They were 
performed both in Long Beach and in San Diego. Note 
that the average cost per ship at the very bottom 
line, which you probably can't see. The average -- 
and, Mike, you may want to slide that up, because 
those boaom numbers are very important. 

The average cost per ship at San Diego is 
about equal, a little bit higher than the average at 
Long Beach Naval Shipyard. But note, too, that when 
Long Beach implemented its now copied program of cost 
cutting starting in 1988, the next year, 1989, the 
cost of that overhaul actually declined. 

Yet from 1989, the right column, to 1992, all 
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the way at the bottom, in the private sector the 
final cost steadily rose. 

Now, again this table represents only one ship 
classification, but it goes to support the general 
accounting offices claim back in 1990 that findings 
of -- that early claims of cost savings in the 
private sector cannot be substantiated. 

Yet, the Navy took the private sector's 
man-day rate and used that to arrive at their 
unfortunately bogus claim of 1 point 9 billion 
dollars in savings over 20 years by closing Long 
Beach Naval Shipyard and transferring those people's 
work loads down to San Diego. 

In further irony, San Diego claims they can 
provide all the capability that the Navy needs. But 
as that first chart on dry docking clearly showed, 
17 percent or the Pacific Fleet, or nearly 52 percent 
of the biggest ships in the Pacific absolutely cannot 
be dry docked in San Diego. But they'll fit like a 
very small hand in a very big glove at Long Beach's 
Dry Dock Number 1. 

(Clapping.) 
And as to their equally bold claim that they 

can provide considerably more military value to the 
Navy than does Long Beach Naval Shipyard, well, so 

8 1 

1 far no private sector data has been submitted to the 
DOD for certification. 

As we speak, ladies and gentlemen, Long Beach 
Naval Shipyard personnel are in San Diego. They are 
in Pearl Harbor. They are at Norfolk, and those of 
you that were at Long Beach yesterday know that a 
Tiger Team is now being dispatched to Philadelphia to 
work on ships that are currently undergoing repairs 
there. 

There is no substitute for excellence, and San 
Diego's private sector is no substitute individually 
or collectively for the men and women and their 
skills at Long Beach Naval Shipyard. 

(Clapping.) 
The great tragedy scripted by the Navy's 

recommendation to close Long Beach is that without 
this last remaining conventional shipyard, there will 
be no strike-free work force to unconditionally 
support the Pacific Fleet. 

There will be no performance benchmark to 
check the private sectors recurring cost overruns. 
And as you head yesterday if you were in Long Beach, 
by Shirley Morhesa representing the Federal Manager's 
Association, the GAO themselves stated that those 
cost overruns are a problem. 
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The private sector and not the Navy will 
determine repair scheduling and repair priorities. 

Further, private sedor business failures, 
unfortunately like those at Todd Shipyards and Tecoma 
Boat, will reduce repair capability below tolerable 
levels on this coast. 

A uniquely skilled work force already in place 
today at Long Beach will be lost forever. And then 
who will the Navy send to San Diego to supplement 
their limited capabilities. 

(Clapping .) 
On the East Coast -- on the East Coast, 

private sector capabilities actually complement the 
public sector. But here on the West Coast, it's a 
totally different picture. 

Surrendering control of the San Diego fleet to 
the San Diego private shipyards would be an 
irresponsible and unfortunately irreversible act by 
the Navy. 

Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much, 

Mr. Gurzi. 
VICE ADMIRAL HEKMAN: For most of this century 

Long Beach has served as a major home port for Navy 
ships. And I'm going to cut through this in the 
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interest of time, but right now one of the major 
issues in the Navy centers around nuclear carrier 
home porting, and carrier and very large ship 
maintenance and docking. We mentioned some of that 
before. 

The Navy Pacific solution is to home port 3 
nuclear carriers in San Diego commencing with the 
first in October of 1988. And the Navy contends that 
that's a less costly option than placing the ships in 
Long Beach. 

The Navy also says that Long Beach could not 
be facilitated until the year 2003. Finally, the 
Navy contends that the Long Beach facility is 
necessary even before the North Island facility is 
necessary, even if Long Beach were to be used for a 
home port. 

There's been a great deal of study on this 
subject back in 1985 when the Naval Facilities 
Engineering Command under then Aryo Montoya's office 
here on the West Coast looked at a report by the firm 
of Lee and Row of Pasadena, California. It's a very 
comprehensive report, updated as late as December 
1994. 

And it said home porting of nuclear carriers 
at Long Beach is feasible and with little work at a 
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1 cost of between 7 to 25 million dollars. It assumes 
2 the naval station is open. There's a mom! recent 
3 March 1995 study by the commander of the Naval Air 
4 Force Pacific Fleet, and the GAO review of the same. 
5 That sort of prices out the Long Beach option 
6 at about 700 million dollars and about 500 million in 
7 total for the San Diego option. I guess somewhere 
8 there's a middle ground between these 2. 
9 In my professional reading of both, I come 

10 much closer to the Lee and Row report that was 
1 1 commissioned earlier. 
12 The Navy's report has a lot of things that it 
13 doesn't consider. For example, ship recurring 
14 maintenance costs, comparison of local assets outside 
15 the facilities. It assumes regular maintenance and 
16 repair can be accomplished in San Diego by building a 
17 270 million dollar complex by local private 
18 contractors by about 900 per diem nuclear workers 
19 from Puget Sound, although they did not do a cost 
20 comparison on that with Long Beach. 
21 It assumes many costly shipyard improvements 
22 that have to made, which is not what the Lee and Row 
23 report says, nor do I believe that to be true. 
24 It assumes that the North Island facilities 
25 would be required anyway in order to offload aircraft 
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1 and for transient berthing. 
2 It bases its study on 3 carriers in home port 
3 at the same time, which is highly unlikely, but then 
4 it also analyzes all options zeroed down to 3 or up 

to 3, and comes up with the same basic conclusion, 
that it is always better to go with San Diego. 

The general accounting office conducted a 
review of this study. It's only a partial review. 
It's continuing, but they have issued an interim 
report, which is dated the 2 1 st of April of this 
year. And the review contains some significant 
findings. 

And I don't have time to give you a complete 
discussion of what the GAO report does say, the 

15 interim report. I'll cover a few of the items in 
16 order to demonstrate that the GAO views with 
17 skepticism many of the Navy's assumptions, and 
18 certainly with a great deal of scepticism a 
19 significant amount of the data. A few of the 
20 comments are here. 
2 1 The Navy says you got to build 1708 new 
22 housing units, for example, at a cost of 258 million 
23 dollars. The GAO says none are needed. The Navy 
24 says that there are only 6 thousand civilian units 
25 that meet Navy specs for purchase or rent. The GAO 
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says that within a threequarter hour commute during 
rush traffic here, there are 27 thousand civilian 
units that are both affordable and meet the highest 
of Navy standards. 

That rental purchase costs in San Diego are 
far less than they are here at Long Beach. The GAO 
takes the counter position and points out that that 
is not true by a significant 30 percent differential. 

The GAO points out the Navy did not mention 
the 6 thousand unit shortage in San Diego or the 
two-year waiting time to get in. 

The GAO questioned the reasonableness of Navy 
base support estimates. They said 167 million in San 
Diego, and 224 million in Long Beach. The GAO only 
pulled a few things out, like saying 86 million too 
high for parking, admin, dental, dining, and VOQ, 5 
items, which the GAO said shouldn't exceed 4 million. 

The GAO also believes that the Navy's 
estimates for dredging in Long Beach are 
significantly overstated, and perhaps by as much as 
67 million dollars. 

GAO questioned the estimates for upgrading the 
shipyard versus the cost of building the new 
maintenance facilities in San Diego, and then showed 
some examples that weren't covered, but the basic 
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question is yet unanswered. 
GAO discussion of the Navy's position leads 

the reader to the conclusion that it's primarily 
based on a desire to operate out of North Island, and 
1 can understand that. It's a nice place. I've been 
home ported there as well, but I've also been home 
ported in Long Beach, and I found it equally as nice 
a home to live. 

San Diego, they claim has a11 of the things 
shown, which is true. The GAO challenged the 
adjacent airfield. San Diego said that the report 
said they needed to offload aircraft there. The GAO 
found through a Navy review that that occurred about 
once every 3 years, and that they don't have that 
urgency at other ports. 

And a number of other issues that were brought 
up. The bottom line really being CVN's carriers are 
maintenance intensive. I was a chief engineer for 
nuclear carrier for 4 years, and I can certainly 
attest to the fact that it was home 52 days in that 
time. 

It's more advantageous, at least in my mind, 
to bring ships to the facility than it is to go out 
and try to build a facility and then bring ships to 
the one that you build. You certainly ought to use 
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1 what you've got. 
2 (Clapping .) 
3 So I propose that in addition to the shipyard 
4 issue, the home porting issue, the advantages of the 
5 home port be kept in mind by the commission as they 
6 go through their very difficult task of analyzing 
7 this particular area. . 
8 There are enormous advantages in keeping the 
9 Long Beach Shipyard open and in using it as a home 

10 port, and they're just quickly summarized here. 
I 1 I just think that a reevaluation is essential. 
12 And now again I'll be followed by Dr. Johnson, who 
13 will talk about some possible realignment 
14 possibilities for this coast other than the proposal 
15 oftheNavy. 
16 DR. JOHNSON: Thank you. I will be very 
17 brief. We believe that restructuring is necessary 
18 because of the plummeting work of the Navy depot work 
19 load in the ship area, that command and excess 
20 overhead at Pearl Harbor and Long Beach should be 
21 eliminated, and that consideration should be given to 
22 home porting carriers at Long Beach, and also that 
23 Long Beach be considered part of the San Diego home 
24 port. 
25 I wiU only discuss specifically structuring 
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1 poptions, I have no strong preference among them. 
Nor do I see major cost differences between them. 
The Navy should make the final choice on the context 
of an overall ship depot maintenance strategy. 

I have some concerns with their cost estimates 
of savings I'd like to submit for the record. 

There are 2 basic alternatives, and in the 
first alternative there are 2 options. You could 
place Pearl Harbor and Long Beach under the technical 
and management control of the Puget Sound Naval 
Shipyard. Within that, the 2 options are to make 
them ship repair facilities. 

The second option would be to make them 
detachments of Puget Sound. 

The first option is SRS, the repair 
facilities. They would report to the fleet 
maintenance officer, Paciiic. He would in turn 
delegate management and technical authority to the 
commanding officer at Puget Sound Naval Shipyard. 
Right now, the fleet maintenance officer Pacific is 
already the commanding officer of Puget's homeless 
sole customer. 

The second option would be as detachments. 
This would allow the commander officer at Puget to 
optimize the use of all 3 sets of facilities to 
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satisfy the Pacific Fleet requirements. This would 
be completely consistent with the proposed business 
operating center concept that the Navy is 
investigating for the shipyards. 

This Option 2 would be the most 
straightforward chain of command, but in practice it 
in fact is not very much different from Option 1. 

Alternative 2 would be to assign Pearl Harbor 
Naval Shipyard and Long Beach Naval Shipyard to the 
regional maintenance centers at Pearl Harbor and San 
Diego. As part of the regional maintenance centers, 
they would report again to the fleet maintenance 
officer Pacific. 

That is why I'm saying that it's all very 
similar. The Navy needs to figure out if the -- what 
would be the optimal strategy as far as an overall 
maintenance strategy. 

In addition, I believe you should consider 
home porting 2 or 3 CVs, CVNs at Long Beach. 
Continuing to maintain a home port infmtcucture at 
Long Beach is much less expensive than building 
maintenance facilities at San Diego. This is a 
sensible quality of life improvement for the sailors. 

Thank you very much. 
(Clapping .) 

9 1 

VICE ADMIRAL HEKMAN: Thank you very much, 
Dr. Johnson. I failed to say about Dr. Johnson that 
in his distinguished civilian service in the Navy, he 
won the meritorious civilian service award twice, and 
the superior civilian service award twice. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Excellent. 
CONGRESSMAN HORN: Let me just briefly wrap it 

up. You've seen a number of us repeat the simple 
truth that the study of the Navy is deeply flawed. 
It was contrived to generate a predetermined set of 
answers. You've heard from 2 experts, Admiral Hekman 
and Dr. Johnson, who know the Navy from the inside as 
well as can observe things objectively without, who 
understaad the differences between the capabilities 
of private and public yards. 

What we see in all of this is not only that 
they violate the basic law that guides this 
commission, the commission who is so ably 
administered, they have deviated from the possesses 
set down in the law. And beyond that, they deviated 
from basic common sense, and I can't believe they 
don't know it. 

There is greater excess nuclear capacity than 
there is nonnuclear. Everyone knows that. The Navy 
set out to do something about it. And in their sort 
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1 of magical way, like naval assignments of people 
2 skilled in logistics to be a cook, which was true in 
3 the second world war, they have decided to cancel the 
4 nonnuclear yards to get at nuclear capacity. I'd 
5 find that rather ironic if it wasn't so pitiful. 

But we have suggested to you a win-win 
situation, which Dr. Johnson and Admiral Hekman have 
just elaborated, and that is realigning both Pearl 
Harbor and Long Beach including the Long Beach Naval 
Shipyard in the Regional Maintenance Center Concept, 
and that keeps the industrial capabilities of Long 
Beach and its quality work force available to the 
Navy. 

In terms of the realignment decision, it's 
going to obviously save dollars. In terms of where 
the nuclear carriers should go, several top experts 
in the Navy have told me that you can do it at Long 
Beach through what the study said about 7 to 25 
million, that no dredging charges are made to the 
federal government at Long Beach. They are in San 
Diego. 

They are Ealking about somewhere between 500 
million and 750 million, and a number of people that 
have looked at the San Diego situation says that will 
easily go to 1 billion. 
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The fact of life is we should think not only 
about the defense budget being effectively used, but 
we should think about the American taxpayer's dollars 
being picked. 

The Long Beach Naval Shipyard is a critical 
asset. It's at the southern part of the major 
intermodal project in the nation, which is the 
20-mile Alameda corridor that is merging 3 railroad 
lines so they can go dockside at the Port of L.A., 
the Port of Long Beach, the major port complex in 
America. 

And that will also help delivering inventory 
in a timely cost effective way to the naval shipyard, 
and moving supplies and objects to be repaired in the 
depot maintenance concept easily in and out of that 
shipyard. 

I want to thank each of the commissioners for 
being here today. Welcome to California. We're 
sorry it's under such sad, tension ridden 
circumstaaces. We hope you'll come back and enjoy 
both Northern and Southern California, and we 

22 appreciate your patience and atkentiveness. 
23 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, sir. 
24 (clapping. 
25 Ladies and gentlemen, we're going to have one 
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1 question from Commissioner Cox. Then we're going to 

2 take a break until 3:05, when we'll hear from the 
3 folks talking about the Sierra Army Depot. 
4 Commissioner Cox? 
5 COMMISSIONER COX: I think. Admiral Hekman, 

you would be the appropriate person, but anyone. 
When we went through this in 1993, they outlined some 
of the very same difficulties you all raised with 
replacing the dry dock capacity at Long Beach. At 
the time there was some thought that we would be able 
to use a portable dry dock or floating dry dock I 
believe out of Subic Bay. You mentioned a little bit 
yesterday, but I wonder if you could give us a quick 
answer on your thoughts on whether that's an option? 

VICE ADMIRAL HEKMAN: I did a study in 1990 
when I was commander of the Naval Sea Systems Command 
of the dock in Subic Bay. It's called the machinist, 
or it's now in mothballs in Hawaii. That dock was 
looked at by the Navy at that time by myself for the 
large amphibious ships. 

The study was it showed that the dock could 
not take these ships. Then we looked at could we 
improve the dock in order to take the ships. With a 
significant amount of money, probably in the 
neighborhood of 75 to 100 million dollars, we would 
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-- we would have to put over 8 thousand tons of 
additional material into the dock to give it the 
strength that it needed. It being designed at 25 
thousand tons, and the ship in its very lightest 
condition is 25 thousand 700 tons. 

With that 700-ton difference, there was a high 
risk capability with adding 8 thousand tons of 
material to strengthen the dock to bring it to the 
specifications. It no longer had the lift capacity 
in order to lift the ship. So we abandoned that. 

That was recently looked at again, and a study 
came out in San Diego which said that it was possible 
to do. But that study used a commercial design lift 
capacity of 31 thousand tons. 

So in order to settle the argument, a recent 
look was made by a company in Massachusetts that 
certifies the Navy docks. I forget the name. 
Crandall Dry Dock Engineering Company. It's a very 
reputable firm, been doing it for almost a century. 
Their bottom line was that, yes, if you didn't use 
military specifications, it was possible to do. But 

22 with military specifications, it was definitely not 
23 possible to do, and their recommendation was to 
24 excess the dock and sell it to the commercial sector 
25 where there is a market. 
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1 COMMISSIONER COX: Thank you. 
2 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Admiral Hekman. 
3 We will be back in session promptly at 3:05. 
4 (Recess was taken.) 
5 -- & -- 
6 
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CHAIRMAN DIXON: Would you fine folks please 
stand and raise your right hand. Do you solemnly 
swear or affirm that the testimony you are about to 
give to the Defense Base Closure and Realignment 
Commission shall be the truth, the whole truth, and 
nothing but the truth? 

SPEAKERS: I do. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: I understand that each of you 

has been assigned a certain number of minutes, and 
we'll proceed on that basis. You have your timer 
over there. 

MR. LENSING: Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Lensing, 

we're delighted to have you, Chairman of the 
Committee to Retain Sierra Army Depot, Mr. Jack 
Lensing. 

MR. LENSING: Good afternoon. My name is Jack 
Lensing, Chairman of the Committee to Retain Sierra 
Army Depot, and past president of the Lassen County 
Chamber of Commerce. I'm pleased to have Lyle Lough, 
Lassen County Supervisor, and James Jeskey, Mayor of 
the city of Susanvitle, speaking with me this 
morning. 

The materials we have provided and this 
presentation will point out the capabilities that 

99 

Sierra possesses which were not adequately assessed 
in the Army's deliberations. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Stop the clock. Close the 
doors. Get the people outside. Start the clock. 

MR. LENSING: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The 
materials we have provided and the presentation will 
point out the capabilities Sierra possesses, which 
were not adequately assessed in the Army's 
deliberation. 

Also, we'll address why the projected one-time 
costs are estimated to be too low and estimated 
manpower and recurring savings are too high. 

These 2 elements alone combine to make 
Sierra's realignment a bad business decision. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Mr. Lensing, stop. What's 
going on out here? Get that out of here. Now, 
Mr. Lensing, I'm going to have order for you or we're 
going to have a fight. 

MR. LENSING: I would certainly appreciate you 
as an ally. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: You're going to have to come 
with me. You're a lot bigger guy. 

MR. LENSING: We'll do it. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Now, have you - we have not 

interrupted his time. Are you comfortable, or would 
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you like to start over? 
MR. LENSING: Whatever's the -- 
CHAIRMAN DCYON: Your pleasun, Mr. Lensiag. 
MR. LENSING: We'll just continue on if you 

don't mind. Most of this is written testimony. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Lensing. 
MR. LENSING: And I'd like to reinforce it. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: I apologize to you, sir. 
MR. LENStNG: Thank you. There are many more 

failings to the Army's BRAC 95 process and 
methodologies. It is these areas we'll spend most of 
our time highlighting. We hope that by the end of 
the presentation you'll agree that Sierra's location, 
efficiencies, and capabilities, make it the perfect 
fit for America's Army and the nation. 

As we studied the process that put Sierra on 
the block, we came to realize the Army failed to 
credit Sierra properly for its many strengths, some 
unique or shared by only a couple of htallations. 

At the same time, the Army failed to ensure 
its work was completed using accurate data and 
following logical constructs throughout their 
analyses. We'll address these 2 areas in detail. 

Putting the bottom line up front, we believe 
Sierra should not be downsized. In fact, we think 
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its many attributes demand an expansion of both the 
operation project stocks and the ammunition storage 
missions. By the time the Army adds back the 
personnel necessary to support the operation project 
stocks mission, the potential to leverage an accepted 
business principle -- the economy of scale -- should 
provide sufficient incentive to increase, not reduce 
the mission. 

These are some of the specific strengths 

Sierra has to offer: warfighting commanders, joint 
planners and taxpayers alike. I'd like you to note 
the Army's guidance shown at the top of the slide. 

The essence of affordably projecting America's 
military power is represented on the slide. Lowest 
costs, best location, an on-site airfield capable of 
handling the largest of our Air Force's aircraft, 
and a demil capability that will do 3 1 percent of all 
the Department of Defense's work this year. Add the 
two main lines for the major east-west railroads, an 
unlimited ability to expand the operation, and an 
ideal climate to store the rapidly growing munitions 
stockpile of all services, and it's clear Sierra is a 
world-class power projection platform. 

Therefore, it should be carefully protected in 
the national interest, not thrown away by 
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questionable, short-term expediencies. 
We're not going to dwell on each of the 

strengths, but do want to underscore the magnitude of 
differences between Sierra and other depots in 2 
areas: cost and demil capability. 

As you can see, Sierra is over 10 dollars per 
hour cheaper than its closest competitor. Also with 
the savings of 10 dollars per ton, the taxpayer will 
save a tidy amount, over half a million, on Sierra's 
fiscal year '95 demil program. When an installation 
costing so much less than the average is removed from 
the system, the only way the expenses can go is up. 

Moreover, look at the enormous capacity for 
demil that Sierra has, 35 times greater than the next 
most capable. Let me repeat that. 35 times greater. 

We've included two charts in your materials 
showing what this really means. The amount of 
material which can be demiled in one day at Sierra 
will take from 35 to 1400 days to complete at other 
hstallations. These two charts should highlight the 
need for keeping this capability. 

Finally, Sierra has been a key contributor to 
the Navy's ability to meet intemational treaty 
obligations. We do not know of any other facility 
that can meet their needs. 
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1 Now, turning to the next major area, problems 
2 with the Army's process for ammo storage facilities. 
3 The Army's process was specifically criticized in tbe 
4 GAO report for the accuracy of some data used in the 
5 military value analysis for ammo storage 
6 htallations. In their review, they validated 
7 existence of some data inaccuracies. We believe 
8 these problems are significant factors for Siem. 
9 Additionally, we believe there are other major 

10 weaknesses not identified by the GAO. The errors 
1 1 range from those associated with incorrect 
12 classification of inmllations, the failure to 
13 resolve questions raised by conflicting studies, the 
14 use of bad data, garbage in-garbage out COBRA 
15 analysis, and basing the military value analysis on a 
16 seriously flawed, subordinate study. 
17 The first problem is that the Army used a 
18 mission area, munitions storage, to characterize the 
19 function of the entire imtallation and its work 
20 force. Obviously, this stemmed from a lack of 
21 appreciation for what actually takes place at Sierra 
22 and led the analysts to make bad assumptions. 
23 These assumptions, as reflected in the COBRA 
24 analysis, led the Army's leadership to believe the 
25 costs are lower and the savings higher than possible. 
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1 We'll address the magnitude of these errors later. 
2 Before we leave this slide, it's important to 
3 note the OPS stock mission is one which has been 
4 increasing. Currently, Sierra maintains 5 of the 16 
5 OPS stock items in the Army inventory. 
6 As the Army's center of technical excellence 
7 for OPS stocks, it's reasonable to expect much of the 
8 material moved as a result of BRAC transitions would 
9 come this way. 

10 Also, as our Army transitions to a conus based 
1 1 force and returns with its equipment, the requirement 
12 will grow. This indicates Sierra will continue to be 
13 a vital piece of the Army well into the future. We 
14 think it's more effecfive to spread the costs of 

1 Department of the Army made no efforts to reconcile 
2 differences between what they chose to use and the 
3 data submitted by the instahtion. 
4 Had they done so, there would either have been 
5 neither -- no bad data used or no opportunities for 
6 communities to raise the question. Because they did 
7 not, we are, and believe the GAO's report supports 
8 the assertion. 
9 The first amibute measured in the Army's 

10 analysis was about 57 thousand square feet in area. 
, 

11 This resulted when Sierra incorrectly used the 
12 category definitions provided. The fact remains, 
13 however, that the numbers used in the Army's analysis 
14 was wrong. It would seem the process of data 

15 keeping the gates open across a larger, not a 1 15 collection, certitication, and validation should have 
1 6 smaller, operation. 
17 One of the studies referenced in the Army's 
18 documentation is called the Wholesale Ammunition 
19 Stockpile Program or WASP. It was completed with 
20 participation from each of the services and took a 
21 comprehensive look at the current and future 
22 stockpile management funding dilemma. It's focus, 
23 concern that, quote, "degradation in stockpile 
24 safety, readiness, and quality was occurring based 
25 upon the reduced level at which essential stockpile 
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caught this mistake. 
Perhaps if the Department of the Army had 

taken some efforts to reconcile apparent errors with 
the haallation, bad data would not be found in 
sufficient amount to warrant the GAO's comments. 

In this case, the difference between the 
figures represented a significant tonnage of munition 
storage capacity. 

This charts reflects the difference between 
including the Reno, Nevada, area and the economic 
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5 However, we're at a loss to understand how 1 5 areas, guidance from DOD policy memorandum 3, that 

1 readiness functions were being accomplished, " end 
2 quote. 
3 As you can see, both the WASP and the Army's 
4 BRAC staff addressed similar issues. 

1 area of Sierra for BRAC 95. Obviously, adding the 
2 Reno area has a dramatic effect of Sierra resource 
3 pool for assessing available work force. We believe 
4 that based on using the determination of economic 

hearings, we understand your staff is wrestling with 
the storage capacity question, so we're not going to 

delve into this further at this time. 
Now, here are some points which scream for 

attention. The data used in 6 of 17 areas was wrong, 
simply, irrefutably incorrect in 35 percent of the 
cases. In fact, the situation was so bad that the 
GAO raised it in both their report and testimony to 
you. The quotation is from their report, but we feel 
sure you have a better appreciation for this area 
than words can convey. 

We've included a matrix which identifies the 

6 these two analyses can come to such diamemcdy 
7 opposed conclusions. Based on Savanna's regional - 

In fairness, we have to acknowledge the 
efforts DOD made to ensure consistency of data 
measurement across instahtiom. 

However, although consistency can be a virtue, 
too rigid an approach distorts, not clarifies, the 
analysis. 

One final example of data errors. Sierra 
reported 2 numbers for the cost of using a landfill. 
The higher applies to an off-site base, and the lower 
to the on-site location. They also indicated they 
used the on-site at 37 dollars. However, the Army 
analysis used the 110 dollar figure, which led to an 

. . 

6 the Reno area should have been included in Sierra's 
7 economic area. It was during BRAC '93. 

22 to Number 3. 1 22 Again, reconciliation would have prevented 
23 Of special note is that the Army contributed 1 2 3  this. 

20 errors for Sierra. It also shows how, if the correct 
21 data is used, Sierra's ranking moves from Number 7 up 

24 to the problem by departing from their procedures in 
25 previous BRAC rounds. Unlike BRAC '91 and '93, he 
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20 indication of possible out-year problems, which is 
21 incorrect. 

24 There are other additional errors in this 
25 attribute area. Instead of walking through each one, 
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1 we've provided a chart showing some of the 
2 differences between what Sierra reported and the 
3 Department of Army BRAC staff used. In all cases -- 
4 CHAIRMAN DtXON: Mr. Lensing, are you going to 

5 conclude, sir, shortly? Thank you. 
6 MR. LENSING: In all cases, Sierra has 
7 validated their original input. In some cases, the 
8 value is even higher than originally submitted. 
9 One final point before leaving the issue of 

10 BRAC data accuracy. There may be even more errors 
1 1 than what we've noted. The reason I say this is the 
12 difficulty we've had in obtaining the certified data 
13 used in the analysis. 
14 In fact, we understood that even the depot 
15 staff has fully not received a copy of the data 
16 actually used by the Army in the analysis. 
17 We had expected the Department of the Army to 
18 be much more responsive to requests for infonuation 
19 about the process. After all, it's supposed to be an 
20 open one. It doesn't appear the Army shares that 
21 view. 
22 CHAIRMAN DKON: Thank you, Mr. Lensing. 
23 We'll have to hear from Mayor Jim Jesky now. Thank 
24 you very much. Mayor Jim Jesky . 
25 MAYOR JESKY : Thank you. Here we see the 
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1 impact of bad data on the input of the COBRA model. 
2 First, the costs. The Army failed to acknowledge the 

expense of moving ammunition that won't be destroyed. 
This is the good stuff. It will cost between 38 and 
91 million dollars, depending on where it's moved. 

Also, there are dollars associated with 
demiling of Sierra Army Depot current inventory. 
Even if completed at Sierra, with the attendant cost 
savings, it's sti l l  19 million. These are two of the 

larger areas overlooked. 
The personnel savings are particularly 

troubling, because the Army's recommendation fails to 
leave enough people in place to do the job necessary. 
A detailed look at how this occurred is in your 
materials. 

In a nutshell, the Army has shorted the depot 
about 280 people. This error will reduce the steady 
state savings about approximately 34 percent per 
year. That's 5 point million, give or take, and is a 
substantial piece of even Bill Gates' personal income 
taxes. 

Errors in the data are not unique to Sierra 
Army Depot. This chart shows the munitions storage 
capacity credited to 5 locations in both BRAC '93 and 
'95. It would seem to us that this kind of asset 
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would be relatively fixed. We really don't 
understand how this kind of capacity could change so 
much. 

Sierra had the smallest change, with an 
increase of about 7 point 8 percent. The next lowest 
was at 30 percent, while Tooele grew an amazing 114 
percent between the 2 BRACs. This kind of gross 
inconsistency should certainly warrant the 
commission's scrutiny prior to accepting the Army's 
recommendation. 

We also idenhfy problems with the Army's BRAC 
process. For example, the Army's report states 
ammunition storage facilities support the operational 
requirement of power projections. The BRAC analysis 
failed to use any meaningful measures of merit u, 
assess the ability to project power. 

First, they only evaluated distances to 
airfields, ports, railheads, and interstate highways. 
They did not measure the ability to prepare, load, or 
deliver munitions to any of these transportation 
nodes. 

We'll skip the next bullet and address the 
issue of outload capacity later. 

Second, they ignored the cost differences 
between installations. They penalized cost effective 
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depots and rewarded the more expensive ones. 
Finally, no weight was given to the efficiency 

of moving the munitions. Certainly, Sierra Army 
Depot's 2 main rail lines can feed material to the 
western ports faster than other indlations without 
such direct access. 

Also, their onsite airfield allows tremendous 
responsibility, responsiveness for time critical 
items. 

Another criticism of the Army's BRAC process 
is that the munition storage functioa was based on a 
subordinate product cded the Tier Depo Analysis. 
It also has large problems. The decision to insert 
its results in the BRAC process introduced fatal 
errors into the Army's analysis. 

For example, only 4 of the tiering studies 
measures were even addressed in the BRAC matrix. As 
previously mentioned, those 4 measures of merit were 
looked at about as superficially as possible. 

More importantly, the data used in the tiering 
study does not appear to have been certified in 
accordance with the law, DOD policy, or the Army's 
process. If this is correct, and we believe it is, 
the Army based its BRAC recommendations on 
noncertified data in violation of Public Law 101 -5 10, 
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as amended. 
Finally, and almost as importantly, the data 

used was not correct. 
This is representation of the Army's process 

for ammo storage instahtions as shown in their 
report. We're not going to belabor this point. We 
want to emphasize the role of the military value 
assessment as quoted at the top of the slide. In the 
Army's process, quote, "The MVA provides the basis 
for identifying BRAC study candidates," unquote. 
This did not happen with the ammo storage facilities. 

Although 2 installations not addressed by the 
tiering study were included as BRAC study candidates, 
they were subsequently eliminated from closure 
realignment consideration based on their chemical 
munitions demil capabilities. Essentially, 
instahtions with capable -- with chemical demil 
capabilities were categorically excluded. 

The next slide shows how the integration of 
the tiering study results and the BRAC analysis fails 
to comply with the Army process. 

Since the operational blueprint for this 
category specifically directs the elimination of Tier 
3 instahtions, no other Tier 1 or 2 facilities were 
ever at risk. As previously stated, the tiering 
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study, not the installation assessment, nor the 
military value analysis, determined which 
instahtions were Tier 1, 2, or 3. 

Therefore the operational blueprint demanded 
the BRAC study candidates include all hstalhtions 
classified by the tiering study as Tier 3 and ignore 
the remainder. In short, the purpose of the Army's 
BRAC '95 process, as it related to munitions storage 
htallations, was to eIiminate facilities already 
set up for closure or realignment by another study. 

The Tier 3 instahtions never had a chance. 
They went directly from being identified by one bad 
analysis to being selected for closure or realignment 
by another. 

And, again, we'd like to point out that the 
certified data the Army collected for BRAC was an 
input to the instahtion assessment process. When 
the Tier 3 installations bypassed the process, the 
certification chain was broken. 

Oh, yes, and the data was inaccurate. 
MR. LOUGH: 1'11 be taking it up from here. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Jesky, and 

we're delighted to have you Mr. Lough. 
MR. LOUGH: Thank you. Regarding this next 

slide, a few other errors in the tier analysis 
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resulted from no or too little credit being given for 
significant functions. The demil capacity areas 
should have been obvious to the Army staff since it's 
well known that Sierra has the most capability in the 
Army. 

However, the worst thing about the tier 
analysis is that even when the leadership 
acknowledged that the data used was wrong, they made 
light of it. They seemed more concerned about 
protecting their process than having used inaccurate 
data to base their decisions on. 

However much General Holmes wished his data 
was accurate, correct, and valid, it wasn't. The 
example of demil capacity points that out fairly 
directly, So if the demil values were incorrect, how 
much more of the data was in error. Shouldn't the 
discovery of a mistake in data assumed to be so pure 
have triggered some sort of review? We think so, but 
it didn't. 

Instead the Army stood on a pat statement to 
the effect that there was no need for audit. It was 
this flawed data that drove the tier placements, and 
that's what drove the BRAC recommendations. 

A few minutes ago we mentioned outload 
capability. This is synonymous with power 
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projection, an element as defined in the tier depot 
analysis. Power projection was the most important 
attribute in the tier study, but the Army emphasized 
the wrong elements. 

We believe the presence of very expensive 
infrastructure shown on the slide as physical 
constraints is much more important than the number of 
forklifts or trucks on a station. Equipment, people, 
and vehicles can be obtained or redistributed with a 
little leadership initiative. 

It's pretty hard to build a major rail line, 
and air fields are very expensive. Yet, this is what 
the Army did. They weighted the activities, those 
things dependent on people, equipment, and other such 
stuff heavily, while they gave little weight to the 
lack of these physical constraints. 
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I 17 Now, just a couple of quick comments about the 
18 economic impact the Army's recommendation will have 
19 on our County. Over 22 percent of our jobs would be 
20 affected. It will effectively double unemployment. 
21 and it will put about 5 years worth of housing stock 
22 on the market in a relatively short time. 
23 Devastating is the only word we could find to capture 
24 the effect. 
25 Moreover, while the DOD and ad-tion 

116 



DEFENSE BASE CLOSURE & REALIGNMENT COMMISSION HEARING 4/28/95 

have good intentions for helping communities reuse 
those facilities, there's not much prospect for reuse 
on Sierra. It's an extremely remote installation, 
which is just the kind of place we used to want to 
keep our ammunition. 

We don't see any realistic chance in the 
foreseeable future at least for having a viable reuse 
for the installation if the Army's recommendation 
stands. 

And we have included more detailed information 
in your binders. 

To wrap this up, we believe the real strengths 
of Sierra are largely things which cannot be 
replicated in any other place. 

First, Sierra is extraordinarily well-served 
by transportation systems, and there are no better 
climatic conditions for munitions storage. 

Second, Sierra is solid environmentally. They 
are about to receive a 10-year permitting by CAL EPA 
to operate their OBOD facility. There should be no 
question of the viability of Sierra's 
demilitarization program. 

The testing on environmental e f f a  of open 
burnlopen detonation demil being done at Dugway 
Proving Grounds is further positive proof. 
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And third, the remoteness of Sierra and the 
county's mile-wide public safety zone further 
protects it from encroachment. 

When you add the fourth largest storage, 
lowest costs, and highest demil capacity, we believe 
you have a world class power projectioa platform. 

However, the retention of such a valuable 
national asset has been put at risk by conflicting 
studies, bad data, flawed analysis, and results 
oriented exercises. As taxpayers, we can't afford to 
sacrifice the advantages of Sierra on the alter of 
such poor staff work. 

As we said at the beginning, the Sierra Army 
Depot matches the Army guidance to retain affordable, 
world-class power projection platforms. We 
understand the need to close inefficient and 
out-moded imtallations. But closure of such an 
efficient profit center to mahtah more costly 
alternatives is not only arguable, it defies common 
sense. 

Sierra Amy Depot truly is the perfect fit for 
America's Army and the nation. We urge you to 
reverse the Army's recommendation for realignment 
and, if the opportunity presents itself, expand the 
munitions mission or add new missions. 
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Now, I'd like to thank you for the opportunity 
to present our views. I know that you'll review this 
material carefully, and we appreciate the difficult 
task before you. 

Finally, I'd like to say one other thing. 
Jack didn't mention it, but none of us are 
professional speakers or retired military. We are 
businessmen, though, and we know a bad decision when 
we see one. I've reached my last page, and it's 
blank, which is how my mind just went. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: I thank you, Mr. Lough. A 

very good presentation 
MR. LENSING: At this time with the Chairman's 

permission, we'd like to turn the floor over to Mike 
DiGiordano, Field Rep for Congressman Herger. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: We're delighted to have him 

here representing the distinguished congressman. 
MR. DIGIORDANO: Thank you, Chairman Dixon, 

for the opportunity to testdy on behalf of Sierra 
Army Depot. I'm here today to offer a written 
statement from the Honorable Wally Herger, who 
represents California's 2nd Congressional District, 
which includes Lassen County and Sierra Army Depot. 

Congressman Herger had the pleasure of touring 
Sierra Army Depot Tuesday with Commissioner Steele, 
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and expresses his gratitude for her diligence and 
professionalism. Her first-hand knowledge and 
insight will be valuable as you examine the case for 
Sierra Army Depot. 

The Congressman's statement, which is at Tab B 
in your package, specifically addresses milimry 
value, cost versus savings, and the economic impact 
of a major realignment at the Sierra Army Depot. I 
would respectfully request that this statement be 

entered into the official record as part of the 
testimony for this regional hearings. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: And it will be admitted into 
the record. The entire document will be admitted. 

MR. DIGIORDANO: I would like to take a few 
moments of your time to reiterate our concern 
regarding the data used as criteria for rating or 
ranking bases during the Army's evaluation process. 

Since the tiering study process first began, 
there have been problems with the accuracy of the 
information used. As we question findings, more 
evidence came to light which cast shadows on already 
suspicious figures. The more we challenged the 
process, the more disturbed we became that black and 
white numbers, complicated formulas, and a subjective 
or indefinitive weighting system are glossing over 
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1 the facts which makes the Sierra Army Depot the ideal 1 1 I thought the BRAC was supposed to save money, 
location for an ammunition stockpile. 

We are still troubled with the projected 
shortfall of ammunition storage capability. This 
closure and realignment process will further reduce 
that capacity by some 5 million square feet. 

We are also apprehensive about the loss of the 
best and most cost effective demilitarization 
function within the Department of the Army. Loss of 
Sierra Army Depot's demil mission will have a 
significant impact on certain types of munitions and 
rocket motor demolition required by the Reduction and 
Limitation of Strategic Arms talks, commonly referred 
to as START I and START II treaties. 

Furthermore, there is concern that extra costs 
associated with transportation, shipping, demil and 
storage are not being considered in the return on 
investment formula. Between added personnel and the 
cost increase required to have other instaUations 
handle Sierra Army Depot's mission, there appears to 
be a substantial cost outlay and no cost savings. 

The military value of Sierra Army Depot is 
strategic, and the documentation presented supports 
that conclusion. With the most ideal location, the 
most efficient labor costs, the finest transportation 
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not spend more. Sierra has the best demil operation 
in the country. Our open burnlopen detonation is the 
biggest and the best. Also, the Army has over 400 
thousand tons of ammo that needs to be demiled. 

It may -- it looks like somebody tried real 
hard to manipulate the numbers. Demil is our 
strongest mission at Siem. Over 60 percent of our 
ammo workload. BRAC doesn't give us any credit for 
this or for having the best rates. 

The numbers between the 2 studies aren't even 
consistent. How can you measure the same things and 
get different results? 

Our special weapons mission is going away, and 
we're losing 350 military personnel. If BRAC '95 
wants some real savings, why don't they claim these 
savings. They should stick to the special weapons 
reductions and leave the critical ammunition alone. 

All this decision does is take out the best 
and the cheapest demil operation in the Army, and for 
what? Nothing will be saved and the effect on the 
local economy will be disastrous. 

There is no way to reuse value to our ammo 
area. I thought the object of BRAC was to save the 
taxpayer money. 
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1 capabilities, the greatest demilitarization capacity, 1 1  The bottom line is that the Department of 
2 and the fourth largest storage volume overall, it is [ 2 Defense doesn't have all the facts on Sierra Army 

the forefront is greatly appreciated. 
Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: We thank you very much, 

Mr. DiGiordano. 
MR. LENSING: The last speaker we have, 

Mr. Chairman, is Jay Brandenburger, representing a 
number of the workers at Sierra Army Depot and 
rounding out the community approach. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: We're delighted to have 
Mr. Brandenburger. 

MR. BRANDENBURGER: G d  afternoon. My name 
is Jay Brandenburger. I'm a union steward and a work 
leader at Sierra. 

According to the WASP review, there is no ammo 

storage left in the system. We will be forced to 
store more and more ammo outside. It's going to cost 
us 100 million dollars to move our ammo to other 
depots. So why are we moving our stocks further 
inland to more costly depots only to ship it further 
to port? This makes no sense and borders on waste, 
fraud, and abuse. 
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3 a model for military preparedness and excellence. 
4 Your support in bringing this information to 

national defense as it will reduce our overall 
capabilities. I urge you to get all the real facts 
and vote to keep the ammo mission at Sierra Army 
Depot. 

Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you. Mr. Brandenburger. 

I want to thank you all on behalf of the commission 
for that line presentation for Sierra Army Depot. 
We're indebted to you. Thank you very much. 

(Clapping -) 
-- & -- 

3 Depot. The sad thing is that if we have to live with 
4 this decision, it will have a negative impact on our 
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1 CHAIRMAN DIXON: We're going to hear from San 

2 Diego now. The distinguished Councilman from San 
3 Diego, Mr. Harry Mathis. Is he here? 
4 Mr. Mathis, I understand that you will be the 
5 only person testifying; is that true, sir? 
6 COUNCILMAN MATHIS: Yes, sir, that is correct. 
7 CHAIRPERSON DLXON: I'm obligated, sir, to ask 

you to raise your right hand. Do you solemnly swear 
or affirm that the testimony you are about to give 
before the Defense Base Closure and Realignment 
Commission shall be the truth, the whole truth, and 
nothing but the truth? 

COUNCILMAN MATHIS: I do. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: We're indebted to you in 

coming here today, Councilman Mathis. We understand 
you are aIso a retired captain for the US Navy. 

COUNCILMAN MATHIS: Yes, sir, that's correct. 
Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and Members of the 
Commission. I'm Harry Mathis, I have the honor to 
represent the First Council District in the city of 
San Diego, and I thank you and the commission for the 
opportunity to be here today to address you on issues 
important to the city of San Diego. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Captain Mathis, if you'll 
wait just a moment. You have a little extra minute. 
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There's a little stining. Could we have quiet in 
the room, please, for the distinguished Councilman 
from San Diego. Councilman Mathis, please, we have 
not taken from your time, go right ahead now. 

COUNCILMAN MATHIS: Thank you, sir. As you 
mentioned, I am a retired Navy captain. I served on 
active duty for 28 years, so I have somewhat of a 
perspective from the military side, which I can 
relate to much of the testimony that you've heard 

today. 
My career did include service in the Pentagon 

as well as command of a nuclear submarine at two 
shore bases, the submarine base of Pearl Harbor and 
the Naval Training Center at Orlando, Florida. 

As we begin our discussions concerning base 
closures in San Diego, we are not unmindful that the 
San Diego region will benefit from the Department of 
Defense's 1995 base closure and realignment 
recommendations. We appreciate that. We're proud of 
our price to the Navy and pleased that the Navy has 
selected San Diego for the West Coast Naval Megaport. 
We realize that we're very fortunate, but we also 
recognize that we have a community that's very Navy 
supportive, and over the many years has had very 
close ties with the Navy across a complete spectrum 
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of their workload capabilities. 
We welcome the new missions and neighbors to 

our community and pledge our continuing support to 
facilitate their move to San Diego. 

While the principal focus of BRAC tends to be 
on base closings, the realignment of activities can 
be extremely important as well. They deserve your 
close attention. 

Cumulative -- cumulatively they can have a 
significant effect on the long range efficiency and 
effectiveness of the services, which is all the more 
critical to downsize. 

Short-term savings and ill-advised moves could 
cost us dearly in the future, and I know you all 
recognize that. 

My remarks will begin by addressing two 
important naval activities which have been identified 
in the BRAC '95 process as candidates for relocation 
from the San Diego area. The Naval Health Research 
Center or NHRC, and the Navy Personnel Research and 
Development Center or NPRDC. When we get into this 

acronyms and alphabet soup, it may help if you just 
remember that when you hear an H, it's for health, 
and P for personnel. 

In both these case the recommendation is to 
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1 move the activity, not eliminate it. In other words, 
2 the need for its function is not challenged, and 
3 there are presumably savings and efficiencies to be 
4 gained by the move. 
5 There are no significant potential savings in 

1 aspects of Navy and Marine Corps personnel he& d 
2 performance. NHRC's mission clearly identifies it as 
3 a medical field operation, which can only carry out 
4 its function in close conjunction with its customers. 
5 The fleet and marine corps personnel in their 

- ~ 

6 eliminating long-term overhead costs, unless 1 6 environmental -- in their operational environment. 
7 something is cozy, and that's not the case here. 
8 Here we have a situation where activities are 
9 vacating existing spaces and requiring expenditures 

10 to move and provide replacement space. We think that 

7 Let me emphasize that. We're talking about in 
8 their operational environment. To move NHRC to 
9 Memphis and become an appendage of a purely 

10 administrative command like BUPERS, to which 
I I if you're going to move a function, not eliminate it, 1 11 incidentally it does not report, remote from sailors 
12 the significant costs associated with the move must 
13 be more than offset by future cost savings, and at 
14 the very least sustain if not improving the mission 
15 capability. 
16 The mission in both these cases is also 
17 affected by certain critical intangibles, including 
18 product quality. 
19 In addition, p e r s o ~ e l  considerations are 
20 unavoidable. Because of the potential loss of 
2 1 significant numbers of highly skilled specialists who 
22 may simply decide not to relocate from San Diego, and 
23 I can tell you parenthetically that there are 
24 probably reasons that someone might not want to move 
25 from San Diego to Memphis, but I will tell you that 
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12 and marines is illogical and raises serious questions 
13 with respect to any projected savings. The NHRC 
14 mission is not expungeable. It can't be performed 
15 just anywhere. The NHRC should be retained in San 
16 Diego to enable it to carry out its mission. 

Ironically, the Navy recommendation to BIWC 
comes at the time when a mission is under way by the 
Department of Defense to consolidate military medical 
R and D activities under the Armed Forces Medical 
Research and Development Agency. 

Under this plan, which is presented up k r e .  
I hope you can see that all right, the recommendation 
really was to disestablish NHRC as a Navy command and 
reestablish it under a joint agency as A d  Forces 
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1 Memphis is a nice place, but coming from San Diego, I ( 1 Medical Research Unit 3 to retain customer linked 
pick San Diego as a better place to live. Sorry, 
but. 

With respect to the Naval Health Research 
Center or NHRC, the Department of Defense 
recommendation is to move this activity to Memphis, 
T e ~ e s s e e  and place it under BUPERS. 

Now, in our mind that represents a substantial 
deviation from the military value criteria. This 

center was established from San Diego specifically 
because of its proximity to tbe fleet. To perform 
its mission it must have ready access to the men and 
women who comprise our naval forces. 

To move it to an inland admhistrative site, 
which constitutes a headquarters element, ignores the 
nature of the work performed by this organization and 
the source material for its work. 

This is not a process unit which takes inputs 
from elsewhere and evaluates them. Rather, this unit 
develops the information upon which it relies for 
assessments, evaluations and recommendahons. Let me 
explain. 

NHRC's mission is to support fleet readiness 
through research, development, testing, and 
evaluation on the biomedical and psychological 
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medical R and D capabilities in San Diego. 
This new joint agency is an ODs Joint Service 

consolidation of which this commission has relatively 
few examples. The Navy recommendation before you 
goes into the exact wrong direction in our opinion. 
Our review of the BCEG minutes reflects that the BCEG 
did not consider this Joint Services, consolidation, 
a consideration which certainly we believe would have 
influenced their recommendation. 

The military medical significance of San Diego 
as the largest Navy and Marine Corps concentration is 
further underscored in the Department of Defense 
consolidation proposal, which recommends that San 
Diego become the headquarters for the Armed Forces 
Military Medical Operations Division. These concepts 
are clearly at odds with the Navy recommendation now 
before you to move this medical activity to Memphis 
and place it under BUPERS, an unrelated activity. In 
the Armed Forces consolidation recommendation. the 
Department of Defense agreed that the medicai mission 
of NHRC is indeed customer linked and should be 
retained in the field. 

We think it's clear that these functions 
require whole relocation with the fleet. Otherwise. 
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any savings would be more than offset by travel costs 
from an institutionally isolated site far from where 
sailors and marines perform theirs duties. 

The removal of medical professionals from the 
military medical customer to a remote personnel 
command can only have an adverse effect on the cost 
and quality of mission performance of this small but 
important organization. It's no accident that this 
medical unit is currently in San Diego. There is no 
site better suited than San Diego, with virtually 
every element of Navy and Marine Corps warfare 
capability present. 

In addition to the operational setting which 
San Diego provides, there is also an extensive 
synergistic effect afforded by the presence of first 
rate institutions of higher learning, leading medical 
research facilities, and a world-renowned biomedical 
industry in San Diego. 

In fact, our NHRC doctors are integrated into 
the faculties of 2 of San Diego's universities. The 
opportunities resulting from the richness of the 
academic and medical research environment of San 
Diego greatly enhances the effectives of NHRC and the 
accomplishments of its Navy. The significance of 
this enhancement is not reflected in the COBRA 
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1 program. 
Let's focus briefly on some of their work, and 

you can see it on this slide. They have been looking 
at pre- and post-Gulf War blood samples and research. 
If we look at the nature and diagnosis of the Gulf 
War syndrome, it's very critical. Vital element in 
the research associated with sexually transmitted 
disease defenses aboard ship, hypothermia, soft 
tissue injuries were mentioned, and other military 
unique or prevalent injuries and illnesses. 

They work with the operational forces and 
train -- they work with operational forces where they 
work and train in collaboration with world-class 
local community institutions. 

Perhaps the most incomprehensible aspect of 
this proposal is that there is an estimate if you 
look at the COBRA projections of over a 20-year net 
present value of savings of 1 1 point 4 million 
dollars. That's about 600 thousand dollars a year 
over 20 years. 

We tbink that when you get down to that point, 
that you're really -- it could swing either way and 
could result in more costs rather than more savings. 

The NHRC is relied upon by the entire 
Department of Defense because of the high quality and 
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resourcefulness of its work, which is a direct result 
of its proximity to its test subjects. 

That work is geographically sensitive, and 
this recommendation to move it is geographically 
wrong. 

We recommend that you support the Joint 
Service consolidation decision. 

I'll now turn to the Navy Personnel Research 
and Development Center or NPRDC. 

The proposal before you is to close the San 
Diego facility and relocate the personnel research 
function to the Bureau of Naval Personnel in Memphis, 
and the training function to the Naval Air Warfare 
Center in Orlando, Florida. 

We question the advisability of splitting this 
activity, which has worked well as a coordinated unit 
for more than 20 years. In plain language, the NPRDC 
evaluates how we attract the best recruits, train 
them effectively, mold them into a cohesive unit, 
retain them on active duty, and develop their skills 
to capitalize our investment. 

The effective integration of women and 
minorities is but one area in which this organization 
has worked. Merely bringing diverse sailors and 
marines together in the military services isn't good 
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enough. We need them to perform as a cohesive, 
coordinated, combat ready fighting force. Such a 
force is not created by accident, and the NPRDC is a 
research and development element in the Navy to 
evaluate our selection and training criteria, 
determine their effectiveness, and recommend the 
techniques, training and leadership changes which 
will ensure that we obtain the highest military 
benefits from our most important resource, the men 
and women of the Navy. 

In 1973 the Navy made a thoughtful and 
rational decision to create a single research center 
in San Diego to significantly improve the conduct of 
R and D on equal related issues of manpower, 
personnel, and training. 

It shows San Diego as an unparalleled applied 
research center, bringing its researchers to a single 
site within commuting distance of virtually every 
type of fleet unit in the shore facility. 

Additionally. San Diego provided a rich site 
for academic support and broad related R and D 
endeavors and resources. This decision was made in a 
setting in which mission considerations and cost 
could be considered without the duress which exists 
today. For more than 20 years the wisdom in that 
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1 decision has been amply validated. 
2 In choosing San Diego, the Navy ensured that 
3 NPRDC could focus on long-term R and D efforts, and 
4 that San Diego provided them the necessary autonomy 
5 to perform objective research unimpeded by the 
6 diversions of headquarters short-term priorities. 

And this is an important point. 
We note that NPRDC operates Like an 

independent business within the Navy. It's funded by 
each research project, and receives no operating 
budget finds. Thus, it's the customer designing the 
research services who pays the freight. 

The funds received are a function of NPRDC's 
ability to perform high quality research and produce 
useful high impact products at reasonable cost. 

16 One must question, then, how the costly move 
17 of this activity thousands of miles away from its 
18 very customer and research source could contribute 
19 favorably to the cost and quality of the services it 
20 provides. 
21 This is especially relevant under a 
22 questionable proposal which will take a minimum of 4 
23 years to pay back, but in fact will make the services 
24 of NPRDC more costly and less desirable. 
25 This is a common sense consideration which 
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1 must not be abandoned by strict reliance on the COBRA 

2 data, which is only as good as its input. 
3 I urge you to direct your staff to examine the 
4 data that calls for NHRC and NPRDC and the COBRA 
5 input supplied by the Navy. 
6 For example, and as you can see up here in 
7 comparing the costs, the first column is the cost 
8 based on projections for fiscal year '% for this 
9 activity in San Diego. 

10 The second column there as you can see is 
1 1 basically the cost in T e ~ e s s e e  and Florida for the 

same activity. You got to ask yourself what is the 
credibility of indicating the cost savings on the 
right-hand column when the cost of running the whole 
operation basically is less than the cost of the 
telephone bill from San Diego, if I'm reading that 
correctly. 

No one is questioning the need for NPRDC and 
its products. As a former Navy captain and 
commanding officer, and I was at Orlando and had the 
Recruit Training Center under me as well as the 

22 Schools Command, let me assure you that the relevance 
23 of NPRDC is greater at times like these. Because as 
24 we downsize the force, we need to have a more 
25 affordable, more capable personnel force than ever 
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before to fill in the gaps. 
This is a unique and high quality team. 80 

percent of the personnel research staff hold advanced 
degrees with an average tenure of over 15 years. 
Their substantial experience in the field of immense 
value to manpower and personnel training, in our view 
is unmatched. 

With a modest annual budget of 27 &on, 
their programs have had substantial impact, affecting 
470 thousand active duty p e r s o ~ e l  and 25 billion 
dollars a year in personnel and training costs. 

Should the decision be made to move, the 
organizational effectiveness would be both decimated 
and devastated by the loss of those deciding not to 
relocate, and we have informal information that 
indicates that should relocation be approved, 
substantial numbers of these research folks will in 
fact decide to stay in San Diego. 

In citing the cases both NHRC and NPRDC, I 
pointed out that the potential savings involved and 
the justifications used by the service have a hollow 
ring, and I think it's created pretty much by the 
pressure of the BRAC process. 

There are some impacts on the local community. 
I avoided referencing those because I think they're 
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far less relevant than the military value. These 
activities provide their vital services in the most 
cost effective way. 

The evidence demonstrates that these 
activities should remain in the field where they 
belong, in close proximity to their customers in 
order to retain the clarity and relevance of their 
work. 

Today more than ever decisions must be made in 
the public interest which serve a cost effective 
quality of the results, not a cosmetic reorganization 
with imaginary questionable cost benefits. 

In our mind there is no reasonable 
justification for these moves when the results cannot 
be depended on for either a cost saving or mission 
enhancement basis. 

I want to again emphasize that the relocation 
of these two activities are not like base closings. 
Indeed, the projected long-term savings of the 
proposed relocation do not hold up with significant 
factors. And, again, it's because they actually have 
space. They're moving from that space. New space 
has to be created for them. And so there really 
isn't any significant overhead cost savings involved 
here. 
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I urge the commission to recognize these 
fundamentals and retain these activities at San Diego 
where they can continue to do their best work in the 
most cost effective manner. 

Mr. Chairman, I heard some testimony this 
morning that dealt with San Diego, and I think I 
would be remiss if I didn't comment on some of 
the things that you heard, because we're very proud 
of San Diego's capability, certainly in the private 
shipyard area. 

We think that we do have a significant 
shipyard capability. I looked at some of the figures 
that were presented, which would indicate for 
instance that these shipyards are overpriced, and I 
would ask you to examine those figures closely, 
because the numbers may say one thing, but the actual 
circumstances behind the number I think you'll see 
will say something entirely different. 

Those numbers were based on an assumption, for 
instance, that the package was the same from ship to 
ship. I note from my own experience that that's not 
the case. Over a 5-year period, you never have the 
same package. There are always reasons why some 
costs are higher than others depending on the work 
that has to be done on the ship. Sometimes it has to 
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want to make sure everybody understands tbat we in no 
way are here to impugn the capability of the Long 
Beach Naval Shipyard. That is for you to decide 
based on the evidence. We're very sympathetic to 
their situation. 

All we want to do is make sure the facts as 
stated about the city of San Diego aad the facilities 
there are correctly stated, and we stand by them, and 
we know that when you look at the facts, you'll make 
the right decision relative to San Diego. 

So, again, I want to thank you for your 
patience. We are very proud of our relationship with 
the Navy, and we're very proud to be a megaport. 

We recognize that as base closures have 
occurred, San Diego can be seen as somewhat as the 
beneficiary of many of those consolidations, but 
that's for a good reason. Good business sense makes 
it very clear that as you consolidate facilities, the 
overall cost of the naval operation is well served 
when you consolidate the facilities in a megaport 
like San Diego, and we think really that's going to 
serve the Navy future very well. And we know that 
you have a good understanding of that, so thank you 
very much, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity t;o talk 
to you today. 
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1 do with unfinished work from the building activity. 1 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well, Councilman Mathis, we 
Some of these new ships come in, they need actually 
to be finished, because they come out of the yard 
with significant work that has yet to be done. 

So I would ask you to look at those closely 
and recognize that that was incomplete. I know that 
when you draw your conclusions as to the capability 
of San Diego shipyards, you will recognize and view 
that according to a careful appraisal of figures that 
I think give you a very balanced view. 

Carrier home porting was mentioned, and that's 
a very critical issue to San Diego. I think it's 
very important to recognize it, and I'm going to kind 
of persodze this a little h m  my own perspective, 
and try to put you in the picture of the quality of 
life issue, and I can sure you that the commuting 
back and forth between the Los Angeles area and San 
Diego is a significant quality of life issue. In 
terms of the mileage, it's probably the most 
stressful miles you can drive anywhere in this 
country, and I think that when you're driving in the 
morning peak and evening peak as a commuter from the 
San Diego area to a ship, that you have to take that 
into account. 

The other thing that I'd like to say is that I 
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thank you, and we thank you for your even-handedness. 
We appreciate that very much. Are there any 
questions from my colleagues? Admiral Montoya? 

ADMIRAL MONTOYA: I have one, Mr. -. 
It's been a long time since I was all over San Diego 
some years ago, and I remember -- 

COUNCILMAN MATHIS: Nice to see you again, 
Admiral. 

ADMIRAL MONTOYA: Good to see you, too. I'm 
11 not sure which of the facilities, but you were a 
12 substandard facilities when Captain Jack Renard was a 
13 skipper of -- I don't remember which one he had. I 
14 think he had the Personnel Research and Development 
15 Center at one time. What is the condition of the 
16 facilities in which these commands are in now? They 
17 were wooden structures on pretty poor foundations as 
18 I remember. 
19 COUNCILMAN MATHIS: Let me -- 
20 ADMIRAL MONTOYA: 12 years ago. 
21 COUNCILMAN MATHIS: Let me talk to one of my 
22 technical advisers here, and I'll give you a straight 
23 answer. 
24 I'm informed that they're in the same 
25 location, but those facilities have been upgraded, 
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and they are now not considered substandard. 
ADMIRAL MONTOYA: There's no military 

construction foreseen at the current location then as 
far as you know, Councilman? 

COUNCILMAN MATHIS: Not that I'm aware of, 
sir. 

ADMIRAL MONTOYA: Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Are there any further 

questions of the distinguished councilman? We thank 
you very much, Councilman Mathis, and we thank your 
colleagues. We appreciate it. 

COUNCILMAN MATHIS: Thank you, sir. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: We are next going to hear 

from the folks from Fort Hunter Liggett. We're going 
to take a 5-minute break while they assemble up here. 
So you can take your time coming up here, folks. 

(Recess was taken.) 
-- & -- 
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CHAIRMAN DIXON: Congressman Farr, we show 
Fort Hunter Liggett is assigned 25 minutes, and then 
it would appear that you folks have made your own 
assignments of time. Is that the way you want to 
proceed? 

CONGRESSMAN FARR: Yes, sir. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Then we're delighted to have 

you. Congressn~an Sam Farr on behalf of Fort Hunter 
Liggett. 

CONGRESSMAN FARR: Thank you very much, 
Chairman Dixon. I want to note for the record that 
Dr. -- 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Oh, pardon me. Stop the 
clock. I'm sorry. I apologize, Congressman. I am 
required to ask you all to stand and raise your right 
hand under the law. I forget this about once a day. 

Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the 
testimony you are about to give before the Defense 
Base Closure and Realignment Commission shall be the 
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 

SPEAKERS: I do. 
CHAIRMAN BOXER: I apologize, Congressman, for 

that interruption. Congressman Farr. 
CONGRESSMAN FARR: Mr. Chairman, I hope you 

didn't pose that with our one minutes on the floor of 
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the house. 
I would like to note for the record that 

Dr. Segiie will not be on the time. I wili allocatz 
his time to Dr. Marion Bryson. 

I'm Congressman Sam Farr, and 1 want to fnani. 
you. Mr. Chairman, for being here and allowing us 
this quick report on behalf of Fort Hunter Liggett. 
And I'd like also like to thank the commission for 
allowing Commissioner Wendi S t e l e  to visit us. and i 
have to admit that her questions were right on 
target. 

This is my third BRAC appearance for Monterey 
County since 1991. In brief, I'm going to try to do 
2 things quickly. 

First of all I want to make an observation; 
and second, is I want to introduce to you a panel of 
people in the know. 

First, my observation is that the 
recommendation that you have been given is 
fundamentally flawed in the analysis that led to the 
Army's recommendation to transfer the testing and 
experimentation command to Fort Bliss, Texas. 

Fort Hunter Liggen has the best, realistic 
terrain for training and testing in the United 
States. It's 162 thousand acres plus, in an isolated 
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1 area. The data call seems to have based the analysis 
2 of the training area on the training area, not on the 
3 data of testing and experimentation functions. 
4 Testing and evaluation depends on 3 things. 

5 It's essential. They're a unit. They depend on 

6 terrain. We have real life terrain there, on 
7 technology, and on equipment. You can move all of 
8 the equipment at some cost. You can move some of the 
9 technicians at cost, but you cannot move d ~ e  terrain, 

10 the loss of value. 
11 Our panel of distinguished experts, and first 
12 I want to introduce to you our highly decorated green 
13 beret and infantry combat veteran, who served as 
14 Garrison commander at Fort Hunter Liggett, as well as 
15 operation officer, as well as executive officer of 
16 the Army's experimentation battalion. Colonel R.D. 
17 Red Walkley. 
18 COLONEL WALKLEY: Thank you, sir. Ladies and 

19 gentlemen, the -- the real value of Fort Hunter 
20 Liggett is terrain, and one of the major things that 
21 I want to bring up real quick like here is that the 
22 terrain at Fort Hunter Liggen is used primarily for 
23 training because it is a major training area. 
24 Now, the use of terrain in training and 

25 training of people are the only 2 things that are 
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1 really important, because training allows the leaders 
to go out and learn how to do  the things they have to 
do when they go to combat. and it allows the soldiers 
to go out and train on those th~ngs It  reduces 
their probability of involuntaril! donating biood a: 
z later time. 

The terrain value of Fort Hunter Liggett 1s so 
great because you can actually simulate almost any 
part of the world you want to in some degrez by uslnf 
this area. And as such, it seems that that same 
terrain would be where you would want to test your 
equipment that you're going to give then1 soldiers u) 
take with them to go fight. 

And that's -- that's kind of where we want to 
start this out. We want to really point out that 
terrain, and we want to move that into the things 
that soldiers need to survive on the battlefield 
ought to be tested in the same terrain that they 
train in. 

And I'll be followed by Dr. Marion Bryson, who 
spent 18, 19 years at Fort Hunter Liggen as the 

1 Dr. Bryson, the top civilian for the past 23 years in 
2 the Department of Army's operational and test fields. 
3 and he's the former director of Test Corn. He's now 
4 rerired, and he is here today as a real expert on 
5 this issue of testing and evaluation. 
6 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well. we're delighted to have 
7 you, Dr. Bryson. 
8 DR. BRY SON: Thank you. Congressman Farr, 
9 ladies and gentlemen of the con~n~ission. it's a 

10 pleasure to be here with you and to talk a little bit 
1 1  about something that's been near and dear to my heart 
12 for many, many years. I went to Sea Deck, which is 
13 now TEC, in 1972 and have been associated with it 
14 ever since my retirement last year. 
15 First of all, I would like to tell you a 
16 little bit about operational testing and its 
17 difference from developmental testing. 
18 The major purpose of operational testing is to 
19 create the environment in which the piece of 
20 equipment will be used, and that it be used by the 
21 people who will use it when it's in infantry. We 
22 don't care how fast it will go or how hard it will 
23 shoot. We want to know if it's effective and 
24 suitable when the soldier takes it irito combat. 
25 So a very key issue in operational testing is 
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I creating that environment in ivh~cil I: ~ ' 1 1 1  DC 
operated. Now. obviously we can't do combat in ttlt. 
experimen:. W'e can'r shoot sea; t)uI!c~.. 5:) wt :IL: 

an instiun~entatior. suite whicii we use iii sinluiar~ 
those part< of combat which cannot ve done in  re^ 

iife. &OH,, TEC was deveioped starting in 19%. anc 
over the next 40 years has evolved into what it is 
today. For its first 20 years. i t  was primariiy ar. 
experinlentation center whose function was to do 

combat developments. 
And then in the early 1970s. Congress decided 

that all services should do operational testing on 
all major weapon systems before Ole). came in to 

inventory. 
Starting then, TEC evolved into a field 

laboratory for developing the environment in which we 
need to test these combat systems. We got into full 
bloom about 1980, and with our instrumentation, our 
civilians. and our terrain, we have melded this into 
a very effective operational test activity. 

Now here are a few of the elements of the 
22 number 1 VA civilian in testing. 1 22 environment that are imponant to us. and I'm going 
23 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you. Colonel Walkley : 23 to discuss each of these in a little more detail as 
24 We're delighted to have Dr. Bryson. i 21 we go on to the next level. 
25 CONGRESSMAN FARR: Let me just introduce 1 25 First of all. we need to look at TEC as a 

1 SO 7 C? - - 
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1 systrm. It's different from a conlpany or a battalion 
2 or a division of troops. It's a system put together 
3 with people, instrumentation. and terrain, as 
4 Congressnlen Farr indicated. Now it has to the day 

I umpire back in conlputer central controlling the 
2 operations for safety purposes, for recording data 
3 purposes, he needs to know what's going on in the 
4 field. The computer -- and he can control what the 

5 become an execution elenlent of the OP TEC or / 5 computer shows him -- will show him on the screen the 

6 Operational Test and Evaluation Command headquartered 1 6 exact piece of terrain of his choice, and p e r a l l y  

7 in Alexandra, Virginia. 
8 It is the one place that the Army owns that 
9 they can go and do the kind of operational testing 

10 that is necessary and create the kind of environment 
11 in which we need to do this testing. The people have 
12 been there for many, many years, 

We rely primarily upon a scientific contract 
that went into force in the mid 1960s, and with some 
changes in the management. but few changes in the 
engineers and scientists who developed the 
instrumentation, worked the instrumentation and 
maintained the instrumentation. 

Our engineers have been on the forefront of 
technology in our ability to devise pieces of 
equipment which will make combat look like combat and 
make the soldier feel like he is in the combat 
environment. 

We can do this very nicely at Fort Hunter 
Liggett. We put these all together with the people, 
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7 he chcmses that piece of terrain where the banle's 
8 going on. The conlputer keeps track of where 
9 everybody is sin~ultaneously, and then also 

10 suprimposes on this same screen the location of the 
I I tanks and the guns and the airplanes that are in that 
17 banlefield. And he can then almost as if there were 

a camera in the sky observe the play of that field in 
real time. 

It's very inlportant that we have this very 
high resolution digitization. This doesn't exist at 
Fort Bliss. 

Fort Hunter Liggett is isolated in the nation. 
We don't have much of a civilian community around. 
The closest town of any size is King City, and it's 
25 miles away. So we pretty much control the 
environment there. We can make that environment as 
combat like as we want. We control it. It's ours. 

We are surrounded on 3 sides by national 
forests, and die national forest allows us to fly low 

! 55 
1 

1 the instrumentation and the terrain. and you have a ! over there. allows us to attack from tile sea. across 

2 nice package there which the Army and frequently the 2 t l ~ e  mounrain. into FoT.: k'unte:. L ~ i ' ~ e c .  Vt.e ca!: p::- 
" . -  

-. 
3 Marine Corps from Southerr, Caiifo~nie uses t:: dr I: L;,,..,i,y,,d:. ,..,,.;,.. -... (:- . : . . , . . , .  ,;:_ &_ ,,L .,.,,- - .>. . - . , -..,L- , >-,. ,... , .. ~ h ,  - 

their operational testing. - C : C I ~ C ) ~ - .  

Now, as part of the instrumentauor.. we neec 
to communicate. The computer, which is d ~ e  heal-, o:' 

the instrumentation, which does the things ibr us 
that the soldier can't do in combat. but it is 
invisible to him. such as shoot bullets and reuse Ule 

non eye-safe lasers to represent bullets, and the 
computer takes care of all of this. That's all 
communicated from the field to the conlputer 2nd bad: 
on our instrumentation system at 91 S megahertz. 

At Fort BlissIWhite Sands uses for drone 
control and for safety 9 15 megahertz. The two 
frequencies overlap. Our instrumentation is either 
useless at Fort Bliss or we will have to share time 
with White Sands. and we can't both be on the air at 
the same time. The value of that instrumentation is 
great. 

We have also through a new technique called 
23 Perspective View Generation, digitized the terrain a: 
23 Fort Hunter Liggett to the nearest one meter and put 
23 that in storage in the computer. 
25 Now. why do we want to do that? If we have an 

154 

- '~.{>.- r3.a"p; .. [,(I Ela!<);' y;;;:: 7.....,*qz trt.., ,, . ' . - I . .  *, -1, \lUL. 
. . 
i:. i! uft want to uc! z ciassiiieci e::perin~en;. we 

just ciose tile post. keep peopie out. and d o  tht; 
classified experiment. If  u . ~  want to uo a n  

experiment that's dangerous. such as tile non eye-szi~ 

laser. we ciose the post and do the experimen:. 1;':. 
up to us. You couldn't do that at Fort Bliss because 
you've got a major highwa!. going from E: Paso to - -  

running up through Fort E,iss. 
Fort Hunter Liggen contains this unique 

variety of terrain. We have mountains. We have 
valleys, wooded and open valleys. M'e have streams, 
rivers, lakes. Whatever you want to create, that 
environment is there. and we move to that part of the 
post that we need in order to get the en\ rironn~ent ' 

that we'd like. 
The Laser Safi Bowl is a very important aspect 

17 -- to Hunter Liggett. That is a playing area about 15 
33 kilometers by 6 kilometers that has mountains 
74 completely surrounding i i ,  and when we need to test 
7-5 weapon systems with non eye-safe laser testing as 
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1 part of the system, we can do so. and the laser 
2 energy will not escape from the playing area. 
3 Most of our current new weapon systenis have at 
4 least laser ranging devices. We liave very little 

5 artificial light there, as one would have from the 
6 surrounding coniniunities such as El Paso. So all in 

1 contractor operation, and so the equipment. and 
2 fabrication equipment, and all the technical 
3 equipment will have to be moved to Fort Bliss. 
4 \Ye also believe that there has been no 
5 consideration in the COBRA law with respect to where 
6 this is going to go at Bliss or if it's going to cost 

7 all, I think Fort Hunter Liggett. with its peclple and 1 7 any money to put it there, because there is no MILCON 

with its instrumentation is a vital asset to the U.S. 
Army. Red. 

COLONEL WALKLEY: I'm going to very briefly 
and very quickly hit some issues on the COBRA mcxlel. 
The number 1 issue there is with respect to the 
changing of instrumentation, if we can in fact not 
use the 918 megahertz. I previously had reported to 
a member of the con~mission that would be a 2 to 
4 million dollar issue. I have since received that 
in writing from the coninlander of TEC it's a 5 to an 
8 million dollar issue. 

The estimates of strength. The COBRA model 
takes 444 personnel spaces. There would actually be 

21 212 spaces in 1997. That's a normal Army downsizing 
22 issue. That has nothing to do with BRAC. In 
23 addition, if they're at 85 percent strength in 1997, 
24 you're talking 170 people. 
25 The housing at Fort Hunter Liggen is played 
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1 at 6 point 9 percent available housing for married 

consideration with this particular one. 
And the last one there alludes to the 14 tanks 

and 10 bradleys at Fort Hunter Liggett. They've got 
to get to Bliss somewhere. And when they get there, 
they can't drive them to the training area, because 
they have to put them on heavy equipment 
transporters. So there's some HETs that have got to 
be picked up from soniewheres too. 

Finally. this was already alluded by 
Dr. Bryson, and this is the contract operation at 
Fort Hunter Liggett. COBRA says there's 252 people 
there. There's actually 172, but the fact is there 
is no -- no money analysis whatsoever in the COBRA 

21 with respect to this element. It's a contract which 
22 evidently drops, and then comes back. 
23 CHAIRPERSON DIXON: Thank you, Colonel. We're 
24 delighted to have Supervisor Edith Johnsen with us. 

/ 35 
SUPERVISOR JOHNSEN. Thank you very much. 
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1 

I Ir's gooci to be here i conle as concerned 25 
2 personnel in the COBRA. If's actua:ly close: t i> 1 Con~ressm;i f i~arr .  hecause rn!, district happens 10 ,,r 

S d o  percent. and if"3: h e  tinlr r?'' ' c -  \r.!ler. \:ft' . :,.: - 
. .. . - - . .  - 
;::: ,I!<;;i: ;!'<: !,2: : ( , y .  ---r: ;;, 7 .  &:, ,LC ,.-- . L ..J- *. , 

people being alioweci r o  iii.t. <)n pos:. M'iir~cal L. 

F o g  Bliss. it'!: 43 poin! F perter,: zoc . and s';i: 
will be at that time. wiiich means 109 percent of m: 
people moving in wili be iiving o f i  p o s ~  Tnaf's L. 2 & 
million dollar swing o n  tile COBRA'S esrinsarit . 3 

RPMA and the base ops, the RPMA is 7 polnt 169 ' 10 
million in the COBRA. That JS 100 percent erased, as I 1 i 
there will be no RPMA requirement at Liggett. Thr .- 1 7  

. - 
base operation is 303 --  2 point 8 miliion is taken I . -  I >  

away from their 6 million doliar budge:. / 14 
Those numbers indicate that there's going to 1 IS 

be a big reduction. There has been testimony 
provided to a nieniber of this commission that in fact 
Hunter is not going to do anything. It's going to 
have to add some people to continue to operate 
because this unit -- weli, it does some of the base 
operations support. 

We believe that there is a significant cost 
onlined from the COBRA model with respect to the 
instrumentation and laboratories. They occupy quite 

a::: UI::..; 2 i . ~  S I ~ ~ L  communities tila: a:? a52ctzc. 
-. - l~er-t acxiali!. 2r.c 2 counties anc tile comn1uni:ie:. 
that have been mentioned before. You've heard ri?er,: 
menuoned. Tiie>r':.e sma!!. bu: ir hits them hard. 
hecause they're mom and pop stores. And ie: me reli 

you. from experience. that makes a difference. 
But they're willing to support the mission at 

For: Hunter Liggen. The unempioyment rale -- I have 
ro bring that up as the county supervisor -- i:'s 12 
percent, and that's fiom one end to the other end of 
the county. That's almost double -- it's actually 
almost triple the nationwide unemployment rate, and 
you have got to have that in your mind when you think 
about what's happening here. 

In addition, we have a cunlulative effect. And 
the cumulative effect comes from the fact that there 
have been other BRAC closures, actual closures. The 
military payroll loss is a huge one. and it will 
continue as you move through this particular BRAC 
conveyance and process. 

25 a few thousand square feet. It is a government-owned / 35 600 million dollars. And on top of that. 
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cumulative economic impacts that have to do with some 
of our disasters. We didn't ask for them. They 
happened. We've had an earthquake. We had a f l t d  
in January and a flood in March for a cuniulative 
estimated effect of 500 million dollars. 

The thing that I want to leave with you niore 
than anything else is that this is not a cost 
effective move to move the TEC center. It is a high 
risk for the county. for the people who live there 
and for the county, and a low to no gain for the 
military. Please remember that equation as you think 
about what you're doing and reconfigure the figures 
as you look at them. 

Thank you very much. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much, 

Ms. Johnsen. 
CONGRESSMAN FARR: In closing, Mr. Chairman, I 

would just request that the commission revisit its 
recomn~endation by analyzing Fort Hunter Liggen's 
value as a testing center and coordinate that 
analysis with the DOD's director of operational test 
evaluation. Mr. Phillip Coal, who was in niy office 
telling me that moving this function of Fort Hunter 
Liggen to Fort Bliss is a show stopper. 

This revised recommendation was done for 
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1 
2 6. McCLELLAN AFB 
3 Congressman Vic Fazio 
4 
5 

! Dugway Proving Grounds in Utah. and I think l~ou'li 1 i 

? see that you're not really ciosing or downsizing For, - 
Hunter L.iggen. Y o c ' r ~  iust nlc.~.inc 2 ziie!~: 02:  :-- 

-1 mere. i~ wili pair. no savifig: arid ! ~ a \ ~ r  son:: 

rezl-time big lass. Appraia--- LC YC~U! .  tiine, 
r; CXAIRh?'P.N D!XC)N: We!!. Congressrian. ii.~ (. 

appreciate your time, Congressman Far:. and a11 0;' 

E your coiieagues. and we thank you tor tnar grmr F 
9 presenration on behalf of Fort Hunter Liggen. Are 9 

10 there any questions,from any of my ~olleagues'~ Tnani; 10 
1 1 you very much, Congressman. i l i  

12 -- 000 -- I I ?  
13 

i 
i 13 

: 4 1 14 
15 15 
16 
17 

I 16 
17 

18 18 
19 19 
20 20 
2 1 2 1 
22 ??  6- 

23 
24 / 53 
25 1 25 
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CHAIRMAN DIXON: J wonder now. Congressmar, 
- razio. you're a little early. and we'l-e a little bi! 

: : i ~ t : h ~ .  <>: L x ~ r .  !>G: il. ?'x & i : z ~ r ~ s  :L, L2<CIEinlO38IC YOL 
. . .- . r, 3 %  ,. c %)LI C2l.t- 12 gF(i OK: no\i . 

C3NGRESSMkIi F.4ZICi: Sure. We're read!-. 
CHAIRMAN DIXOK : Well, we're pleased to have 

you here. Congressman Vic Fazio on behalf of 
hlcCIelian Air Force Base, and he's allotted 5 minutes 
and, I believe. Vic, you are the only one that's 
going to testify, Congressman? 

CONGRESSMAN FAZIO: That's right. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Then you'll be the oniy one 

I'll swear in; if you don't mind. Would you raise 
your right hand, please, if I can find this thing. 

Do you solemnly swear or  affirm that the 
testimony you are about to give before the Defense 
Base Closure and Realignment Commission shall be the 
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 

CONGRESSMAN FAZIO: I do. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: We're delighted to have you. 

Congressman Fazio, on behalf of McClellan. 
CONGRESSMAN FAZIO: Well, thank you. 

Mr. Chairman. And I want to thank all of the 
commissioners for allowing us to have a few minutes 
with you today. It's my honor to appear before you 
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on behalf of the Sacramento region to support Defense 
Secretary William Perq 's  recommendation regarding 
McClellan Air Force Base. 

And as you've indicated, our time is limited. 
so I'll be the only person to speak today. But I 
want you to know that I represent die entire 
bipartisan regional congressional delegation. 

Certainly Congressnien John Dtxjlittle, Wally 
Herger, Bob Matsui, and Richard Pon~bo, arc: in strong 
support of what I have to say. In addition, 
Assemblywoman Barbara Alby is here representing the 
entire regional state legislative delegation, and the 
City and County of Sacramento is represented by 
County Supervisor Roger Dickinson. The Sacramento 
Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce is represented with 
us as well, and countless other cc~nirnunity leaders and 
citizens all believe that McClellan Air Force Base is 
not only a good neighbor. but a vital element of our 
national security. 

McLellan Air Force Base is a national asset 
that should not only be preserved, but fully 
utilized. The Department of Defense recommendation 
recognizes the high-tech capabilities and the 
technical centers of excellence that McClellan has 

25 developed over the years. 
I65 

not consider cross-service capabilities and gave n o  
credit for the substantial core Army workload 
supported by McClellan. 

Had that core workload been included in the 
analysis, McClellan would have ranked niuch higher 
among the Air Logistic Centers. 

It's also important to note that while 
McClellan's basic wage rates are higher than the 
other ALCs due to its proximity to the Bay Area, the 
base's efficiency, effectiveness. and innovative 
nature have kept McClellan's costs highly 
competitive. 

In labor efficiency and output per man-day, 
McClellan has consistently ranked in the top 2. Its 
profit/loss margin has historically been the best of 
all 5 ALCs, and McClellan's conlposite rates are the 
second lowest in the command for 1995. 

Clearly, Secreta~y Perry's decision to send 
more work to McClellan is the right decision, and one 
that should be upheld by the commission. And if the 
commission wants to go  beyond the Secretary's 
recommendation, then the best way to eliminate 
redundancy and achieve true efficiencies in depot 
maintenance DOD-wide is through cross-servicing. 

I 25 The Sacramento community has been a pioneer in 
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I The rec,onlmendation add: usorkioao a n i  n?issi:)n> : ~ i i s  are':. In ! 99 1. when DOD reco~nmended the closure 
1 in IdcCieliac tc? i-a!>i*;ili=.i. on  r i le base:'? ufi i i i i iz-  - (,: t;]- . sac,.. ~drnenrc Arn~!? Depot. despite the fact tha: 

. . 
::rJE{,illtifL. Fa:7-:Lsj)::,' I:-. 7 : ; ~  ::..c;:: , > -  .. - , ,  

. . .  .. ..:;Ll:;'c~ 0:. t ~ t  : I Z ~ : >  ti15 CIOSZI.~~ of hlathcr 1,:: 
- "- .-,,-.,, -. . 

,;A>L!-JiYlc!rit.~ anL G I s : ~ 1 2 ' ~ ' ; ,  ::;Elyi51k !;.-!:::::.:: . . ...-t; ,U,%st. ::: CI; :>!-t\,ious round, \i:r unci=rs[oc;z h a :  
- '?.:RC.,,, ,ac c,-, r.r?u7. , L l r , - .  - ..I. . A ,  , " . U . . A . U . .  ",'b L ,.I., u,Z*au,,-:. C f f L  c!',xjil: - sc:ih:or.. 

. . 
7 c~rnrn~nicati~):?. EEC eiecrr!:a;z:,. .izs: :c>   xi;;^: L ;:.; iiou,::\,e:-. u8e aiso suggested that the\. were 
- Secrecin PC:-n-'b 1-e:ommcnciatio and tiit 7 snlaner ro rake acivanrage of the similarities betweor. 
t anaiysis of t i i r  join: C:.o~.-Srr\~ice Gro3;-. ule !i7SC. 1 tn? .iirn?y Depot and McClellan. and to preserve tile 

C: which I'n; sure you ' re  fan~iiiar witii. and rile kir 5. h i ~ h l y  skilled work force by moving that workload 
15 Force support our- cantentron tha: McClelian is the ; I ! O miies across town rather than thousands of miles 

high-tech depot w i t h  the entire Dcparuneni of 
Defense. 

Botii mr JCSG and tile ~ i r  Foicz drveiopei; 
modeis t j r  computing t i l e  functional vaiues of depor. 
by specific commodities. the JCSG analysis, which 
emphasized cross-service and core capabilities, 
ranked McClellan first among the Air Logistics 
Centers, with a composite score that was much higher 
than the other centers. 

The .4ir Force deveioprd its own analysis with 
different weig!lrs and rileasures. Under ttle Air Force 
model, FlcClellan was initially ranked second for 
tunctional value and. after some revisions to the 
criteria, McClellan ranked a close third. It should 
be understood however, that the Air Force process did 

1 66 

across the country. 
Tne 1991 BRAC commission agreed and created z 

competition i'or the Army Depot workload. McClellan 
w o ~ :  75 percent of that work. 

Today, we can say with great pride that this 
approac'n has heen an unqualified success. 
McClellan's performance has been outstanding on the 
Firefinder Radar and Electro-Optics/Night Vision 
workloads in particular, winning praise from the 
Army. its customers. and demonstrating that 
cross-servicing works in real, war-time situations. 

This success has made McClellan the Air Force 
ieader in cross-servicing. Our base produces far 
more core workload for other services than the ALCs. 

But Sacramento's forward looking approach does 
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1 not end at cross-servicing. McClellan is also a 
2 magnet for private industry and non-DOD customers. 
3 Among a number of initiatives, McClellan has 
4 established joint ventures with the Big Three 
5 automakers to develop more efficient and cleaner 
6 metal casting processes, with the University of 
7 California Medical School in Davis to test and 

8 develop better and safer cancer therapy treatments; 
9 and with the California Department of Transportation 

10 to produce composite wraps to reinforce bridge 
11 supports that prevented washout? during California's 
12 recent floods. 
13 So, as you can tell, we view McClellan as much 
14 more than just another Air Force base. We believe 
15 Secretary Perry got it right in his closure 
16 recommendations by sending more workload and more 
17 nlissions to McClellan. 
18 The efficiencies and cost savings achieved by 
19 these consolidations are significant. We encourage 
20 the comn~ission to honor those recommendations in 
21 order to utilize the incredible national asset called 
22 McClelIan Air Force Base. 
23 I want to thank all of you for being here. I 
24 particularly would request that you allow other 
25 comments from other members of the community present 
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2nd absen: ro he included in the rezord a: tiiis 

- ...,. . !,udiic sesi.ic:: and u'lsil t r l  wori: u'itii you in zn! 
possible w e  :G help Firtilsr e~~p la in  ou:. pa:ticuia; 
ass-[ as you make your finai decision. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: I want t o  mank you, 
Congressman. for that rxcellrnt presentation. We're 
indebted to all of you for being here. Any 
statements you care to ieave with us will be 

reproduced in the record. 
CO!iGRESShlAh' FAZIO: Thank  yo^ very n~uzir. 

-- 000 -- 

23 
24 
25 
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7. SOUTHWEST TEST COMPLEX 
Mr. Jack Connell 172 

CHAIRMAN DNON: Is Mr. Jack ConneU here on 
behalf o f t h e  Southwest Test Complex? Mr. Connell. 
\vould yov like t:: proceed:' It's a coupiz of minutes. 
-, .a.l~., 7 but w t  'd be delighted lo accommodate you. an& 
then u~e'II have a break after your presentation? 

MR. CONNELL: Being it's Friday afternoon, \srr 

will proceed. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Mr. Jack Connell, Executive 

Director, Indian Wells Valley 2000, ~a r tne r sh l?~  for 
Progress, for the Southwest Test Complex. 5 minutes. 
Mr. Connell. We're delighted to have you, sir. 

MR. CONNELL: Thank you very much. 
Mr. Chairman. Earlier today -- 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Mr. Connell, that's twice in 
a row. 

Do you solemnly swear or  affirm that the 
testimony you are about to give before the Defense 
Base Closure and Realignment Commission shall be the 

truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 
MR. CONNELL: I swear. 
C H A M A N  DIXON: Thank you, sir. Mr. Connell. 
MR CONNELL: Mr. Chairman. earlier this 

afternoon Senator Feinsteln and Mr. Grissom conferred 
and recommended that you consider during your 
deliberations something called the Southwest Complex 
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1 My purpose here in the next 5 minutes is to 
2 define that for you and make a few comments 
3 concerning joint cross-servicing and RDT and E. 
4 We believe the Southwest Complex is the 
5 optimal site for cross-service consolidation of 

6 research, development. test, and evaluation of 
7 aviation systems and weapons. 
8 The Southwest Conlplex is centered on the 

aircraft and weapons development capabilities 
resident at Edwards and China Lake. These two 

installations provide, within 45 miles of each other, 
the essential facilities for research and development 
of the vast majority of military aviation systems. 

Edwards and China Lake, along with the 
facilities at Point Mugu and Fort Irwin, also provide 
the core capability to test and evaluate these same 
systems in a joint service environment emphasizing 
sea, air, and ground force interoperability. 

Edwards, China Lake, Point Mugu, and Fort Irwin 

can also be augmented by the extensive test and 
training ranges at White Sands, Nellis, Twentynine 
Palms, the Utah Test and Training Range, and the 
Fallon and Yuma ranges. 

These installations have all the laboratories, 
test facilities, ranges, sea, land, and air space, 

173 

1 and a scientific work force necessary to suppon the 
3. RDT and E of the aircraft and weapons used by all 
,- - 
; -. servicet. 
- The rna?or~t\~ of these faciliues rrre airead!, 
. eiectronically linked. have procedures in place fo;. 
6 ~ 5 e  cooperative scheduling and utilization of air 
7 space and ranges, and have experience in the exchange 
E of technical work and scientific and engineering 
9 teams and resolving cross-service problems. 

10 The idea of consolidation into the Southwest 
i I Complex is not new. In 1982, the Air Force Flight 
12 Test Center developed an integration plan for what 
13 was elen termed the Greater Southwest Range Compiex. 
14 In 199 1, the commander of the Naval Air 
15 Warfare Center, Weapons Division, proposed 
15 cross-service consolidation at Edwards and China Lake 
17 under PROJECT BOLD STROKE and a year later reiterated 
18 it under PROJECT BOLD ACTION. 
19 In 1993, an Air Force -- Air Staff white paper 
20 entitled "Cooperate and Complement" advocated 
2 1 consolidation also at Edwards and China Lake. 
22 And also in 1993, General Colin Powell in his 
23 R.oles and Missions study noted that the facilities, 
24 land. sea, and airspace in the Southwestern United 
25 States, have the potential to, and I'm quoting here 
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from the report, "create an unmatched world-class 
infrastructure to meet training and test evaluation 
needs well into the next century," and also quoting, 
"provide the opportunity to divest ourselves of' 
unnecessary infrastructure. duplicative jobs. ranges. 
and installations. " 

For the past year, the Laboratory and Test 
Evaluation Joint Cross-Service Groups have been 
analyzing cross-service requirements. Their 
recommendations were briefly discussed at your 
hearing on Monday of last week. 

The services failed to act on these 
recommendations. However, the Southwest Complex 
could effectively implement 3 of the 4 laboratory 
recommendations, and consolidation there would be 
consistent with the alternatives listed for all 

3 major T and E categories. Next slide. 
We recommend implementing the Laboratory and T 

and E Joint Cross-Service Group recomn~endations in 
the Southwest Complex. It has a strong conceptual 
foundation in Air Force, Navy, and JCS studies and 
reports, extending for over a decade. 

It will work. 
The cost savings can be very, very 

significant, depending upon the degree of 
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consolidation h a t  is finaliy impiemented. !i 

provides the ideal environment in which ro conduct 
RDT and E. more ciear ii!ting u . ea~~e : .  tiix~ an?. o-i,.:: 
locatior, ranges unencumi)ered anc unencroaciled b! 

development, and protected tron: hrure d~veivpnienr b! 
the Desert Protection Act. 

It will promote technical svnergism by 
developing aircraft and weapons in two essentially 
contigubus locations. each with a track record of 
mutual cooperation. 

And, lastly, but of great importance, it is a 
complex that has the capacity for future expansion 
should that ever be required. 

I would like to comn~ent on one last thing that 
may be very, very obvious, and that is it is now 
readily apparent that the services are unwilling to 
consolidate -- cross-service consolidate RDT and E in 
any nleaningful fashion. The DOD apparently is 
unwilling to provide the leadership necessary in that 
area. 

And I believe that if we are not going to 
carry this excess infrastructure and cost into the 
21st century, it will be dependent upon action by 
this comn~ission. 

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
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1 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well. we thank you very much 
2 for that very excellent contribution, Mr. Connell. 
3 Now we're going to have a break. Ladies and 
4 gentlemen, we u'ill have a break until 455 .  That 
5 will be a IS-n~inu\r: break, and at 4 5 5  pron~ptly we 
6 will start with the presentation by Congresswoman 

7 Anna Eshoo on behalf of Onizuka and Moffett. 
8 (Recess was taken.) 
9 -- 000 -- 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
2 1 
22 
23 
24 
2.5 
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1 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well, we thank you all for 
2 being here. The commissioners are on their way back 
3 in. Perhaps in the meantime 1 c,x~ld ask all of you 
4 who are going to testify to stand and raise your 

right hands. 
Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the 

testimony you are about to give before the Defense 
Base Closure and Realignment Commission shall be the 
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 

SPEAKERS: I do. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Tharik you very much. Now, as 

I understand it, there are 70 minutes, and my notes 
indicate that you ladies and gentlemen will handle 
the allotnlent of the time in your own group. Is that 
correct? And we're honored by having Congresswoman 
Anna Eshoo as the first person to testify this 
afternoon. Congresswoman, we're delighted to have 
you. 

MS. PARKER: Actually, Chair Dixon, I'm Robin 
Parker from Sunnyvale. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Excuse me. Well, I 
apologize. You've changed the program on me. This 
is Mrs. Robin Parker, the Councilmember. 

MS. PARKER: Thank you. Mr. Chair, BRAC 
con~missioners and BRAC staff. I'm here to help 
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1 , 1 moderate the panei tode!, . ':'d 1ii;c lo :llc 
2 8. ONIZUKA an? E\-.lOFFET 1 1  - ~ntroduction of our  panelisw.. 

7 ' C  ? Ms. Robin Parlte:. . - V-'c j~::vc UIC h( )n<jrz>,~ :-.,iix.. ~ s i , , ,  :.,, !b:t5ii3.,.2-. ,.. 

4 Mr. john Kitching I R i  - ,- ,:~ngrcss. M-e tiave Iionc:raoie a i i i z r z  'A-ai~ma::. r i l t  

I SE 5 Mayor Barbara Waldman 5 Mayor of Sunnjrvaie; Iionorabie Pavicis Figuzruz. ti>: 
193 6 Mayor Patricia Figuerc:! , 6 Mayor of Mounmn View. And then to my left. 

7 Mr. John Mchfahon 192 
, -- 
I i Dr. Tapan hlunroe. Chief Economisr for Pacific Gas anC 

8 Ms. Robin Parker 194 8 Electric. We have Mr. John Kitching. President of 

9 Dr. Tapan Munroe 197 
I 
1 9 the Sunnyvale Chamber of Congress. We have MI.. 

10 Congresswoman Anna Eshoo 200 1 10 John McMahon, Former Deputy Direcxor of the CIA. b ~ i  

1 1 Dr. Tapan Munroe 206 
I 

11 I'd also like to acknowledge that Mr. McMahon is also 
12 Mrs. Katherine Strehi 209 1 12 a member of our comniunity through Iris previous 
13 Congresswonian Anna Eshoo 2 1 .! 1 13 affiliation with Loc"h--A h b * a r t k  D*-* 

14 Colonel Paul Monroe 2 17 today in his capacit 
15 Ms.Parker 22 1 
16 Questions and Answers 22 1 16 Adjutant General, ( 

17 17 Ms. Katherine Sue: 
18 1 8 Lockheed Martin. 
19 ] 19 We'd first just 
20 
2 1 
22 

20 appreciation to our 
2 1 staff for their suppc 
22 I'd also like tc 

23 ' 23 record letters from 
24 I 24 indicates a strong s 

25 / 25 and apologizes for 
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like to achnowledge and enter for the record leners 
from our State Senator A1 Alquist and our State 
Assemblyman John Vascano, and 1 believe you all have 
copies of those. 

We'd like to begin with Mr. John Kitching. 
Pesident of the Sunnyvale Chamber of Commerce. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Mr. Kitching. 
MR. KITCHING: Thank you. Is this on 

automatically? 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: I believe if you talk right 

into it, it will work fine. 
MR. KITCHING: Very good. Thank you. And 

welcome to the Bay Area, which we do consider the 
Moffett Field Complex, Onizuka, and Ames the center 
of the aerospace industry base. I'm sure you've 
heard that from other communities, but we can truly 
say that we are. 

The Moffen Field Conlplex is truly the center 
of America's Aerospace Industrial Base. It is not a 
stand alone facility, but a synergistic group of key 
national assets. 

Moffen Field was established 6 decades ago as 
the West Coast site for the U.S. Navy's dirigible 
Macon. As such. Moffen Field has played a key role 
in the growth and development of Naval Aviation. 

18! 

Federal Airfield, which encompasses approximately 
1500 acres with 3 point 5 million square feet of 
facilities. The airfield is critical to the complex 
and serves its tenants with two runways capable of 
handling the largest of mil~tary transport aircrafi. 

The airfield is tightly controlled, which is a 
requirement of the Complex tenanb, and it has an 
all-weather capability. The key aviation tenant on 
the airfield is the 129th Rescue Group of the 
California Air National Guard. In addition to 
providing key search and rescue capabilities. the 
129th also provides critical manpower for the 
airfield's crash, fire, and rescue services, as well 
as air traffic control operations at Moffen Field 
Complex. 

I also feel that it's impoi-hnt to note that 
in the 1993 BRAC Comnlission, the 1993 BRAC Coniniission 

directed that the Moffen Federal Aifield should be 
a receiver for Reserve units affected by other 
closures and realignments within California. Moffett 
Federal Airfield is the result of the community 
initiatives responding to previous BRAC Conlmission 
actions and recommendations. 

The community is creating an economic success 
out of the 199 1 closure. and the 119th Rescue Group 

IS3 

1 However. tile current h.lofka Con~piex hous.-5 :: nr: o:' : 15 G>C anci~o: j o ~  this F:ufr2: .J.;;j2i! ,.: .,. 
inter-department.; and irreplaceable public and 

. . .  pri\.a[r i'acili[izy t;ls: r.$:::..:~n; i \,A::: :i:,: ~ ~ m ~ z - ,  -.., "-. ; 

national asse: . 
The assets of the Complex contain ai: 

irreplaceable brain trust that serves 2s the nucieus 
for scientific research and deveiopmen: in the 
aerospace and defense indusrrias. The Moffett Fieii: 
Complex contains stare of the art, one of a kind 
facilities that cannot be replicated elsewhere in tile 
country without costly and time-consuming 
investments. 

As you look at die Moffen Field Complex,  yo^ 

can see the NASA Ames Research Center. Mofien 
Federal Airfield, the Onizuka Air Station, and the 
Station Annex. which makes up the h4offett Field 
Complex. 

Surrounded on 3 sides of the Moffett Field 
Complex is the heavy state of aerospacz and defense 
electronics, as well as other high-tech organizations 
that feed into the Moffett Field Complex. 

The key components, as I mentioned, include 
Moffett Field, Onizuka, NASA, and the industries 
around. 

The cornerstone of the complex is really the 
1 E2 

, . ,  . f>l-i:i: ';:!Q ~; , r ; -$~~,~: ; i , :  J ; ~ ; v ~ ~ , : ~ L ~ ~ .  ,,>,.-.-- 

. , . 
> , 7 ,  y v -  <!, :-:-.- <,--:.:I .IL., .. ::. ,. .. -..... , , . .. -,...,:., '.. .. 

y;: '; ' ;  g>< s:::,":, 
rp. . . 
i 11s n c x  i~e;,. coz1p;)nent c t:~c u~AZzi;& .-.ii 

Station. which oxuples 23 acres oi band on the 

compie::. anu is a key eiement of'ti~e k,ir 5c?rce SD.;:.: 
Command's Sareili~t Command and Controi Network. Tbc 

750th Space Group operates 1 of 2 sateliite commanri 
and control nodes for the Department of defer is^. 

Also housed at Onizuka is Detachment 2 of tht: 
Space and Missiles Systems Center. which is 

responsible ii)r pre-operational spacecrafi sesear~i;. 
developmen:, and testing. 

Lastly, there are several classified tenant 
activities at Onizuka w i ~ ~  the 750th. I believe you 
have been briefed on some of those or  will be in the 
future. 

The next component is the NASA Ames Researst, 
Center, which was established in 1939 to meet die 
urgent need for increasing our nation's aeronaubcal 
research capability. The location was chosen 
primarily because of its proximity to the aircraft 
industry, good flying weather, and the availability 
of the Moffett runwavs. These reasons are as valid 
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today as they were 51 years ago. Ames presently 
shares with Moft'ett such key elements as the Moffett 
Airfield facilities. the underground utilities, fire 
protection. perimeter security, and the street! and 
roads on the conlplex. 

Additionally, Moffett provides a beneficial 
and essential noise buffer for Ames' wind tunnel 
operations out of the Moffett Field coniplex. 

NASA Ames is the center of the activity for -- 
excuse me, for national rotocrafi and power-lifted 
flight research which is fundamentally important to 
the DOD, industry and other federal agencies. 

The research progranls provide essential 
rotor-craft design and solutions to critical 
powered-lift problems, and are closely coupled with 
the government and the industry and the comnlunity. 

These aeronautical research progranls 
contribute substantially to the U. S. aerospace 
technology base, which strengthens the nation's 
economic and defense competiveness. 

NASA Ames, with the space and earth sciences 
research being conducted out there, using aircraft as 
flying laboratories for the study of the planets and 
the stars, as well as the earth's oceans, thr 
atmosphere, and vegetation These airborne s-iencc 

185 

shipment of ground station equipment in the support 
of U.S. strategic intelligence ~b~jectives will 
continue for an indefinite period of time. 

The final component of die Moflett Field 
Complex that we see are the Bay Area universities. 
We have the collection of premier institutions of 
higher learning that are within vely close proximity 
01' the Moffea Field. Renowned institutions such as 
Stanford, UC Berkeley, Santa Clara, and San Jose 
State Universities contribute tremendously to the 
conlplex as a result of their educational and 
professional development curriculun~s. 

Additionally, these institutions are involved 
in numerous research initiatives that are on the 
forefront of the cutting edge of technologies. 

To finish up this segment. the existing 
multi-tenant relationship at Moffen represents an 
ideal model for public-private cooperation. This 
being private industry, the DOD. the civilian 
agencies, being NASA, and the state which is the 
129th International Guard. These are synergies 
created by d ~ e  relationship and informal transfers of 
the information and technologies which are 
unparalleied in comparison with bases devoted to a 
singuiar n~i i i ta~y efii~n. 

. ,,- 
i C !  

,.,.%., .< ., 
- 

! labs are recognized 2s nar~onhl and intrrna!~%.ln, ... .-.-. ... , !.. 11;::. x:iln: 1.' 5:1::':.:::;::: -":C 

. . -yynipc ~ 1 3 ~ ; ~  <>; ~ 8 . ~  ~ . e y c ~ j  22:: y y > : < ~  ;2:--2~,:,., 

old; unoers';incl;ni; r.- I!;: :;\mn1r.. rir:.:;.. ': r -. 

environment. 
Lzs,$, c L Arlo' S""'e'- " r  " '... ... *::..- . h... . . . *.. -A ? .. a.9 dl< ~ d S , \ h . ~ & . '  1- 

the Federal Xiri>ei(! mJIO ciosri!, ~ o o r d i n ~ : ;  ci: 
acrivirirs or' ali oi' me tenanrs. 

iinoti~er key eirment of the htlofien Fieic 
Complex invoives the numerous industries thar 
surround and depend on tile highly controlled Federal 
Airfield. These industries requlre 2 s c u r e  fiigh: 
faciiiry with the capabilit?. to handit unique i t i i i  

classified products. 
There are several iirms around dl:: area that 

may utilize the area. Lockheed Martin: TRM'. 
Incorporated; Loral, and so on. 

At the current time. TRW has had a 20-year 
relationship with Moffett Field under tile Navy and 
now with NASA stewardship. TRW currently has 
scheduled flight testing for tactical reconnaissance 
systems in support of national securiq objecti\~es a: 
least through the year 2006 out of the hloffett 
complex. 

In addition. the requirement and need fo: 
186 

, . . .  . . - - . . , . .  . ... .. 7 >.-.::..-. 7 . . . . - , . . .... . ::L. 

..,. * ..,..- - .. 
,, A . , ~ . ' . .  ;:::l!,-riL.;~: I I ~ ~ G : : !  c :;;-.:7LL: .: 

.,- . . :n!c~ot';~:licie~ eIer:ir:li:. t? :LQ :IIC :ynlc.:l 2. (:: 

r-eaii;nmec: o: 211i. c;.itl;z! eiemen; o :  tilt. com:>ir:.. 
uir unravrilng nroces; urouii; bepir ar;: woui. 

ulr~rnarri!~ resu!: ir, tiic disintegrau:)n ot '  U:IS \.IIL. 

arid unique national asse:. 
With that. i than]: you for your. attentior 
MS. PARKER: And now Mayor Baroara Waldman and 

hC;l'or Patrici: Figueroa wiIi revieu. rile Air Foi-c~ 
recon~menciarion . 

h1.41'OR WALDMAK: I want to tilank the commlssiol: 
for the opportunity to address you today. It has 
been recommended that Onizuka .qir Station be 
rd igned  by inactivating the 750th Space Group and 
relocating it? functions to the Falcon Air Force 
Base. 

All activities and facilities associated wid: 
tile 750th uriII close. including the fanlily housing 
and tile medicai clinic. 

In addition. Detachment 2, tht Space and 
h4issiles Systems Center will relocate to Falcon Air 
Force Base. 
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1 The justification stated for these 
2 recommendations are estimated cost deficiencies of a 
3 single node versus a dual ncxle, Onizuka Air Station's 
4 lower ranking military value than Falcon's. and 

5 significantly higher closure costs at Falcon Air 
6 Force Base. 
7 The DOD also estimates that the one-time cost 

8 to implement these recomn~endations would be 124 point 

2 million dollars, and that the return on investment 
is expected in 8 years. 

In reality, this amounts not to a realignment, 
but in fact to a closure. 

We want to take this opportunity to show you 
that the analysis on which these recomn~endations were 
based is flawed. In other words, we concur with the 
recommendations of the general accounting of ice  that 
the Air Force more fully document its analysis and 
decisions. 

Not only do we believe the process is flawed, 
but we are certain that such realignments would be 
detrimental to the national security and goes against 
recommendations for national security made by Air 
Force General Joseph W. Ashey. 

If the proposed realignments take place, it 
will begin as stated before to un~:+vei one of the 
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1 vaiuabie e:onomic e3ucztionx! anb in3::sr:-:;:: 

7 the commissiori :(I fulfill its charge ic 2 m o ~ - c  
t efiTi~ieni and cos: sa\.lng . wiiiit: siiii prote:t~fig 
9 the nationai securig 

10 Not only will our alternative save money and 
! 1 protect our national security, it wili preserve the 
12 valuable resource the Silicon Valley has become to 
13 the space indust]?; and its future comn~erciaiizauor,. 
1 4  1 would like to reiterare that in reality this 

15 realignment is in fact a closure. 
16 Thank you 
17 CHAIRMAN DNON: Thank you. Ms. Waldrnan. 
18 MAYOR FIGUEROA: One of the things when you're 
19 in the middle is which microphone do you use? 
20 CHAIRMAN DlXON: You're doing fine, Mayor. 

2 1 MAYOR FIGUEROA: I would like to begin by also 

27 expressing my appreciation to all of you for being 
23 here this afternoon and letting us have this chance 
23 to share with you our thoughts on this issue. 
25 One of the recommendations before you is to 

!;; 
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close rile Moffett Federal Airfield by relocating the 
129th Rescue Group. Justification given by the 
Department of Defense for the recommendation is that 
operation costs to the Air National Guard have risen 
significantly at this facility, and that moving the 
air guard to an active duty airfield would reduce the 
cost. 

Thus, the one time cost of 15 point 2 million 
dollars will have a four-year return on investnlent. 

This afternoon we hope to share with you the 
flaws that we see in the DOD analysis of the 129th, 
and that we see no savings, and that when all of the 
costs are considered we just do  not see where the Air 
Force has come up with these conclusions. 

Having the 129th at Moffett Federal Airfield 
is an integral part of what resulted when in the last 
BRAC we saw the transition of Moffett Field from a 
Navy base to a NASA operated federal airfield. That 
provided us a new economic base of self-sufficiency. 

A community effort such as what you're seeing 
today, and partnership that included the local 
governments, the local communities and industry 
worked very hard to keep Moffett Federal Airfield 
open as a viable part of the Moffett NASA complex. 

Having tile 129th Air Guard Ieave tile Moffett 
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I r(:omm~ndario:: i<)r tn;. 129th. Robic. 
hlS. P.4Kf;ER: AIIU now Mr. John McMahon. forn~rr 

3eputlz Director of tilt: CIA will review some nationa! 
securiq. impiications. 

MR. MCMAHON: Mr. Chairman, Member of the 

Commission, Onizuka provides satellite command and 
control for U.S. systems during peacetime and 
throughout all levels of conflict. And in doing so 
]nust be robust. responsible. and have an enduring 
capability. 

To ensure successful control, Onizuka has a 
network of some 9 stations around the world which 
provides the necessary conlmunications visibility for 
our satellites. 

To  give you a feel for that. this represent.. 
in the network over 70 satellites with a purchase 
price of about 25 millic n dollars. The price is not 
the key factor 

Onizuka is the nerve center for assuring that 
the eyes and ears of the United States Government 
provide the necessary data to our policymakers and 

!a? 
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our militasy, which helps us maintain the p c e  as 
well as supyx)~? the military in crisis. 

Further as the U.S .  withdraws from bases 
oversees and reduces our presence in forward regions, 
our milita~y must rely more and more on our space 
assets. 

As it stands today, Onizuka is second to none 
in the world in satellite control capability. 
Because of the key role that satellite systems now 
play in our overall national security, the Air Force 
developed a second node, control node concept at 
Falcon Air Fosce Base near Peterson -- near the 
Peterson Air Fosce Base in Colorado. This is where 
space command is located. 

The Air Force agreed in 1993 and again earlier 
this year that it was essential to have a dual node 
capability to eliminate the chance of a single point 
failure in our control system. 

Onizuka and Falcon in Colorado are ideally 
located because geographically they're separated, 
affording us the continuity should a national 
disaster strike one region or  the other. 

T o  that end, Onizuka has withstood the shakes 
around here for 35 years, and even supported 
flawlessl). a launch tile morning afie: the i o m a  
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1 create' ea:%~uuhi:c in  '3ctoi)c.:- I OF,^ I controi of s2triiite>': 

I and Onizuka in Tier 3. 
I 2  And, as you know, because there was no audit 

3 trail, the GAO faulted this approach in their report. 
4 We understand that this flawed process makes 
5 the commission's independent assessment difficult. 
6 The con~n~ission's independent and thorough review is 
7 crucial. and it is the only way that we can have a 

1 8 fair, auditable process to go through. 

V, iis; >!! ~ , ~ ~ l ~ : l z 5 s &  ~ 1 : :  zyilll ryacc<\, f ~ l ?  
- 

- - - .  I n  k r m s  of rnissi:.,n capaci?.. Onizuite has 33 
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6 Qllr spa:- 2rt. 3 0 ~  %I; l n :~gr~ i  ~2:; G;' tv Onizuka has 100 percent of bandwidth 
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not only our  pi~iic\ :i~ai;ing apparaius. 'nu1 aiso ou:- 

ciefense pc~S!U:'c 3, u ~ 1 ' .  Dese17~ S~orn; proved ulal Ir 

spades. 

Onizuka has tile required capabilities that are 
already existing. arid a cavalry of experienced 
personnel to do the job 

Thanir you much for tile opportunity to 
address you. 

CHAIRMAN DISON: Thank you. Director. 
MS. PARKER: Kc?ul I'd like to take this 

opportunity to review ti~tt military value analysis. 
Given that a ma.jor pa11 of your task is to look at 
the milita~y value anhl~,sis, we would just like to 
point out several things. 

That l~asically tl~r analysis is unauditable due 
to a secret ballot ])ring cast by the Base Closure 
Executive Group. The Air Force relied on rnilitaq 
judgment versus a quantifiabie auditable approach, 
and this undocumented approach put Falcon in Tier 1 
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9 Regarding -- I'd like to take the next few 
10 minutes to focus on some sub elements of the Air 
1 1 Force's red. yellow, green analysis. That represents 
12 some especially arbitrary and egregious examples of 
13 this flawed process that placed Onizuka in Tier 3 and 
14 Falcon in Tier 1. 
15 In terms of mission capacity, that is future 
16 mission projections, there is an unidentified 75 
17 percent reduction in future missions. Based on the 
18 work currently performed by Onizuka, there is no 
19 reason to assume that this reduction is based on 
20 current total capacity. 
2 1 Were tenant activities the source of this 
22. reduction? We don't know, due to the classified 
23 nature of some of the activities. 
24 In terms of satellite control operations, can 

capabil~ty benchmark compared to Falcon's 30 percent. 

Why would Onuuka be realigned with Falcon? 
Onizuka clearly is superior on relevant 

mission capacity scoring subelements, and this is the 
all important category of mission capacity. 

Realigning Falcon Air Force Base, which does 
no1 have core capacity, does not seem to make sense. 

In terms of facilities and infrastructure, 
what are the unique facilities at Onizuka? The Air 
Force questionnaire lists none. 

And, of course, we know that every facility 
has unique assets, and I'd just like to point out a 
few at Onizuka. The data link ternlina:. the Camp 
Parks Calibration Facility, communication 
connectivity, the DSCS heavy terminal, classified 
programs of which we cannot address, and the Space 
Operations Center 37 for test support. 

In terms of facilities, again, on-base 
housing. Onizuka annex has the Moffen housing area, 

! 96 

, 25 the facilities perform the mission of command and 
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and at Falcon there is no usable on-base housing. 
Yet Falcon received a green minus and Onizuka 
received a yellow plus in the Air Force's analysis. 
How is this possible? The scoring is flawed. 

In terms of facilities and infrastructure, 
again, air quality was weighted 40 percent, the 
highest in the subcategories. What relevance does it 
have to flight operations? It has no impact on 
satellite control. 

Onizuka scored red on the restrictions 
element, although there is no operational impact. 

In sunmary, Onizuka now handles the majority 
of contacts. It has synergy -- the 750th has synergy 
with the tenants. The satellite builders are right 
across the street, and tile current location permits 
critical contractor support. 

These areas highlight where the Air Force's 
analysis is seriously flawed. 

Onizuka used to handle all the satellite 
command and control activities, and Falcon was built 
as its backup. Now, I'd like to have Dr. Tapan 
Munroe, the Chief Econonlist of PG&E review the flawed 
analysis. 

DR. MUNROE: Thank you very much. 
Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, my task here is to 
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highlight the cos! an:ii:!,sis ant some of <!e basis or 
problem: d m  nr:,.-- bi;.:; the b ~ s i s  of'this wnoie 
re?n.r - ,- . . n= I~i.5; :!!at --  j.eli1!7.' tljl, !:c:' !>ole! (>: t.1- 

5 r a  siicie i. that tile narure of tile analysis is 
subje:ti\;e. I: has no: fallowed the BRAC process 
that requires that tile anaiysis be quantiriabie. tilz: 
it be audirabie. and tiiar it be transparent. 

So there is a fur>darnental flaw here in terms 
of basis of decision-making in this case. 

Siide 2. This iias to do with cost. 1 think 
cost is much greater tllan the Air Force claims 
because 0 th :~  tenant5 \{'ill leave when the major 
tenant leaves. and tllat nleans a cost to other tenants 
-- to other agencies. 

And. hence, all costs are not reflected in 
this analysis. And it is surprising that this kind 
of omission can be made in such an important 
decision. So we must identify a total cost to the 
federal government and not just to the Air Force. We 
are here to minimize cost to the nation, cost ro the 
go\fernnlt.nt as a whole. and not to just one agency. 

Slidi. Number 3. This has to do with the cost 
of base realignment activities. I think that the 
cost here again is exafgerated. It is 10 million 
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dollars. Actually, 10 million dollars out of 14 
million dollars. But I think if they leave, then the 
cost will be -- if the tenants stayed, they would 
have to spend this money anyway. 

Next slide. This deals with uncertainty. It 
deals with a lot of concerns with analysis. The 
COBRA figures have been revised at least 5 times 
between December and February. Now, if my unit, the 

place where I work, had devised a piece of analysis 
such as this 5 times in a period of 3 months, I would 
certainly go back and check this out again. 

The next slide. COBRA analysis of military 
construction. If the Air Force moves, tenants will 
move. Hence, we must include that cost, and this is 
extremely important. We need to look at cost of 
recreating Onizuka on the other side. 

Next one. please. And this is another 
critical piece. The Air Force documents that Falcon 
does not have the capability to handle all core 
operations. The Air Force estimate of 75 million 
dollars to upgrade Falcon is in my opinion highly 
understated. 

If you just look at the cost of a switched 
operation, connection switch alone will cost 
100 million dollars. Hence, the 75 million dollar 
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cost of upgrading again is highly u n d e r s ~ i s l .  
h S .  PARKER: And. now, Con~res:;wcnci: .Sr,nk 

Esiloo uili reviru- our alterwaive. cjuorr. 
"reaiignmrnt. " unquote proposal. 

CONGRESSWOMAN ESHOO: Thank you. Counciimembc: 

Parker. And Mr. Chairman and Members of the 
Commission, welcome to our regioc. We appreciate rhe 

time that you are giving to this and the time that 
you're giving to us to make this all impbrtant 
presentation to you . 

It is of course a privilege to represent 
California's 14th Congressional District. It's home 
to many of Silicon Valley's leading institutions, so 
many of them known around the world, our educational 
institutions, Stanford University, the University of 
Santa Clara, a great private sector, economic leaders 
not only for our nation and the world, but it also 
includes NASA Ames Research Center, Moffen Federal 
Airfield, Onizuka Air Station, and world leaders ir! 
aerospace high-technology. And of course, as I 
mentioned, higher education. 

You've heard from my distinguished colleagues, 
and that they are. Especially, and I want to commend 
him, because he is a source of great pride to us in 
our community, John McMahon, who has given great 
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I service to our nation when he was at the CIA at 
2 Lockheed Missiles and Space, and we are thrilled that 
3 he remains in our con~n~unity.  We need him, and we 
4 want him, and you have heard the benefit of his great 
5 career and his comment5 today. 
6 All members of this panel are talking about 

the flaws of the DODs recommendation for Onizuka Air 
Station and Moffen Field, and how implementation of 
these recommendations would harm our national 
security, and I say "our." It's not just mine. It's 
not just yours. It belongs to all of us. Our 
national security inhibits our ability to cut costs 
and impair the integrity of the unique Moffett Field 
Complex. It's important for us -- in fact, it is 
incumbent upon us to bring forward thoughtful 
analysis of the proposals in our critique of them. 

However, it's also our responsibility to offer 
a positive alternative to you, because you have a job 
to do, and it is our job to demonstrate that, and we 
believe that we can demonstrate that there is a 
better way, a better way to enhance our national 
security, a better way to realize true cost savings, 
and a better way to preserve Silicon Valley's Moffett 
Complex. 

Let me outline for you our alternative. It's 
20 1 

1 And these are costs that the Air Force -- cost the 
2 Air Force a significant amount of money every year. 
3 By realigning to Moffett, the Air Force would 
4 be able to reduce costs by at least 300 thousand 
5 dollars to a half a million. 
6 Additional cost savings can be realized 

through the realignment to Moffen, and they will 
result from the following: 

Eliminating the need for construction at 
Falcon, and there's a price tag on that of 75 nillion 
200 thousand dollars. 

Eliminating moving costs: 17 million 32 
thousand. 

The new switch at Falcon: 100 million. 
And other costs identified by COBRA of 26 

million dollars. Pretty serious bucks in my view. 
Realignment to Moffett will also promote 

commercial utilization of available capacity of 
Onizuka. The Air Force Space Command has the stated 
goal of becoming the network of choice for both the 
DOD and non-DOD satellite systems. Yet the Air Force 
in our view is failing or apparently failing to 
realize that the center, in capital letters, the 
CENTER of the commercial space program is in the Bay 
Area with the Moffett Complex at the heart of it. 
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- 

I a realignment to Mofieti Field. Because the 1 The Ai:. Force and DO> nerd ti. r;ii:r aj\,ai-,l;ig7 

3 operations at Onizuka cannot be conducted at an): ? of the commercial parmering oppomnitiec h a t  ere 
. . 

5 o h e r  .4ir Force sit= urithout incurring subs~ntia! .-. 
j oni!. avaiiable her- ::.'c~nln~er~.:ai \ rnn.re.c ur::, k...? 

capital investment and ongoing operatir,~ co:;:~. wt. 

propose Onizuka Air Station be realigned to Moffen 
Aiiifield. not to Falcon. 

Doing so will provide, in our view. the Air 
Force significant cost savings while retaining the 
important national securiry insurance of maintaining 
a dual node, and underscore that. a dual node 
satellite command and control capability. 

Onizuka currently encompasses 25 acres, and I 
think you have flown over it and walked over part of 
it and been exposed to all of the things that we know 

15 are the positive aspects of it. 
16 25 acres of operational area. An additional 
17 600 acres at Moffen Federal Afield are available 
18 for mission expansion needs of the Air Force at a 
19 cost significantly less -- significantly less than 
20 recreating the unique Onizuka facilities at Falcon. 
2 1 Onizuka currently leases space at 4 different 
22 locations in industrial parks in Sunnyvale. This is 
13 expensive commercial space, and it's expensive 
24 because a lot of people realize what we have in our 

Uie r?\.aiiabip, rapacir; 2; '3rrizui;;: tc ccjmniand an; 

control satellites. and this could resuit in savings 
from such operations if the Air Force is w h g  tc\ 
accept commercialization of the space command 
network. 

* Industry would benefit enormously as well. 
from contacts, from Lower Earth Orbit, and resolution 
for commercial space systems, connectivity to remote 
locations. and in-place infrastructure worldwide. 

All of this can be done while retaininy all of 
the requisite capability of the Onizuka node. 

15 Realigning to Moffett field will also retain 
I6 the integrity of the Moffett Field Complex. which is 
17 both an irreplaceable resource and a significant 
18 national asset. 
19 It's important to note here, as the governor's 
20 report makes clear. that the retention of the 129th 
21 Rescue Group at Moffett Field is vital, in capital 
22 letters, is VITAL to the integrity of the Moffett 
23 Field complex as well. 
24 The operation of Moffett Airfield by the 129th 

25 area and clamber to come to it to do business there. 1 25 supports not only its own search and rescue mission, 
207, I 204 
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I but also the critical flight activities of NASA Ames, 1 have 2 components in my presentation this time. The 

2 other reserve units at Moffett. and local aerospace 2 first one deals with the issue of military value 

3 users who need secure access to the airfield. 
4 There's a lot built into that when 1 say that. 
5 Onizuka Air Station is part of Moffett. It's 

more than a stand alone base, as you have heard 
several of my colleagues already state. 

It stands at the nucleus of America's space 
industrial base. Government efficiency and cost 
savings will be sacrificed if in fact the symbiotic 
relationship that we have spoken of before and 
continue to underscore today, which now exists 
between satellite controllers and technical experts 
is broken, and Air Force goals and missions will be 
sacrificed with the implementation of the DOD's 

16 proposed actions. There is a better alternative, and 
17 we believe that it is a most reasonable one, and it 
18 is to capture the cost savings of a realignment of 
19 Onizuka to Moffett and to reject the questionable 

3 analysis, and let me just give you the conclusion for 
4 the first 2 slides. 
5 In looking at the data and looking at the 

bases, it appears to me that military value fell t o  
the wayside in this case. Let me just mention why. 
k t  me talk about the issues why this is so. 

In  the first slide we see that the move to 
McClellan reduces space by 220 thousand square feet. 
The second point is that the current Moffett 
facilities are 1980s vintage, and the McClellan 
facilities are 1950s vintage. 

The next slide. The third and fourth reason 
why we believe the military value is not really 

16 included in this analysis. 
17 The third issue here is that McClellan 
18 operates 2 hours less per day than Moffen. 
19 And, finally, there is typically more ground 

22 We believe, again, that this is truly a better 1 22 Let me move to the cost analysis component of 

20 cost savings asserted to be available through 
21 realignment to Falcon Air Force Base. 

23 way to protect our national security interests, to 1 23 my presentation. The first point here is that the 

20 fog, thule fog as we call it here, at McClellan. We 
21 have much better fog. It is much higher. 

24 maximize cost savings, and to preserve the unique 
25 partnerships that comprise the Moffett Field Complex. 
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24 original site survey estimation done by the Air Force 
15 ufas 20 nlillion dollars, they costed at McCiellan. 
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I Onizukz is certainly strategically located to provide i AmzzinpI! enough. ti::~ ~ - a >  reduced iim.: ::, - :-, 
2 leadership for the next generation. the nest 1 nearly I 0  rni!lior, dollars. arc! the basis c?f r !; - 

. . -  
3 peneration of Air Force and DOD space technoic?p . 1 rgc)difi:ati(;~,, \.?-,- . sl:a;~i:ag: - ~;;)55:2:i;;: L:-< -: 

i As t!e Air Forcr -- as our A!: Forcr srei;s I:: .- 2~12: :2 :b !y  

5 develop new spacecratt wlth autonomy and a h~ghe: z .4nd I hmi; I: we're ralklng anm: -- we rt 

6 degree of commonality. there is no better place to be tdlklng aoout b:g money as Congress\voman Eshoo polnr: 

7 than in the center of wnere the spacecraft are beinf 7 out. We went from 30 miliion to 10 miijion doliars. 

8 designed and built. 8 and I as an economist for anybody ulould cenainiy 
9 We urge you to not only reject 7he flawed 9 look into that very carefully, particularly since 

10 recommendations of the DOD, but instead adopt what we 1 10 it's of national interest or any interest. 
11 believe is more than a reasonable plan, which would 
12 allow you to accomplish your job and to retain the 
13 integrity of those elements that are so important for 

11 The next slide. It is a savings claimed of 
12 about 4 point 75 million annually for the move. 
12 However. this is not the case. There is a 

significant overstatement of savings. This is 
actually a whole lot less than 4 point 7 million 
dollars. There is no question of savings here 
because the 129th is reimbursed for most of what it 
does. 

So, again, this is wrong analysis. I don't 
know how you can overlook this. 

Next slide. Move on to labor costs. P'c're 
talking about saving 19 jobs. But remember, please. 
that the National Air Guard is reimbursed for 59 jobs 
by Moffett tenants. So the move would mean that 
there would be compensation, reimbursement for 40 
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our nation, and that we could move forward together 
having accomplished that, and that is the realignment 
to Moffett Field. 

Let me thank you again for your attention at 
the end of a very long day, and again welcome to our 
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region. 19 
CHAIRMAN DlXON: Thank you, congresswoman. Wc I 20 

appreciate that very much. 2 1 
MS. PARKER: And now Dr. Munroe, Chief -- 7 7  

Economist of PG&E will review the flawed 129th / 23 
analysis. 1 24 

DR. MUNROE: Thank you very much. Again I / 25 
206 I 
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1 less jobs. How can we niiss this? This is obviously / 1 that this sales will exceed over a billion dollars 
2 over statement of savings, and it's a glaring. ( 2 annually. 

glaring cost issue. 
Let me sumniarize the analysis again. That the 

first cost overstatement deals with the military 
construction area. Initially plus 20 million. Now 
it is 10 million. Lost reimbursement personnel about 
2 point 2 million, and other lost reimbursenientq 
include about 5 point 25 nlillion. 

So in summary it is very difficult for me 
professionally to look at this analysis and not be 
somewhat dismayed, both from the point of view of the 
fundamental value on which these decisions were made; 
and the second one, overstatement of costs and 
savings. 

Thank you very much. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much. 
MS. PARKER: And now Ms. Katherine Strehl, 

Public Affairs Manager at Lockheed Martin will review 
the importance to contractors. 

MRS. STREHL: Thank you. Chairman Dixon -- 
oops. Can you hear me? And Members of the 
Commission, thank you for the opportunity to offer 
you my comments today on behalf of the Missiles and 
Space Company of Lockheed Martin. As you ma). be 
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The company has made substantial investments 
in the state of the art facilities including 
world-class high-bay clean room and integration 
facilities, as well as large environmental test 
facilities ranging from hernial vacuum, acoustic, and 
radio frequency test chambers and autoclaves. 

With an estimated replacement value of 2 
billion dollars. these facilities represent or 
produce flight ready systems. Missiles and Space 
have long been a premier integrator of strategic 
missiles, space and ground systems critical to our 
nation's defense. 

Most germane to Lockheed Martin's concern 
about the continued presence of the 129th at Moffen, 
is that we produce large, heavy. and extremely 
valuable hardware items for both the Department of 
Defense and NASA. Such items include the Trident 
Fleet Ballistic Missile, Milstar Satellites, 
classified space programs. the Hubble Space 
Telescope, and the International Space Station Alpha. 

These products must be delivered to our 
customers in a safe and secure manner that does nc A 

Intencre dramaticaliy with the communrg . 

71: 

7r. . - 1 aware. Lockheed Martin is one of ' ihe -- I S  ti?: j ilu;. dlreyt a;;-.cp ar?, z!r!:-;;: v,-:tr : ,:.. : . 
2 largest derense contractor woriduridr uritii 23 i:iiiic~i: 1 i11l aircrafi carjat)ii:y is nar;i;n:)un:. Z;=:,-, 
3 dollars in sales annuali!.. , i , . . o , ~ L , , . 8 t .  '-$ . - - -  c. . . ,. -- 
- 1.m here to represen: 0u:- c t l f i>r i~  2i103: 21: -. l~e,':.. 112: z ! ~  e.'>y::::;:~ cs!-,:> : r:::;,: 1 J , ;;~- 

5 possible realignment of the 129th Rescue irnii. anc . .< o loci;tieed's prouuc.~. 

6 can say it is of deep concern tc! us. 
7 The Missiles and Space Cornpan).. which i 

Further. deslgn cntena 101 man?. c: ou! 
systems are based on dlrrci access to Moirer. 

& represent here in Nosthern California, is one of thr I.) Proximity to Moffett's secured airfield is integrai 
9, largest industrial employers in this area. We have 9 to more than 40 percent of our business. and I miph: 

10 11 thousand workers at our Sunnyvale facility. And I i 10 say that's roughly I point 2 billion -- 1 point 5 
11 might say that this facility was chosen over 30 years i 1 1 billion dollars annually. 
12 ago because of its proximity to Moffen Airfield. As 
13 a subsidiary of Lockheed Martin Corporation, the 
14 Missiles and Space Conipany has sales exceeding 3 
15 point 6 billion dollars annually. 
16 We do business with about 2800 Bay Area 
17 businesses, with an annual value exceeding 200 
18 million dollars. We currently have about 400 active 
19 contracts, most of which are with defense and 
20 civilian -- are defense and civilian space related. 
21 Today our primary customers have been the Department 
22 of Defense and NASA. 
23 However, since the end of the cold war we have 
23 significantly expanded into the commercial space 
25 business, and within the next 5 years we anticipate 

2 10 

1 12 We have evaluated alternauves to Moffett and 
I , :? determined that therl ale no feasibie or rel~able 

transportauon opuons The mil~tary transport used 
15 to move these systems, the C-5 aircraft, and I 1 16 l 4  believe that there's one pictured above us here 

I 17 showing the movement of a satelhte, cannot land at 
18 most public airports. And even if they could, the 
19 size and welght of these products. along with the 

, 20 transponers. preclude the~r  movenlent along puhilc 
2 1 highways. As ar, example, the Hubble Spact: Telzi,cop: 

22 was 43 feet in height. 14 feet in diameter, and 
13 weighed nearly 13 tons. And we moved that directly 
34 from our Sunnyvale facility via Moffett Field onto a 
25 C-5. 

2 12 
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We have studied various alternative options if 
Moffett Field weren't there as a secured facility, 
and there really aren't any. We even Itmked at 
barging of payloads to Alameda Naval Air Station. 
However, this option faces insurnlountable obstacles. 

In summary, we have determined that any action 
which could potentially affect Moffett Field's 
continued operation as a secure facility would have a 
chilling effect on Lockheed Martin's Sunnyvale 
operations, adversely affecting approximately 40 
percent of our business. For these programs, there 
are no feasible or viable transportation 
alternatives. 

In closing, Moffen Field represents a unique, 
preeminent resource, not just to Santa Clara County, 
but to the nation. It has been the genesis for 
high-technology development in Silicon Valley, and 
continues to be an integral part of aerospace 
development and technology. In considering the vital 
work of NASA, Lockheed Martin, and other aerospace 
contractors to this nation, we believe that 
realignment of the 129th does not serve the taxpayer 
and the national interest. 

Thank you for accepting my comments. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you. Mrs. Strehl. 
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M S .  PARIZR: And now. Conpresc~ofilar: Anne Eslltr;. 

Z wili revlew our recommendeci coussf of action for m:- 
3 129th. 
-r COh'GRESSVz'GMAii ESEO;, Ti;,n,; ; t i :  ‘:<,,i: 

5 Councilmember. 
6 On the recommended course of actioc, ! beiievt 
7 3, of the commissioners heard the daj. before yestzrda!- 
8 Lee Grissom representing the governor and tiic 
9 comments, and since he cannot be here this afternoon 

10 with us, I'm going to attempt to recapture what he 
1 1 presented at that time to the full commission now. 
12 We believe that the more appropriate solution 
13 for the 129th is to leave the unit at Moffett Federal 
14 Airfield. Doing so is more cost effective, impomnr 
15 for national security reasons, and critical to the 
1 6 viability of the Moffen Complex. 
17 When the decision was made to close Moffen 
18 Field as a Navy facility. the California Air National 
19 Guard became a key member of the team developing the 
20 concept of the Moffen Complex as a shared federal 
21 facility. 
22 In fact, it was a very unique arrangement that 
23 was brought into play at that time. The Guard Bureau 
24 made a contractual commitment to NASA in 1993 to be 
25 an anchor tenant at the facility. 

11 4 
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The Moffett Complex is a shared facility with 
the cost of common operations being shared equitably 
by all of the agencies based on concept? and formulas 
developed hy all the participants. 

Because the Air Force cost analysis does not 
add up. the best course of action is for the 129th to 
remain at Moffett. 

The GAO, and this is on the cost part of it -- 
the GAO recommends that the cost of proposed actions 
on all federal users be considered by the comn~ission. 
If the 129th leaves Moffett, the cost of operating 
the airfield will not be reduced, and the services 
provided by the 129th will have to be replaced at 
potentially higher costs to the United States 
Government. The first domino. 

Without the secure controlled airfield, are we 
getting that up there? Okay. I'm not going to look 
up there. I'm going to concentrate on my own. The 
commissioners can look up there; right? 

Without the secured controlled airfield, NASA 
Ames and the federal contractors cannot function 
properly, and you are hearing testimony that 
underscores that. 

Without these federal contractors. the 
high-tech space industrial base of the nation wili 

315 
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Tilt. Moffen Federai kiriieid represents ir 
excess of 600 acres of available federal iand and 
fa-'l' LI lues. ' Tnis area is avaiiable to both the 129th 
and Onizuka for mission expendability should either 
organization choose to do so. Expandability, I 
should say. This expandabiliq option is available 
in an economical. cost effective manner. 

The Commander-in-Chief s preference. As 
Commander-in-Chief, and that's not me. but the 
governor, because these are the words of Mr. Grissoni. 
As Commander-in-Chief of the California Air National 
Guard, our Governor's preference is to retain the 
129th Rescue Group at Moffen Federal Airfield, which 
has higher military value and where it should 
continue to anchor the Moffen Aitiield Complex. 

To ensure there is no question regarding the 
governor's position or the position of tbe California 
National Guard, Colonel Paul Mom ,>e is here to make a 
brief statement, and I'd like to call on him now, to 
do so. 

COLONEL MONROE: Thank you. The National 
216 
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Guard -- the California National Guard supjx)rts the 
governor's position. The 129th has been a long-time 
member of the SunnyvaletMountain View community. The 

move was directed by the Air Force in anticipation of 
the base being closed. There is no operational 
requirement. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Colonel. 
MS. PARKER: Now I'd like to just take this 

opportunity to summarize. 
Regarding Onizuka Air Station, you've heard 

Mr. John McMahon, Former Deputy Director of the CIA, 
stress the importance of redundancy and the 
requirement for dual nodes. You also know that 
General Joseph W. Ashey, in a policy directive issued 

scored equally. The secret ballot approach 
undertaken by the Air Force is not auditable. The 
Air Force cannot have it both ways. 

We know that you are charged with streamlining 
facilities and functions to realize savings to 
taxpayers, and we as a community are not suggesting 
that you do nothing. We offer a cost effective 
alternative that saves taxpayers money, and also 
ensures the continued functioning of the Moffett 
Field Complex. 

Our quote, "realignment, " unquote, proposal 
involves relocating activities currently in 
commercial lease space onto Moffett Federal Airfield 
Complex. Our proposal maintains the dual node 

17 having a separate geographical location of the 17 directive earlier this year. 
18 satellite commanding control node. Our proposal preserves the highly skilled work 

15 on January 30th of this year stressed also the 

16 importance of redundancy and the criticality of 

19 You're aware of some of the unique 
20 capabilities at Onizuka, and you're also aware of the 
21 available capacity, and Congresswoman Eshoo has 
22 indicated the potential and the realization of some 

15 redundancy that was underscored the importance by 
16 both Mr. McMahon and the Air Force in their policy 

23 of that capacity for commercial space utilization. 
24 In that regard. a number of commercial entities have 
15 formed a working group. 

917 

19 force necessary to operate a satellite and network 
20 control facility, and we would like to note 
21 that this skilled work force is not immediately 
22 available in Colorado, and it takes at least a year 
23 and a half to train people to develop this kind of 
24 skill set. 
2 5 We are also aware of the savings in terms of 
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C generate significant revenue far exceeding UI: - savings estimated b!, the Air Force tf!rougi! til t  

.4galn. we stress the Importance of tht 
- 

redundancy requirements. the c a p a b i l i ~  of 0nizui.r: 
7. - E proposed realignmen: recon~mendarim r:: r2~:?:1 C ~ i :  Force Statiori to expand its mission capabil i~.  

9 Our local communities and the Stare of 9 We've shown that that capability is superior to 

10 California fully support this initiative. and we 10 Faicon, and that the potential for commercial 
1 1 intend to keep the comn~ission fully informed on tills , ! ! utilization does exist. 
12 commercialization utilization initiative. : 17- Regarding the 129th Rescue Group. it is not a 
13 Regarding the flawed Air Force BRAC analysis. , 1 :  :> BRAC issue. In 1P93, the BRAC commission ordered the 

14 you heard Dr. Munroz. Chief Economisr or YG&E in i 4 nlovenlent of additional resenre aviation assets to the 
15 concurrence with the general accounting offices 15 Moffett Complex, and the State of California, as 
16 report issued on April 17th indicate that the 16 you've heard from Congresswoman Anna Eshoo and from 

analysis was seriously flawed. 17 
Some especially arbitrary and egregious j 

examples of these flawed results exist in t!!e area of / 19 
satellite control operations and mission capaciv, ! 20 
facilities availability and the condition. 2 1 
contingency, mobility and deemployment requirements, 22 
and cost and manpower implications regarding a return \ 13 
on investment. ' 24 

We cannot understand why all 8 criteria were 1 25 
21s 

1 

Colonel Paul Monroe from the adjutant general's 
office state that the state supports keeping the 
129th Rescue Group at the Moffett Complex. 

You heard from Dr.  Munroe about the flawed 
B U C  analysis in this regard. There is no detailed 
military analysis done, and the cost projections are 
quite suspect. Retaining the 129th realizes overall 
cost savings without degradation of the mission. Our 
recommendation is that you adopt our proposal to 
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retain die 139th at Moffen, realize the cost 
savings, and at the same time preserve the Moffea 
Federal Complex as a unique national asset that helps 
the needs -- that serves the needs of our nation's 
military and aerospace industries. 

In conclusion. we'd like to thank the BRAC 
commissioners, Chair Dixon, and the staff for the 
opportunity to speak today. We hope we have raised 
some pertinent issues that will ensure your 
independent and continued thorough review. 

The Moffen Field Complex is the center of 
America's air space industrial base, and we hope that 
it remains so for decades to come, not only for our 
area, but for the country at large. 

Thank you very much. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well, we thank you very much. 
(Clapping .) 
We thank you very much, Councilmember Parker, 

and Congresswoman Eshoo, and all of your 
distinguished colleagues. I wonder if any of my 
colleagues have any questions? Commissioner 
Cornella. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: Even though Onizuka 
provides redundancy for Falcon Air Force Base and 
vice versa, the dail!. mission. is that also 

23 I 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: What percent of the 
housing would still be required after realignment? I 
know that the housing is recommended for closure. 
Can anyone answer that question? 

CONGRESSWOMAN ESHOO: I think it can be 
answered, but I think that we're going to have to get 
that to you to be specific and correct. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: As I understand, it's 
over 50 percent would still be required. I would 
like that information to the commission. 

CONGRESSWOMAN ESHOO: We shall get ~t to you. 
COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: And then also the 

realignment to Moffett of Onizuka, you would retain 
Onizuka in place and expansion would take place so it 
wouldn't require any MILCON to move; is that correct? 

MS. PARKER: The realignment, and our quote, 
unquote, "realignment" proposal involves moving some 
of the activities that relate to Onizuka that are 
currently taking place in leased space outside of the 
airfield onto the Moffett Complex. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: You wouldn't 
physically move the existing station? 

MS. PARKER: No. 
COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: You would just have 

that facility there for expansion purposes? 
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: duplication. or d c  LI-.!. do difie:.rn: :n~ssions'i MS. PARKER: I'es. 
h', F;. !\i (ki ,A.Z:L! 4; . 'T~Ic  e~npi~as~:,  ria:, ci:zngci: a: 

- .  
--al:oK n r i  za:us;?. '5r:i.:aa!i!.. ope:.atl:)ny 2: u ~ i :  

:<- iss; e\.ai3~~x';;; sz;L r : ]z : i ;c ]y:  <>I s ~ ~ 2 ! ! ~ ~ 2 ,  I , ; : > i  

.>;.>-+ I,.U- h-.-.a -L., (1' ' L On;zl;i;z. Faicoi; ~-,xs )p=3 cjt 
capabiiin.. the). have taken on the operatlonai 
satellites. So that when a satellite is firs: 
izunched. 0nizul:a controis it, tests it, runs througi; 
the evaluation. and w h m  it mrers all the 

specifications that it's been designed for, it is 
declared operational and turned over to Falcon :o 

operate. and that's only fairly recently. 
What has happened experience wise is tha: 

since Falcon hasn't matured yet. they oiten call back 
to Onizuka and ask them to run it while they get back 
up to speed and can handle it operationally. 

But the desire is lo have tbe operauons done 
at Falcon where the space command center is. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: But on a daily basis, 
they would have different missions. they 're able to 
provide the redundancy? 

MR. MCMAHON: Right now they provide the 
redundancy while they're doing their specific 
operations. One in test and evaluation, and the 
other in pure operations. 
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COhlMISSiONEk CORNELLA: Okay. Thani; you. 
-. 
: nat's all I havc. h'. r. Chairma:!. 

n- 7 

i t - .  AIRh/l.h!;.. DIXOK : I tnani: C:?rnrni;si~n-r 
Cornelia. Are there any other further questions? 
Well. we thank: you al! for a very excellent 
presentation. It's been very helpful to us. We 
appreciate you coming here 

MS. PARKER: Thank you very much. 
-- 000 -- 
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9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Robert E. Sabol 
Lawrence D. Vivian 
Louis Rodriguez 
Cleveland Murphy 
Richard E. Jones 
Michael Patterson 
J.B. Larkins 
Darrell Neft 
R.T. Barruss 
Phil Truman 
Gordon Countrymun 
David Grayson 
Steve Kuykendall 
Russ Buchan 

MR. JONES: Here. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Good. Michael Patterson? 
MR. PAITERSON: Yes 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: J.B. Larkins? 
MR. LARKINS: Yes. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Dean McCown, 111. Dean 

McCown there? 
MS. MCCOWN: Here. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Oh, good. Thank you. 

Darrell Neft? 
MR. NEFT: Here. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: R.T. Barruss? Is that close. 

Mr. Barruss? 
MR. BARRUSS: Yes. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Phil Truman? 
MR. TRUMAN: Here. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Gordon Countrymun? 
MR. COUNTRYMUN: Here. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: David Grayson? 
MR. GRAYSON: Here. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Steve Kuykeudall, is that 

okay, Steve? 
MR. KUYKENDALL: Yes. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Russ Buchan. 
MR. BUCHAN: Buchan. 
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CXAIRKAN DIXON Ladies and gentlemen. if I C'H.4IRMAN DIXON: Buclian 
1 ulose or you who are p i n g  to mahe public comment\ 3 - MR. BUCHAN: Buchan. 

Z fo- the great srattt of Caiifornla would bepn tc - CII.4IRMkN DTX'Oh O ~ a j   us; a mom-n: now 
.. zssemhie ir, h e  fron: of d ~ r  ri)oni. we have a feu we're going to get ready to go here 

f minutes, and tilere's a gentleman there right up by 1 5  Now. if we may have order in the room. i'm 
6 ine microphone. Mr. P~zer,  in that fancy looking blue 1 6 not going to begin until we all settle down, because 

tie, and if you have -- if you have something in 1 7 2 minutes is not a long time to tell your story, and 
writing that you want to put in the record in 
addition to your two-minute presentation, if you hand 

it to him, I assure you it will be reproduced in the 
record. 

Now. let me name the people that should be out 
there. Is Mr. Robert E. Sabol there? I hope the 
name is close. 

MR. SABOL: Yes. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Sabol. 

17 Lawrence Vivian? 
18 MR. VIVIAN: Yes. 
19 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Louis Rodriguez? 
20 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Yes. 
2 1 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Cleveland Murphy? Is 
22 Mr. Murphy there, or can he be found? 

23 IJNKNOWN MALE: 1'11 find him. 
24 CHAIRMAN DIXON: If somebody would find 

25 Mr. Murphy. Richard Jones here? 
226 

I'm very sensitive to that as an old washed up 
politician. So I want to give you all a good chance 
to talk for 2 minutes. 

Everybody over there getting comfortable? 
Nobody is required to stay, but if you're going to 
stay, we would appreciate it if you would get a chair 
so these fine folks can make their presentations to 
us. How are we doing, folks? Everybody settled? 

Now, ladies and gentlemen. I have to ask you 
to raise your right hands, please. Do you solemnly 
swear or affirm that the testimony you are about to 
give before the Defense Base Closure and Realignment 
Commission shall be the truth, the whoie truth, and 
nothing but the truth? 

SPEAKERS: I do. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Sabol, please. I'm sorry? 
MR. SABOL: Commissioner Steele, is she corning 
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back, Mr. Chairman? 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: She will be back in a moment. 

Would you prefer waiting a moment? 
MR. SABOL: I certainly would. I think it 

would be good for everybody that all the 
commissioners are here. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Why don't we wait just a 
moment. I'm sure she's just gone out to make a phone 
call or something -- 

MR. SABOL: I certainly understand that. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: -- and will only be a moment. 
MR. SABOL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: While we're waiting, let me 

say this. We're now ready to begin a period set 
aside for public comment. Our intention is to try to 
ensure that all opinions on the recommendations of 
the secretary affecting California are heard. We've 
assigned 30 minutes for this period. 

We asked persons wishing to speak to sign up 
before the hearing began. They've done so by now, 
and we've also asked them to limit their comments to 
2 minutes, and we will ring a bell at the end of that 
time. Please stop after your 2 minutes are up. 
Written testimony of any length is welcomed by the 
commission at any time in this process. 
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out with any engineering firm that specializes in 
this. 

Also, there is no graving dry docks owned in 
San Diego by any private corporation of any size. 
The depth of the graving dry docks at Long Beach. d ~ e  
naval sea systems command matrix will show 45 and 35 

feet. That is accurate to the sill. They do  not 
tell the complete story by I think just by onlission. 

What's important here is the floor of the 
graving dry dock. And in Long Beach, the floor is 10 
more feet deeper than the sill on which the casing 
sits there. Thus Dry Dock Number 1 is 55 feet deep, 
the deepest dry dock in this country. 

Dry docks 2 and 3 are 45 feet. That's deeper 
than two-thirds of the graving dry docks in the rest 
of the country, the whole country. 

The depth of the channel, you've heard about 
that. It's exactly right now the main channel into 
Long Beach, 70 feet deep, Peer B and legally adjoined 
to the -- 

CIlAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much, 
Mr. Sabol. If you have any more in writing, give it 
to Mr. Pizer. Lawrence Vivian, please. 

MR. VIVIAN: My name is Lawrence Vivian. I'm 
the -- well, former chief industrial engineer for the 

23 1 

If all of those signed up to speak have i 

2 already raised your right hands and had the oath 
, - 

L 

i administered. we're ready to get going as soon as ulr 

find our  comn~issioner who's out there making 2 pijon: 
5 cali. 5 
6 You're so popular, Cornmissioner Steele, that 6 

I 
'7 they didn't want to go forward without you being 7 
6 here. 1 6  
9 COMMISSIONER STEELE: Sorry. j 9 

10 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well, we're delighted to have ( 10 
I 

I I you, and we appreciate that, and Mr. Sabol, you ma), j l i  
12 proceed. 1 i3 
13 MR. SABOL: Mr. Chairman, all the members of' 1 13 
14 the BRAC Committee, staff. fellow citizens: My  name i 14 

s h ~ ~ v a r d  !'n: a reg~stered engtnecr u ls'l hC5.L. rr.- ' 
want to bner toe committee. in particular Aam~ra'  

15 is Robert Sabol. marine technology instructor 
16 certified by the University of California, L.A. with 
17 my expertise in dry dock. A few comments I'd like to 
18 make that we did not touch upon earlier about Long 
19 Beach. The difference between floating dry docks and 
20 graving dry docks. I assume one of the con~missioners 

, .  . Montoya who ! mrt ostside bt.fo:.-,. 23- ! r;, nsr-;- z:.' 

15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 

1 was distressed really by all the negauve 

3 said he knows the difference, but the others may not. 2 1 
22 Generally, in the industry it is considered 1 22 
23 that a graving dock has at least 250 to 300 percent 
24 greater value than a floating dock of equal lifting 
25 capacity. And I hope that your staff will check this 

5 
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information and misinformation ir. the press, and I'n: 
here as a private citizen at my own expense. 

After listening to the Long Beach 
presentation, particularly Congressman Horn. Admiral 
Hekman, Dr. Johnson. and Mr. Gurzi, most of my 
concerns have been addressed eloquently and in much 
more detail than I could have. 

I think the flexibility may not have been 
looked at in too much detail. but basically change 
orders, design construction, and other things lend 
themselves really well to a focal shipyard. In 
general, my concern is consistent in terms of common 
sense. Among those, remember Pearl Harbor if we go 
all the eggs in one basket. Two. closure results in 
the loss of irreplaceable people skills, tremendous 
facility infrastrucrure, and national assets being 
lost. 

I have had concerns with what are the criteria 
for the long-range possible wartime emergency needs 
versus the current and immediate needs, and Admiral 
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I Hekman addressed that precisely. 
2 What are the economics that justifjr a 
3 profitable. excellent performance to be closed? Why 
4 should we close Long &ach when it's working so well? 

1 is proposing to build 2 carriers, the Regan and the 
2 Tubin at a cost of 4 and a half billion dollars 
3 apiece. The one -- the submarines cost I and a half 
4 billion dollars apiece. If the concern is of 

5 Good question. . 1 5 dollars, why are we building these ships? And then, 
In all due respect, I must say beware of 

unsupported numbers conling out of Washington. In 
1970, I believe it was that the naval station 
closure, a reporter at Peer B asked me what did I 
think about the naval station closing. It was in the 
newspapers that night. And the next day the 
newspaper articles indicated that the naval station 
was being closed based on economic reasons. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Vivian. 
Mr. Rodriguez. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Chairman Dixon, Members of the 
Commission: I'm tired. I think 1 had about 3 hours 
of sleep in the past 48 hours, but I'm here to 
continue this fight. First of all, I'm president of 
one of the local unions of the Long Beach Naval 
Shipyard. I've been with the Navy 3 1 years, 27 with 
the shipyard, 4 active, and I'm a proud veteran of 
Viet Nam. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Good. 
MR. RODRIGUEZ: I would just like to say that 
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again. where are they going to be fixed in the 
future? These ships will last 50 years. The Long 
Beach Naval Shipyard has lasted 52 years and still 
being used today. 

In closing, I'd like to say that the Long 
Beach Naval Shipyard en~ployees are dedicated to this 
nation. They have proven that over and over again, 
and I think they need the respect. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Rodriguez. 
Mr. Murphy. 

(Clapping .) 
MR. MURPHY: My name is Cleveland Murphy from 

the Long Beach Naval Shipyard, employee for 21 years, 
Viet Nam vet. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Good. 
MR. MURPHY: And I'm just here speaking for 

the grass roots, for the people that work every day. 
We're angry. We did everything in the world that 
they asked us to do. We knew that the -- that the 
Navy was cutting back. and we knew that they had to 
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1 one of the questions that I as1;ed yesterda).. an:! ! -... 
.u: s o m e w i ~ e r ~ .  S .\ \iJc po; it do:::. '6.r i::: : 

2 would like to repeat that is why does the U.S. ha\?  1 ~euuctior! in rorce reailgnmen: U t- go: rid :,+ c o , ~  
.,&I, ,,,'., in San Diego constantl! request Long E a c h  tralnei . . l - ~ , , ~ . , ,  eari!' re:~e~~:s: 

L work force over and over again when tii? pri\.atr \ r did ~\y=-.t::i:~. an,i f~!t- ;if:f;?;1;. f - !?: . : .  -;,_ 

shipyards are less than 5 miles away in San Diego'! 
Their reason is simple. They need our talents and 
aptitudes. 

An article came out yesterday in yesterday's 
paper about Japan being secure in relation to 

workloads. That bothered me as a taxpayer. Over 
1,000 employees are employed in Yacosti, Japan, and 
Sasabol. Where is our leadership in American labor? 
Right now we're talking about closing the Long Beacii 
Naval Shipyard and putting not just public employees. 
but also private shipyard employees out of work. 
Why can't we bring that work back to the states? Why 
can't we bring those millions of dollars back to the 
states and keep our economy sound? 

By the same token. I'm concerned that -- lost 
my thought here -- that the American work force is 
going to be -- the skills are going to be lost, 
meanwhile other countries could benefit from our 
national -- our American dollars. 

Are we going to be relying on other nation's 
to fix our ships in the future? The Navy right now 
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management got together. h e  worked harc. W t  W O T ~ T . .  

i! out. We wen: to a 4-day work: week. We saved. H'r 

produce. W-e don't waste molie!.. 
And the thing that we're angT about is ani 

are you even considering us? We make the government 
money. We don't lose money. I mean, in all -- I'm 
not no great mathematician or that, but if you lose 
money. that's where you should be looking at to cur. 
&ot the ones that are making money for you. 

And we are angry, and we have it seems like 
twice -- 2 times I feel like my government is failing 
me. I mean, I work hard, and we work hard. We did 
everything. We just want to know why? Why are we 
even being considered? 

I mean, we have guys who are so dedicated that 
where we had 4 or 5 people before doing a job, we 
have 2 people doing it and doing quality work. You 
know, and it's just -- we are the ones who are 
sending people to Hawaii, to the Philippines, 
everywhere to help redo work that they have messed 

UP. 
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That's the Long Beach Naval Shipyard. And I 
don't think that they're looking at everything. and 1 
think this thing is maybe getting political. and it 
shouldn't be. It should be the facts. You siiould 
look at us as a productive yard. We don't waste, and 
we have good people, dedicated people. 

And it's hard for us to see these people lose 
these jobs, but we had to get rid of people even to, 
you know, to get on the costs, to save money. And we 
did it, and we got -- and it's just a dedication that 

1 1  wehave. Thankyou. 
12 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Murphy. 
13 Mr. Jones? 

MR. PATTERSON: Good afternoon, Commissioners. 
I met some of you yesterday. but today I'm here as 
just a good old taxpaying citizen. 

I ,  too, am a veteran of the Viet Nam War, and 
1 came up in the Kennedy era, you know. It was my 
honor to serve this country. It was my duty. You 
know, someone had to protect this country. And from 
that service I went with the federal government, you 
know, and I talk to people who worked with the 
federal government, so we're all cut out of the same 

1 1  cloth right here. 
12 And 1 know Long Beach Naval Shipyard, they 
13 can't work as hard as you people work, because you 

14 MR. JONES: Mr. Chairman, Commissioners: I'm 1 14 guys have been working hard all day and yesterday and 
not a public speaker. I am a shipwright, a Viet Nam 
veteran, and a member of the shipyard family, and I 
am proud to be that. 

We have a very dedicated work force. As 
everybody has come up and said before me, we have cut 
costs. We have got lean and mean, and we've done the 
job better, faster, and for less. 

It's hard for me to follow some of these guys 
23 because I am not a good public speaker, but I am 
24 still proud of all of my brothers and sisters. They 
25 are my extended family. I think you saw that in 
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whatever. So we don't come up to your standards of 
working that hard, but we're pretty close. 

So I'm quite sure that you know what I'm 
talking about. And all Long Beach is saying is, you 
know, we're not coming to you with our hat in our 
hands or with our heads bowed down. We're coming to 
you, and we're looking at you straight in the eye, 
and we're saying, hey, when you make this decision, 

23 make the decision based on the facts that have been 
24 presented before you. 
25 Now. no hidden agendas, no politics. just the 
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i;,t.ii; .'. .. .-., -.. 1 evidence today upit& ~e l a q e  arnou:, 3 bus loads c:f' L;K ~ . o t ; .  iitiij iiic s\iiea: &at kt: >c'nf Sezc:: 

2 people that spent their own money to come up here anc 2 Nava! Snip!.zrd emplovees have done to i:wp this 

support us. I would like to sa!. pirase consider thz: I carjo? s::nnr . i:.: . t ~ e  fire: :.ix;+$. -k2:.: :; 

5 We use common sense instead 0 3  dollars and 5 And we ikei that any rationai decision wou~c. 
6 cents to get the job done. And we are very proud of ' r: 

i: be in our fmor.  Murphy menrioned that some peopi:: 
! - 

7 that. I'm proud of all of my brothers and sisters I I are a n g q .  They are angry. But. you know. when we 

8 who have given up their own time, their weekends. to 8 first were put on the list, a lot of people were 
* 9 work hard for this country. and that's what it's all 1 9 devastared. But when the things happens, things like 

10 about, protecting our country, and leaving a 
11 mobilization base in place that can react on a 
12 moment's notice. 
13 I want you to think very seriously about that. 

I hope that you will see that we are the best bank 
for the buck of the United States of America. 

And I am very serious in saying that I'm 
scared to death of losing my job. I am a 
grandfather, and I'm just too darned old to go find a 
new job. It's going to be devastating for all of us, 
especially those young ones that have started, and 
they have maybe 1 year, maybe 5 years, maybe 10 years 
in. They're way short of retirement. I have 3 
years. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Jones. 
Mr. Patterson. 
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10 Oklahoma, now closing Long Beach isn't the end of the 
11 world, because some of those federal workers, they 
17 lost their life. They made the greatest sacrifice 
13 you could give. So all I ask of you is that as Plato 

would say, do the right thing. 
(Clapping .) 
CHAIRMAN DIX'ON: Thank you, Mr. Patterson. 

Mr. Larkins. 
MR. LARKINS: Mr. Chairman and Members of the 

Committee: Ms. Everlina McCown has yielded her 2 
minutes to me, so if I go over it. I have her 2 
minutes, if it's okay with the committee? 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: If it's all right with Mrs. 
McCown, it's all right with us. 

MR. LARKINS: Thank you. I'm the president of 
the Long Beach Naval Shipyard Employee Association, 
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all-inclusive. Of April 14th. 1995, 1 was present 
when the GAO came and gave its report to the 
commission in Washington. D.C. 

The GAO mentioned, among other things. that 
the Secretary of the Navy had given up or he had 
decided not to close 4 naval activities in the State 
of California in the interests of tlying t o  save 
civilian jobs. I believe they spoke of that a few 
times. 

One of the things I would just simply like to 
mention to you, we commend the Secretary of the Navy 
for that statement. However, we believe that the 
reason, the sound reasoning wasn't looked into quite 
far enough. We believe that while being closed -- 

designated for closure rather than closing additional 
shipyards and exacerbating the problem of niinimuni 
cleanup funds. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much, 
Mr. Larkins. We appreciate that, Mr. Larkins. 

(Clapping .) 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Mr. Darrell Neft. 
M R .  NEFT: Commissioners and staff, I would 

thank you for the opportunity to speak. I'm Darrell 
Neft. I'm an electrical engineer at the shipyard. 
I'm here with my wife at our own expense, as all the 
naval shipyard people are. I would like to discuss 
this from a slightly different perspective. 

I live between Altaro and Long Beach Naval 

17 reused if they wanted to or  should they need to use 
18 it at some later date a lot faster and more readily 
19 than they can on Long Beach Naval Shipyard. 
20 We also believe that the Long Beach Shipyard 

15 while they have saved the Navy epicenter at Corona, 

16 this is a facility that can be replaced or reduced or 

21 employs just shipyard workers, while Corona is a 
22 weapons facility, employs more professional 
23 engineers, and therefore their job loss, while it's 
24 there, with their professionalism, they will be able 

25 to go and find other jobs, we believe. a lot quicker 
24 1 

15 Shipyard in the County of Orange. The economic 
16 impact of the Altaro-Tustin-Long Beach Naval Station 
17 closure, Orange Counry bankruptcy, and the proposals 
18 to close the Long Beach Naval Shipyard are 
19 devastating the residents of my area. People are 
20 being laid off and services cut. 
2 1 Meanwhile, the Navy is sending out large 
22 quantities of jobs to Japan, jobs that Americans 
23 could be doing for the national defense. Experience 
24 shows that we cannot rely on other nation's for our 
75 defense. k muple of examples. tk; 1973 Middle East 
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employment for the other employees if ?s closeci, aii.2 

we ask you to consider that when you iook 2: t h ~ .  

We would also like to poin: out. M r .  Chalrnmar.. 
that the State of California is so unique in that if 
the Long Beach Naval Shipyard is closed, vou would 
have 3 shipyards in this state closed. Now. 
notwithstanding, at this point that was not a threat 
given closure, but the stale is still suffering. 

facilities in San Eiego availahis a: Lie Lung Beaci; 
N a v d  Snipyard, and 1 billion doliars tor a 

heiicopter orphanage fo i  150 helicopters iocated in 
Tustin, helicopters previously scheduled for 
Twentynine Palms, but in the Navy's infinite wisdom. 
they now have a new proposal. let's send them off to 
Aluro. which by the way is also closing. So where 
are they going after that? 

14 It's still forced to have to accept the cimnup ot I 14 Instead of dupi~cat~ng facil~ties and laying 
15 that shipyard, particularly the city of San 1 15 off worken, let's use the money to help Orange 

Francisco. So that has not occurred in any other 
state where there will be 3 shipyards cleaned up and 
closed. So we think that's a factor that really 
needs to be placed in the -- we're suffering as a 
state from this cleanup and having to go back and 
reuse those facilities threefold. 

We would also like to simply close by sa).ing 
we further believe that the main focus for the 
limited BRAC funds should be to complete the timely 
cleanup and reuse of those shipyards already 
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Count)? and surrounded areas out of their economic 
dilemma. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much, 
Mr. Neft. Mr. R.T. Bamss .  

MR. BARRUSS: Commissioners. my name is 
Richard Bamss .  I'm an international representative 
for the International Brotherhood of Electrical 
Workers. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Very good, sir. 
MR. BARRUSS: And vice-president of the 
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Pacific Coast Metal Trades District Council. We 
represent members in every Navy yard in this nation 
and in the private shipyards on the East Coast, the 
West Coast and the Gulf Coast. 

In my 27 years of servicing union menlbers on 
all of the Pacific Coast from Alaska to t l~e  Pacific 
Islands down to San Diego, I've seen yards closed. 
I've seen yards struggling to survive. But I've 
never seen a more loyal or  productive force than 
these workers at the Long Beach Navy Yard, and I say 
God bless them, and God help them in our nation if 
you make the wrong decision here. 

Thank you for your consideration, and the 
brevity of my reniarks should in no way reflect the 
amount of our concern. 

(Clapping .) 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you. Mr. Phil Truman. 
MR. TRUMAN: I guess it's me. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: How do you do, Mr. Truman? 
MR. TRUMAN: Fine, fine. My name is Phil 

Truman. I live in Marino Valley. California, which 
is in Riverside County. My house is approximately 
80 miles from the Long Beach Naval Shipyard, and I'm 
approximately 80 miles from San Diego, and I make 
that commute 4 days a week, which is one thing I want 

23 5 
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5ui  getting baa; tc; u;;xL l uante;i 1:; sai . : 
have ilvcl 3 niics from Marsh Air Force Ease. Whec : 
bougii: house ou: in Riverside Couny, tilt: housr 
was appraised at 92 tilousand dollars. With tile 
realignment of Marsh Air Force Base and the recession 
in California, there's houses just like mine going 
for 60  thousand dollars in the same block. 

If they were to shut down Long Beach Naval 
Shipyard, and even if the Navy was to oger me 
another job someplace else. I would still have to 
walk away from my house. Credit ratings would go 
down and everything else. I'm not the only one in 
that situation. There's a lot of other shipyard 
workers that live in Marino Valley and Riverside 
County. California. 

And out of all this time. Long Beach Navai 
Shipyard out of all these years has been the only 
installation in the United States that has been put 
on a list this many times. We've survived it all of 
these times, but people just can't make long-term 
plans if we're up here every 3 years having to worry 
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about whether we're going to be out on the street or 
not. So it's hard to make any type of decisions. 
It's a lot of stress on people. Morale is down, but 
we still put out a real g c d  quality job. more than 
anyplace else in the country. 

We, like Murphy said, we've complied with 
everything the Navy has done. They wanted us to 
downsize. We downsized. We got rid of excess 
capacity. We got rid of excess capacity. We still 
do a superior quality job. I'm done already? 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Truman. 
(Clapping .) 
Mr. Countrymun. 

MR. COUNTRYMUN: Mr. Commissioner, Ladies and 

Gentlemen of the Commission: I'm Gordon Countrymun. 
I'm also kith the IBEW Local 2293, but I don't work 
in production. I work with the housing, the members 
-- the military members and their spouses. And as 
you may be aware of, Long Beach Naval Shipyard has 
been for a long time conducting a letter campaign, 
and during this campaign I have collected a lot of 
signatures from these military spouses, because 
they 're the silent majority. Their husbands or  wives 
that are in the military, and they aren't allowed to 
give an opinion. And their opinion is to keep the 
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-- wtiat this is reali!. ali about besides us. They're 
tilt. people who have to live in die area, and they're 
the peopie diat we have to take care of. 

Thank you. 
(Clapping. ) 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Countrymun. 

Mr. Grayson'! 
MR. GRAYSON: Mr. Chairman, Commissioners: 

Thank you for this opportunity to speak to you. My 
name is David Grayson. I'm the president of the 
Federal Manager's Association, Local Chapter 10, for 
the Long Beach Naval Shipyard. I have 2 issues I 
want to speak to, but I just want to say this. Any 
of my brothers and sisters that are here will tell 
you that I was born in Long Beach Naval Shipyard. 
I've been working there for 22 and a half years, and 
I started as a summer aid, whic? basically was a 
program for disadvantaged youth from the area that I 
lived in. And now I am now a second level supervisor 
electrician. 

One of the issues that I wanted to bring to 
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1 your attention was the issue of the deviation that we I 1 our infrastructure to such a point that should we 

2 believe the Navy has made in their selection 1 2 need surge capacity or  as they described emergent 
criteria. that being considering the private sector 
in our scenario for closing Long Beach. We don't 
believe that that was considered anywhere else in the 
evaluation of the naval shipyards. And we believe 
that it is a substantial deviation from the criteria 
set forth by the Navy. 

The second issue I want to talk about is Dry 
Dock Number 1 .  The GAO Board has stated that the 
Navy has decided they no longer require Dry Dock 
Number 1 for docking the big ships. The concern is. 
and you saw it earlier in our presentation, that we 
are now scurrying to try to place these carriers into 
dry docks, and scurrying to make arrangements in 
slipping dates for deployments and those types of 
things. 

18 I asked the question when we were back in D.C. 
19 when we attended the hearings of the GOA when the GOA 

20 made their presentation. One of the concerns I have 
21 is that my question is what is different now in '95 
22 than in '93? We still have a requirement to do that. 
23 What happens when you have an accident? We 

capacity, further reductions in this capacity would 
make it impossible for us to build up a force to win 
the wars that we may have to fight in the future. 

This base has other qualities that go with 
that. One, I don't think we should ever change its 
location, and that is it sits on the coast of the 
Pacific Rim within 80 miles of the largest 
concentration of Navy ships in the Pacific Fleet. 
That alone to me would be reason enough to keep it 
intact. 

They've given many other reasons today. One 
being its cost effectiveness. And I think there's a 
lessen there. Whenever we ask government employees 
to perform as we asked these people to do, and they 
did, you put that on top of it, and it's kind of 

18 giving gravy to the whole process, and they're great 
19 at doing that. So we've got a bought and paid for 
20 facility, and it gives us the capacity should we ever 
21 need it again, and God help us we won't need it 
22 again, but if we do, it's there, and we've got a work 
23 force in place to d o  it. 

24 don't even have to talk about going to war. Folks / 24 And from my perspective, I have to represent 
7.5 run over things our there There can be accidents 1 15 their interests, and I'm their advocate, and I'm here 
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h n p  Beach Kav;i ShipyarC is. l'\lr go: to tell 
you I've never come up to a group of people before 

who introduced therxselves as Viet Nam Veterans. and I 

am aiso. but I'm very proud of you fellows. 
CHAIRMAN D!XON: We're proud of al! of you. 
(Clapping .! 
We're proud oi all o i  yoti. 
MR. KUYKENDALL: That common link I didn't 

know we had with so many of you -- or 1 had with so 
many of you. 

This base to me represents the capability to 
increase our naval forces when we need to, and right 
nour we're in a period of peace where we don't have 
those forces necessaty or needed. But we do have a 
time now where we could use reserve ships if we go 
back to the Persian Gulf War again 01 something like 
that. 

And I'm of the opinion that we have drawn down 
35C! 

positive report on keeping this base open. Thani; 
X ' 0 1 1  

. . 'b. i!Rhl/A.& DD:SO?;: W;ci: ;.::a'\,- c:,nc 2 9:;: 1:): 
-. 
1 he final presentation by Mr. bucilan: is it? 

MR. BUCHAN: Buchan. s k .  
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Bucilan. I apoiogize. 
MR. BUCHAN: Mr. Commissioner, Chairman, the 

rest of the commission, I'd like KO refer to written 
notes. then submit them to Mr. Pizer for inclusion. 
if I may? 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Very good. 
MR. BUCHAN: I'm currently -- 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Sure, you may. Of course you 

may. 
MR. BUCHAN: Thank you. sir. I am currently 

aware that the Pearl Harbor's prospective CO is in 
prospective commanding officer school. This comes 
from Code 1100 at Mare Island Shipyard to relieve the 
Pearl Harbor's touring command before that command's 
normal tour has completed. Pearl Harbor Naval 
Shipyard has a history of being unable to finish its 
work on time. 

I also understand that the commanding officer 
of Portsmouth is or  will be relieved earlier than his 
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normal tour of duty. I believe this action is based 
on their not getting their work done on time. I 
would recommend that the commissioners ask the Navy 
to confirm these actions and the reasons for such 
actions. 

Finally, I would ask BRAC to evaluate these 
command changes and make their own minds up as to 
what is the driving force for this. A historical 
note. We were closed once before at great costs in 
1950, and thank goodness were able to get the talent 
back just in time to support the fleet for the Korean 
War and emerging Pacific Rim conflict, which was the 
subject of an earlier remark. 

Today's political climate in that region is 
anything but settled. The Spratly Islands dispute 
may boil over at any moment, and entangle us. 
Korea's rattling its nuclear saber, and Spain has 
recently offered the Republic of China to build all 
the aircraft carriers it wants. 

Our West Coast shipyard is strategically 
located, and our efficiency speaks for itseif. We're 
ready to support the fleet in any eventuality. Three 
times now our shipyard has been figuratively led to 
the wall and blindfolded. 

The comnlission has done the right thing the 
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I 12s: times. \x.vii'! tbe only difierenze this time is I ! 1 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Ladies and genrlemec. if vrfe 

beiirve the N a y  wants you to wear the blindfold i 2 
' 1  rather mafi us 

t ~ a n l ;  YOL 4 

(Clapping. ) 1 5  
CHAIRMAN DJXON: Thank you very much. I ' 6 

believe I speak on behalf of the commissioners when I ' 7 
say that's a very fine presentation and we 
congratulate you all, and thank you very much. The 
folks from Guam, we'll take up Guam at 6 5 0  p.m. 
We're going to have a slight break. 650 p.m. we'll 
come back into session. 

(Recess was taken.) 
-- 000 -- 

may have your attention, please. We are now 
proceeding with our friends from Guam, who have 
30 minutes at this meeting. And I understand thar u,t 

have here Governor Carl Gutierrez, Speaker Don 
Parkinson, Delegate Robert Underwood, and Archbishop 
Anthony Apuron. I hope that's close, Archbishop? 

ARCHBISHOP APURON: Close. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: We're delighted to have you 

all. Would you please be kind enough to stand and 
raise your right hand, so I can swear you in, please. 

Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the 
testimony you are about to give before the Defense 
Base Closure and Realignment Commission shall be the 
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 

SPEAKERS: I do. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much. And I 

believe, Governor, that you are going to go first. 
Do you all want to operate right from there? Fine. 
Please talk right into the microphone. Governor 
Gutierrez. 

GOVERNOR GUTIERREZ: Thank you. Good evening, 

Mr. Chairman and distinguished members of the 
Commission, and a special hi today to Commissioner 
Wendi Steele and Commissioner Al Cornella for being 
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- in our case, however, the effects are wnlch we as Team Guam must deal witii, Mr. Cna~rmzr. 
. -  - - - .  

niagnified because we are ac Island peopie eve;. 3 . S X  ! is that d ~ r  cost saving: scenario p:.o?osecl :.\ _! 3. 
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3 area. Based on our pro~ections. we srand to iosz 

6 If one of our skilled workers loses his job in ' 6 over 790 miliion dollars in gross isiand produc~;.  

1 here again. At least we see some known quantity and 
2 friendly faces over there. But please accept our 

3 sincere thanks for the opportunity to present Team 
4 Guam's thoughts on the Pentagon's recommendations. 

5 We face a closure of our ship repair facility. 

6 a realignment of our naval activity, a 

7 disestablishment of our supply center, and a redirect 

8 of our naval aviation assets. 

9 These recommendations are large by any 

10 standard, but they are really massive for a community 

1 1 of our small size. 
12 For almost 100 years, for better or for worse, 
13 our lives have been intertwined aln~ost exclusively 
14 with the Navy's interests in our strategic location. 
15 It is no stretch of history or imagination to say 
16 that we Chamorros are Americans because the Navy 
17 needed our island. 
18 We also appreciate the difficult decisions you 

19 face in this process. You must carefully weigh 

20 questions of strategic value, the issue of cost 
21 savings, and the effect of your decision on the local 
22 community. But the decisions you face are also 
23 difficult for us. 
24 No matter how you look at it, your decisions 
25 will affect negatively some 10 percent of our work 

7 Guam, he can't just drive to the next county or next 7 during tile Pentagon's impiementation period. nilii: 

8 state. Guam is his homeland. We all share the pains 6 the Defense Depanment saves oni): 556 miiiior. 
9 of our fellow Guamanians who face the fears of these 1 9 dollars. 

10 proposed changes. / 10 Between 1997 and 2001, we stand to lose over 

I Guam." It examines the DOD recommendations, as we 
2 understand them, and amves at a different set of 

3 recommendations. We have tried to present our unique 
4 historical and geographical perspective to help you 
5 as you move forward in your decision-making proces4. 
6 In examining the Pentagon's proposals, we 
7 found that the DOD recommendation impacts quite 

8 negatively on the Navy's ability to operate 
9 effectively in the Pacific. Interestingly, our 

10 finding seems to be shared by the commander of the 
1 1 Pacific Fleet. 
12 We see that the MSC Vessels will be forced to 
13 spend more time at sea if they move from Guam to 
14 Hawaii. Weather satellite forecasting when moved to 
15 Hawaii will be far less accurate. Forces at the 
16 front line of our forward defense will have less 
17 access to ready supplies, et cetera, et cetera, et 
18 cetera, and so on. 
19 We do recognize, however, that if the fleet 
20 commander can accept soi.~ewhat diminished military 
21 operating conditions, the DOD proposals can save a 
22 lot of money for the taxpayers. We might dispute the 
23 accuracy of some of the savings, but clearly they are 
24 considerable if you close this much of the Navy's 

propem and operations in Suam 

11 Guam is unique in this fashion: There is a I 11 6,700 jobs that would be hard to recreate without a 
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sense of cultural ownership and of pride. It is 
difficult to pull up your roots. We understand and 
care. and we feel the concerns of our people in light 
of these proposed changes. Moreover, our problem is 
compounded by the fact that our citizens who work for 
the Navy are often trained for specialized jobs that 
are not transferrable to our civilian economy without 
a transfer of the military's assets. 

But we have to tried to help ourselves and to 
help you and your staff to understand what we face 
together. We have looked carefully and at length at 
the Pentagon's recommendations, and we have written 
an indepth review and report. which we present for 
your consideration. We call it "The Way Forward From 
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cooperative transition period. 
Given the huge amount the Pentagon will save. 

and given the economic hit we will take, we beheve 
you should direct DOD and the Navy to provide us with 

a reasonable transition period prior to the 
implementation of these closures. 

If you decide to close our bases, we ask that 
the movement of Navy forces from Guam be delayed for 
4 years untd 2001 rather than 1997 as proposed by 
the Pentagon. 

We look at the cost of delaying the Pentagon's 
move out of Guam. The savings in our delayed 
transition scenario are not as high as in the 
Pentagon's proposal, but over a 20-year period our 
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In that regard, we are very pleased with the 
letter received recently from Navy Assistant 
Secretary Robert Pirie. which noted that the Nar:  
would support our economic revitalization efforts. 
including outright transfers. 

If you decide to close Guam's bases. we 

believe you should build on Secretary Pirie's opening 
and direct the Navy to designate all land for 
ouuight transfer, except those it must absolutely 
retain for ongoing operations. 

We would be willing to work with the BRAC and 
the Navy to reach a mutually agreeable process to 
identify lands for transfer to Guam and others for 
retention by the Navy. The process of economic 
revitalization is too important to Guam for our needs 
to be left to narrowly focused military officials. 

As I mentioned during the hearing in Guam. we 
are a people without representation. We don't vote 
in national elections, and our Congressman here can't 
even vote in Congress. In this environment. we are 
often left to the mercy of the military and other 
federal officials who exercise authority in Guam as 
if it was their personal dominion. 

As a people and as Americans, we deserve 
262 

1 alternative results in a savings of over 1 p i n t  6 
2 billion, which is only 13 percent less than the DOD's 
3 1 point 8 billion. 
4 We believe that this small difference is well 

5 worth the savings in human currency, as we in Guam 

6 transition from a military-dominated economy to one 

7 dependent on the private sector. 

8 We believe that a viable and growing private 

9 sector in Guam, using former Navy properties 

10 productively, would save the U.S. Government hundreds 

1 1  of millions of dollars in facility maintenance, while 

12 guaranteeing future access in times of military 
13 crisis. 
14 On the other hand, we are not in a position to 
15 guarantee access to these facilities in the future if 
16 our economy is devastated by the Pentagon's moves. 

17 Full access to these facilities remain an issue that 
18 is extremely critical to the people of Guam. 

19 A transition without real access to the assets 

20 would be meaningless. In this regard, we disagree, 
21 in the strongest possible terms, with the 
22 recommendation to leave the process of economic 
23 revitalization exclusively in the hands of the 
24 military. Our history has taught us that when it 
25 comes to our economic future, we cannot count on the 
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Guam. Dangkuio na Si 1-u os Mb'ase. Thank vou vr? 

much 
- .  C S . A ~ R M . L , ~  3;:.;3:<, Tnsni. >'(;;:. 1.""'. EA-.e:irr:... 

on an excelient presentation. h4 ;. . Speaker. we 're 
delighted to have you, sir. 

SPEAKER PAFXINSON: Tnank you so much. I'n; 

delighted to be here. Honorable Commissioners. I am 
Don Parkinson. Speaker of the Guam legislature. I am 
tesnfying against the closure of military bases on 
Guam. The United States Congress has set criteria 
for you and the Navy to use in deciding which bases 
to close. I submit to you that the true criteria 
which is being used by Navy officials at the highest 
level is not the criteria set by Congress and not the 
criteria which you are mandated to use. 

I submit to you that the true motives of the 
Navy are as follows: 

Primarily, retain Guam as a secure fall-back 
for the Navy at any cost, even at the expense of 
weakening our present defense capabilities in favor 
of long-term retention of Guam and the lands on Guam 
as a safe forward base, fall-back position, and 
staging area. 

Secondary, keep large areas of desirable land 
264 

1 better than that, Mr. Chairman and members of this 
2 commission. 

3 We cannot expect this commission to right the 
4 past injustices of our colonial relationship, but we 

5 do look to you do to what is right now. 
6 We understand how minuscule we are in the 

7 larger sense of America, but when we are called upon 
8 for whatever contingency, we are proud Americans, one 
9 and all. We have given up our land. We have give up 

10 our resources, and we have given up our lives for 
I I America. 
12 When one womes if we would be accommodating 
13 in a contingency, think again. We will always be 
14 there to accommodate our nation's interests. We have 
15 proven this time and time again, and we stand ready 
16 to prove it in the future should it be warranted. 
17 You certainly would want us on your side. We are 
18 proud Americans. Allow us to showcase the American 
19 democracy in the Asian-Pacific Rim. 
20 So if you decide to cut costs by reducing our 
21 military activities, please do  not forget us, the 
22 people of Guam. Our livelihood depends on your 
23 judgment. We hope for your fairness, your 
24 understanding, and your objectivity. We trust that 
35 in your deliberations you will recognize the human 
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manipulatior.. 
Examples: Hoiding onc-tilira or' UIK isiani 

undeveloped for almosr 50 years 
Ll,iisancc? I .  L 1. 2:). Requiring securin. ,.--.. 

from Guam until 1962. 
The recent actions by the Departmefit of 6 

Defense in placing huge amounts of excess iand intc 
- 

bird and wildlife refuges, nationai parks. et ce ter~ .  F, 
while retaining the unilateral right to reenter and 9 

use this land. This not only inhibits Guam's 1 10 
economy, but is also evidence of the military's i 11 

insincerity in closing Guam's bases and its ! I? 

recognition of the strategic importance of Guam. 1 13 
Recent actions of the Navy in proposing to 

mothball facilities is further evidence of the Navy's 1 ii manipulation. 
Other restrictive measures, such as 

restricting civilian transfer of private property and 
land during the 1940s to freeze the market price of 

1 :I 
19 

land on Guam until the Navy could condemn what it 1 20 

wanted, manipulation of the economy through military I 21 
spending on Guam, et cetera, are further examples, / 22 
and I've cited -- I've given you a whole stack of 1 23 

stuff citing some of these historical custodies. ' 24 

I submit to you that the motives of the Navy, 1 25 
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c>u: pxrenti~etlzal!; Tnat'!: ar. additioxa! crlr-.::;. 
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1;'s put-eli. po11rii.a:. a.hici! I belie\;r exls~s aisu. . . 

Becaus~. izi's T8l.r I:. ncV matrer. iiou. bar.? ile worl:~. 
- -...- 1 t i  0 2 i TL ) <.)it 11; b-OT?CTE>: 

- .  and unril we i i 2 \ . ~  - ,: .S. Senators. we are no: going 
ro have the clou: of the 5C sztzs ifi base closures 
or anything else. 

in ciosing, I reiterate that tile true criteria 
that the hTavy is using in my opinion as to its 
recommendations to the BRAC commission art: to depress 
the economy of Guam, to ensure the future influence 
of the Navy over Guam's affairs, and to keep 
one-third of the isiand mothballed just in case of 
future needs by the U .S. Navy or  the U.S. military. 

Please consider as part of my testimony the 
rather lengthy written testimony I'm submitting, and 
the summary thereof, which I'm submitting along with 
the attached documents which might be difficult for 
you to locate outside of Guam, which I have attached 
for your convenience. 

I would like to thank you for this 
opportunity, and I would like to again ask you to 
look very carefully at the Navy's motives and whether 
or not the criteria the Navy is applying is truly the 
criteria mandated by Congress. 
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1 vacant in case needed for the future military use. 
2 Further. mothball the asset. on Guam because 
3 the Navy recognizes the long-term nlilitary and 
4 strategic importance of the island. And 1 would 

5 point out to you that there were proposals made by 

6 the Navy to mothball the ship repair facility, for 

7 instance 
8 Next, restrict the economic and political 

9 development of the island to prevent independence, 

10 statehood, or  free association from beconling viable 

11 alternatives for Guam, since this would lessen or 

12 eliminate the Navy's influence over Guam's affairs. 

13 finish the people of Guam for becoming too 
14 uppity and demanding fair treatment and justice. In 

15 other words, the Navy wants to put us back in our 
16 place. 
17 Continue the Navy's influence over Guam's 
18 affairs. 
19 And to accomplish the foregoing goals while 
20 also reducing costs as mandated by Congress over the 

21 short term. 
22 We have seen a pattern of economic 
23 manipulation and control of the economy of Guam by 
24 the U.S. Navy, historically, and through this 
25 economic interference has come polit~cal 
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I and the criteria which they are using to recommend 
2 base closure -- the closure of Guam's bases is not 
3 the criteria set by federal law, but rather I believe 
4 that the Navy's true criteria is a part of an onsoing 
5 de facto hidden agenda which the Navy has nlanifested 
6 since shortly after World War 11, as outlined above. 
7 When you review all of the written testimony 
8 which I ,  along wlth Team Guam, am submitting, you can 
9 only conclude that Guam's bases should not be closed. 

10 And to go from the written report for a minute, 

1 I "Guam's bases are absolutely essential as forward 
12 bases for the defense of our country. " Speaking as 
13 an American now, not as a representative of the 
14 people of Guam. 
15 If, in your wisdom, you should decide to close 
16 some facilities, I am joining with Team Guam in 
17 asking that the real property assets involved be 
18 returned to the people of Guam, the rightful owners. 
19 Once again, thank you for this opportunity, 
20 and please don't be fooled by the Navy. Look 
21 carefully at the true motives and criteria of the 
22 Navy in recommending the closure of bases on Guam. 
23 There's another criteria, too. They don't 
24 have to worry about votes in Congress, since we do 
35 not have \,,lung representation. I would point that 
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We're delighted to have you. Delegate Underwood, 
it's a great pleasure, sir. 

DELEGATE UNDERWOOD: Thank you. Mr. Chairn~an. 

Good morning, Commissioners, and I said good morning 
because it is still barely morning in Guam, but it is 
also 11:OO a.m. in Tokyo, 10:00 a.m. in Seoul and 
Pyongyang, 9:00 a.m. in Beijing and 6:00 a.m. in 
Baghdad, and when you're talking about Asia and the 
hot spots of the world, Guam is in the right place 
and in the right time zone. 

The Department of Defense has been engaged in 
a process to right-size the U.S. military, and the 
BRAC '95 round of base closures is a natural 
consequence of the DOD review. DOD planners have 
assumed the U.S. must be prepared to fight two 

1 Thank you very much. 
2 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 

18 simultaneous major regional conflicts, the most 
19 worrisome scenario depicts a conflict in the Middle 
20 East and a simultaneous outbreak of hostilities on 
21 Korea. 
22 I call to your attention the news reports 
23 earlier last week that the North Koreans broke off 

1 causing hardship to Navy fanlilies due to additional 
2 deployments back to the areas around Guam. 

Consequently, it should not he surprising to you that 
the naval officers who will implement Washington's 
recomn~endations are not dxactly thrilled with their 
sailing orders. 

We concede that the MSC ships now on Guam can 
support fleet operations from Hawaii, but certainly 
not as easily as from Guam. And we know that 42 
percent of the customer base of Guam's FISC is 

associated with the MSC ships. And we know that 70 
percent of the SRF workload comes from the ships. 
Like real dominoes, they will fall with the pull out 
of MSC ships, and the capacity to respond to 2 MRCs 
will have been severely eroded. 

The military criteria that BRAC must address 
can be satisfied only if Guam's strategic importance 

18 is retained in some way for future contingencies. 
19 So in leaving Guam, the Navy would hedge its 
20 bets, and continue its forward deployed strategy by 
21 operating out of Hawaii o r  from less reliable foreign 
22 bases. But when it's crunch time, they assure you 
23 they'll be able to come back, and everything will be 

24 talks to resolve the matter of the nuclear reactors, / 24 
ready for them on Guam. I guess the Navy planners 

25 causing yet another setback in 2 conflict that almost 15 assume we'll jusr change the adios signs to welcome 
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5 Desert Storm. Guam IS ~mportant III an! s c r n u ~ t  : ?:)~=ni~iit areas o: ~ontilcr guarantees that therr 
6 involving a conflict in Korea. In DOD's worst case ! will always be a important military role for the 
7 scenario of two simultaneous hlRCs. Guam uili b: " island. Ironicall! . Guam's status and stabilih is 

critical to success. Guam is geographically 
positioned to support logistic requirements for both 
the Middle East and Korea. Prepositioned ships are a 
good idea, but a prepositioned isiand is even better. 

But under the DOD recommendations, the 
prepositioned island is moved 3800 miles bacl: awa), 
from the action, thereby degrading fleet operations. 
Admiral Zlataport, Commander in Chief. Pacific 
Command, has pointed out that the MSC ship 
reassignments from Guam to Hawaii would make fleet 
operations more difficult. 

Granted, the admiral would implement 
reconln~endations you made. but it would significantly 
reduce his ability to respond to changing conditions 
with an additional 10 sailing days from Hawaii to 

being used to aiiow the Xavy to experiment with iower 
cost deployments in foreign countries while 
maintaining its faii-back position of Guam. But when 
political sensitivities in foreign ports are offended 
by the U.S. Navy's nuclear submarines, where does the 
na\y turn to? Right. Guam. as with the case with the 
USS DRUM last month. 

In making comparisons to U. S. military 
activities in the region. Guam frequently does not 
get the benefits of forward deployment. While the 
SFR on Guam is threatened, the SFR in Yokusaka is 
secure. The Guam FlSC is slated to be replaced by a 
heavier reliance on suppliers in foreign ports. 
Unlike U.S. mainland bases which compete on a level 
playing field with domestic installations, Guam 

23 Guam. , 73 appears to be competing with foreign bases for the 
24 HC-5 would have to deploy aircraft to Guam 1 34 N a ~ y ' s  resources. 
25 anyway, further eroding any expected cost savings and 1 25 And those who pay the consequences of such 

270 272 

SCRUNCHTM Pages 269 - 272 
WESTERN REPORTERS 9 16-564-5600 68 



DEFENSE BASE CLOSURE S: REALIGhTIIIEhT CORlMISSION HEARING 4/28/95 

1 experimentation are the American citizens on Guam. 
2 It should be the cornerstone of our national policy 
3 to benefit American workers in the forward deployment 
4 of our military whenever possible. 
5 M'hile the Navy might consider its bases on out 
6 island a marriage of convenience. Guam is not willing 
7 to be exploited by a divorce of convenience. We 

8 would rather not have a divorce, but if that is your 
9 decision, we want our terms to be dealt with 

equitably, and we want custody of the resources. 
Team Guam has come up with ways that address 

your concerns, fulfill all the BRAC criteria and 
redefine the partnership between the island and our 
military --  and the military. 

The Team Guam proposal gives you options to 
consider. In the first and preferred option, the MSC 
ships remain forward deployed on Guam, SFR becomes a 

collaborative venture with a strong Navy customer 

1 utilize a highly skilled American work force. 
2 Our options demonstrate our thinking on what 
3 needs to be done to sustain economic recovery on 
4 Guam. We appreciate that there may he unlimited 
5 variations of Options 2 and 3,  and we consider that 
6 the issue of transition periods for different 
7 scenarios and activities would be explored in the 
8 weeks to come, and our outline and our Team Guam 
9 document. 

But as in any divorce or  separation, our 
lawyers need to get together to forestall any 
hostility. 

The Navy has put a lot of thought into what 
war-fighting equipment it will need and what 
resources it needs for the 21st century. Team Guam 
has put an equal amount of effort into defining a 
role for Guam that supports our nation's interests 
while giving us a path to economic success. 

19 base, FISC remains open and operated by the Navy, and 1 l9  But we still have other issues to resolve. 
20 the HC-5 squadron remains on the island to support 
21 the MSC ships. 
22 The second Team Guam option would add to the 
23 changes in Option 1 by giving the government of Guam 
24 the opportunity to enter into a collaborative venture 
25 withF;'7. 
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20 First, let's resolve some antiquated military 
21 land use policies on Guam. The military needs to get 
22 out of the land ownership in a big way. BRAC can 
23 help us by returning the 6100 acres identified as 
24 excess by the military in its Guam Land Use Plan 94 
35 study. Any land the military owns that is not needed 
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recommendation directi!, addresses the strategl- 
mi l i t a~  vaiue of Guax. D3C's nee? I:. s a w  none. .  an:: 

Guam's effort to adius: to tile economic impac:. 
Team Guam's approach would enable tile militax? 

commanders in the Pacific to respond to the current 
and flurure mission  requirement^. improve on militar?. 
readiness. and accon~modates mobilization and 
contingency requirements, the firsr 4 criteria 
dealing with the miiirary value. The MSC shlps 
forward deployed on Guam 10 days ahead of the fleet 
would give PAC FLEET additional flexibility. 
Moreover, this proposal would provide DOD's needs for 
reliable bases in the future on U.S. soil. 

Team Guam's proposal also saves DOD money, the 
5th selection criteria. DOD would not be forced to 
spend money on keeping MSC ships on permanent cruises 
or perhaps even obviates the need for an additional 
hlSC ship. 

Finally. Team Guam's recon~n~endations would 

n1sro:-icai inlustices th2r accompzcl:i the !and 
r::trIn, v.ouic i!t 2. gca: SEE fo:- :.enewmg ui: 
pa:mrrsiiip 'netween Guam and tile military. 

Bur I must caution that we would need to 
dialogue further in the weeks ahead on the excess 
lands issue so that a BRAC decision does not 
aggravate an already complicated debate about -- 
serious debate about land use on Guam. 

Secondly, the commission should direct the 
military to divest itself of all excess capacity on 
Guam, from water and power utilities to land holdings 
not identified in GLUP 94. While the military has 
made tough decisions about civilian jobs on Guam, 
they have spared themselves of all difficulty by 
looking in their own backyard for savings. 

Guam. 2 military air fields. Guam. 2 
ammunition magazines, 2 military golf courses, 2 
military beaches, 2 power systems, 2 water systems. 
You would have thought that Noah had planned Guam. 

Team Guam has prepared many suggestions to 
help you. And just in case this is the last BRAC 
round, we'd like you to mention the ultimate 

I 

25 ease the economic impact to our island, and will 1 25 disposition of all excess capacity so that the 
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1 military can move in this direction in the years to 
2 come. 
3 Our plan takes us into the 21st Century by 
4 laying to  rest lingering land problems created in 
5 military land acquisitions in the years after World 
6 War 11. Team Guam's recomniendations recognize the 
7 contributions of the federal employees and protects 

1 is no longer a military requirement for the ship 
2 repair facility in Guam or the fleet and industrial 
3 supply center. 
4 The closure of these facilities will result in 
5 the loss of jobs that will affect our people directly 
6 and indirectly, but in the end, that is not something 
7 that must rank uppermost in your minds. You must be 

10 unique contributions of the people of Guam to this 
11 nation. We contributed our share during the 
12 occupation during World War 11. We contributed our 

13 share 20 years ago to this very day as the fall of 

14 Viet Nam flooded our island with refugees. 
15 In a matter of weeks. Guam's population 
15 doubled. Schools were closed to create makeshift 
17 dorms. Water resources became scarce, and 

8 their future to the greatest extent possible. 

9 But most importantly, our plan recognizes the 

18 supern~arkets ran low on everything from rice to 
19 Pampers. 
20 Citizens of Guam became an instant pool of 
2 1 volunteers to help the U. S. Government in one of our 
22 nation's darkest hours. We were there for the 

8 driven primarily by concern for the defense posture 
9 of the United States and a crying need to reduce 

10 military expenditure. That is your mandate. 
11 In the final analysis, I do  not believe Guam 
12 or any other place, for that matter, has an intrinsic 
13 right to the presence of a military base on their 
14 soil for economic reasons. That would be tantamount 
15 to military spending being a form of public welfare. 
16 Furthermore, being in a profession of peace, I 
17 must confess that if the world is changed to the 
18 extent that the large arsenals of weapons of mass 
19 destruction or military forces are not needed to the 
20 same degree, then that must be in a global sense a 
21 good thing, for how can a person of conscience have a 
22 problem with peace? 

23 nation, and we will be there again in the future if 1 23 If these bases must go, and there is only one 
24 there is another crisis in our part of the world, 1 24 thing that each of you I humbly submit must do. In 

25 because we fly the American flag. 
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25 recognition that we in Guam are going to have to take 
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:: you must allow us the means to ameliorate theu 
3 suffering. 
G- I urge you to turn over the ianas and the 
5 assets that will no longer be in active use by the 

6 to have you here. You're just what we need at this i 6 military after this decision is rendered. Give them 
7 time of the afternoon after 2 long and difficult da!.. j 7 back to us so that we can put them to use, so that we 
S Weico~ne. ' 8 can have the means to ease the pain of our people, so 
9 COMMISSIONER STEELE: I was just going to say 1 9 that we can with the help of God build a new 

10 I bet I know what you're going to tell us about 1 10 prosperity for our island. 
I I divorce here. I ask you not to allow these lands and assets 
12 ARCHBISHOP APURON: Now, Mr. Chairman and 12 to be held hostage to a future contingency 
13 Commissioners. I have to thank you for this 1 13 requirement. I urge you to let us put them to 
14 opportunity to testify before you today. Because of 1 14 productive use n o r .  
15 the constraints of time, I will be brief, but my I urge you in the name of justice and the name 
16 brevity is neither reflective of the importance of 16 of my people in Guam to mandate the full return of 

this issue to the peopie of Guam nor the gravity of 
their purpose in this process. 

I would like to thank you for the 
consideration you have given Guam in the past, and 
beseech you to give us that same consideration now. 

Commissioners, I have no expertise in 
strategic matters. I cannot speak to the military 
requirement of these bases. I must accept at face 
value the Department of Defense contention that there 
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the lands and assets the military no longer needs in 
Guam. I believe it is the right and just and the 
proper thing to do. S' Yu'os Ma'ase. Thank you. S' 
Yu'os Obendisitoro (phonetic). May God bless us all. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well, thank you all for a 
very excellent presentation on behalf of Guam. You 
may not have a vote, but you sure have temfic 
voices over there. We're impressed. Thank you very 
much. (Clapping .) 
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Pardon me. Pardon me. Commissioner Cornella 
has a question. 

COMMISSIONER CORNELLA: The letter Congressman 

Underwood referenced from Mr. Perry. I'm not sure 
that we have a copy of that as the commission, and I 
think it's pertinent to our deliberations. I was 
supplied with a copy of it from an officer of the 
Navy today, but as it is addressed to Mr. Underwood, 
I would request that he submit that for the record, 
please. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Would you be kind enough to 
do that? 

CONGRESSMAN UNDERWOOD: I would be happy to do 

SO. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: We would like to have that in 

the record. 
GOVERNOR GUTIERREZ: It was addressed to the 

speaker, myself, and Delegate Underwood. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: And then it would be the 

understanding of all of you if our friend Delegate 
Underwood could make that available to us for the 
record? 

GOVERNOR GUTIERREZ: Absolutely. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: I thank Commissioner Cornella 

for that very good question. Are there any further 
28 1 

questions'? 
COMhlISSIONER STEELE: M} only comment would 

De -- 

CXAIRMAN D!XON: Commiss~oner Steele. 
COMMISSIONER STEELE: -- Archbishop, I think 

you were pretty easy on my colleagues here compared 
to Mr. Cornella and myself. I think they deserve the 
same level of guilt trip that we got. since we flew 
22 hours to get it. It's really great to see you all 
again, and I want to thank you again for the 
wonderful hospitality that you extended to us while 
we visited in your island, and your presentations 
were very effective today as well. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Commissioner 
Steele. Commissioner Montoya. 

COMMISSIONER MONTOYA: I need to fess up and 
thank you. I was a CV on Guam in 1964, 1965, and 
instead of coming home, my battalion mounted out and 
went to Viet Nam in the spring of 1965, and the 
island, the Guamanian people turned out and bade us 
farewell, loaded our ships and our planes with all 
that we could haul away with your blessing and your 
support, and many, many years later, I thank you. 

CHAIRMAN DIXON: Admiral Montoya, we 
appreciate that. Are there any further comments? A 
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1 very fine job, gentlemen. We're greatly impressed. 
2 Thank you very much. 
3 -- -- 
4 
5 
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1 CHAIRMAN DIXON: Ladies and gentlemen, the 
2 distinguished senior senator from Alaska who has 
3 served his state and our nation with such great 
4 ability for so many years is here waiting, and I 
5 think we'll accommodate him immediately, and if my 

1 Local efforts in that regard have been led by 
2 Cleeta Barger, Ray Woodruff, and Mayor Glenn Wright, 

3 and they prepared the materials to be presented at 
4 this hearing and the one in Alaska also. Lee Clune 
5 will cover those materials for this evening. 

6 colleagues will excuse the waiver of a 5-minute Ladies and gentlemen, Alaska based Army and 

7 break, I think we'll go right ahead. We're delighted 1 7 Air Force units function as teams. North and south 

to have Senator Ted Steven here. 
All right. How impressive. He jumps up. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Gentlemen, I apologize. I 

have to ask you to raise your right hand. The law 
requires it. 

Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the 
testimony you are about to give before the Defense 
Base Closure and Realignment Commission shall be the 
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? 

SPEAKERS: I do. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you very much. We're 

delighted to have the distinguished senior senator 
from Alaska, Senator Ted Stevens, here. 

SENATOR STEVENS: Thank you very much, 
Mr. Chairman, and Members of the Commission. I 
appreciate the opportunity to t e s w  before you, and 
I appreciate your courtesy in particular for allowing 
me to appear so late in the day. 
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We did have business there at the Senate 
today, and it has been a long day as it has been for 
you. 

Yours is a tough job. but one that is vita!. 
Our nation must ensure resources to maintain and 
modernize our military forces and make sure they're 
not being wasted on installations that are no longer 
required. 

So let me begin my statement by expressing my 
appreciation to Commissioners Cornelia and Cox for 
the opportunity to show them firsthand the potential 
impact of these BRAC recommendations on Alaska. All 
Alaskan's recognize their diligent work, as well as 
the contributions of the commission staff that worked 
with them. So we thank Charlie Smith, C.C. Carmen, 
Ralph Kaiser, Paul Hegarty, John Earnhardt, Christy 
Still, Jim Phillips, and Steve Bailey also. 

At the hearing on Monday, they witnessed the 
Delta Junction community's total commitment to the 
Army and to Fort Greely. Our governor, Tony Knowles, 
State Senator Georgianna Lincoln, and Representative 
Gene Kubina joined the Alaska Congressional 
Delegation in working with the Delta Junction 
community to try and interpret the department's 
recommendations. 
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of the range in Alaska, they constitute our nation's 
strategic reserve in the Pacific. No units in the 
United States can deploy to Asia more rapidly than 
forces in Alaska. On that basis alone, they are 
irreplaceable. 

But Alaska's Army and Air Force units can also 
deploy more rapidly to Northern Europe than any 
forces stationed in what we call the lower 48 states. 

In fact, each soldier and airman stationed in 
Alaska counts for 2 in the lower 48. Not only does 
the geo-strategic position of Alaska save time, but 
the tremendous shortening of distance means fewer 
transports, fewer tankers, and less sea lift are 
needed to deploy forces based in Alaska. This 
dividend takes on even greater significance with the 
smaller forces envisioned by Secretary Aspin's bottom 
up review. 

In 199 1, the predecessor commission considered 
287 

the closure of Fort Richardson in Alaska, and 
rejected that option because it failed to generate 
significant savings and severely damaged our narior. ': 
security position in the Pacific.. The f o r c ~  
reductions that have been imposed on Alaska sincr 
199 1 makes such a move even now less advisable. 

The reduction of any of the other main bases 
operated in Alaska defies the military priorities 
articulated by Admiral Dick Macke, who was sent back, 

and the Joint Chiefs of Staff, as well as every one 
of their predecessors with whom I've worked closely. 

While I understand that some of you, and it's 
been told that some have suggested to you to consider 
closing other bases in Alaska such as Fort Richardson 
and/or Fort Wainwright, I urge you to listen to our 
military leaders and reject the calls to further 
diminish our military presence in the Pacific. 

And I urge you also to please listen to me as 
a representative of Alaska not to leave Alaska 
undefended again. 

Our state is one-fifth of the size of the 
United States. We have half of the nation's total 
coast line. The north shore oil alone provides 25 
percent of our nation's domestic petroleum supply, 
and we have consistently produced more oil than 
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Kuwait. Think of the divisions that have defended 
Kuwait, and we now have one Army brigade to defend 
one-fifth of the United States, barely I percent of 
the total personnel of the Army. 

It's incredulous to me that anyone would 
propose to you to further reduce this minimal defense 
that exists in my state. 

For those of us who remember the lessons of 
World War 11, Alaska shares with Hawaii the 
distinction of direct attack, during that war, and 
only Alaska endured occupation by enemy forces. 

In this 50th anniversary of the end of that 
war, Alaskan's remember the price paid when the 
defense of our state -- when the pleas for the 
defense of our state were ignored. I brought with me 
The Thousand Mile War. I don't know if you ever read 
it. It's by Brian Garfield, who is a distinguished 
author. He says in the front piece that this is a 
story of the only military campaign fought on North 
American soil in World War 11, a story of sadist 
combat. I think if you haven't read it, I urge you 
to do  so, because you would understand the fears of 
us, those of us who remember World War 11. 

Now, with respect to the realignment proposed 
for Fort Greely, I know you will be closely examining 
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and excellent training areas and infrastructure that 
I urge this commission to re-evaluate the options and 
to try to find a way to maintain a greater pemianent 
presence in Fort Greely. 

The Amly's Safari concept, which is running 
training operations out of Fort Wainwright just 
doesn't add up from a dollars and cents point of 
view. 

More importantly, safety considerations 
require more consideration. Is my light on? Sorry. 
This plan means moving trips, equipment, and 
logistical supplies from Fort Wainwright to Greely on 
a regular basis over 100 miles through ice, snow, and 
extreme temperatures during 7 months of the year. I 
lived in Fairbanks when I first went to Alaska, and I 
can tell you we're talking about extreme temperatures 
well below 60 below at many times during that period. 

Our nation invested in Fort Greely over the 
years because it made sense to train our forces in 
the way they must fight. Interior Alaska provides a 
unique capability not found elsewhere in our nation 
or abroad. 

Even though our Armed Forces are downsizing, I 
urge you to remember that many of those forces may be 
required to fight in extreme cold and inhospitable 
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I the Arm!~'s estimates of the potential savings fron: eni,lronment. 1 o i)r preparei. tnel mus: t r a ~ r  ir 
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, - Lee Clune will present the information ufiti: ! ~erforn: in the Arctic and tne! cnou I: because 

regard to tkat recommendariori 
The value of mainmning Fort Greeiy in an 

active status in the Army inventory to me is 
immeasurable. It provides a unique capability not 
only to the Army. but to the larger defense team. 

Its e,xceptional facilities and training areas 
afford unparalleled opportunities to train and test 
in a cold weather environment both Army and Air Force 
units. It can and does accommodate live fire, one of 
the only live fire areas -- I think the only one for 

14 the Pacific. There is large scale ground and air 
15 maneuver capability. 
16 Fort Greely is a unique and invaluable asset 
17 to conduct joint and combined operations, which is 
18 the way our forces must fight in the future. 
19 Following a visit to Alaska, as we flew back, 
20 General Colin Powell told me that he felt the bases. 
21 particularly in interior Alaska provide the only real 
22 alternative to maintaining the Army's presence in the 

23 North Pacific, if it becomes necessary to reduce our 
24 presence in Japan or Korea. 
25 It is because of this geostrategic importance 
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environment. 
: t, With regards to the proposed closure o! .4dal:. 
, - , , just briefly, let me tell you Alaskac's undersznd 

, E the changing mission of our miiitar). forces ii-. tile 
' 9 Pacific as the Soviet threat diminished. We 

1 10 recognize that Adak's closure marks the end of an erz 
I 

11 for the military in the Aleutian Islands, which this 
I I Z book describes. Out there, servicemen have long 

! 13 outnumbered the native residents. 
14 However. tile disposition of the Adak assets of 
15 the Navy are critical to all the citizens who live in 
16 the Aleutians, as well as the state of Alaska at 
17 large. I hope we'll be permitted to take advantage 
18 of these facilities, to build on what's there. Over 
19 the years. we've put 3 billion dollars in Adak. 
20 We are exploring ways to use that area, such 
21 as a privately run prison to serve many 
22 states, a forward logistic base for commercial air 
23 and sea freight operations, and a fish processing 
24 facility. 
25 Half of the United States fishery products 

292 

SCRUNCHTM Pagw 289 - 292 
WESTERN REPORTERS 916-564-5600 -1 

! 3 



DEFENSE BASE CLOSURE & REALIGhMENT COMMISSION HEARING 4/28/95 

1 come from the area off the Aleutian Islands. There 
2 are many issues that 1 could discuss concerning Adak, 
3 including environmental considerations, but 1 h o p  we 
4 can look forward with optimism to a productive future 
5 for Adak, following the Navy's departure. 
6 I know that -- and I've worked with many of 

you over the years. I understand your commitment to 
do your job. I hope you will do everything in your 
power to support the military and the men and women 
of the Armed Forces. 

I believe those in Alaska are at a minimal 
level now for the future protection of my state and 
for our role in the north Pacific. 

Let me introduce to you Mr. Lee Clune. He's 
the Superintendent of Schools in the Delta Junction, 
and he will present the detailed concerns of the 
community with regard to the recommendations 
concerning Fort Greely . 

Thank you very much. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Thank you, Senator, for your 

excellent presentation. We're delighted to have you, 
Mr. Clune. 

MR. CLUNE: Thank you. I know it's been a 
long day. I appreciate the opportunity to speak with 
you on this matter. Mr. Chairman, BRAC Commission 
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Members. Senator Stevens. and staff: As the senator 

1 testimony should be considered separate from and 
2 supported by the testimony in the document provided 
3 by the commission in Delta. You will recognize some 
4 of my testimony as being verbatim excerpts from the 
5 coalition documents. Some of it is paraphrases of 
6 information within that document, and the rest 

material which I consider relevant and supportive. 
I would like to call your attention to 

Attachments 2, 3, 4, and 5 as you look through them 
later. They provide some critical visual information 
reflecting the size and scope of the land resource 
capabilities surrounding Fort Greely, particularly 
the Attachment 3, which is the cold triangle. 

Right at the very tip of that cold triangle is 
Fort Greely. Those are temperatures in any time of 
the winter they can reach anywhere from 30 below, 
which is fairly comfortable, to 70 and 80 below. Any 
time we have testing and training in areas that we 
want to see how critical things are going to work, 
including personnel, those are the types of 
temperatures we need to call on as quickly as 
possible. 

In the training base comparisons from '93 to 
'95, some significant changes were made which were 
erroneous in our opinion in the areas of reserve 
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component support. spreadable acres and maneuver 

2 said, my name is Lee Clune. I represent the Deltz 1 acres as well as mechanized maneuver acres. These 

3 Junction Community Coahtlon and the entlre communln factors above would have significantly improved For  
4 of Delta Junction. I express my appreciatior, f(?: - Greeiy's ranking:,. I u!ouil like at this poin: ir; 

this opportunity to address you. 
The facts presented today on all Alaska 

installations will characterize size. usage, value, 
impacts on military readiness, civilian encroachment. 
and complaints and factors which have the potential 
to create a public relations disaster for the Army. 

Any comparisons with other Alaska bases are 
for the express purpose of presenting Fort Greely's 
capabilities only. 

All of the above items will show that Fort 
15 Greely is the only place to accomplish the required 
16 testing and training missions. 
17 The document, which I believe we provided to 
18 you earlier today, Base Realignment and Closure by 
19 the DeltaIGreely Community Coalition, was presented 
20 to Commissioner Cornella and Commissioner Cox in 
21 Delta Junction on the 24th. I respectfully request 

5 time just to quickly share the qualifications of the 
i 6 retired military members of the coalition who have 
I 
I 7 provided the expertise for the Attachments 6, 7. and 
I S 8, because I think the credibility therein is highly ) 9 important. 

10 First of all, there's Colonel Edward F. 1 I I Sheehan, retired, military from 1960 to '86, served 

1 12 in the capacity of military commander or Senior 
13 Department of the Army Civilian with headquarter at 
14 Fort Greely, CRTA and WTC. For 15 years he served as 
15 either a special advisor to the commanding general 
16 user ad and the Commander General of 6 ID Light. 
17 Also Lieutenant Colonel Carl Woodruff, who 
18 presented to the commission members earlier this 
19 week. Retired in 1991. He served as the CRTC 
20 materials and test director for Greely and in the 
2 1 U.S. Army Engineer School at Fort Bandworth. The 

22 that this same document be accepted for duplication / 22 U.S. Army Operational Test and Evaluation Agencies, 
23 as part of my testimony today. The attachments to 
24 which I refer are included in that document. 
25 I would also like to make it clear that my 
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23 and on infmitum, a tremendously strong background. 
24 Lieutenant Colonel John Hite, retired. He 
25 served as a commander of the Northern Air Force 
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1 Training Center from 1982 to '84. We depended upon 
2 them heavily for the information concerning Fort 
3 Greely. 
4 Now, according to the range regulations and 
5 historical usage. the information presented in 
6 Attachment 6, 7, and 8 prove that neither Fort 
7 Wainwright nor Fort Richardson alone are totally 
8 capable of meeting either the Army's Range Safety 
9 Regulations or their own, because they lack a very 

specific terrain for firing munitions and lasers 
within the confines of the impact areas on either 
coast. 

The military value of Fort Greely in 
conjunction with Richardson and Fort Wainwright 
cannot be overestimated in today's world. 

An Army Airfield is C-5 capable when the soil 
is frozen. As you might imagine, that's quite a bit 
of the time of the year. The C- 14 1 s and the 1 30s and 

19 many other aircraft also regularly use that airfield. 
20 In 1990 a stationing study referred to by the 
21 senator was done by the Fort Richardson Director of 
22 Resource Management Ofice, which indicated a desire 
23 to station an artillery battalion and maintenance 
24 unit at Fort Greely. Although we have been unable to 
25 obtain a copy of this document, the proposed 
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I stationing as put forth at that time would be even 
2 more feasible now than then. This is especially t rue 

3 when considering the inability to fire live artilieq. 
munitions at Fort Richardsor. 

5 Forr Greely has 2 primary miss~ons wn~ch navr 
6 significant impact on the readiness of the U . S . Army, 
7 both of which are year-round requirements. The 
8 rnissions are testing of equipment in a cold regions 
9 environment and training soldiers and cavalry in 

10 operations in cold and mountainous environments. 
11 Fort Greely is the Army's only valid source of 
12 expertise in both of these areas. There is nowhere 
13 else that the testing of equipment can take place to 
14 ensure that it will operate in cold regions. The 
15 extent and breadth of the testing done at Fort Greely 

can best be comprehended I think with the knowledge 
that all items of Army equipment used in the Gulf War 
were tested by CRTA. 

Attachment 9 will exhibit some of those major 
items. 

Testing at Fort Wainwright would be limited by 
terrain, visibility, range availability, traffic. 
weather, transport, and many other factors. I would 

24 like you to review at your leisure Attachments 6, 7, 
25 and 8 which will expound on all of these problems. 
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Touching on the concept of Safari that the Senator 
mentioned earlier. The Safari operations from Fort 
Wainwright just simply does not make sense. 

The quarters at Fort Greely will be closed and 
declared excess, while requiring construction of more 
than 38 million dollars worth of quarters at Fort 
Wainwright, according to figures provided to the 
senator earlier this month. 

In addition, the Army will incur costs in the 
form of TDY and families will be separated by havhg 
to test and retrain at Fort Greely. 

I would like to just really very quickly to 
read one paragraph out of the document which you wiU 
refer to later on having to do with the earlier 
attempt to do this type of Safari, and this is out of 
Attachment 6, Paragraph E. In-1964, a large segment 
of the cold region test activity was moved from Fort 
Greely to Fort Wainwright, and required ranges were 
constructed along the highway and west of the Panama 
River. These facilities were never really used 
because of the pressure applied from Fairbanks area 
environmentalists and aviators. Only general 
equipment training could be accomplished. CRTA, then 
the U.S. Army's Arctic test fort, was moved back to 
Fort Greely in 1966. This mistake is about to be 

299 

repeated. 
CRTA testing must capture a given ciimatic 

condition when it occurs due to the sophisticated 
Insmimentarlor,. Tills cannot be accompiished 
sufticlentiy after a I 00-mile bus ride from Fort 
Greely when it may be 40 or 50 below. 

These facts clearly show we believe that the 
military value of Fort Greely is significant, and its 
one of a kind capability simply should not be 
forfeited. 

Cost comparisons, then, beginning at 
Attachment 11, have been made between the COBRA study 
and figures which have been developed by the 
coalition, specifically by members who have worked 
with these over many years. A comparison of cost 
savings to the year 2001 shows a much lower rate of 
savings as compared to the COBRA study. 

The coalition contends return on this 
investment will take approximately 7 years rather 
than the 5 identifed in the COBRA. 

And I think of specific importance is the 
COBRA report states that the census area of Southern 
Fairbanks is the DeltdFort Greely impact area. 
Commissioner CorneLla and Commissioner Cox having 
overflown that area, I believe will be able to share 
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impacted by. Thank you very much for your time. 
CHAIRMAN DIXON: Well, Mr. Clune, we thank 

you, and we thank your distinguished senior senator 
for that very fine presentation. 

You've done Alaska proud. We thank you all. 
This meeting is adjourned. 

-- o& -- 

1 STATE OF CALIFORNIA ! 
m - ) ss. 
3 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 1 
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5 Reporter in and for the State of California, do 
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That I am a Certified Shorthand Reporter o f  
the State of California; 
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transcription; and that the foregoing transcript 
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to the said action. 
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OVERVZE W 

UFT LOCATIONSITYPICAL BASE 

FIXED-WING PILOT TRAZNZNGAZRCRAFT 

USAF PILOT TRAINING 

JOINT PILOT AND NA VIGATORINFO TRAINING 

JOINT PRIMARY AIRCRAFT TRAINING SYSTEM 
(JPATS) UPDATE 



CURRENT USAF FLYING 
TRAINING LOCATIONS 

FIXED-WING SUPT FIXED-WING UPT FIXED-WING UPT 
(SUPT SEP 95) (SUPT SEP 96) 

/ / 



TYPICAL USAF PILOT TRAINING BASE 

BASE f 
PROPER f 

FEATURES: 
- * 1. ONE RUNWAY APPROXIMATELY 

5000-6500 FEET. 
I 

7 2. TWO RUNWAYS OVER 8000 FEET. 9 4 
i 

#. 
9 

3. ONE OUTLYING FIELD / 8 

APPROXIMATELY 5000-7000 FEET. / 

NOTES: 
1. SOME AIRFIELDS HAVE 
CROSSWIND RUNWAYS. 

2. RANDOLPH AFB HAS DIFFERENT 
CONFIGURATION. 



OVERVZE W \ 

UFT LOCATIONSITYPICAL BASE 

FIXED- WING PILOT TRAINING AIRCRAFT 

USAF PILOT TRAINING 

JOINT PILOT AND NA VIGATORINFO TRAINING 

JPATS UPDATE I 



PRZMAR Y TRAINER (T-37) 

FZRSTAZRCRAFTFLOWNZNUPT 
TWIN-ENGINE JET 
SIDE-B Y-SIDE SEATING 
UNPRESSURIZED 

\ TO BE REPLACED BY JPATS 



ADVANCED TRAINERS 

I BOMBER-FIGHTER TRAINER 
TWIN-ENGINE SUPERSONIC JET 

~ TANDEM SEATING 

AIRLIFT-TANKER TRAINER 
TWIN-ENGINE JET 
FLIGHT DECK WITH SIDE-BY-SIDE 
SEATING AND JUMP SEAT 



NAVY AIRCRAFT IN WHICH 
USAF STUDENTS TRAIN 

T-34 
PRIMARY TRAINER 
SINGLE-ENGINE 
TURBOPROP 
TANDEMSEATING 

I UNPRESSURIZED 
TO BE REPLACED BY JPATS 

T 4 4  
ADVANCED MARITIME 
PATROL TRAINER 
TWIN-ENGINE TURBOPROP 
FLIGHT DECK WITH SIDE-BY- 
SIDE SEATING 



j 
OVERVIE w 

UFT LOCATIONSITYPICAL BASE 

FIXED- WING PILOT TRAINING AIRCRAFT 

USAF PILOT TRAINING 

1 JOINT PILOT AND NA VZGATORINFO TRAINING 

I JPATS UPDATE 



PRIMARY - T-37 ADVANCED - T-38 

WINGS 
T-37 T-38 

UNIVERSALLY 

80.9 HRS 108.8 HRS ASSIGNABLE 
PILOT 

NOTES: 
ALL TRAINING ACCOMPLISHED AT ONE BASE 
BEING REPLACED BYSPECIALIZED UNDERGRADUATE PILOT TRAINING (SUPT) 



EURO-NATO JOINT JET PILOT TRAINING /" 
(ENJJPT)--SHEPPARD AFB 

PRIMARY - T-37 ADVANCED - T-38 

T-37 T-38 
123 HRS 137 HRS I) WINGS 

NOTES: 
FIGHTER-ORIENTED TRAINING (WILL NOT INCORPORATE T-1) 
INTERNATIONAL PROGRAM--NOT FOREIGN MILITARY SALES 
MEMBER COUNTRIES PAY FOR INFRASTRUCTURE 
MEMBER COUNTRIES OWN SOME AIRCRAFT 



SPECIALIZED UPT 

PRIMARY - T-37 OR JPATS 

ADVANCED 

WINGS 

BOMBER-FIGHTER (T-38) 
119 HRS [ - I ,  

17 HRS 

AlRLlMANKER (T-1) 
104 HRS 

I HELICOPTER (UH-I) 
111 HRS 

FORT RUCKER I/ 
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UFT LOCATIONSITYPZCAL BASE 

FIXED- WING PILOT TRAINING AIRCRAFT 

USAF PILOT TRAINING 

JOINT PILOT AND NAVIGATORINFO 
TRAINING 

TS UPDATE 



UFT BASES--ALL SERVICES 
) ) p i G L q  AF FIXED-WING 1 1  piGii=qh 

AF FIXED-WING AF FIXED-WING 



JOINT TRAINING: BACKGROUND 
~ 

APR 93: SECDEF TASKED SECRETARY OF THE AIR FORCE, ASSISTED 
BY THE SECRETARY OF THE NAVY, TO "CONSOLIDATE INITIAL 
FIXED- WING AIRCRAFT TRAINING FOR ALL SERVICES AND 
TRANSITION TO A COMMON PRIMARY TRAINING AIRCRAFT." 

GENERAL OFFICERIFLAG OFFICER GROUP DEVELOPED JOINT 
FIXED- WING TRAINING PLAN 

EXPANDED TASKING TO INCLUDE ADVANCED PILOT TRAINING 
AND N A  VIGATORINA VAL FLIGHT OFFICER (NFO) TRAINING 
SERVICE SECRETARIES APPROVED IN JUL 93 

OPERATORS CONTINUED TO REFINE PLAN 

MODIFIED NA VIGATORINFO TRAINING 

SERVICE SECRETARIES APPROVED 

DEPUTY SECDEF APPROVED FIXED- WING PILOT TRAINING AND 
NA VIGATORINFO TRAINING PLANS IN OCT 95 



JOINT PILOT TRAINING 

PRIMARY: 
35th FTS AT REESE AFB TEXAS AND VT-3 AT NAS WHITING FIELD FL 
BECAME PROTOTYPE JOINT TRAINING SQUADRONS 
ROTATING SQUADRON COMMAND 
BY FY 98: 100 STUDENTS CROSSFLOW ANNUALLY, 24 EXCHANGE 
INSTRUCTORS 

OTHER SQUADRONS BECOME JOINT AS THEY TRANSITION TO JPATS 

AIRLIFTITANKER/MARITIME PATROL: 
STUDENTIINSTRUCTOR EXCHANGE 
NA W EVENTUALLY TRAINS USAF TURBOPROP-BOUND STUDENTS (C-130) 
USAF EVENTUALLY TRAINS NAVY JET-BOUND STUDENTS (E-6) 



JOINT UPT-END GAME 



i JOINT UPT--CURRENT STATUS 

USAF 
USN 
USMC 
USCG 

\ WINGS 



JOINT NA VIGATOmFO TRAINING--\ 
END GAME 

USAF 

USN 

RANDOLPH AFB 

u - NAS PENSACOLA - 
USMC 

54-59 WKS 

\ USCG 



f JOINT ELECTRONIC WARFARE OFFICER 

I (E WO) TRAINING--END GAME 

I RANDOLPH AFB 

57-63 WKS 

MCIACIEC-130 - NAS PENSACOLA 67-78 WKS 



I OVER VIEW 

UFT LOCA TIONS/TYPICAL BASE 

FIXED- WING PILOT TRAINING AIRCRAFT 

( USAF PILOT TRAINING 

JOINT PILOT AND NA VIGA TORZVFO TRAINING 

\ JPATS UPDATE 



1 JPA TS CONTENDERS (T-3 7 /+-34  REPLACEMENT) 

p-NFoRM 

TAKEOFF 
WEIGHT (Ib) 

MAXIMUM 
SPEED 

ENGINE(S) 

MODEL IN 
PRODUCTlON 

APPROX 
NO. BUILT 

POTENTIAL GBTS CONTRACTORS: BRITISH AEROSPACE, CAE-LINK, HUGHES TRAINING SYSTEMS, LORAL 
DEFENSE SYSTEMS, McDONNELL DOUGLAS TRAINING SYSTEMS 

NORTHROPI 
EMBRAER 

SUPER 
TUCANO 

BRAZIL 

BEECH1 
PILATUS 

PC-9 MK I1 

SWITZERLAND 

GRUMMANI 
AGUSTA 
S.211A 

ITALY 

1 1 1 1 1  ? 1 + 
AIRCRAFT DRAWN TO SCALE 

a 
6,393 

375 

P&W 
TURBOFAN 

S.211A 
(LIMITED) 

85 

7,040 

285 

P&W 
TURBOPROP 

EMB-312AIF 

570 

ROCKWELU 
MBB 

RANGER 2000 

GERMANY 

6,789 

278 

P&W 
TURBOPROP 

PC-9 

160 

111111111111..111IIIII..I~111IIIIIIII~I~111-11-1111111111 + 
7,900 

380 

P&W 
TURBOFAN 

2 

VOUGHTI 
FMA 

PAMPA 2000 

ARGENTINA 

+ 
8,168 

400 

GARRETT 
TURBOFAN 

PAMPA 
(LOW RATE) 

18 

LOCKHEEDI 
AERMACCHI 

MB 339 

ITALY 

CESSNA 
CITATIONJET 

USA + 
10,420 

475 

ROLLS-ROYCE 
TURBOJET 

MB 339 
(LIMITED) 

182 

+ 
7,400 

420 

2 WILLIAMS 
TURBOFANS 

(PROTO) 

2 



i JPA TS ACQUISITION SCHEDULE \ 

INITIAL BRAC BRAC 95 
ANNOUNCEMENTS BASES 

CLOSED 

JPATS 
SELECTION 

JPATS 
IOC 

LAST 
JPATS 

DELIVERED 

NOTES: 
711 AIRCRAFT BUY: DOESN'T INCLUDE ALL OF ENJJPTAIRCRAFT 
SERIES OF FIRM FIXED-PRICE CONTRACTS EXTENDING 4-5 YEARS EACH 
FIRST ORDER UlLL BE FOR APPR0;TCIMTELY 140 AIRCRAFT 



f USAF UPT CHANGES SINCE 1973 

CLOSED OR REALIGNED FIVE UPT BASES 
STOPPED TRAININGIRANIANS 
ENJJPT TRAlNINING BEGUN 
TWO GENERATIONS OF FLIGHT SIMULATION CHANGES 
IFF TRAINING ABSORBED INTO UPT BASES 
T-46 TO REPLACE T-3 7 PURCHASED/CANCELLED 
SUPT AND T-I ACQUISITION 
JOINT TRAINING 
ROTARY- WlNG TRQINING CHANGED MULTIPLE TIMES 

NAV TUINING BASE CLOSED 
NA V TRAINING "REALIGNED" THREE TIMES 



JOINT UPT--1NTERIMEDIA TE 
STATUS WITH JPATS 

USAF 
USN 
USMC 
USCG 



I SUMMARY 

JOINT TRAINING IS CENTEWIECE OF UFT 

JPATS IS KEY TO CONSOLIDATED PRTMAR Y PILOT 
TRAINING 

TRAININING "VZSION" IS STILL GROWING AND 
DE VELOPING 



LOCATIONS 

TRAVIS AFB 
McGUIRE AFB 

FORCES (FY9514) FORCES (F Y9514) 
C-141 31 C-141 32 
KC-10 24 KC-10 24 
C-5 32 KC-135 19 

(ARC) 
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UNITED STATES AIR FORCE 
FIGHTER SQUADRON SIZING 



US AIR FORCE FIGHTER S Q U m R O N  SIZING 

The early 1990s saw many Air Force reorganization initiatives 

that sized and shaped the Air Force as it drew down in the post cold 

war era. The Air Force reorganized fiom a fighting force designed to 

fight the monolithic Soviet and Warsaw Pact threat on a vast and 

global scale to one designed TO be adaptable and flexible in 

responding to an array of various potential threats anywhere in the 

world. As we drew down the force, first to achieve the Base Force 

!eve1 of 06.5 fighter wing equivalents, and ultimately to  the Bottom 

Up Review force of 20 fighter wing equivalents. the Air Force 
- .  . . 

i n  - - -  , - --- ------- - .-. - > -  -- : :--122~:35 3 :  - ;--3 _ _ - s-,a!S - - - A -  - 

srreamlining command. giving the nnix commander all the organic 

manpower needed to accomplish his wartime mission, and 

increasing deployment and employment flexibility. 

The reorganization at  the wing and base level dramatically 

changed the way individual squadrons and wings were organized. 

One of the most visible features of this reorganization was the 

adoption of an 18 aircraft fighter squadron standard size. In the 

1970s and 1980s, the Air Force was organized in a combination of 18 

and 24 aircraft fighter squadrons with the predominant size being 

24 aircraft. Air Force fighter wings have traditionally comprised 

three squadrons. The decision to adopt a standard for active duty 

Air Force fighter squadrons of 18 aircraft was made in response to a 

need for increased operational flexibility associated with the new 

threat matrix. 



In the Cold War, the Air Force could clearly define the threat, 

airmen knew where they would deploy in order to meet the threat, 

and massed forces were the imperative of the moment. As the Air 

Force adapted to meet multiple and sometimes unforeseeable 

emerging threats worldwide, increased mobility and deployment 

flexibility were needed. The Air Force had to decide if it should 

have fewer squadrons of 24 aircraft or retain a higher number of 

squadrons of 18 aircraft. Since the Air Force deploys and employs 

as squadrons and modern aircraft offer increased accuracy and 

firepower, the Air Force decided to retain a hi, &er number of 
* 7 smaller squadrons ;o take nd~;antage 7--9 -- - - . . _ -  - -  - r: _-- j-b 

3-in-,-=- w.UII - 

and employment flexibility. 

( The Air Force also made other organizational changes to 

enhance flexibility and streamline organizations. Most notable of 

these was the decentralization of flightline aircraft maintenance 

from the wing level to the flying squadron. This enables a squadron 

to deploy and employ with minimal external support and provides 

the flying squadron commander control over all the resources 

needed to meet the mission. Decreasing the number of aircraft in a 

squadron also resulted in a more efficient span of supervision by 

flattening the organization and reducing unnecessary overhead. 

Still, the change increased the fighter squadron commander's span 

of supervision nearly fourfold. 



This reorganization may appear t o  increase wing and squadron 

leadership overhead Air Force wide by maintaining a greater 

number of smaller flying squadrons; however, the reverse is true. 

By placing the flightline maintenance function under the 

operational flying squadron commander, each fighter wing 

streamlined its wing staff by one deputy commander position and 

realized the manpower savings associated with two fewer 

squadrons. Although the flying squadrons have gotten smaller in 

terms of aircraft, their manpower has increased nearly fourfold and 

the fighter wings have s t r e d i n e d  by one colonel and two 

lieutenant colonel positions, each -ivitb reduczions nf their 
- a,. 

ZSSCCIFL~ ed 5'; 3::-;- 

In summary, as the *Air Force reduced fighter squadrons to 18 

aircraft, the number of squadrons in a wing remained at three. 

Although this was a decrease of approximately 18 aircraft per wing, 

we believe this increases flexibility while retaining firepower and 

reducing manpower. The streamlined wing organizational 

structure and increased deployment and employment flexibility that 

results from 18 aircraft fighter squadrons (complete with a 

manageable organic maintenance capability) are key to  the flexible 

and responsive operational organization the Air Force needs to meet 

national security objectives in the post Cold War era. 



Air Force Lean Loclistics 

The New Cornerstone 



Maximize Operational Capability By Using 
High Velocity, Just In Time Processes To 
Manage Mission and Logistics Uncertainty 

In-lieu Of Large Inventory Levels. RESULT: 
Shorter Cycle Times 
Reduced Inventories & Cost 

~mr\ MulJ 
/ 5 (i"$lwi Smaller Mobility Footprint /, ykm 



Three Level vs 



2LM Continuous Process 
Improvements: Pipeline Times 

\> ' L - 3LM 3LM WTD Avg CD Ill R2P 
/' ',- \sd9 Depot Base 

Savings t fly 
I 4430 Manpower spaces = $259M POM reduction 
I Intermediate equipment reduced 
a Mobility footprint reduced 

LG41331-6 



- Long, slow ~ i ~ e l i n e  





Baseline Repair Cycle Time 

Mar 91 6 Days 
User Visibility 

16 Days 30 Days 21 Days 

Mar 94 4 Days 14 Days 28 Days 17 Days 
- Combined Supply & Trans - Express Trans - Direct Induction 

Functions - DLA "Express - Repair on Demand 
- 2LM Table" 

LG41331-12 



L e a n i s t i c s  System 
Short, fast pipeline 
Express transportation 
Right size inventory 



Lean Logistics Inventory 
Right size inventory 
Guaranteed resupply 
Customer directs distribution 



"Lean" Repair Cycle Time 

1 Day 1-3 Days 2-5 Days 1-3 Days 



AMX 

JFrom Hub "DIRECT" TO THEATER 
Designated Hub 
JAMC MISSION 

JOrganic Aircraft 
JCRAF Aircraft 

JCONSERVATION OF MILITARY CAPABILITY 



Pipeline Visibility 
(ATAC-AF) 

Gives managers the capability to manage the pipeline 
Uses current data information systems 
Provides visibility of parts moving through the 
pipeline 



Lean Logistics Initiatives 

Two Level Maintenance 
C-5 LL Demonstration 
Comm-Electronics LL Conversion 
AFMC Shop Conversions 
I Oxygen Systems Shop - OCALC 

Radar-Navigation Shop - WRALC 
F-16 Avionics Consolidation - OOALC 



Summary 

Cycle Times Are Coming Down 
Some LL Initiatives Are Being 
Institutionalized 
Near Term Demos Will Hasten The 
Conversion to LL 
The Master Planning Process Will Insure 
Resolution of Remaining Issues1Questions 
Lots To Do -- "We Have Hardly Begun" 



AIR FORCE COMPOSITE WINGS 

A BRIEFING TO 

THE DEFENSE BASE CLOSURE 
AND REALIGNMENT COMMISSION 

BY AFIXOFC 
BRIEFING OFFICER: LT COL KARL RODEFER 



COMPOSITE WINGS 

LEGACY OF' COMPOSITE WINGS DATES TO WW I1 

COMPOSITE WINGS HAVE EXISTED AND HAVE 
EMPLOYED IN EACH MAJOR CONFLICT SINCE 

CURRENT EFFORT IS TO FIELD "MISSIONIZED" 
COMPOSITE WINGS IN PEACETIME 

PURPOSE IS TO ORGANIZE IN PEACETIME AS WE 
INTEND TO EMPLOY IN WAR 



COMPOSITE WINGS 

ORGANIZING AND TRAINING AS COHERENT FORCE 
PACKAGES IN PEACETIME OFFERS BENEFITS IN 
OPENING DAYS OF A CONFLICT: 
-- "FIRST TO FIGHT" COMBAT CAPABILITY WITH 

RANGE OF AIRPO WER CAPABILITIES 
AVAILABLE ON A MOMENTS NOTICE 

-- INTEGRATED C31 UNDER SINGLE COMMANDER 
-- PROVIDES CORE ELEMENT AROUND WHICH 

OTHER FOLLOW-ON FORCES CAN FORM 
CURRENTLY PLAN TO FIELD THREE 
"MISSIONIZED" COMPOSITE WINGS 



MT HOME AFB, ID 

366 WING -- TAILORED FOR AIR INTERVENTION 

-- F-15C, F-16C, F-15E, KC-135R, B-1 
(GEOGRAPHICALLY SEPARATED UNIT AT 
ELLSWORTH) AIRCRAFT ASSIGNED 

-- PLANS FOR FUTURE INTEGRATION OF E-3B 
ONCE WORLDWIDE TASKING PERMITS AND 
KC-1OA REPLACEMENT OF KC-135R 

I PRIMARY COMPOSITE FORCE TRAINING AREA 
CURRENTLY UTTR -- EIS UNDERWAY FOR IDAHO 
TRAINING RANGE COMPLEX 



POPE AFB, NC 

23RD WING -- TAILORED FOR AIRLAND 
OPERATIONS 

-- F-16C, AIOA-10, C-130 AIRCRAFT ARE ASSIGNED 

PRIMARY JOINT TRAINING WITH 82ND AIRBORNE 
DIVISION AT ADJACENT FT BRAGG, NC 



347 WING -- PLANNED TO BE TAILORED FOR 
AIRLAND OPERATIONS 

-- F-16C, AIOA-10, C-130 AIRCRAFT ARE PLANNED 

I PRIMARY JOINT TRAINING WILL BE WITH 24TH 
MECH INFANTRY DIVISION AT FT STEWART, GA 

AFROFC 



CONCLUSION 

COMPOSITE WINGS PROVIDE THE NATION AND 
THE NATIONAL COMMAND AUTHORITIES "READY 
TO FIGHT", MISSIONIZED FORCE PACKAGES WITH 
A RANGE OF AIRPOWER CAPABILITIES, HIGHLY 
TRAINED AIRCREWS, AND INTEGRATED C31 UNDER 
A SINGLE COMMANDER 

i 
THE RESULT -- INCREASED COMBAT 
EFFECTIVENESS IN THE MOST IMPORTANT EARLY 
HOURS OF A CONFLICT 



CONCEPT BRIEFING 

1 BRIEFER: MA J LYN SHERLOCK MOBILITY FORCES DIVISION 5B,94 



THE CHALLENGE 

MOBXlLITY FORCIES 
A CRITICAL ELEMENT OF 

OUR NATIONAL MILITARY STRATEGY 

"Because potential regional adversaries in the post-Cold War era may be 
able to mount military threats against their neighbors with little or no 

American forces must be postured to project 
power rapidly to support U.S. interests and allies." 

(SECDEF's Annual Report to the President and Congress, January 1994) 



THE AIR MOBILITY WING 
-- - - - - - 

THE CONCEPT 

COMBINES AIRLIFTERS AND TANKERS 

ON ONE BASE, 

UNDER ONE COMMANDER, 

WITH ONE MOBILITY MISSION 



ADVANTAGES 

Permits long term cost savings and increased efficiency 
- Consolidates complementary mobility assets 
- Avoids duplication of base infrastructure and staff costs 

Enhances readiness, training and cohesiveness 

- Enhances flexibility to support wide range of mobility options 
- Allows more efficient AR training for airlifters 
- Develops a team rapport/coordination between airlifters and 



ADVANTAGES 

ONE COMMANDER 

/I Provides rapid initial response capability 
- Enhances rapid global mobility 

- Gives one commander all the necessary tools 

Streamlines coordination and communications process 

- Provides single interface with the Tanker 1 Airlift Control Center 
(TACC) 

Deploy Global Reach Laydown forces 
- Reduces communications requirements 
- Minimizes potential confusion and improves operational security 



THE OPERATION 

THE MOBILITY WI.NG 
STREAMLINES SWPQRT 8e COORDINATION 

Deploy Tankers 
to Form Airbridge 

Deploy Global Reach 
Laydown forces 



ADVANTAGES 

ONE MOBILITY MISSION 
AMC's primary contingency response team 

- Improves quick initial response capability 
"First to go" orientation 

Develops mobility expertise 

- Organizes airlift and tanker forces as we intend to deploy 

- Trains a core force for the rapid deployment mission 
- Establishes an integrated "mobility" staff 

Builds a rapid mobility response mindset 

- Focuses eff'ort on rapid deployment challenge 

- Develops comprehensive mobility knowledge 

- Joins mobility assets to improve operational effectiveness 


